BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
Agenda For
May 28, 2025
Regular Meeting — 5:00 p.m.
30 Mansfield Road - Hollister, California 95023

Assistance for those with disabilities:
If you have a disability and need accommodation to participate in the meeting, please call Barbara Mauro, Board Clerk,
at (831) 637-8218, 48 hours prior to meeting for assistance so the necessary arrangements can be made.

Effective at the April 27, 2022, The Board of Directors is now allowing the public to attend in person at all meetings of
the San Benito County Water District Board. We will also continue to offer the meeting via Zoom as well. Regarding
virtual participation, members of the public are instructed to be on mute during the proceedings and to speak only
when public comment is allowed, after requesting and receiving recognition from the Board President.

ZOOM LINK
https:/ /usO6web.zoom.us/j/83438724222?pwd=F2at9b8iNObNm2JFutr8 DPHO4VRc47Z.1

Meeting ID
834 3872 4222

Passcode:
962044

Dial Only:

Dial by your location

*+1 669 444 9171 US

*+1 719 359 4580 US
e +1 720 707 2699 US (Denver)

* +1 253 205 0468 US
e +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
e +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)

If you plan to participate in the meeting and need assistance, please call
Barbara Mauro, Board Clerk, at (831) 637-8218, 48 hours prior to meeting.

CALL TO ORDER

a. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag

b. Roll Call

& Speakers will be limited to S minutes to address the Board; rebuttal will
be limited to 3 minutes; no new business agenda items will be heard
after 8:00 p.m.

d. Approval of Agenda

€. Public Input: Members of the Public are Invited to Speak on any Matter
not on the Agenda




CONSENT AGENDA:

{Consent items shall be considered as a whole and without discussion unless a particular item is removed from the
consent agenda. Board member may discuss individual items or seek information from staff or legal counsel without
removing the item from the Consent Agenda. A member of the public should seek recognition by the President if comment
is desired. Approval of consent items shall be made by one motion.)

1. Approval of Minutes for: Regular Meeting April 30, 2025

2. Allowance of Claims

3. Acknowledgement of Paid Claims prior to the May Board Meeting

4. On Call Contracts — Status Updates

5. Consider Resolution for Salary and Compensation for the
Management/Confidential/ Professional Employee Group

6. Consider Resolution regarding Salary and Compensation for the
Executive Management Group

7. Consider Resolution Adopting the 2024-2025 Salary Schedule to comply
with California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CALPERS)
statutory and regulatory requirements for compensation earnable and
publicly available pay schedules

REGULAR AGENDA

8. Recognizing David Macdonald for 10 Years of Service, Certificate Issued

9. Consider Approval of Ordinance Establishing Capacity Fees within the
District’s Zone 6 Service Area, First Reading

10. 2025-2026 District Budget

a. Presentation of 2025-2026 District Budget
b. Consider Board Approval of 2025-2026 District Budget

11. Consider Amending Resolution 2024-33 Regarding the District Policy on
Restriction and Designation of District Net Assets/Cash

12. Consider Authorizing the Board President to Execute the San Luis &
Delta-Mendota Water Authority Yuba Transfers 2026-2050 Activity
Agreement and Authorizing the General Manager to Terminate the
Existing Activity Agreement

13.  Lessalt Water Treatment Plant

a. Consider Awarding a Contract to SafeSmart LLC in the
Amount of $56,736 for Materials for Tank Access Catwalks
at the Lessalt Water Treatment Plant (Categorically Exempt
from CEQA per California Code of Regulations Title 14
Section 15301)



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

b. Consider Approval for Sunnyslope County Water District to
perform Construction of the Tank Access Catwalks at the
Lessalt Water Treatment Plant (NTE $22,400) (Categorically
Exempt from CEQA per California Code of Regulations Title
14 Section 15301)

Consider Awarding a Contract to Pacific Coast Well Drilling, Inc. for the
North San Benito Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP) for
Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) Well 2, 4 and Optional Well 1
Construction and Authorize General Manager to execute all necessary
documents (NTE $ 3,423,820)

Consider Awarding a Contract to Pacific Coast Well Drilling for the North
San Benito Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP) for Aquifer
Storage and Recovery (ASR) Well 3, 5 and Optional Well 1 Construction
and Authorize General Manager to execute all necessary documents
(NTE $3,481,820)

Consider Authorizing the General Manager to Execute a Contract with
Kennedy/Jenks Inc. Consultants for Construction Management Services
related to Phase 2 of the Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP)
(NTE $2,388,128)

Consider Authorizing the General Manager to Execute a Contract with
Todd Groundwater for Professional Services associated with the
Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP) Well Construction, Fallon
Road (NTE $472,540)

Consider Resolution for the San Benito County Water District, Acting as
the Groundwater Sustainability Agency for the North San Benito
Groundwater Basin, Requesting the County of San Benito to Collect a
Groundwater Management Fee on the Property Tax Rolls

Committee/Agency Representative Reports:

a. San Luis and Delta-Mendota Water Authority (Tonascia/Jacobson)
b. Water Resources Association (Flores/Freeman)
o Association of California Water Agencies—Joint Powers

Insurance Authority, Spring Conference/Board of Directors
Meeting, Monterey, California (Freeman)

d. Association of California Water Agencies—Spring Conference,
Monterey, California (Freeman, Tonascia, Jacobson, Miller)

e. Finance Committee (Tonascia/Freeman)

f. Zone 6 Water Supply & Operations Committee (Tonascia/Wright)

3



20.  Monthly Operations and Maintenance Report

21. General Manager’s Report:
a. Reach 1 Operations

b. Zone 3 Operations

c. Zone 6 Operations

d. Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP)

e. San Luis and Delta-Mendota Water Authority Activities
f. City of San Juan Bautista Water Supply Plan

g. B F Sisk Dam Raise Project

h. Miscellaneous District items

22. CLOSED SESSION: Conference with Legal Counsel-Existing litigation
Government Code § 54956.9(d)(1)
Kurasaki vs. Caltrans et al; San Benito County

23. CLOSED SESSION: Conference with Legal Counsel-Anticipated
litigation
Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) or (3) of
subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9: one case

24. OPEN SESSION:
Report any actions, if any, from Closed Session item

25. Adjournment

Adjournment - Unless there is a special meeting prior to that time, the next regular meeting of the Board will be Wednesday, June
25, 2025. Meetings are held at the District office, 30 Mansfield Road, Hollister, California. LAST DAY TO FILE CLAIMS against
the District is the second Friday of each month, except in November and December. Usually meeting dates change in those months
because of holidays. The Board may hold a closed session to discuss personnel matters, litigation or employee negotiations as
authorized by the Raiph M. Brown Act, Evidence Code #950-962 or other appropriate State law.

All public records relating to an agenda item on this agenda are available for public inspection at the time the record is distributed to
all, or a majority of all, members of the Board. Such records shall be available at the District office located at 30 Mansfield Road,
Hollister, California.




April 30, 2025
Regular Meeting
5:02 p.m.

The Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water District convened in regular
session on Wednesday, April 30. 2025 at 5:02 p.m. at the San Benito County Water District
office at 30 Mansfield Road, Hollister, California. Members present were: President Doug
Williams, Vice President Mark Wright and Directors Sonny Flores and Joe Tonascia; Director
John Freeman was absent. Also present were General Manager Dana Jacobson, District Counsel
Jeremy T. Liem, Assistant General Manager Brett Miller, Operations and Maintenance Manager
Michael Craig, Senior Engineer David Macdonald, Water Conservation Program Manager
Jennifer Arellano, Executive Assistant/Board Clerk Barbara Mauro, Jeff Cattanco and other
members of District staff.

CALL TO ORDER

President Williams called the meeting to order at 5:02 p.m.

a. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag
President Williams led the Pledge of Allegiance.

b. Roll Call
Mrs. Mauro called roll. Members present were: President Williams, Vice President
Wright and Directors Flores and Tonascia; Director Freeman was absent.

c. Speakers will be limited to S minutes to address the Board; rebuttal will be limited
to 3 minutes; no new business agenda items will be heard after 8:00 p.m.

d. Approval of Agenda .
With a motion by Director Tonascia and a second by Director Flores, the Agenda was
approved by 4 affirmative votes, Williams, Wright, Flores and Tonascia and there was 1
absence, Freeman.

e. Public Input: Members of the Public are Invited to Speak on any Matter not on the
Agenda
There were no public comments.
CONSENT AGENDA:
1. Approval of Minutes for: March 26, 2025 Regular Meeting
April 9, 2025 Special Meeting
April 16, 2025 Special Meeting
2. Allowance of Claims
3. Acknowledgement of Paid Claims prior to the April Board Meeting
4, Acceptance of Quarterly Investment Report, March 31, 2025
5. On Call Contracts — Status Updates
6. Consider Amendment to December 18, 2024 Agreement with C. Overaa & Co.

Regarding West Hills Water Treatment Plant Expansion Project and Authorizing
General Manager to Execute Such Amendment

Regular Meeting Minutes, April 30, 2025



There were no questions, so a motion was made by Director Tonascia and seconded by Vice
President Wright; the Consent Agenda was approved by 4 affirmative votes, Williams, Wright,
Flores and Tonascia and there was 1 absence, Freeman.

REGULAR AGENDA

7.

Recognizing Anne Stull for 30 Years of Service, Certificate Issued

Alison Navarro, Mrs. Stull’s daughter, spoke on behalf of her family, congratulating her
mother on this milestone. Mr. Jacobson also thanked her for all her service to the District
and for being the face to our Ag customers. President Williams presented Mrs. Stull with
a plaque commemorating her 30 years of service and thanked her on behalf of the Board.

With a motion by Director Flores and a second by Director Tonascia, the Board of
Directors approved Recognizing Anne Stull for 30 years of service by 4 affirmative
votes, Williams, Wright, Flores and Tonascia and there was 1 absence, Freeman.

Recognizing Michael Craig for 20 Years of Service, Certificate Issued

Mr. Jacobson stated Mr. Craig is a true success story and the District is lucky to have
him. He added he is a true asset. President Williams thanked Mr. Craig for his 20 years
of service. Mr. Jacobson presented Mr. Craig with a plaque commemorating his 20 years
of service.

With a motion by Director Tonascia and a second by Vice President Wright, the Board of
Directors approved Recognizing Michael Craig for 20 years of service by 4 affirmative
votes, Williams, Wright, Flores and Tonascia and there was 1 absence, Freeman.

Consider Resolutions of the San Benito County Water District and San Benito
County Water District Financing Authority Approving the Installment Sale
Financing to Provide Financing of Water System Improvements for Zone 6
Accelerated Drought Response Project (NTE $42,000,000)

Mr. Miller stated about eight months ago, the Board discussed the need for bonds for the
ADROoP Project for approximately $40 million. This morning, the S & P gave the District
an AA-rating. He then introduced Eileen Gallagher of Stifel, who will give a
PowerPoint Presentation on the bonds.

Ms. Gallagher stated the District has been awarded approximately $20 million in grant
funds for this project and will be taking out approximately $40 million in water revenue
bonds. A JPA has been formed as the San Benito County Water District Water
Authority. Ms. Gallagher reviewed how the bonds will be issued and repaid and the
Board will be the Financing Authority. She further reviewed the members of the
Financing Team and the Key Steps.

Ms. Gallagher stated if the Board approves this tonight, she stated what would be the next
steps. The Bond Closing will be the final step.

The Board’s actions will be to approve the resolution acting as the Financing Authority
for the Bonds and also a approve a resolution on behalf of the District. She reviewed the
documents which are: Installment Sale Agreement, Indenture of Trust, Official
Statement, Disclosure Agreement and Bond Purchase Contract. Ms. Gallagher discussed

Regular Meeting Minutes, April 30, 2025



10.

the current Muni Bonds and the current market condition. Anticipated bond closure is
the end of May, 2025.

Mr. Miller stated the cost for government code disclosure, which is currently an estimate,
is 1.3% or $507,000.

Director Flores asked if there were any additional costs? Ms. Gallagher stated that’s all
included and will be in the bond proceeds. Director Flores further asked about the rate
for the bonds. Ms. Gallagher stated due to the historic volatility of the market, the rate
can go up or down.

Mr. Miller did add, this item comes before the Board with the Finance Committee’s
recommendation.

With no further questions from the Board and no questions from the public, a motion was
made by Director Tonascia and seconded by Director Flores, the Board of Directors
approved Resolution #2025-05 4 Resolution Approving (1) installment sale financing to
provide financing of water system improvements and (2) financing documents and related
official actions by 4 affirmative votes, Williams, Wright, Flores and Tonascia and there
was 1 absence, Freeman.

With a motion by Director Flores and a second by Vice President Wright, the Board of
Directors approved Resolution #2025-06 A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the
San Benito County Water District Financing Authority Approving (1) installment sale
financing to provide financing of water system improvements, and (2) financing
documents and related official actions by 4 affirmative votes, Williams, Wright, Flores
and Tonascia and there was 1 absence, Freeman.

Annual Groundwater Report 2024

Mr. Jacobson gave a brief history on why the District produces a groundwater report
annually and that in 2014 when SGMA (Sustainable Groundwater Management Act) was
put in place, there is also a requirement to produce a report. The current report replaces
the District’s previous groundwater report and complies with the SGMA requirements.
He then introduced Maureen Reilly from Todd Groundwater to present the report via a
PowerPoint Presentation.

a. Presentation of Report
Ms. Reilly reviewed the SGMA requirements and stated this is the 4%
report following the District’s approval of the Groundwater Sustainability
Plan. She then reviewed what the District Act requires and what SGMA
requires and all that information is included in this report. There are 4
areas represented in the North San Benito Groundwater Basin. The report
shows average conditions are up, the CVP allocation was good and the
groundwater storage is also on the rise. She reviewed the conditions based
on the monitoring wells and the numerical model was updated. Based on
the SGMA requirements, Ms. Reilly stated no undesirable results were
found and the basin is sustainable.

Regular Meeting Minutes, April 30, 2025



11.

12.

Ms. Reilly reviewed the District’s current projects: B.F. Sisk Dam Raise
Project, ADRoP, and the San Juan Bautista Regional Water and
Wastewater solution.

Based on the report, the recommendations are: $14.31 per acre foot
groundwater charge for agriculture and municipal and industrial, continue
groundwater production and replenishment, continue SGMA
Implementation and the annual water demand/supply memo, due in June
2026. Ms. Reilly further stated the next steps would be the periodic
evaluation which is due January 2027 which will review water quality,
subsidence and interconnected surface water.

Vice President Wright asked about Open ET. Ms. Reilly stated that uses
satellite data to measure evaporation and can be aimed at a particular crop
and what that crop needs. Mr. Jacobson further added in absence of meter
data, it is a good tool; over the next few months there will be more
information on this topic.

b. Consider Acceptance of Annual Groundwater Report 2024
With no further questions from Directors or from the public, a motion was
made by Director Tonascia and seconded by Director Flores; the Board of
Directors accepted the Annual Groundwater Report 2024 by 4 affirmative
votes, Williams, Wright, Flores and Tonascia and there was 1 absence,
Freeman.

Consider Extending the Contract for one additional year (Fiscal Year 2024-2025)
with McGilloway, Ray, Brown, & Kaufman for auditing services

Mr. Miller stated the District is approaching the end of the fiscal year and with the audit
on the horizon and the accounting staff implementing a new software, staff is
recommending extending the auditing services for one additional year with our current
auditor. He further stated the District has a good and established relationship with the
current auditor. The District could prepare an RFP in January 2026. This item comes
before the Board with the Finance Committee’s recommendation as well.

With no questions from the Board or the public, there was a motion by Director Flores
and a second by Director Tonascia; the Board of Directors approved extending the
contract for one additional year (Fiscal Year 2024-2025) with McGilloway, Ray, Brown
& Kaufman for auditing services, by 4 affirmative votes, Williams, Wright, Flores and
Tonascia and there was 1 absence, Freeman.

Consider Awarding a Contract to Corrpro Companies, Inc for Installation of an
Impressed Current Cathodic Protection System at the Lessalt Water Treatment
Plant and Authorizing the General Manager to sign contract (NTE §$ 144,000)

Mr. Macdonald reviewed this item for the Board. The last time this was done at Lessalt
was 2017. This process stops corrosion at the tanks. It is typical maintenance, similar to
what the District has done for the Hollister Conduit, and it is a proven method. Staffis
recommending going with Corrpro Companies, Inc., as they were the lowest quote.

Regular Meeting Minutes, April 30, 2025



13.

14.

15.

Discussion ensued about how often this will need to be done and also if the same will be
needed at West Hills. West Hills uses another process, so this would be different. Mr.
Cattaneo suggested obtaining a cost on a maintenance contract for the future.

With no further questions from Directors or the public, a motion was made by Director
Flores and seconded by Vice President Wright; the Board of Directors awarded a contract
to Corrpro Companies, Inc for Installation of an Impressed Current Cathodic Protection
System at the Lessalt Water Treatment Plant and Authorizing the General Manager to
sign contract (NTE § 144,000) by 4 affirmative votes, Williams, Wright, Flores and
Tonascia and there was 1 absence, Freeman.

Consider Salary increase for the District Engineer and Deputy District

Engineer positions

Mr. Miller reviewed this item for the Board. The recruiter the District is working with to
fill these positions, has recommended increasing both salaries. Staff and the Personnel
Committee are in agreement with the recruiter and is asking to increase the Deputy
District Engineer position by 5% and to increase the District Engineer by 10%.

With no questions from the Directors or the public, a motion was made by Vice President
Wright and seconded by Director Flores; the Board of Directors agreed to increase the
salary for both the District Engineer (10%) and Deputy District Engineer (5%) Positions
by 4 affirmative votes, Williams, Wright, Flores and Tonascia and there was 1 absence,
Freeman.

Consider Resolution Declaring May as Water Awareness Month

Ms. Arellano reviewed this item for the Board. She gave a brief history on Water
Awareness Month, dating back to the 1987-1992 drought. Using a PowerPoint
Presentation, Ms. Arellano reviewed the programs offered through the Water Resources
Association (WRA) and May being the start of the irrigation season coincides with
WAM. She reviewed indoor/outdoor conservation, toilet replacements, home water
surveys, turf removal program and her use of social media platforms. Ms. Arellano added
approximately 100,000 square feet of turf have been replaced so far.

With no further questions from the Board or the public, the Board of Directors approved
Resolution #2025-08, A4 Resolution of the Board of Directors of the San Benito County
Water District Declaring May as Water Awareness Month by 4 affirmative votes,
Williams, Wright, Flores and Tonascia and there was 1 absence, Freeman.

Committee/Agency Representative Reports:
a. San Luis and Delta-Mendota Water Authority (Tonascia/Jacobson)
As per Director Tonascia, this will be covered under the Manager’s Report.

b. Pajaro River Watershed Flood Prevention Authority (Flores/Wright)
As per Director Flores, the meeting was cancelled.

c. Water Resources Association (Flores/Freeman)
As per Director Flores, general business was discussed.

Regular Meeting Minutes, April 30, 2025



16.

17.

d. Finance Committee (Tonascia/Freeman)
As per Director Tonascia, this has already been covered.

e. Investment Committee (Flores/Williams)
As per Directors Flores and Williams, they reviewed the quarterly report.

f. Personnel Committee (Flores/Tonascia)
As per Directors Flores and Tonascia, this has already been covered.

g. Zone 6 Water Supply & Operations Committee (Tonascia/Wright)
As per Directors Tonascia and Wright, this has already been covered.

Monthly Operations and Maintenance Report

Mr. Craig reported San Justo Reservoir is at 492.6° and the District is currently running
reverse flow so the reservoir can be brought back down to 485°. On April 8", District
staff opened Hernandez and began releasing into Paicines and the outlet was opened and
began releasing into Tres Pinos Creek, but Mr. Craig acknowledged there is a small
leak. President Williams added there is another leak a little further down as well. Mr.
Craig also reported last month the District began percolating near the frog ponds and the
Tres Pinos area. On May 9", the Department of Safety of Dams (DSOD) have
scheduled their annual inspection of Hernandez and Paicines. He will be relieved not to
have a write-up for the valve at Hernandez, now that it has been repaired.

General Manager’s Report:
a. Reach 1 Operations
Mr. Jacobson stated he had nothing to report at this time.

b. Zone 3 Operations
Mr. Jacobson stated Mr. Craig has covered this already.

c¢. Zone 6 Operations
Mr. Jacobson reported the USBR increased the AG allocation to 50%.

d. Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP)
Mr. Jacobson reported the West Hills expansion work will begin construction soon;
the contractor has begun mobilization. There are two well contracts out to bid; each
requesting 2 wells plus 1 optional. The plan is to have two rigs on-site at one time.
The bid opening for these contracts is May 15%. Director Flores asked if all the well
easement agreements are complete. Mr. Jacobson reported there is still some
negotiation being done, but staff is hoping by the May board meeting. The Water
Supply and Treatment Agreement (WSTA) is getting close to a point to
share/negotiate with the other agencies. Instead of an amendment, staff and special
counsel are creating a new agreement and this will include the ADRoP project and
adding the City of San Juan Bautista.

e. San Luis and Delta-Mendota Water Authority Activities
Mr. Jacobson didn’t have anything to report on the Authority. However, the Acting
Regional Manager and his assistant were at the meeting. They expressed concern
about the number of staff leaving the USBR as it may cause delays in maintenance

Regular Meeting Minutes, April 30, 2025



and operations. There is also an upcoming workshop on Subsidence, which he will
report on when more information is available.

f. City of San Juan Bautista Water Supply Plan
Mr. Jacobson reported District staff continues to work with City’s staff and have a
verbal agreement. Once the District has a draft of the new WSTA, he will share that
and begin negotiations with them as well. Mr. Miller and the City’s consultant had a
meeting that went well.

g. B F Sisk Dam Raise Project
Mr. Jacobson reported there is nothing to report on the project itself. However, he did
report that the capacity fee is moving forward. Depending on what is required, the
draft ordinance may be on the May board agenda. Vice President Wright asked if it
goes into effect immediately; Mr. Jacobson said, he believes 30 days after approval.

h. Miscellaneous District items
Mr. Jacobson reported he has signed 2 contracts, that were within his authority. The
first was for WRA for Cupertino Marketing for approximately $29,000 and was in
their budget. The second is related to the IRWMP Grant. The District is the grantee
and there were 2 sub-agreements that needed to be signed; 1 for Resource
Conservation District of Santa Cruz and Santa Clara Valley Water District.

18. CLOSED SESSION: Conference with Legal Counsel-Existing litigation
Government Code § 54956.9(d)(1)
Kurasaki vs. Caltrans ef al; San Benito County
As per Mr. Liem, there is nothing to report on this item, so there is no need for a Closed
Session.

19. OPEN SESSION:
Report any actions, if any, from Closed Session item
N/A.

20. Adjournment
With nothing further to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 6:33 p.m.

Doug Williams, President

Barbara L. Mauro, Executive Assistant/Board Clerk

Regular Meeting Minutes, April 30, 2025



System: 5/22/202% 10:55:41 . San Benito County Water District Page: 1
User Date: 5/22/202¢ COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER User ID: Leilani
Payables Management
Batch ID: CK052825 Audit Trail Code: PMCHK00001074
Batch Comment; Posting Date: 5/28/2025
Checkbook: UB-CKG
*Voided Checks
Check # Date Payment Number  Vendor ID Check Name Amount
0059659 5/28/2025 033661 A1JAN A-1 Services $828.00
0059660 5/28/2025 033662 ATOOL A Tool Shed $498.52
0059661 5/28/2025 033663 AWWA AWWA $525.00
0059662 5/28/2025 033664 B&SSU B&S Supply $104.79
0059663 5/28/2025 033665 BEFOR Before the Movie Inc $438.00
0059664 5/28/2025 033666 BRIGA Brigantino Irrigation $34,362.57
0059665 5/28/2025 033667 CCOIG C.C.O.l. Gate & Fence $180.00
0059666 5/28/2025 033668 CELLU Cellular Controlled Products $195.00
0059667 5/28/2025 033669 CINTA Cintas Corporation $782.30
0059668 5/28/2025 033670 CMANA CM Analytical Inc $860.00
0059669 5/28/2025 033671 CUPER Eric Bocanegra $10,480.00
0059670 5/28/2025 033672 DAHL DAHL Consuitants $7,200.00
0059671 5/28/2025 033673 DASSE Dassel's Petroleum Inc $86.35
0059672 5/28/2025 033674 DATAF Dataflow Business Systems inc $587.23
0059673 5/28/2025 033675 DONCH Don Chapin Company Inc $110.33
0059674 5/28/2025 033676 EDGES Edges Electrical Group $1,708.03
0059675 5/28/2025 033677 ELCCO ELC Consulting $8,477.00
0059676 5/28/2025 033678 FASTE Fastenal Company $310.89
0059677 5/28/2025 033679 GOLDEN Golden State Portables $900.00
0059678 5/28/2025 033680 GROSS Grossmayer & Associates $290.00
0059679 5/28/2025 033681 GUTIE Gutierrez Consultants $15,820.00
0059680 5/28/2025 033682 HARRYBL Harry Blohm $375.00
0059681 5/28/2025 033683 HAUTO Hollister Auto Parts Inc $370.12
0059682 5/28/2025 033684 HDRENG HDR Engineering Inc $1,066.90
0059683 5/28/2025 033685 JOHNS Johnson Lumber Company $1,543.23
0059684 5/28/2025 033686 JOHNSM John Smith Landfill $311.18
0059685 5/28/2025 033687 KENNE Kennedy/Jenks Consultants Inc. $47,361.64
0059686 5/28/2025 033688 LANDS Landscape Design by Rosemary Bridwell $500.00
0059687 5/28/20256 033689 MCMAS McMaster-Carr Supply Co $1,211.00
0059688 5/28/2025 033690 MICKO Micko Consultants $9,830.00
0059689 5/28/2025 033691 MISSIO Mission Village Voice Media LLC $530.00
0059690 5/28/2025 033692 PALAC Palace Business Solutions $473.77
0059691 5/28/2025 033693 PATDA Pat Davis Design Group Inc. $475.00
0059692 5/28/2025 033694 RAFTE Raftelis $2,507.50
0059693 5/28/2025 0336895 RESER Reserve Account $1,000.00
0059694 5/28/2025 033696 RIANDA Rianda Air inc. $885.00
0059695 5/28/2025 033687 ROSSI Rossi's Tire & Auto Service $98.27
0059696 5/28/2025 033698 SBCBC San Benito County Business Council $1,436.00
0059697 5/28/2025 033699 SCVWD Santa Clara Valley Water Dist $108,836.88
0059698 5/28/2025 033700 SHRED Shred-it $274.09
0059699 5/28/2025 033701 SJELE SJ Electro Systems Inc $48,227.80
0059700 5/28/2025 033702 SPURZ Spurzem & Liem LLP $7,125.00
0059701 5/28/2025 033703 SSCWD-TP Sunnyslope County Water District $291,7561.64
0059702 5/28/2025 033704 TODDE Todd Groundwater $4,770.00
0059703 5/28/2025 033705 TOROP Toro Petroleum Corporation $3,817.84
0059704 5/28/2025 033706 TRUEP TruePoint Solutions $740.00
0059705 5/28/2025 033707 TURBO Turbo Time Welding $5,156.70



System:
User Date:

*Voided Checks

Check# Date

5/22/2025 10:55:
5/22/2025

Payment Number

San Benito County Water District
COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER

Vendor ID

Check Name

Page:

2

User ID: Leilani

Amount

0059706 5/28/2025 033708
0059707 5/28/2025 033709
0059708 5/28/2025 033710
0059709 5/28/2025 033711
0059710 5/28/2025 033712
0059711  5/28/2025 033713

Total Checks:

53

TYLER
USBNK-CC
VERDA
WBCP
WIENH
ZEIAL

Tyler Technologies

US Bank Corporation

Verdant Commercial Capital LLC
WBCP, Inc

Wienhoff & Associates Inc.

Alan Zeisbrich

Checks Total:

o "'/////;'

$6,772.50
$6,995.49
$239.81
$12,387.00
$75.00
$2,012.50



Page: 3

System: 5/22/2025 10:55: San Benito County Water District
User ID: Leilani

User Date: 5/22/2025 COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER

*Voided Checks

Check # Date Payment Number Vendor ID Check Name Amount

STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF SAN BENITO

| DO HEREBY CERTIFY, UNDER THE PENALTY OF PERJURY AT HOLLISTER, CALIFORNIA
THIS 28TH DAY OF MAY 2025 THAT THE FOREGOING DEMANDS ENUMERATED HAVE
BEEN AUDITED; THAT THE SAME ARE ACCURATE AND JUST CLAIMS AGAINST THE DISTRICT;

AND THAT THERE ARE FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR PAYMENT.

~ 4 ’ e
/i‘ ,‘-//:/.F/T———”‘/
.

&7

Prepared by: Assistant General Manager %bmitted by: General Manager

APPROVED BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON:
Date

President



San Benito County Water District
Payment Fund Responsibility

5/2212025

Page | of 18
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033661 5/22/2025 $828.00 AlJAN A-1 Services
Voucher: 052238 Invoice: 5026 Date: 5/1/2025 Janitorial Services Doc Amt: $828.00
Allocations: $54.00 100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $27.00 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $459.00 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $28.80 100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $14.40 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $244.80 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $82.80 Fund 300 $41.40 Fund 600; $703.80
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033662 §/22/2025 $498.52 ATOOL A Tool Shed
Voucher: 052362 Invoice:  1745064-7 Date: 5/20/2025 Maintenance Equipment Rental  Doc Amt: $498.52
Allocations: $498.52 600-6450-0000-542 Tool & Equipment Rental-TM
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $498.52
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033663 5/22/2025 $525.00 AWWA American Water Works Association
Voucher: 052239 Invoice: S0227811 Date: 3/28/2025 Membership Dues FY25-26 Doc Amt: $525.00
Aliocations: $525.00 600-6820-0000-562 Dues and Fee
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $525.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:3$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033664 5/22/2025 $104.79 B&SSU B&S Supply
Voucher: 052240 Invoice: 2878 Date: 4/16/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $104.79
Allocations: $104.79 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $104.79
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total  Vendor ID Vendor Name
033665 5/22/2025 $438.00 BEFOR Before the Movie Inc
Voucher: 052241 Invoice: 54215 Date: 5/1/2025 On-Screen Ad Doc Amt: $438.00

Allocations:

$438.00 803-6865-0000-562

Advertising/Public Info (P1)



Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00

Fund 100: $0.00

Fund 300: $0.00

Fund 600: $0.00

Page 2 of I8

Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:8438.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033666 51222025 $34,362.57 BRIGA Brigantino Irrigation
Voucher: 052242 Invoice: 220000105145 Date: 4/22/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $63.16
Allocations: 363.16 600-6337-0918-551 Meters-Downsizing parts/repair supply
Voucher: 052243 Invoice: 220000106299 Date: 4/29/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $114.60
Allocations: $114.60 600-6337-0918-551 Meters-Downsizing parts/repair supply
Voucher: 052244 Invoice: 220000104744 Date: 4/18/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $15.30
Allocations: $15.30 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Voucher: 052245 Invoice: 220000107010 Date: 5/5/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $40.04
Allocations: $40.04 600-6321-0000-542 Supplies-Structure Equip TDM
Voucher: 052246 Invoice: 220000105618 Date: 4/24/2025 Contracted Services Doc Amt:  $12,276.55
Allocations: $12,276.55 600-6275-0000-542 CS-Maintenance-TM
Voucher: 052247 Invoice: INV-27168 Date: 4/21/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt:  $6,136.57
Allocations: $6,136.57 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
Voucher: 052248 Invoice: INV-27198 Date: 4/22/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt:  $7,929.12
Allocations: $7,929.12  600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Voucher: 052249 Invoice:  INV-27199 Date: 4/22/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt:  $7,635.92
Allocations: $7,635.92 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
Voucher: 052293 Invoice: 220000107069 Date: 5/6/2025 WRA Survey Supplies Doc Amt: $151.31
Allocations: $151.31 803-6320-0000-562 Supplies (Survey)
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $34,211.26
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:8151.31
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor 1D Vendor Name
033667 5/22/2025 $180.00 CCOIG C.C.0.1. Gate & Fence
Voucher: 052250 Invoice: 3652138631 Date: 4/18/2025 Maintenance SJR Gate Doc Amt: $180.00
Allocations: $180.00 600-6275-0000-542 CS-Maintenance-TM



Payment Responsibilities:

Page 3 of 18

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $180.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:50.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033668 5/22/2025 $195.00 CELLU Cellular Controlled Products
Voucher: 052351 Invoice: 0104801-IN Date: 6/1/2025 Quarterly Service Doc Amt: $195.00
Allocations: $195.00 600-6820-0000-562 Dues and Fee
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $195.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:50.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor 1D Vendor Name
033669 5/22/2025 $782.30 CINTA Cintas Corporation
Voucher: 052251 Invoice: 4228166448 Date: 4/22/2025 Weekly Service Doc Amt: $156.46
Allocations: $15.65 100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $7.82 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $132.99 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Voucher: 052252 Invoice: 4228895616 Date: 4/29/2025 Weekly Service Doc Amt: $156.46
Allocations: $15.65 100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $7.82 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations; $132.99 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Voucher: 052253 Invoice: 4229582512 Date: 5/6/2025 Weekly Service Doc Amt: $156.46
Allocations: $15.65 100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations; $7.82 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $132.99 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Voucher: 052339 Invoice: 4230383178 Date: 5/13/2025 Weekly Service Doc Amt: $156.46
Allocations: $15.65 100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $7.82 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $132.99 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Voucher: 052371 Invoice: 4231121053 Date: 5/20/2025 Weekly Service Doc Amt; $156.46
Allocations: $15.65 100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $7.82 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations; $132.99 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $78.23 Fund 300: $39.12 Fund 600: $664.96
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033670 5/22/2025 $860.00 CMANA CM Analytical Inc
Voucher: 052352 Invoice: 84625 Date: 5/13/2025 Water Quality Testing Doc Amt: $860.00

Allocations: $860.00 600-6270-0604-541 CS Operations Recycied Water Project



Page 4 of 18

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $860.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033671 5/22/2025 $10,480.00 CUPER Cupertino Marketing
Voucher: 052254 Invoice: 1438 Date: 4/23/2025 Social Media Ads Doc Amt: $400.00
Allocations: $400.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (PI)
Voucher: 052294 Invoice: 1443 Date: 5/5/2025 Billboard & CTV Advertising Doc Amt:  $10,080.00
Allocations: $10,080.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (PI)

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$10,480.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033672 5/22/2025 $7,200.00 DAHL DAHL Consultants
Voucher: 052337 Invoice: 1505 Date: §/15/2025 Project Management for ADRoP  Doc Amt:  §7,200.00
Allocations: $7,200.00 600-1351-C129-151 Grant Expense - ADRoP (DWR $11.5 M)

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $7,200.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033673 5/22/2025 $86.35 DASSE Dassel's Petroteum Inc
Voucher: 052353 Invoice: 4012 Date: 5/5/2025 Vehicle Fuel Bill Doc Amt: $86.35
Allocations: $86.35 600-6320-0000-562 Supplies-GA

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $86.35
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033674 5/22/2025 §587.23 DATAF Dataflow Business Systems Inc
Voucher: 052255 Invoice: 421522 Date: 5/5/12025 Copier Lease Doc Amt: $574.73
Allocations: $57.47 100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $28.74 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations; $488.52 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Voucher: 052256 Invoice: 420361 Date: 4/21/2025 Copier Lease Doc Amt: $12.50
Allocations: $10.63 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $0.63 300-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA

Allocations: $1.25 100-6835-0000-362-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA



Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00

Fund 100: $58.72

Fund 300: $29.36

Fund 600: $499.15

Page 5of 18

Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Veador Name
033675 5/22/2025 $110.33 DONCH Don Chapin Company Inc
Voucher: 052363 Invoice: 195898 Date: 5/14/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $110.33
Allocations: $110.33  600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $110.33
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033676 5/22/2025 $1,708.03 EDGES Edges Electrical Group
Voucher: 052257 Invoice:  S6402208.004 Date: 4/24/2025 Electrical Supplies Doc Amt: $11.70
Allocations: $0.59 300-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
Allocations; $9.95 600-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $1.17 100-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
Voucher: 052258 Invoice: S6402208.003 Date: 4/23/2025 Electrical Supplies Doc Amt: $19.32
Allocations: $0.97 300-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $16.42 600-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $1.93 100-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
Voucher: 052259 Invoice:  S6420617.001 Date: 4/18/2025 Electrical Supplies Doc Amt:  $1,677.01
Allocations: $1,677.01 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $3.10 Fund 300: $1.55 Fund 600: $1,703.38
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033677 5/22/2025 $8,477.00 ELCCO ELC Consulting
Voucher: 052260 Invoice: 10344 Date: 5/1/2025 Monthly Service Agreement Doc Amt:  $1,480.00
Allocations: $690.00 600-6260-0602-531 CS Computer - Lessalt WTP
Allocations: $790.00 600-6260-0603-531 CS Computer - West Hills WTP
Voucher; 052261 Invoice: 10345 Date: 5/1/2025 Monthly Service Agreement Doc Amt: $100.00
Allocations: $100.00 803-6260-0000-563 CS - Computers
Voucher: 052262 Invoice: 10343 Date: 5/1/2025 Monthly Service Agreement Doc Amt:  $6,897.00
Allocations: $659.70 100-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $329.85 300-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $5,607.45 600-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $300.00 600-6260-0000-563 CS-Computer-GA



Payment Responsibilitics:

Page60of 18

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $659.70 Fund 300: $329.85 Fund 600: $7,387.45
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$100.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033678 8/22/2025 $310.89 FASTE Fastenal Company
Voucher: 052263 Invoice: MNO019932504 Date: 4/8/2025 Inventory Control-Nuts & Bolts  Doc Amit: $50.93
Allocations: $50.93 600-6820-0000-562 Dues and Fee
Voucher: 052264 Invoice: CAHOS69421 Date: 5/2/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $17.10
Allocations: $17.10 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Voucher: 052354 Invoice: MNO019940196 Date: 5/9/2025 Inventory Control-Nuts & Bolts  Doc Amt: $50.93
Allocations: $50.93 600-6820-0000-562 Dues and Fee
Voucher: 052355 Invoice: CAHOS69504 Date: 5/8/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $191.93
Allocations; $191.93 600-6320-0000-342 Supplies-TM
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $310.89
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:80.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033679 5/22/2025 $900.00 GOLDEN Golden State Portables
Voucher: 052265 Invoice: 57018 Date: 4/1/2025 Portable Toilet Rental Doc Amt: $450.00
Allocations: $450.00 600-6275-0000-542 CS-Maintenance-TM
Voucher: 052266 Invoice: 57019 Date: 4/1/2025 Portable Toilet Rental Doc Amt: $450.00
Aliocations: $450.00 600-6275-0000-542 CS-Maintenance-T™M
Payment Responsibilitics:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $900.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033680 5/22/2025 $290.00 GROSS Grossmayer & Associates
Voucher: 052267 Invoice: 1VC3873 Date; 4/23/2025 Consulting Services Doc Amt: $290.00
Allocations: $29.00 100-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $14.50 300-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $246.50 600-6260-0000-363-06 CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $29.00 Fund 300: $14.50 Fund 600: $246.50
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033681 5/22/2025 $15,820.00 GUTIE Gutierrez Consultants
Voucher: 052340 Invoice: 1984 Date: 5/9/2025 Consulting Services Doc Amt:  $9,030.00

Allocations: $9,030.00 600-1351-0168-151 Pajaro Watershed IRWMP



Page 7of 18

Voucher: 052341 Invoice: 1986 Date: 5/9/2025 Consulting Services Doc Amt:  $1,750.00
Allocations: $1,750.00 600-1351-C129-151 Grant Expense - ADRoP (DWR $11.5 M)
Voucher: 052342 Invoice: 1985 Date: 5/9/2025 Consulting Services Doc Amt:  $5,040.00
Allocations: $5,040.00 600-1351-D129-151 Grant Expense - ADRoP (USBR $6.7 M)
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $15,820.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033682 §/22/2025 $375.00 HARRYBL  Harry Blohm
Voucher: 052364 Invoice: 052025 Date: 5/20/2025 Consulting Services Doc Amt; $375.00
Allocations: $375.00 600-1351-0168-151 Pajaro Watershed IRWMP
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $375.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor 1D Vendor Name
033683 §/22/2025 $370.12 HAUTO Hollister Auto Parts Inc
Voucher: 052268 Invoice: 006589 Date: 5/8/2025 Backhoe Maintenance Doc Amt: $44.76
Allocations: $44.76 600-6482-0000-562 Equipment Maintenance-Heavy
Voucher; 052269 Invoice: 004573 Date: 4/18/2025 WRA Survey Supplies Doc Amt: $17.47
Allocations: $17.47 803-6320-0000-562 Supplies (Survey)
Voucher: 052270 Invoice: 004745 Date: 4/21/2025 Tractor Supplies Doc Amt: $211.25
Allocations: $211.25 600-6482-0000-562 Equipment Maintenance-Heavy
Voucher: 052271 Invoice: 006568 Date: 5/8/2025 District Supplies Doc Amt: $96.64
Allocations: $4.83 300-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $82.14 600-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $9.66 100-6320-0000-562-06  Supplies-GA 10/5/85
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $9.66 Fund 300: $4.83 Fund 600: $338.15
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:817.47
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033684 5/22/2025 $1,066.90 HDRENG HDR Engineering Inc
Voucher: 052272 Invoice: 1200697395 Date: 2/13/2025 Engineering Services DocAmt:  $1,066.90

Allocations: $1,066.90 600-1351-0168-151 Pajaro Watershed IRWMP



Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00
Fund 700: $0.00

Fund 100: $0.00
Fund 803:30.00

Fund 300: $0.00

Fund 600: $1,066.90

Page 8 of 18

Payment# Date Check Total Vendor 1D Vendor Name
033685 5/22/2025 $1,543.23 JOHNS Johnson Lumber Company

Voucher: 052274 Invoice: 283555 Date: 4/22/2025 Electrical Supplies Doc Amt: $77.51
Allocations: $77.51 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM

Voucher: 052275 Invoice: 283588 Date: 4/23/2025 WRA Survey Supplies Doc Amt: $41.49
Allocations: $41.49 803-6320-0000-562 Supplies (WC)

Voucher: 052276 Invoice: 283767 Date: 4/30/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $329.84
Allocations: $329.84 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-T™

Voucher: 052277 Invoice: 283778 Date: 4/30/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $149.62
Allocations: $149.62 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM

Voucher: 052278 Invoice: 283773 Date: 4/30/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $24.01
Allocations: $24.01 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM

Voucher: 052279 Invoice: 283789 Date: 4/30/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $36.03
Allocations: $36.03 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM

Voucher: 052280 Invoice: 283900 Date: 5/5/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $54.61
Allocations: $54.61 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM

Voucher: 052350 Invoice: 283589 Date: 4/23/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $18.56
Allocations: $18.56 600-6320-0000-562 Supplies-GA

Voucher: 052356 Invoice: 284210 Date: 5/16/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $133.25
Allocations: $133.25 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM

Voucher: 052357 Invoice: 284236 Date: 5/19/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $49.13
Allocations: $49.13 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM

Voucher: 052358 Invoice: 284155 Date: 5/15/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $163.86
Allocations: $163.86 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM

Voucher: 052359 Invoice: 284262 Date; 5/19/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $337.55
Allocations: $337.55 600-6197-0000-565 Personal Equipment/Uniform

Voucher: 052365 Invoice: 284302 Date: 5/20/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $65.53
Allocations: $65.53 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM

Voucher: 052366 Invoice: 284304 Date: 5/20/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $62.24
Allocations: $52.90 600-6320-0000-562-03  Supplies - GA



Allocations: $6.22 100-6320-0000-562-03  Supplies - GA
Allocations: $3.11 300-6320-0000-562-03  Supplies - GA

Payment Responsibilities:

Page 9 of I8

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $6.22 Fund 300: 33.11 Fund 600: $1,492.40
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:341.49
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033686 §/22/2025 $311.18 JOHNSM John Smith Landfill
Voucher: 052360 Invoice: 01-01098616 Date: 5/16/2025 Dump Fee Doc Amt: $311.18
Allocations: $311.18 600-6860-0000-542 Utilities-Disposal fees
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $311.18
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033687 5/22/2025 $47,361.64 KENNE Kennedy/Jenks Consultants Inc,
Voucher; 052281 Invoice: 179865 Date: 5/8/2025 Engineering Services Doc Amt:  $27,369.73
Allocations; $27,369.73  600-1351-C129-151 Grant Expense - ADRoP (DWR $11.5 M)
Voucher: 052338 Invoice: 179964 Date: 5/13/2025 Engineering Services Doc Amt:  $19,991.91
Allocations: $19,991.91 600-1351-C129-151 Grant Expense - ADRoP (DWR $11.5 M)
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $47,361.64
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033688 5/22/2025 $500.00 LANDS Landscape Design by Rosemary Bridw
Voucher: 052282 Invoice: 042425 Date: 4/24/2025 Landscape Plan Review Doc Amt: $500.00
Allocations: $500.00 803-6240-0000-563 CS - General Consuiting (Plan Cks/Rev)
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$500.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033689 5/22/2025 $1,211,00 MCMAS MecMaster-Carr Supply Co
Voucher: 052299 Invoice: 42955935 Date: 3/26/2025 Shop Supplies Doc Amt: $195.57
Allocations: $166.23 600-6320-0000-562-03  Supplies - GA
Allocations: $19.56 100-6320-0000-562-03  Supplies - GA
Allocations: $9.78 300-6320-0000-562-03  Supplies - GA
Voucher: 052300 Invoice: 44785932 Date: 4/29/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $220.53
Allocations: $220.53 600-6320-0604-542 Supplies - RWP TM
Voucher: 052301 Invoice: 44866729 Date: 4/30/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $101.79

Allocations: $101.79 600-6320-0000-562 Supplies-GA



Page 10 of 18

Voucher: 052302 Invoice: 45155771 Date: 5/6/2025 Maintenance Supplies Doc Amt: $548.03
Allocations: $548.03 600-6321-0000-542 Supplies-Structure Equip TDM
Voucher: 052361 Invoice: 45530886 Date: 5/13/2025 Electrical Supplies Doc Amt: $145.08
Allocations: $145.08 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $19.56 Fund 300: §9.78 Fund 600: $1,181.66
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:50.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033690 5/22/2025 $9,830.00 MICKO Micko Consultants
Voucher: 052303 Invoice: 269 Date: 5/2/2025 Consulting Services Doc Amt: $840.00
Allocations: $840.00 600-6220-0000-563 CS-Engineering-GA
Voucher: 052304 Invoice: 264 Date: 2/18/2025 Consulting Services Doc Amt:  $8,990.00
Allocations: $449.50 300-6240-0000-563-06  CS-Consulting GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $7,641.50 600-6240-0000-563-06  CS-Consulting GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $899.00 100-6240-0000-563-06  CS-Consulting GA 10/5/85
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $899.00 Fund 300: $449.50 Fund 600: $8,481.50
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:50.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033691 5/22/2025 $530.00 MISSIO Mission Village Voice Media LLC
Voucher: 052305 Invoice: 1309 Date: 4/28/2025 Monthly Print Ad Doc Amt: $530.00
Allocations: $530.00 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (PT)
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $0.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$530.00
Payment# Date Check Total  Vendor ID Vendor Name
033692 5/22/2025 $473.77 PALAC Palace Business Solutions
Voucher: 052306 Invoice: 2424899-0 Date: 4/28/2025 Office Supplies Doc Amt: $385.36
Allocations: $327.56 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $19.27 300-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $38.54 100-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Voucher: 052307 Invoice:  2427706-0 Date: 5/6/2025 Office Supplies Doc Amt: $88.41
Allocations: $75.15 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $4.42 300-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $8.84 100-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA



Page 11 of 18

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $47.38 Fund 300: $23.69 Fund 600: $402.70
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033693 5/22/2025 5475.00 PATDA Pat Davis Design Group, Inc.
Voucher: 052295 Invoice: 8237 Date: 5/6/2025  Website Maintenance Doc Amt: $475.00
Allocations: $47.50 100-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $23.75 300-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $403.75 600-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)

Payment Respounsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $47.50 Fund 300: $23.75 Fund 600: $403.75
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033694 5/22/2025 $2,507.50 RAFTE Raftelis
Voucher: 052296 Invoice; 39265 Date: 5/12/2025 Consuiting Services Doc Amt:  $2,507.50
Allocations: $2,507.50 600-1351-0168-151 Pajaro Watershed IRWMP

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $2,507.50
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033695 5/22/2025 $1,000.00 RESER Reserve Account
Voucher: 052308 Invoice: 050725 Date: 5/7/2025 Postage On Account Doc Amt:  $1,000.00
Allocations: $970.00 600-6825-0000-562-06  Postage 2/1/97
Allocations: $20.00 100-6825-0000-562-06  Postage 2/1/97
Allocations: $10.00 300-6825-0000-562-06  Postage 2/1/97

Payment Respounsibilitics:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100; $20.00 Fund 300: $10.00 Fund 600: $970.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Yeador ID Vendor Name
033696 5/22/2025 $885.00 RIANDA Rianda Air Inc.
Voucher: 052309 Invoice: 28224 Date: 4/21/2025 Maintenance-Heating/Air Syst Doc Amt: $885.00
Allocations: $88.50 100-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $44.25 300-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85
Allocations: $752.25 600-6275-0000-563-06  CS-Maint 10/5/85

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $88.50 Fund 300: $44.25 Fund 600: $752.25
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033697 5/22/2025 $98.27 ROSSI Rossi's Tire & Auto Service
Voucher: 052315 Invoice: S1B79120 Date: 5/6/2025 Vehicle Maintenance #26 Doc Amt: $98.27

Allocations: $98.27 600-6460-0000-562 Vehicle Maintenance-GA



Page 12 of 18

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $98.27
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033698 5/22/2025 $1,436.00 SBCBC San Benito County Business Council
Voucher: 052372 Invoice:  2024-67 Date: 5/16/2025 Annual Membership Dues Doc Amt:  $1,436.00
Allocations: $143.60 100-6820-0000-562-06  Dues and Fees 10/5/85
Allocations: $71.80 300-6820-0000-562-06  Dues and Fees 10/5/85
Allocations: $1,220.60 600-6820-0000-562-06  Dues and Fees 10/5/85

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $143.60 Fund 300: $71.80 Fund 600: $1,220.60
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor 1D Vendor Name
033699 52272025 $108,836.88 SCVWD Santa Clara Valley Water Dist
Voucher: 052349 Invoice: GN103335 Date: 5/15/2025 Jan - Mar 25 O&M Charge Doc Amt; $108,836.88
Allocations: $94,906.39 600-5500-0000-513 PW-San Felipe Reach | O&M- SantaClara
Allocations: $13,930.49 600-1503-0158-125 Reach 1 Capital Improvement Project

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $108,836.88
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033700 5/22/2025 §274.09 SHRED Shred-it
Voucher: 052316 Invoice: 8010652272 Date: 4/30/2025 Monthly Shredding Service Doc Amt: $274.09
Allocations: $27.41 100-6270-0000-563-06  CS-Operations GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $13.70 300-6270-0000-563-06  CS-Operations GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $232.98 600-6270-0000-563-06  CS-Operations GA 10/5/85

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $27.41 Fund 300: $13.70 Fund 600: $232.98
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Yendor Name
033701 5/22/2025 $48,227.80 SJELE S.J. Electro Systems, Inc.
Voucher: 052317 Invoice: CD99569427 Date: 4/30/2025 Scada Support Doc Amt:  $48,227.80
Allocations: $48,227.80 600-1395-0929-112 SCADA telemetry upgrade

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $48,227.80
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID VYendor Name

033702 5/22/2025 §7,125.00 SPURZ Spurzem & Liem LLP




Page 13 of 18

Voucher: 052318 Invoice: 64061 Date: 5/1/2025 Legal Services Doc Amt:  $7,125.00
Allocations: $405.00 100-6210-0000-563-06  CS-Legal GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $202.50 300-6210-0000-563-06  CS-Legal GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $3,442.50 600-6210-0000-563-06  CS-Legal GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $3,075.00 600-6210-0000-563 CS-Legal-GA

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $405.00 Fund 300: $202.50 Fund 600: $6,517.50
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033703 5/22/2025 §291,751.64 SSCWD-TP  Sunnyslope County Water District
Voucher: 052347 Invoice: INV00317 Date: 4/30/2025 Plant Operations- West Hills Doc Amt: $229,182.89
Allocations: $229,182.89 600-6270-0603-531 CS Operations - West Hills WTP
Voucher: 052348 Invoice: INV00318 Date: 4/30/2025 Plant Operations- Lessalt Doc Amt:  $62,568.75
Allocations: $62,568.75 600-6270-0602-531 CS Operations - Lessalt WTP

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $291,751.64
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033704 5/22/2025 $4,770.00 TODDE Todd Groundwater
Voucher: 052319 Invoice: 37658 425 Date: 4/8/2025 Engineering Services Doc Amt:  $4,770.00
Allocations: $4,770.00 600-1351-0168-151 Pajaro Watershed IRWMP

Payment Responsibilities:

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $4,770.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033705 5/22/2025 $3,817.84 TOROP Toro Petroleum Corporation
Voucher: 052320 Invoice: 0710396-IN Date: 5/9/2025 Vehicle Fuel Doc Amt: $254.01
Allocations: $254.01 300-6320-0000-512 Supplies-SSM
Voucher: 052321 Invoice: CL85870 Date: 4/30/2025 Vehicle Fuel Doc Amt:  $3,563.83
Allocations: $37.45 300-6465-0000-562 Vehicle Fuel-GA
Allocations: $3,155.14 600-6465-0000-562 Vehicle Fuel-GA
Allocations: $371.24 803-6465-0000-562 Vehicle Fuel

Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $291.46 Fund 600: $3,155.14

Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$371.24



Page 14 of 18

Payment# Date Check Total Vendor 1D Vendor Name
033706 5/22/2025 $740.00 TRUEP TruePoint Solutions
Voucher: 052297 Invoice: 3723 Date: 5/2/2025 Support & Maintenance Doc Amt: $740.00
Allocations: $740.00 600-6260-0000-351 CS-Computer-CA
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $740.00
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033707 5/22/2025 $5,156.70 TURBO Turbo Time Welding
Voucher: 052322 Invoice: 1006 Date: 5/7/2025 Welding Services Doc Amt: $937.50
Allocations: $937.50 600-6275-0000-542 CS-Maintenance-TM
Voucher: 052367 Invoice: 71 Date: 3/31/2025 Welding Services Doc Amt:  $4,219.20
Allocations: $4,219.20 600-6275-0000-542 CS-Maintenance-TM
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $0.00 Fund 600: $5,156.70
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033708 5/22/2028 $6,772.50 TYLER Tyler Technologics
Voucher: 052323 Invoice:  025-508591 Date: 4/30/2025 Tyler Implementation Doc Amt: $617.50
Allocations: $61.75 100-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer {(10/5/85)
Allocations: $30.88 300-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $524.88 600-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Voucher: 052324 Invoice:  025-507899 Date: 4/22/2025 Tyler Implementation Doc Amt: $975.00
Allocations: $97.50 100-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $48.75 300-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $828.75 600-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Voucher: 052325 Invoice:  025-507497 Date: 4/16/2025 Tyler Implementation Doc Amt: $162.50
Allocations: $16.25 100-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $8.13 300-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $138.13 600-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Voucher: 052344 Invoice:  025-509138 Date: 4/30/2025 Tyler Implementation Doc Amt:  $1,007.50
Allocations: $100.75 100-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $50.38 300-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $856.38 600-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Voucher: 052368 Invoice:  025-509789 Date: 5/14/2025 Tyler Implementation Doc Amt:  $3,750.00
Allocations: $375.00 100-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $187.50 300-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $3,187.50 600-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Voucher: 052369 Invoice:  025-510046 Date: 5/14/2025 Tyler Implementation Doc Amt: $260.00
Allocations: $26.00 100-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)



Allocations:
Allocations:

Payment Responsibilitics:
Fund 000: $0.00

$13.00
$221.00

Fund 100: $677.25

300-6260-0000-563-06
600-6260-0000-563-06

Fund 300: $338.63

CS-Computer (10/5/85)
CS-Computer (10/5/85)

Fund 600: $5,756.63

Page 150f 18

Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033709 5/22/2025 $6,995.49 USBNK-CC  U.S, Bank Corporation

Voucher; 052326 Invoice:  042225JCA Date: 4/22/2025 Monthly Statement Doc Amt:  $2,558.00
Allocations: $19.12 803-6320-0000-562 Supplies (PI)
Allocations: $87.38 803-6320-0000-562 Supplies (P1)
Allocations; $2,276.50 803-6865-0000-562 Advertising/Public Info (EDU)
Allocations: $175.00 600-6195-0000-565 Training

Voucher: 052327 Invoice:  042225DJ Date: 4/22/2025 Monthly Statement Doc Amt: $72.81
Allocations: $2.00 100-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $1.00 300-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $16.99 600-6260-0000-563-06  CS-Computer (10/5/85)
Allocations: $44.90 600-6845-0000-562-06  General Business Exp 10/5/85
Allocations: $5.28 100-6845-0000-562-06  General Business Exp 10/5/85
Allocations: $2.64 300-6845-0000-562-06  General Business Exp 10/5/85

Voucher: 052328 Invoice: (42225BM Date: 4/22/2025 Monthly Statement Doc Amt:  $1,733.93
Allocations: $3.46 600-6840-0000-562-06  Communication GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $0.41 100-6840-0000-562-06  Communication GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $0.20 300-6840-0000-562-06  Communication GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $259.68 803-6320-0000-562 Supplies (Survey)
Allocations: $12.87 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $0.76 300-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $1.51 100-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $30.35 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $1.79 300-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $3.57 100-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $49.80 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $2.93 300-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $5.86 100-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $89.82 100-6270-0000-563-06  CS-Operations GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $44.91 300-6270-0000-563-06  CS-Operations GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $763.47 600-6270-0000-563-06  CS-Operations GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $32.49 600-6845-0000-562-06  General Business Exp 10/5/85
Allocations: $3.82 100-6845-0000-562-06  General Business Exp 10/5/85
Allocations: $1.91 300-6845-0000-562-06  Generai Business Exp 10/5/85
Allocations: $1.39 600-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $0.08 300-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $0.16 100-6835-0000-562-06  Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA



Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

Allocations:
Allocations:;
Allocations:

Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

Alfocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

Allocations:

Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

Allocations;
Allocations:
Allocations:

Allocations:
Allocations:

Allocations:
Allocations:

Voucher: 052334 Invoice:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:
Allocations:

Allocations:
Allocations:

Voucher: 052335 Invoice:
Allocations:

$1.39
$0.08
$0.16

$5.74
$0.34
$0.68

$21.08
$1.24
$2.48

$58.60
$6.89
$3.45

$2.54
$0.30
$0.15

$40.28

$69.70
$8.20
$4.10

$42.80
$2.52
$5.04

$9.62
$0.57
$1.13

$92.52
$34.95

$2.06
$4.11

042225BIM
$8.87
$150.85
$17.75

$40.00
$20.00
$340.00
$2.50

§42.50
$5.00

042225MC
$31.59

600-6835-0000-562-06
300-6835-0000-562-06
100-6835-0000-562-06

600-6835-0000-562-06
300-6835-0000-562-06
100-6835-0000-562-06

600-6835-0000-562-06
300-6835-0000-562-06
100-6835-0000-562-06

600-6845-0000-562-06
100-6845-0000-562-06
300-6845-0000-562-06

600-6840-0000-562-06
100-6840-0000-562-06
300-6840-0000-562-06

600-6210-0000-563

600-6840-0000-562-06
100-6840-0000-562-06
300-6840-0000-562-06

600-6835-0000-562-06
300-6835-0000-562-06
100-6835-0000-562-06

600-6835-0000-562-06
300-6835-0000-562-06
100-6835-0000-562-06

803-6320-0000-562
600-6835-0000-562-06

300-6835-0000-562-06
100-6835-0000-562-06

Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA

Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA

Office Suppties 10/5/85 GA
Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA

General Business Exp 10/5/85
General Business Exp 10/5/85
General Business Exp 10/5/835

Communication GA 10/5/85
Communication GA 10/5/85
Communication GA 10/5/85

CS-Legal-GA

Communication GA 10/5/85
Communication GA 10/5/85
Communication GA 10/5/85

Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA

Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA

Supplies (WC)
Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA

Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA
Office Supplies 10/5/85 GA

Date: 4/22/2025 Monthly Statement

300-6850-0000-562-06
600-6850-0000-562-06
100-6850-0000-562-06
100-6852-0000-562
300-6852-0000-562
600-6852-0000-562
300-6850-0000-562-06

600-6850-0000-562-06
100-6850-0000-562-06

Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85
Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85
Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85
Conferences
Conferences
Conferences
Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85

Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85
Travel & Mileage GA 10/5/85

Date: 4/22/2025 Monthly Statement

600-6320-0000-562

Supplies-GA

Page 16 of 18



Allocations: $40.18 600-6320-0000-542 Supplies-TM

Allocations: $465.40 600-6320-0920-542 Supplies-TM - Subsystem Breaks
Allocations: $55.74 300-6320-0000-562 Supplies-GA

Allocations: $1,081.42 600-6321-0000-542 Supplies-Structure Equip TDM
Allocations: $328.95 600-6320-0000-562 Supplies-GA

Payment Responsibilities:

Page 17 0f 18

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $204.17 Fund 300: $157.83 Fund 600: $3,898.29
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$2,735.20
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033710 5/22/2025 $239.81 YERDA Verdant Commercial Capital LLC
Voucher: 052345 Invoice: 905584341 Date: 5/12/2025 Copier Lease Doc Amt: $239.81
Allocations; $23.98 100-6450-0000-562-06  Tool & Equipment Rental GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $11.99 300-6450-0000-562-06  Tool & Equipment Rental GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $203.84 600-6450-0000-562-06  Tool & Equipment Rental GA 10/5/85
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $23.98 Fund 300: $11.99 Fund 600: $203.84
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:30.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor 1D Vendor Name
033711 §/22/2025 $12,387.00 WBCP WBCP, Inc
Voucher: 052346 Invoice: 7328 Date: 5/9/2025 Consulting Services Doc Amt:  $12,387.00
Allocations: $415.00 300-6240-0000-563-06  CS-Consulting GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $7,055.00 600-6240-0000-563-06  CS-Consulting GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $830.00 100-6240-0000-563-06  CS-Consulting GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $204.35 300-6240-0000-563-06  CS-Consulting GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $3,473.95 600-6240-0000-563-06  CS-Consulting GA 10/5/85
Allocations: $408.70  100-6240-0000-563-06  CS-Consuiting GA 10/5/85
Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $1,238.70 Fund 300: $619.35 Fund 600: $10,528.95
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:$0.00
Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID VYendor Name
033712 5/22/2025 $75.00 WIENH Wienhoff & Associates, Inc.
Voucher: 052298 Invoice: 130436 Date: 5/8/2025 DER Training Doc Amt: $75.00
Allocations: $7.50 100-6195-0000-565-06  Training 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $3.75 300-6195-0000-565-06  Training 10/5/85 GA
Allocations: $63.75 600-6195-0000-565-06  Training 10/5/85 GA

Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $7.50 Fund 300: $3.75 Fund 600: $63.75
Fund 700: $0.00 Fund 803:50.00



Page 18 of 18

Payment# Date Check Total Vendor ID Vendor Name
033713 5/22/2025 $2,012.50 ZEIAL Alan Zeisbrich
Voucher: 052336 Invoice: 4-2025 Date: 5/2/2025 Contract Services Doc Amt:  $2,012.50
Allocations: $155.25 300-6270-0000-511 CS-Operations-SS0
Allocations: $1,397.25 600-6270-0000-541 CS-Operations-TO
Allocations: $230.00 600-6270-0602-531 CS Operations - Lessalt WTP
Allocations:; $230.00 600-6270-0603-531 CS Operations - West Hills WTP

Payment Responsibilities:
Fund 000: $0.00
Fund 700: $0.00

Fund 100: $0.00 Fund 300: $155.25

Fund 803:30.00

Report Totals, Payment Fund Responsiblities

Fund 600: $1,857.25

Fund 000: $0.00 Fund 100: $4,776.99 Fund 300: $2,890.95

Fund 700:50.00 Fund 803:515,364.71

Fund 100 = District Administration
Fund 300 = Zone 3

Fund 600 = Zone 6

Fund 700 = Zone GSA

Fund 803 = Zone WRA

Fund 600: $630,868.23



San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal

Agenda Item: 3

Meeting Date: May 28, 2025
Submitted By: Leilani Vidal

Presented By: Dana Jacobson

Agenda Title: Acknowledgement of Paid Claims prior to the May 2025 Board Meeting

Detailed Description: This is a notification that the checks & wire transfers listed below were
issued outside the normal claims process.

Payee Check No./ Amount For Issued Date
Confirmation #

First American

Title Company 59650 $1,300.00 | ADRoP -Title Reports 05/14/25
San Benito County ADRoP Encroachment
Public Works 59655 $39,742.98| Permits 05/14/25

Wire Transfers

San Luis Delta Wire O&M delivery costs

Mendota Water Transf $71,676.00 | (May 2025 advanced water 05/06/25

Authority ransier delivery payment form)

USBR (pay.gov) T\’,Vr e | $65,145.00 | Water Payment 05/06/25

Overaa Wire | 615 000.00 | ADRoP Construction 05/12/25
Transfer

Overaa Wire $365,697.75 | ADRoP Construction 05/14/25
Transfer




Financial Impact: X Yes No

Funding Source/ Recap:
Fiscal Year Budget as approved

Material Included for Information/Consideration:
Copy of Wire Transfer Request

Action Required: Resolution X Motion Review

Board Action

Resolution No._ Motion By Second By
Ayes Abstained
Noes Absent
Reagendized Date No Action Taken




MEMORANDUM

TO: Dana Jacobson or Brett Miller
FROM: Shannon Darnall
DATE: May 14th) 2025

Subject: Manual Check Request

This is a request for a manual check to be processed as listed below:

Vendor name and address
(for remittance)

Amount of Request

Disposition Method:
Return to Requestor / Federal
Express / Regular Mail

First American Title
260 Tres Pinos Road Ste. Al
Hollister, CA 95023

$1,300

Return to Requestor

Expense 600-1351-0168-151-02

Account
number(s)

Reason for | Condition of Title Guarantee Report for 3 additional APN’s for

Request: ADRoP

Supporting documentation for this request:

X | Is attached

Will be returned to Accounting
upon receipt

Please sign below as approval for issuance of this manual payment.

Approved by:

O \edeen

<L ]2z

Dana Jacobson or Brett Miller Date




MEMORANDUM

TO: Dana Jacobson
FROM: David Macdonald
DATE: 05/14/2025

Subject: Manual Check Request

This is a request for a manual check to be processed as listed below:

Vendor name and address Amount of Request | Disposition Method:
{for remittance) Return to Requestor / Federal
Express / Regular Mail
County of San Benito $39,742.98 Return to Requestor

Public Works
2301 Technology Pkwy
Hollister, CA 95023

Expense 600-1351-C129-151-02
Account
number(s)

Reason for | Encroachment Permit for ADROP pipeline installation on San
Request: Felipe Road, Fallon Road, and Scagliotti Road.

Supporting documentation for this request:

X 11Is attached Will be returned to
Accounting upon receipt

Please sign below as approval for issuance of this manual payment.

Approved by:

Lana %‘” baon 5/14/25

Dana J acV:obson Date




o ST-¥ZA4 193USHIOM 153Nb3Y J2SURLL DUM\SIDSUBIL JIM\SIPNIT-SOWAN\IASQ 3DUBULI\BURUNOIV\'S

0 selL _\mf aleq
\d)S\ow\Nw Aw x\\u\ﬁ W . \ :Aq Buluo asea|as 10} panoiddy

AR

Q\%/D jdd/m :Aq Aue auup

00°9L9°TL ¢ (2103 Ayaide anm Ajleg
00°9£9°TL § | Jafsunsy anm 3oy
009.9°TL S £0-€15-0000-00v5-009] (W0 Juauihed Asaayap saiem padueape S70Z "AeN) SZ90S0 sz0z/9/s Aoyiny
S350 AJaalep WIRO J21BAN BIOPUBIN B}B(Q SIN ues
junowy "OU JUNOIVY 19 COZQCUM@Q “OU 9910AL] 318G S910AU] FTTTEYY

— e {szoz/9/s ] paisanbay Jajsuels Bl




_ 00°sv1'ss ¢ |er01a08Aed Ajieg

23ep deday udwAhed

00°'svI’s9 S | aunowp uauifod jpyog
00'sYZY8  $ L0-€15-0000-¥T15-009 4V 005°€ Aedasd |nf 529050 S207/9/S {vi-4asn)
uoijewepay wo neang
(oo00t'61) S £0-€15-0000-0TT5-009 4v 000T piedaid Jey §79050 520/9/s {v1-ygsn)
uoilewe|day jo neaing
junouwy *OuU JUNOJIIY 19 uoindinsag “0OuU 3J10AU| pasedaid JOpUdA

S202/L/S J1ep aseajay

[szoz/9/s

paisonbai Juswded anod-Aeq




SZ-UTA4 193YSHIOM J5anbay IBjSURL] BNM\SIRJsURIL BIM\SIBNST-sowdW\1dag arueut\Sununoddv\:s

ST-LT-S
SEfElS
% K\JQU% - :Aq dutuo aseaas 10§ panoiddy
- ) ~ r
1eq
Anus auguo
007000251 ¢ (2301 Ayanoe anm Apeg
00°000°25T § | 4afsunsy aum ooy
0000025t $ Z0-TST-6ZTD-TSET-009 ST/TE/E-ST/6/T UOHINASUOD JOHAY STTIS0 seoz/er/s 0D 3 BRMBAQ D
Junouly “OU JUN0IOY 19 uondiasag "OU 9J10AL} 318( 910AU] 10puaA
| szoz/er/s | 21ep aseajay WNQN\ﬁ\m _ paisenbay Jajsuel] M




S7-bTA4 199USHIOM 15anbay Jajsurl] AIM\SIajsURLL BAM\SIoNBT-sowaN\1dag 3oueuI\BURUNOIIV\:S

ST-ET-S
il
W\\ u »\QSJ A4 uq\w\ \s ! :Aq Buljuo aseaj2d Joj paroiddy
i
’ 3 P 1
S nlgoee
Q éJ@) D :Aq Anua sujuo
§ .
SL°L69'S9E $ 1e101 Anande aum Ajieq “ \
§£°£69°S9E ¢ | safsunsy aum o301
GL'£69°G9€ $ Z0-TST-6ZTI-TSET-009 SZ/TE/9-GT/T/p uondNIISURD dO¥AY SZYIS0 SZO0Z/vi/S 00 7% EEL9A0 D
junowy “GU N0V 19 uondisag “Gu ao1oAU| aleq 9910AU] JOpUsA

5202/91/5 Siep seary |szoz/vT/S i pa1sanbay Jajsuesl dMm




" .'.‘.'NOV 3 &95‘5-’.‘

" & T*eegaeene®’ -

INZ#3 g
RIS

Agenda
Item
# 4



m\m“f

IS

iy

7
*"«.,‘4

%

(%

Fiscal Year 2025 On-Call Contract Activity Report

MCC Controls dba Primex - *Control System Services (SCADA Services)

Contract #: PRIMEX-2024 OC

Board Meeting 5/28/25
**NTE Contract Task Order Status Task Order Contract .>..do::» Task Order Task Order Description Task Order Issued Payments to
Amount Amount Remaining Number Date Date

$ 813,000
Open S 30,0001 5 783,000 1 Control System Services 8.27.24 S 20,494.75
Closed S 48,178 | $ 734,822 2 PLC install and system start up RTU 20 8.26.24 $  48,177.80
Closed S 46,348 | S 688,474 3 PLC install and system start up RTU 9 8.27.24 S 46,347.80
Closed S 103,8501 % 584,624 4 Replacement hardware for RTU 3/4/6/7/17 10.17.24 $ 103,849.54
Closed $ 47,058 | S 537,566 5 RTU-6 and device upgrades 1.29.25 $  47,057.80
Open S 48,228 1S 489,338 6 RTU-7 and device upgrades 1.31.25 S -
Open S 46,298 1 § 443,041 7 RTU-3 and device upgrades 1.31.25 S -
Open S 47,758 1 S 395,283 8 RTU-4 and device upgrades 1.31.25 S -
Open S 47,288 1S 347,995 9 RTU-17 and device upgrades 1.31.25 S -

$ 813,000 s 465,005 % 347,995 $ 265,927.69

*SBCWD Board approved 7.31.24, Contract #PRIMEX-2024 OC

**Contract expires 7.31.27



‘.. N

|

L]
Ov, 5, 195

®eapese®” C




DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-09

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
FOR SALARY AND COMPENSATION FOR THE
MANAGEMENT /CONFIDENTIAL/PROFESSIONAL EMPLOYEE GROUP

WHEREAS, San Benito County Water District desires to memorialize certain
benefits and compensation currently provided to
Management/Confidential / Professional employees;

WHEREAS, classifications in the San Benito County Water District’s
Management/Confidential/Professional group are considered a group because
they share similarities in job duties or are otherwise a logical work-related
grouping;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Benito
County Water District, that the following employment terms apply for employees
in the Management/Confidential/Professional group. This Resolution
supersedes and incorporates all prior schedule of benefits for the job
classifications listed herein.

Section 1.0 — Purpose and Application

The purpose of this Resolution is to set forth certain salary, benefits and
additional compensation for Management/Confidential/Professional employees
of the San Benito County Water District (“District”).

This Resolution will be applicable to probationary and regular employees in the
following Management/Confidential / Professional classifications:

Accountant I

Accountant II

Assistant Engineer (Engineer I)
Associate Engineer (Engineer II)
Deputy District Engineer

Finance Manager

Human Resources/Administrative Analyst
Operations & Maintenance Manager
Senior Engineer (Engineer III)
Supervising Accountant

Water Conservation Program Manager

ARETEZOEEUOWR

Page 1 of 24



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

Temporary and seasonal employees are not covered by this Resolution.

This Resolution creates no contractual or vested rights. The Board of
Directors retains all rights and authority to amend, reduce, or eliminate benefits
and additional compensation in its sole and absolute discretion.

In accordance with Article II, Section 1 of the District’s Personnel Rules and
Regulations, unrepresented Management, Confidential and Professional
employees, and employees who are party to an employment agreement with the
District, are at-will employees.

Section 2.0 - Salaries

Effective July 10, 2023, salary schedules for benchmark classifications will be
adjusted as follows:

Class Adjustment

Engineer I (Assistant) 10%

Engineer II (Associate) 10%

Operations & Maintenance | 10%

Manager

Water Conservation Program | 10% (& Parity with Supervising
Manager Accountant)

**Note: Classifications that were recently brought to market, (Accountant I and
II and HR/Administrative Analyst), as well as the Supervising Accountant,
Finance Manager, Deputy District Engineer and Senior Engineer, will be
excluded from this increase.

Effective July 10, 2023 and during the term of the 2023 MOU, the District will
align the salaries of the Accountant I to be 10% below the Accountant II.

Effective July 10, 2023, there will be a three percent (3%) cost of living increase
to salary schedules for all classifications covered by this Resolution.

Effective July 8, 2024, there will be a three percent (3%) cost of living increase
to salary schedules for all classifications covered by this Resolution.

Effective July 7, 2025, there will be a three percent (3%) cost of living increase
to salary schedules for all classifications covered by this Resolution.

Page 2 of 24



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

Effective July 7, 2025, the Board of Directors approved the Deputy District
Engineer salary schedule bringing it to market, so this position will be excluded
from the 3% increase.

The full classification table and salary schedule for Fiscal Years 23/24, 24/25
and 25/26 are reflected in Appendix A.

Section 3.0 - Longevity Pay for Tier One Employees

Employees hired by the District before January 1, 2013 who have more than five
(5) years of continuous District service will receive longevity pay in the amount
of eight percent (8%). No other employees will be eligible for longevity pay.

Section 4.0 Educational and Technical Certification Incentives

The District will provide the following educational incentives to employees for
completing educational courses and certificates listed below, which enhance
their ability to do their job:

A. Continuing Education incentive

Upon proof of certification to the District, employees who have completed
Continuing Education Units (CEU) or equivalent education or training
outside of their normal District duties during the previous twenty-four (24)
months will receive a per pay period incentive payment of twenty-two
dollars and forty-five cents ($ 22.45) per CEU or equivalent to a maximum
of sixty-seven dollars and thirty cents ($ 67.30) per pay period.

The Continuing Education Incentive will be based on increments of greater
than or equal to 0.5 CEU; generally, 1 hour of training equates to 0.1 CEU.

To be eligible for this benefit, employees must obtain CEUs or equivalent
education or training in areas applicable to advancement in the employee's
classification series, as determined and approved in advance in writing by
the District. The fees associated with obtaining the CEUs must be paid for
by the employee.

CEU units earned beyond what are required for the maximum education
incentive pay may be accrued for use toward education incentive pay in
subsequent years, provided, however that beginning with credits earned
July 1, 2014, only credit that has been received within the past three years
may be eligible for the Continuing Education Incentive under this accrual
provision.

Page 3 of 24



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

CEU units or equivalent education and training taken in furtherance of a
technical certification described below will not be subject to the
Continuing Education Incentive provided under this provision.

. Technical Certification Incentive

For employees in the classifications listed below, in recognition of
possession of the technical certifications listed below which are not
required for the employee's current job classification, the employee will
receive the incentive pay listed below, to a maximum of one hundred forty
dollars and twenty-five cents ($140.25) per pay period, effective the first
day of the next pay period through the end of the pay period in which the
certification expires.

Technical Certification Pay will be as follows:

1. The Operations and Maintenance Manager will be eligible to receive an
incentive for maintenance of a Water Treatment Operator Grade 2
certificate in the amount of thirty-nine dollars and twenty-five cents
($39.25) per pay period, and fifty dollars and fifty cents ($50.50) per
pay period for maintenance of a Water Distribution Operator Grade 3
certificate.

2. The Water Conservation Program Manager will receive an incentive for
maintenance of a Certified Landscape Irrigation Auditor certificate in
the amount of thirty-nine dollars and twenty-five cents ($39.25) per pay
period.

. Training and Education Loan Assistance Program

The District will provide financial assistance to regular employees for
qualifying training and/or education programs directly related to career
advancement with the District. The District will advance the cost of such
programs (tuition, books and required materials) up to one thousand
dollars ($1,000) per program and a maximum of one thousand five
hundred dollars ($1,500) per employee at any time. The employee will
repay the advance under the terms set forth below. Employees are
required to submit receipts within thirty (30) days of the advance or will
be required to repay the loan in full immediately.

An employee requesting financial assistance to attend a training and/or
education program must provide the General Manager with a written

Page 4 of 24



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

request for the advance (including the amount requested) and an official
description of the program with sufficient information to determine
whether the program qualifies for District financial assistance. Once
approved, the District and the employee will agree on a repayment
schedule providing regular payroll deductions from the employee's
paycheck beginning with the pay period following the disbursement of
funds, and for a period not to exceed thirty-six (36) months. The District
and the employee will then enter into a written agreement specifying the
agreed upon terms.

The District will not approve new financial assistance requests from an
employee until prior training and education assistance monies are repaid
in full.

If for any reason the employee separates from District employment prior
to repayment of the monies advanced, the entire unpaid amount of the
advance will become immediately due and payable to the District upon the
effective date of separation.

Section 5.0 Overtime

Employees in the classifications of Accountant I, Accountant II, Assistant
Engineer, Associate Engineer and Human Resources/Administrative Assistant
are authorized to receive overtime compensation. Overtime will be any authorized
work exceeding forty (40) hours in a seven-day consecutive period beginning at
12:00 a.m. on Monday and ending at 11:59 p.m. on Sunday. Overtime
compensation will be paid at one and one half (1-1/2) of the employee’s regular
hourly rate of pay for work exceeding forty (40) hours in the seven-day
consecutive period. Such employees will not be eligible for management leave.

All overtime work must be pre-approved by the employee’s manager. In
exceptional or emergency circumstances where overtime is required and there is
no opportunity to obtain such authorization or approval, an employee will report
the overtime hours worked and the purpose to his/her supervisor at the first
opportunity.

Section 6.0 —Health and Welfare Benefits

The Employer Benefit Program (Medical, Dental, Vision, Life, Pre-Tax Medical,
Deferred Compensation) for Management, Confidential and Professional
employees in benefit program Tiers One and Two as described below will not be
less than the corresponding tier of benefit programs for represented employees.

Page 5 of 24



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

A. Medical Insurance Contribution

The District is a participating employer in the Public Employees’ Medical
and Hospital Care Act (PEMHCA), the medical insurance program
sponsored by CalPERS. For each employee enrolled in District-provided
health insurance, the District’s maximum contribution per month for
medical insurance for each active employee will be the minimum employer
contribution as determined by CalPERS.

B. Flexible Benefit Plan

The District maintains a Flexible Benefit Plan that constitutes a cafeteria
plan within the meaning of Section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code. The
Flexible Benefit Plan allows active employees to pay for actual medical plan
premiums or other qualified expenses, on a pre-tax basis. Benefits
available through the Cafeteria Plan include, but are not limited to, health
insurance, flexible spending accounts for out-of-pocket medical expenses
and dependent care, dental insurance and vision insurance benefits.

1. Tier One - District Contribution for Employees Hired Before July 1,
2020:

For employees hired before July 1, 2020, in addition to the minimum
employer contribution to PEMHCA required by CalPERS for each
employee enrolled in District health insurance, the District will provide
a monthly contribution in the amount of one thousand two hundred
eighty-five dollars ($1,285) for each employee to use toward purchase
of health and welfare benefits. Any portion of the District-paid cafeteria
plan allowance that is not used for the purchase of health and welfare
benefits will be paid to the employee as taxable income.

Effective January 1, 2018, the District will contribute, on behalf of each
eligible, Tier One, full-time employee enrolled in single party District-
provided medical insurance, solely for the purchase of medical
insurance coverage, an additional amount up to one hundred dollars
($100) per month for a total of one thousand three hundred eighty-five
dollars per month.

Effective January 1, 2018, the District will contribute, on behalf of each
eligible, Tier One, full time employee enrolled in employee plus one or

Page 6 of 24



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

2,

employee plus family District-provided medical insurance, solely for the
purchase of medical insurance coverage, an additional amount up to
two hundred dollars ($200) per month for a total of one thousand four
hundred eighty-five dollars per month.

For 2023, the Tier One Cafeteria Plan amounts are summarized as
follows:

Tier One 2023 Monthly
Cafeteria Plan
Allowance

Opt Out Health $ 1,285

Single Party $ 1,385

2 Party $ 1,485

Family 3 1,485

Tier Two - District Contribution for Employees Hired On or After July
1, 2020:

For employees hired on or after July 1, 2020, in addition to the
minimum employer contribution to PEMHCA required by CalPERS, on
behalf of each eligible employee enrolled in medical insurance offered
through the District, the District will provide a monthly contribution in
the amount of up to one thousand three hundred eighty-five dollars
($1,385) for purchase of health and welfare benefits. Any portion of the
District-paid cafeteria plan allowance that is not used for the purchase
of health and welfare benefits will be paid to the employee as taxable
income. However, Tier two employees who opt out of medical insurance
offered through the District are not eligible for cash in lieu.

For 2023, the Tier Two Cafeteria Plan amounts are summarized as
follows:

Tier Two 2023 Monthly
Cafeteria Plan
Allowance

Opt Out Health | O

Single Party $ 1,385
2 Party $ 1,385
Family $ 1,385

Page 7 of 24



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

3. District Contribution for all Employees On and After January 1,
2024
Effective January 1, 2024, Tier 2 will be eliminated, and the additional

District contribution for each eligible employee enrolled in employee
plus family District-provided medical insurance will increase to a total
of one thousand seven hundred ninety dollars ($1,790) per month.

The 2024 Cafeteria Plan amounts are summarized as follows:

All Employees | 2024 Monthly
Cafeteria Plan
Allowance

Opt Out Health | $ 1,285

Single Party $ 1,385

2 Party $ 1,485

Family $ 1,790

Effective January 1, 2025, the additional District contribution for each
eligible employee enrolled in employee plus family District-provided
medical insurance will increase to a total of one thousand eight
hundred seventy-nine dollars ($1,879) per month.

The 2025 Cafeteria Plan amounts are summarized as follows:

All Employees | 2025 Monthly
Cafeteria Plan
Allowance

Opt Out Health | $ 1,285

Single Party $ 1,385

2 Party $ 1,485

Family $ 1,879

Effective January 1, 2026, the additional District contribution for each
eligible employee enrolled in employee plus family District-provided
medical insurance will increase to a total of one thousand nine hundred
seventy-three dollars ($1,973) per month.

Page 8 of 24



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

The 2026 Cafeteria Plan amounts are summarized as follows:

All Employees | 2026 Monthly
Cafeteria Plan
Allowance

Opt Out Health | $ 1,285

Single Party $ 1,385

2 Party $ 1,485

Family $ 1,973

4. Alternate Benefits for Employees Who Opt Out of District Health
Insurance

In order to decline medical coverage through the District and receive
alternate benefits, employees must provide attestation and evidence of
alternate minimum essential coverage for the employee and all
individuals in their tax family on an annual basis during open
enrollment.

The District’s obligation to pay alternate benefits for employees may be
conditioned upon compliance with IRS requirements for an eligible opt
out program.

The District has the authority to contract for medical benefits for
employees, to determine the benefits that will be provided to employees,

and to establish premiums.

C. Dental Benefits

The District agrees to provide access to group dental coverage, including
orthodontic benefits, for all full-time employees and their qualifying
dependents

Following the employee’s hire date, new employees have a one (1) month
waiting period before coverage begins.

Employees are required to enroll in single party District-provided dental

insurance coverage. Employees also have the option to enroll qualifying
dependents in District-provided dental insurance coverage.

Page 9 of 24



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

Employees may use the District’s contribution to the Flexible Benefits Plan
described in Section 6.0(B) to cover part or all of the cost of District-
provided dental insurance coverage.

D. Vision Benefits

The District agrees to provide access to group vision coverage for all full-
time employees and their dependents.

Following the employee’s hire date, new employees have a one (1) month
waiting period before coverage begins.

Employees may use the District’s contribution to the Flexible Benefits Plan
described in Section 7.0(B) to cover part or all of the cost of District-

provided vision insurance coverage.

E. Optional, Supplemental Insurance Benefits

The District will provide access to certain supplemental insurance benefit
plans.

Employees may use the District’s contribution to the Flexible Benefits Plan
described in Section 6.0(B) to cover part or all of the cost of supplemental

insurance coverage.

F. Flexible Spending Arrangement

Employees may elect to contribute pre-tax dollars, in accordance with IRS
rules and regulations, toward a District flexible spending arrangement
(FSA) for qualifying medical and dependent care expenses. If any funds
remain in an employee’s Healthcare FSA at the end of the current plan
year, the employee may carry over up to five hundred dollars ($500) into
the subsequent year.

Section 7.0 —Additional District Benefit Contribution

For employees in the Management/Confidential/ Professional group, the District
will provide an additional contribution toward benefits. The Additional Benefit
Contribution is paid on a pay period basis.

Page 10 of 24



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

The Additional Benefit Contribution is not considered special compensation nor
reported to CalPERS as special compensation.

Upon annual election by the employee, an employee may receive one of the
following contributions paid on a pay period basis:

A. A District contribution of two percent (2%) of the employee’s salary
(calculated as base pay plus longevity pay if applicable); or

B. Forty (40) hours of vacation leave per year in addition to accrued vacation
hours provided herein. Employees who select this option will have their
Earned Vacation Accrual Limit extended by forty (40) hours for the year in
which this option is selected.

Section 8.0 - Deferred Compensation (457(b) Plan)

An employee may establish a deferred compensation account through the
District’s 457 Plan. The employee will have the option of placing compensation
and other compensation received from the District into their deferred
compensation account consistent with the rules, regulations and limitations
pertaining thereto.

Section 9.0 - Basic Life Insurance

The District agrees to provide employer paid group term life insurance for all
regular employees. The coverage amount is two (2) times the employee’s annual
salary, up to a maximum of one hundred fifty thousand dollars ($150,000).
Following the employee’s hire date, new employees have a one (1) month waiting
period before coverage begins.

Section 10.0 — Retirement

A. Tier One Pension

For eligible employees hired by the District before January 1, 2013, or
hired after January 1, 2013 who meet the definition of “classic members”
as defined by CalPERS, the District will continue to participate in its
Miscellaneous Plan Agreement with CalPERS to provide the 2.5% @ 55
retirement formula option, based on the average of three (3) highest years
of employment.

Page 11 of 24



B.

DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

The employee will be required to pay the member contribution as defined
by CalPERS.

Tier Two Pension

For eligible employees who meet the definition of “new member” as set
forth in Government Code Section 7522.02(f) the District will provide the
CalPERS two percent (2%) at age sixty-two (62) formula retirement plan in
accordance with Government Code Section 7522.20, based on the average
of three (3) years of employment, in accordance with Government Code
Section 7522.32.

New members will be subject to the provisions of the Public Employee
Pension Reform Act (PEPRA), including provisions governing reportable
compensation.

Employees in Tier Two Pension will pay the rate prescribed by CalPERS for
employee contributions to the Public Employees’ Retirement System in
accordance with the rules and regulations governing such employee
contributions, which consists of one-half of the total normal costs for
pension.

. Retiree Additional Benefit

For those employees retiring from the District through a regular service
retirement from CalPERS within one hundred twenty (120) days of
separation from District employment, and who are fifty-five (55) years of
age or older at the time of retirement, the District will make the following
monthly payments toward retiree health insurance coverage, in addition
to the minimum employer contribution required by PEMHCA:

District Years of Service Age 55 Age 60 Age 65

10-14 years $100.00 $130.00 $195.00
15-19 years $135.00 $180.00 $270.00
20+ years $175.00 $232.00 $348.00

Current employees will have no contractual or vested right to receive the
Retiree Additional Benefit. The District reserves the right to modify and/or
eliminate the benefit at any time.

Page 12 of 24



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

Section 11.0 - Vacation

A. Vacation Accrual

Employees will accrue vacation time according to their full or part-time
status and the number of consecutive, full-time years the employee has
worked for the District, as follows:

1. Full-Time Employee Accrual Rate and Limit:

Consecutive Vacation Vacation Earned
Full Time | Hours Accrued | Hours Vacation
Years of | per Pay Period | Accrued per | Accrual Limit
Service of Paid Status | Year of Paid | (the greater of
Status the following
amounts or five
days (forty

hours) per year
of employment)

1 - 5 years 3.077 80 hours 120 hours
6 — 10 years 4.615 120 hours 240 hours
11 - 15years |5.385 140 hours 320 hours
16 - 19 years |6.154 160 hours 440 hours
20+ years 6.770 176 hours 520 hours

2. Vacation Accrual for Lateral Hires:
For the purpose of recruiting Management, Confidential and
Professional employees, the General Manager may agree to count
commensurate experience with another California water district as
years of service for the purpose of determining the level of vacation
accrual, subject to the Board of Directors’ approval.

B. Vacation Usage

The provisions of Article XVIII, Section 1 of the Personnel Rules will govern
accrual and use of vacation, except as outlined in Section 11.0 (A)(1)
(including the chart therein) and (2). The minimum amount of vacation to
be taken at any one time is one one-quarter (1/4) hour. Vacation may be
used in quarter (1/4) hour increments.

Page 13 of 24



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

C. Vacation Conversion

Earned/Accumulated Vacation may be converted to extra compensation
on an hour paid, per hour used basis for the first one hundred twenty
(120) hours taken by the end of the conversion evaluation period of each
calendar year provided at least eighty (80) hours of vacation have been
taken by the end of the conversion evaluation period of that calendar year
and eight (8) hours of accrued, unused vacation remains in the employee’s
bank. An employee will make an irrevocable election of the amount of
vacation leave to be converted in December the year before the vacation is
earned.

Vacation cash out checks will be made available by the end of the third
week of December to employees who have elected cash out the previous
December. The conversion evaluation period is defined beginning with the
final Pay Period of the prior calendar yearl through the second to last Pay
Period of the current calendar year. The employee has the following
options:

1. Vacation may be converted to extra compensation at employees base
hourly rate per hour of vacation converted.

2. Vacation earned/accumulated may be converted to a contribution to
deferred compensation at the employees base hourly rate each hour of
vacation converted subject to the rules, regulations and limitations
governing deferred compensation.

3. Any combination of options 1 and 2 listed above with the distribution
being based on full one (1) hour increments.

D. Unused Vacation Payout At Separation

Any employee separating from the District who has accrued, unused
vacation leave will be paid for all accrued, unused vacation at the
employee’s base rate of pay, plus any longevity pay and incentive pay
applicable at the time of separation.

Section 12.0 — Sick Leave

A. Accrual of Sick Leave

Page 14 of 24



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

Eligible employees will be granted the equivalent of ninety-six (96) hours
of Sick Leave per year. Sick Leave will accrue on a pay period basis at the
rate of 3.69 hours per pay period.

For employees hired on or after July 1, 2020, sick leave accrual is capped
at one thousand forty (1,040) hours.

. Sick Leave Conversion

As an incentive for employee wellness and sick leave conservation, the
following Sick Leave conversion provision will apply.

At the end of the conversion evaluation period of each calendar year, all
employees will be entitled to convert Sick Leave to: 1) extra compensation,;
2) contribution to deferred compensation; or 3) vacation time, based on
the following criteria and conversion rates. An employee will make an
irrevocable election of the amount of sick leave to be converted to in
December the year before the sick leave is earned. The conversion
evaluation period is defined as the beginning with the final Pay Period of
the prior calendar year through the second to last Pay Period of the current
calendar year.

Should an employee elect to convert Sick Leave to extra compensation, the
District will provide a check to the employee by the end of the third week
of December.

Sick Leave Sick Leave Conversion* Based on
Balance of Time in Hours
Hours 105 hours | 500 hours (1000
used hours
<48 12 24 48
< 24 18 36 72

*Accumulated Sick Leave at the end of the second to last pay period of the
calendar year

Sick Leave conversion to extra compensation or contribution to deferred
compensation will be subject to the rules, regulations and limitations
governing deferred compensation. Sick leave conversion to vacation will be
subject to earned vacation accumulation limits and vacation entitlement
limitations.

Page 15 of 24



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

Requests for conversion of conserved Sick Leave will be in writing on forms
provided by the District and subject to the approval of the General
Manager.

. Sick Leave on Separation from Employment

For employees with less than ten (10) years of service with the District,
upon death, retirement, resignation or separation by layoff, up to five
hundred twenty (520) hours of accrued Sick Leave will be paid off at the
rate of twenty-five percent (25%) of the cash value. Accrued Sick Leave
beyond five hundred twenty (520) hours will be paid off at the rate of twelve
and one-half percent (12.5%) of the accrued cash value.

For employees with between ten (10) and fifteen (15) years of service with
the District, upon death, retirement, resignation, or separation by layoff,
up to one thousand forty (1040) hours of the employee’s accrued, unused
Sick Leave will be paid to the employee or the employee’s estate at the rate
of fifty percent (50%) of the equivalent cash value. All accrued, unused
Sick Leave beyond one thousand forty (1040) hours, will be paid off at the
rate of twenty-five percent (25%) of the cash value.

For employees with fifteen (15) or more years of service with the District,
upon death, retirement, resignation, or separation by layoff, up to one
thousand forty (1040) hours of the employee’s accrued, unused Sick Leave
will be paid to the employee or the employee’s estate at the rate of seventy-
five percent (75%) of the equivalent cash value. All accrued, unused Sick
Leave beyond one thousand forty (1040) hours, will be paid off at the rate
of fifty percent (50%) of the cash value.

An employee, upon retirement, may convert unused Sick Leave that has
not been converted to cash payment to added service credit under

CalPERS in accordance with CalPERS rules and regulations.

. Sick Leave Usage

The provisions of Article XVIII, Section 3 of the Personnel Rules will govern
accrual and use of sick leave. The minimum amount of sick leave to be
taken at any one time is one one-quarter (1/4) hour. Sick leave may be
used in quarter (1/4) hour increments.

Page 16 of 24



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

Section 13.0 - Management Leave

FLSA exempt employees are expected to meet the needs of the District, as
established by the Manager and Board of Directors. Work schedules will provide
exempt employees availability to meet District standards and requirements.

Full-time, FLSA exempt employees in the classifications of Deputy District
Engineer, Senior Engineer, Finance Manager, Supervising Accountant,
Operations & Maintenance Manager and Water Conservation Program Manager,
who are not eligible to earn overtime, will receive eighty (80) hours of
management leave per calendar year, provided as a lump sum on January 1st of
each year. Management leave will be subject to the same standards and
requirements as vacation.

The minimum amount of management leave to be taken at any one time is one
one-quarter (1/4) hour. Management leave may be used in quarter (1/4) hour
increments. Employees are required to use a minimum of forty (40) hours of
management leave as time off each year. Any unused management leave at the
end of the calendar year and at separation will be automatically cashed out at
the employee’s base rate of pay plus any longevity pay and incentive pay. The
employee may choose to contribute a portion or all of the cashed out
management leave to the employee’s 457 deferred compensation account at the
employee’s base rate of pay, subject to the rules, regulations and limitations
governing deferred compensation.

Newly hired employees and employees promoted into an eligible classification at
the District will receive a pro-rated amount of management leave at the time of

hire /promotion.

Section 14.0 — Cell Phone Allowance

Managers required to use a mobile device for business use related to their
functional area, are eligible to receive a monthly stipend of fifty-one dollars ($51)
for an employee purchased, owned and operated cellular phone and/or wireless
PDA device. Allowances are paid through the payroll system upon receipt of the
designated form.

Page 17 of 24



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

Section 15.0 — Credit Union

The District agrees to make available participation in the Santa Clara County
Federal Credit Union at no cost to the District.
Section 16.0 - Employee Assistance Program

The District will provide and pay the premiums for a work-site based Employee
Assistance Program for all regular employees and their families, with a maximum
of six (6) sessions for each incident of treatment. The program will include
provisions for formal and informal District referral and employee/family referral.
New employees have a one (1) month waiting period before coverage begins.

Section 17.0 -Safety Shoe Reimbursement

Employees in the classifications of Deputy District Engineer,
Assistant/Associate/Senior Engineer and Operations & Maintenance Manager
will be required to wear approved safety shoes as a condition of employment
during all hours worked.

Appropriate safety shoes or boots will incorporate the following safety factors
depending on the type of work performed:

Non-skid sole

Adequate ankle protection

Puncture protection

. Impact/compression protection, and;

Must be in compliance with General Industry Safety Orders.

@O OowR

Employees required to wear approved safety shoes, who report to work without
their safety shoes, will not be permitted to work.

Effective January 1, 2021, the District will reimburse employees required to wear
safety shoes, upon presentation of receipt, up to two hundred fifty dollars
($250.00) each calendar year for safety shoe purchases. Effective January 1,
2024, the District will reimburse employees in classifications required to wear
safety shoes, upon presentation of receipt, up to two hundred seventy-five dollars
($275.00) each calendar year for safety shoe purchases.

All necessary repairs and associated expenses for safety shoes will be the
responsibility of the employee.

Page 18 of 24



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

Effective January 1, 2024, the District shall reimburse up to two hundred
seventy-five dollars ($275.00) for each new employee hired in a classification
required to wear safety shoes. If an employee resigns within the first six (6)
months of employment, the employee will refund the full amount to the District.

The monetary value of safety boots will not be reportable compensation.

Section 18.0 — Prorated Benefits for Part Time Employees

Part time employees authorized to work at least twenty (20) hours per week (i.e.,
at least fifty percent (50%) of a full-time work schedule) will receive prorated
benefits, including vacation, sick leave (as permitted by law), Flexible Benefits
Plan contributions, and other benefits. The part-time work schedule must be
authorized by the General Manager or designee.

Section 19.0 — General Terms

This Resolution supersedes all other summaries of benefits, resolutions and
memos addressing benefits and compensation currently provided to
Management/Confidential/ Professional employees.

Management/Confidential / Professional employees are subject to the provisions
of the District’s Personnel Rules and Regulations. If a provision of this Resolution
conflicts with any provision of the District’s Personnel Rules and Regulations,
the provision of this Resolution that is in conflict will apply to
Management/Confidential /Professional employees. If a provision of this
Resolution conflicts with an individual employee’s employment contract, the
provision of the employment contract that is in conflict will apply to the
individual employee.

As soon as administratively feasible, the Personnel Rules and Regulations will
be updated to provide the following changes:
e Overtime will be compensated by pay only, and will no longer be
compensated with compensatory time off;
¢ An employee who receives an “exceptional” overall rating on their
performance evaluation may receive a double step increase, subject to
the approval of the General Manager.
e Accrued paid leave may be taken in quarter-hour increments.
e Two paid holidays will be added to the holiday schedule: Cesar Chavez Day
and Juneteenth.

Page 19 of 24



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

e Sick leave provided under the California Paid Sick Leave and California
Family Rights Act Leave Act to care for an immediate family member, will
be permitted to care for a “designated person” in accordance with recent
legislation.

¢ Two additional days of unpaid Bereavement leave will be provided, for
which an employee may concurrently use accrued paid leave, in
accordance with recent legislation. Immediate family will be defined to
include step-grandparents and step-grandchildren.

Section 20.0 - Effective Date

This resolution is effective July 7, 2025 and supersedes any and all prior
schedule of benefits for the job classifications listed herein.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Benito County
Water District this 28th day of May 2025, by the following vote:

AYES: DIRECTORS:
NOES: DIRECTORS:
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:

ABSENT: DIRECTORS:

Page 20 of 24



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

(Signature of presiding Board member
Attested by Board Secretary
Resolution #2025-09)

Doug Williams
President

ATTEST:

Barbara L. Mauro
Board Secretary

Page 21 of 24



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

Appendix A
Classification Table

Classification

Accountant I

Accountant II

Assistant Engineer (Engineer 1)

Associate Engineer (Engineer 2)

Deputy District Engineer

Finance Manager

Human Resources/Administrative
Analyst

Operations & Maintenance Manager

Senior Engineer (Engineer III)

Supervising Accountant

Water Conservation Program
Manager

Page 22 of 24



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

Salary Schedule (Effective July 2023)

Management/Confidential/Professional
Effective 7/10/23

Rate
Classification Type Step A|Step B|Step C|Step D|Step E [Step F [Step G|Step H
Accountant | monthly 5278| 5,489| 5,709| 5,937| 6,175 6,422| 6,679 6,946
Accountant li monthly 5,806| 6,038 6,280 6,531 6,792 7,064 7,347 7,640
Deputy District Engineer monthly | 10,529| 10,950| 11,388 11,843| 12,317 12,810{ 13,322 13,855
Engineer | (Assistant)* monthly 6,395/ 6,650, 6,916| 7,193| 7,481| 7,780 8,091 8,415
Engineer Il (Associate)* monthly 7,060 7,342 7,636 7,941 8,259| 8,589| 8,933] 9,290
Engineer lIl (Senior)* monthly 8,811 9,163 9,530{ 9,911| 10,307| 10,719| 11,148] 11,594
Finance Manager monthly 7,519 7,820f 8,133] 8,458 8,796 9,148| 9,514} 9,894
HR/Administrative Analyst monthly 6,368 6,623| 6,888| 7,164| 7,450 7,748| 8,058| 8,380
Operations & Maintenance Manager monthly 8,777 9,128 9,494 9,873| 10,268| 10,679] 11,106] 11,550
Supenvising Accountant monthly 6,677 6,945 7,222 7,511 7,812 8,124] 8,449| 8,787
Water Conservation Program Manager | monthly 6,677 6,945] 7,222] 7,511] 7,812| 8,124| 8,449| 8,787
*Professional Engineer Series
Board Approved: 6/28/23 L
Salary Schedule (Effective July 2024)
Management/Confidential/Professional
Effective 7/8/24
Rate
Classification Type Step A|Step B|Step C|Step D|Step E|Step F | Step G | Step H
Accountant | monthly 5,436 5,653| 5,880| 6,115 6,359 6,614 6,878 7,153
Accountant Il monthly 5080 6,219| 6,468 6,727 6,996 7,276 7,567 7,869
Deputy District Engineer monthly { 10,845] 11,279] 11,730| 12,199] 12,687] 13,195] 13,722| 14,271
Engineer | (Assistant)* monthly 6,587| 6,850( 7,124| 7,409 7,706) 8,014 8,335 8,668
Engineer Il (Associate)* monthly 7,272 7,563 7,865| 8,180 8,507] 8,847 9,201 9,569
Engineer lll (Senior)* monthly 9,075 9,438| 9,816{ 10,208| 10,616] 11,041] 11,483] 11,942
Finance Manager monthly 7,745\ 8,055| 8,377| 8,712 9,061 9,423 9,800 10,192
HR/Administrative Analyst monthly 6,559| 6,821 7,094 7,378 7,673| 7,980| 8,299 8,631
Operations & Maintenance Manager monthly 9,040| 9,402| 9,778] 10,169| 10,576 10,999| 11,438 11,896
Supenising Accountant monthly 6,877| 7,152| 7,438| 7,736| 8,045 8,367 8,702 9,050
Water Consenvation Program Managel| monthly 6,877| 7,152| 7,438| 7,736| 8,045/ 8,367 8,702 9,050
*Professional Engineer Series
Board Approved: 6/26/24 |

Page 23 of 24




DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

Salary Schedule (Effective July 2025)
(only salary change at this time is for Deputy District Engineer)

Management/Confidential/Professional
Effective 7/8/24

Rate

Classification Type Step A|Step B|Step C|Step D|Step E|Step F | Step G | Step H

Accountant | monthly 5436| 5,653 5,880 6,115/ 6,359 6,614 6,878 7,153
Accountant Il monthly 5,980 6,219 6,468 6,727| 6,996| 7,276 7,567 7,869
Deputy District Engineer monthly | 11,375 11,830] 12,303] 12,795| 13,307| 13,839 14,393 14,969
Engineer | (Assistant)* monthly 6,587| 6,850| 7,124 7,409| 7,706 8,014 8,335 8,668
Engineer Il (Associate)* monthly | 7,272 7,563| 7,865 8,180 8,507 8,847 9,201 9,569
Engineer [l (Senior)* monthly 9,075 9,438) 9,816] 10,208| 10,616] 11,041] 11,483] 11,942
Finance Manager monthly 7,745 8,055/ 8,377 8,712| 9,061 9,423 9,800 10,192
HR/Administrative Analyst monthly 6,559| 6,821| 7,094 7,378 7,673| 7,980 8,299 8,631
Operations & Maintenance Manager | monthly 9,040 9,402{ 9,778} 10,169} 10,576 10,999| 11,438] 11,896
Supenising Accountant monthly 6,877| 7,152 7,438 7,736/ 8,045 8,367| 8,702 9,050
Water Conservation Program Manage] monthly 6,877| 7,152 7,438| 7,736 8,045 8,367 8,702 9,050

*Professional Engineer Series

Board Approved: 5/28/25 Bd Res 2025-09 Effective 7/7/25

Page 24 of 24




RS

. X
‘s?‘ EOUN.T.Y uf;.."'

=0 s ETABLISI e, X l,"
-7 QY
- “? o’ - ’
' AY
¥ Elg
182
i52

% 'y £

'*"' "-ﬁ Ov, 3, \952..' 5

R0

Agenda
Item

# O

®fsosnse®® r
O



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-10

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
FOR SALARY AND COMPENSATION
FOR THE EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT GROUP

WHEREAS, San Benito County Water District desires to memorialize certain
benefits and compensation currently provided to Executive Management;

WHEREAS, San Benito County Water District’s Executive Management group
consists of the following positions:

e General Manager
e Assistant General Manager
e District Engineer

WHEREAS, the above positions are considered a group because they share
similarities in job duties or are otherwise a logical work-related grouping;

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Benito
County Water District:

Section 1.0 - Purpose and Application

The purpose of this Resolution is to set forth certain benefits and additional
compensation for General Manager, Assistant General Manager, and District
Engineer, Executive Management group positions of the San Benito County Water
District (“District”’). The Board of Directors retains all rights and authority to
amend, reduce, or eliminate benefits and additional compensation in its sole and
absolute discretion.

This Resolution shall be applicable to the following Executive Management
employees:

A. General Manager
B. Assistant General Manager

C. District Engineer

Section 2.0 — Salary

A. Effective November 1, 2024, following Board adoption of Resolution 2024-35,
the annual salary for the General Manager is $250,000.

1



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

B. Effective July 7, 2025, following Board adoption of Resolution 2025-10, the

salary range for the vacant District Engineer position will be a minimum of
$170,500 per year and a maximum of $203,500.

C. Effective November 1, 2024, following Board adoption of Resolution 2024-44,

the annual salary for the Assistant General Manager is $230,000.

D. Salary will be payable over twenty-six (26) pay periods in accordance with the

regular payroll schedule of the District.

Section 3.0 — Retirement

3.1

3.2

Tier One Pension

For eligible employees hired by the District before January 1, 2013 or hired
after January 1, 2013 who meet the definition of “classic members” as defined
by CalPERS, the District shall continue to participate in its Miscellaneous
Plan Agreement with CalPERS to provide the 2.5% at 55 retirement option.

Employees in Tier One Pension shall be required to pay the member
contribution as defined by CalPERS.

Tier Two Pension

For eligible employees who meet the definition of “new member” as set forth in
Government Code Section 7522.02(f) the District will provide the CalPERS two
percent (2%) at age sixty-two (62) formula retirement plan in accordance with
Government Code Section 7522.20, calculated using final compensation
based on the highest average annual pensionable compensation earned by the
member during a period of at least 36 consecutive months, in accordance
with Government Code Section 7522.32.

New members shall be subject to the provisions of the Public Employee
Pension Reform Act (PEPRA), including provisions governing reportable
compensation.

Employees in Tier Two Pension shall pay the rate prescribed by CalPERS for
employee contributions to the Public Employees’ Retirement System in
accordance with the rules and regulations governing such employee
contributions, which consists of one-half of the total normal costs for pension.



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

Section 4.0 - Longevity Pay for Tier One Employees

Employees hired by the District before January 1, 2013 who have more than five (5)
years of continuous District service, shall receive longevity pay in the amount of
eight percent (8%) of salary as stated in Section 2.0. No other employees shall be
eligible for longevity pay.

Section 5.0 - Retiree Health Savings Account

Effective as soon as administratively feasible following the adoption of this
Resolution, the District will establish a Retiree Health Savings Account (RHSA) for
each employee in the Executive Management Group, to which employees may
contribute to save, on a nontaxable basis, money to help pay the cost of eligible
medical expenses after terminating from District employment. The RHSA is intended
to constitute a “health reimbursement arrangement” within the meaning of IRS
Notice 2002-45.

5.1 Contributions:

A. Employee contributions are mandatory. No employee will have any right to
elect to receive cash or any benefit in lieu of the contributions.

B. Unused Sick Leave and Vacation Accruals: At separation from District
service, one hundred percent (100%) of the cash-out value of employee’s
earned and unused sick leave, and one hundred percent (100%) of the
cash-out value of employee’s earned and unused vacation, at the
applicable conversion rates, will be cashed out and deposited into the
employee’s RHSA; except if the employee dies while in District employment,
then sick leave and vacation accruals will not be deposited into the
employee’s RHSA and will instead be converted to cash at the applicable
rate and distributed to the employee’s estate.

5.2 Vesting
An employee’s RHSA contributions, including any allocable investment
earnings, are 100% vested at all times.

5.3 Distributions
After an employee separates from District employment, the employee’s RHSA

funds may be used for qualifying insurance premiums incurred by the
employee, the employee’s spouse, and the employee’s eligible dependents. In



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

addition, the use of the RHSA funds will be subject to the terms of the
governing RHSA plan document.

Section 6.0 Fringe and Supplemental Benefits.

Except as otherwise provided herein and in each employee’s employment agreement
with the District, including subsequent amendments thereto, the fringe and
supplemental benefits provided in the District’s Salary and Compensation
Resolution for Management/Confidential / Professional employees will be provided to
employees in the Executive Management group in the same manner as provided to
management employees in the District.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Benito
County Water District that the San Benito County Water District adopts certain
benefits and compensation for Executive Management, as set forth above. This
resolution supersedes and replaces any Resolutions regarding Executive
Management Compensation.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the President of the Board is authorized to sign
said Resolution, on behalf of this Board and District.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water
District at a regular meeting, this 28th day of May, 2025, by the following vote:

AYES: DIRECTORS:
NOES: DIRECTORS:
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:
ABSENT: DIRECTORS:



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

(Signature of presiding Board member
Attested by Board Secretary
Resolution #2025-10)

Doug Williams
President

ATTEST:

Barbara L. Mauro
Board Secretary



v \\\\\\\\\I
é“(\)\_}NTY u}"l

S Plreesnna 4

&0 ...0 ES“ABU.'SHEI;. ..6"

L)

-
-

- | | #
1“1

"O.f"'o V. 8 \95?.'.'
" &O ."-nai-" C
LLISTER.

ITTERAcER S

Agenda
[tem
# 7

1H

“

l"'

“

o‘%

G

l"'

RN



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-11

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
ADOPTING THE 2025-26 SALARY SCHEDULE TO COMPLY WITH
CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM (CALPERS)
STATUTORY AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS FOR COMPENSATION
EARNABLE AND PUBLICLY AVAILABLE PAY SCHEDULES

WHEREAS, all employers must comply with the compensation earnable and
publicly available pay schedules provisions contained in California Code of
Regulations (CCR) Title 2, Section 570.5 and amendments to CCR Section 571,
subdivision (b); and

WHEREAS, it is necessary to review and duly approve and adopt in
accordance with requirements of applicable public meetings laws, a publicly
available pay schedule; and

WHEREAS, attached to this resolution and incorporated by reference is the
District’s comprehensive salary schedule which will be made publicly available on
the District’s website and provided upon request; and

WHEREAS, this resolution confirms and formally adopts, but does not
modify any salary rates previously approved by the District; and

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San
Benito County Water District that the San Benito County Water District hereby
adopts and confirms the salary schedule to comply with California Public
Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) statuary and regulatory requirements
for compensation earnable and publicly available pay schedules.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water
District this 28t day of May, 2025, by the following vote:

AYES: DIRECTORS:

NOES: DIRECTORS:

ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:

ABSENT: DIRECTORS:



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

(Signature of presiding Board member
Attested by Board Secretary
Resolution #2025-11)

Doug Williams
President

ATTEST:

Barbara L. Mauro
Board Secretary



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

San Benito County Water District
Publicly Available Salary Schedule
Board Adopted 5-28-25

Field and Office
Effective 7/8/24

Rate

Classification Type |StepA|Step B|Step C|{StepD|StepE|StepF|StepG | StepH
Accounting Technician monthly 4,944| 5,142| 5,347] 5,561| 5,784 6,015 6,256 6,506
Customer Account Specialist | monthly | 4,096 4,260 4,430{ 4,607| 4,792| 4,983| 5,183 5,390
Customer Account Specialist Il monthly 4,506/ 4,686| 4,874 5,069] 5271} 5,482] 5,702 5,930
Customer Account Specialist Il monthly 4,956 5,154 5,360| 5,575] 5,798] 6,030 6,271 6,522
Electrical/Electronic Technician monthly 6,309] 6,561| 6,824| 7,097| 7,381 7,676 7,983 8,302
Engineer (unlicensed) monthly | 6,192| 6,440 6,697 6,965 7,244 7,534] 7,835 8,148
Engineering Technician monthly | 5384 5599 5823 6,056 6,299| 6,550{ 6,812 7,085
*Executive Assistant/Board Clerk monthly | 5,077 5,280 5491 5711] 5939] 6,177 6,424 6,681
Maintenance | monthly | 4,203{ 4,371 4,546] 4,728] 4,917| 5,114| 5,318 5,531
Maintenance If monthly | 4,624] 4,809| 5,001 5,201 5409] 5,626] 5851 6,085
Maintenance il monthly 5,317| 5,530[ 5,751| 5,981 6,220] 6,469 6,728 6,997
Maintenance Trainee monthly | 3,503 3,643 3,789 3,940{ 4,098] 4,262| 4,432 4,610
Office Specialist | monthly 3,723 3,872] 4,027| 4,188] 4,355 4,530] 4,711 4,899
Office Specialist Il monthly | 4,096] 4,260 4,430] 4,607| 4,792| 4,983 5,183] 5390
Office Specialist Il monthly 4,506| 4,686| 4,874| 5,069 5,271| 5,482| 5,702 5,930
Water Distribution/Maint. | monthly | 4,895 5,091 5,294 5,506| 5,726 5,956 6,194 6,441
Water Distribution/Maint. Ii monthly | 5385 5,600 5,824| 6,057| 6,300] 6,552| 6,814] 7,086
Water Distribution/Maint. Ill monthly 6,192| 6,440 6,697] 6,965| 7,244] 7,534 7,835 8,148
Water Programmer Il monthly | 4,956| 5,154| 5,360] 5,575 5,798] 6,030 6,271 6,522
Water Resources Technician | monthly 4992| 5,192] 5,399| 5,615| 5,840[ 6,074 6,316 6,569
Water Resources Technician Il monthly 5492 5,712 5,940 6,178| 6,425 6,682 6,949 7,227
Board Approved: 6/26/24

*Board approved: 7/31/24 (effective 8/5/24)

Management/Confidential/Professional
Effective 7/8/24

Rate
Classification Type Step A|Step B|Step C|Step D|Step E|Step F | Step G| Step H
Accountant | monthly 5,436| 5,653] 5,880{ 6,115] 6,359 6,614 6,878 7,153
Accountant Il monthly 5,980 6,219| 6,468| 6,727] 6,996 7,276] 7,567 7,869
Deputy District Engineer monthly | 11,375 11,830] 12,303| 12,795 13,307| 13,839| 14,393 14,969
Engineer | (Assistant)* monthly 6,587| 6,850 7,124 7,409( 7,706 8,014 8,335 8,668
Engineer Il (Associate)* monthly 7,272| 7,563| 7,865| 8,180( 8,507| 8,847 9,201 9,569
Engineer lll (Senior)* monthly { 9,075] 9,438] 9,816| 10,208] 10,616) 11,041) 11,483] 11,942
Finance Manager monthly 7,745) 8,055 8,377 8,712 9,061 9423 9,800 10,192
HR/Administrative Analyst monthly 6,559| 6,821| 7,094| 7,378 7,673 7,980 8,299 8,631
Operations & Maintenance Manager monthly 9,040/ 9,402 9,778 10,169| 10,576| 10,999 11,438 11,896
Supenising Accountant monthly 6,877| 7,152 7,438 7,736{ 8,045 8,367 8,702 9,050
Water Consenvation Program Manageq monthly 6,877 7,152] 7,438] 7,736[ 8,045 8,367 8,702 9,050
*Professional Engineer Series
Board Approved: 5/28/25 Bd Res 2025-09

Executive Management

Rate
Classification Annual Type Effective Date
General Manager $240,000 - {300,000{ monthly}20,000 to max of 25,000 }5/20/24 (Res.2024-18)
Board Approved 5/20/24 hourly ]115.38 - 144.23
Assistant General Manager $200,000 - |240,000] monthly| 16,667 to max of 20,000 {11/01/24 (Res 2024-40)
Board Approved 10/30/24 hourly {96.15 - 115.38
District Engineer $170,500 - }203,500| monthly| 14,208 to max of 16,958 [07/07/25 (Res 2025-10)
Board Approved 5/28/25 hourly |81.97 -97.94

Longevity Pay: Employees hired by the District before January 1, 2013 who have more than five (§) years of continuous
District service, shall receive longevity pay in the amount of eight percent (8%).

Board Adopted: 5/28/25







9
pLITTRRRCN g

Presented To

DAVID MACDONALD

2015-2025

In Grateful Appreciation
For 10 Years Of
Dedicated Service

San Benito County Water District

President Manager




San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal

Agenda Item: ‘//f

Meeting Date: May 28, 2025
Submitted By: Brett Miller
Presented By: Brett Miller

Agenda Title: Consider Approval of Ordinance Establishing Capacity Fees with the District’s
Zone 6 Service Area, First Reading

SUBJECT:

Introduction of a proposed Ordinance adding Chapter 4.53 to Title 4 of the District
Code, establishing capacity fees for new water service connections within the District’s
Zone 6 service area; approval to set a public hearing on June 25, 2025.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Introduce and Waive the First Reading of An Ordinance of the Board of Directors of the
San Benito County Water District Establishing Capacity Fees Within the District's
Zone 6 Service Area; Adding Chapter 4.53 to the District Code (“Capacity Fee
Ordinance”). (Attachment 1.)

Approval to Set a Public Hearing on June 25th, 2025, for the Second Reading and
Potential Adoption of the Capacity Fee Ordinance.

DISCUSSION:

The capacity fees proposed by the Capacity Fee Ordinance will apply to all new water
service connections that receive treated water from any of the District’'s wholesale water
customers within the District's Zone 6 zone of benefit. The Capacity Fee Ordinance
requires a one-time payment of $12,327 per equivalent meter (“EM”) that will be due in
two equal instaliments (one prior to final map and the other prior to building permit). The
revenues collected from capacity fees will be used to fund the costs of new water supply
projects that the San Benito Urban Areas Water Supply and Treatment Master Plan
Update (“Master Plan”) determined were needed to meet anticipated future
development. As a result, the intent of the Capacity Fee Ordinance is to require that
new development pay the costs for the new water supply projects that are needed to
accommodate projected future growth, as opposed to using fees paid by existing
customers to subsidize that cost.




Under section 66013 of the Government Code, the District has the statutory authority to
adopt capacity fees for new water service connections. Capacity fees are also
commonly known as capacity charges, developer fees, development impact fees, or
connection fees. Capacity fees are one-time capital charges assessed against a new
development to recover the proportional share of capital facility investment necessary to
accommodate growth. Capacity fees cannot exceed the estimated reasonable cost of
providing the service for which the fee is charged. If a proposed capacity fee exceeds
the estimated reasonable cost of providing service, then it is subject to a two-thirds
voter approval requirement. (Government Code section 66013(a).)

In order to demonstrate that a proposed capacity fee does not exceed the estimated
reasonable cost of the service provided and that voter approval of the capacity fee is not
required, District staff engaged Raftelis Financial Consultants to develop a Capacity Fee
Report. (Attachment 2.) This report evaluated the anticipated costs of the District's
planned water supply expansion projects and used established methodology to
determine the appropriate dollar amount for the capacity fee. The analysis in the
Capacity Fee Report demonstrates that the proposed capacity fee amount ($12,327 per
EM) does not exceed the estimated reasonable cost of providing water service to new
development. More details regarding the projects that will be funded by the capacity fee
and the Capacity Fee Report’s findings are discussed below.

Proposed Capacity Fees. The Capacity Fee Report evaluated the District's growth-
related capital costs to be recovered by the capacity fees. This included the District's
capital costs associated with two growth projects: (1) the North Area Groundwater
Phase 1; and (2) BF Sisk growth-related capacity. The District’s estimated adjusted
capital cost for these growth projects is $115.3 million. The proposed capacity fee is
therefore based on the adjusted capital cost divided by the estimated equivalent meters
that can be served by that increased capacity.

Adjusted Capital Cost $115,294,935
Equivalent Meters 9,353
Capacity Fee, $/EM $12,327

The proposed base capacity fee is $12,327 for each new single-family dwelling unit (an
“Equivalent Dwelling Unit" or “EDU"). The standard EM size, on which the capacity fee
is based, relies on the assumption that a 5/8” meter is needed for each EDU. As the
table below demonstrates, when the meter size goes up, then the applicable capacity
fee increases proportionally. The applicable capacity fee for meters larger than 4" will be
determined by the District upon request.




- Meter Size Fee, $/mtr

5/8" 1.00 $12,327
3/4" 1.50 $18,490
1" 2.50 $30,817
1.5" 5.00 $61,635
2" 8.00 $98,616
3" 17.50 $215,722
4" 31.50 $388,300

The capacity fees will be eligible for annual inflationary increases each year based on
the Consumer Price Index for the San Francisco Bay Area All Urban Index. As the base
meter size is adjusted annually, the other meter sizes will be adjusted according to the
ratios shown in the table above.

Addition of Chapter 4.53 to the District Code. The District has not previously adopted
capacity fees for new water service connections. Thus, the District’'s Code of
Regulations does not contain an applicable code chapter to which the proposed
capacity fees can be incorporated. As a result, the proposed Capacity Fee Ordinance
will add Chapter 4.53 to the District Code, setting forth the capacity fees and associated
regulations.

Adoption Procedures. Under applicable law, the District cannot approve or adopt an
Ordinance within five days of the first reading, and final adoption of the Ordinance must
be at a regular meeting. The District’s legal counsel has recommended that the first
reading of the Ordinance be waived at the May 28, 2025 meeting, as allowed under
applicable law. Counsel further recommends that the Ordinance be adopted (i.e., the
“second reading”) at the June 25, 2025 meeting in the form of a “public hearing.” While
applicable law does not expressly require a public hearing, it requires that “oral or
written presentations” be allowed. Counsel recommends holding a public hearing as a
legally conservative approach because it demonstrates that the District offered clear
opportunities for public engagement. Under applicable law, the Ordinance will become
effective on the sixty-first day after its adoption (following the second reading).

FISCAL IMPACT.:

Staff estimates that the proposed capacity fees will generate approximately $115 million
in revenue, as adjusted by future inflation, to cover the District’s estimated capital costs
associated with new growth.

ATTACHMENTS: '

1. Proposed Ordinance of the Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water
District (Establishing Capacity Fees Within the District's Zone 6 Service Area,;
Adding Chapter 4.53 to the District Code).

2. Raftelis Water Capacity Fee Final Report.

3. Finance Committee Recommendation




ATTACHMENT 1

Proposed Ordinance of the Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water District
Establishing Capacity Fees Within the District's Zone 6 Service Area; Adding Chapter
4.53 to the District Code.




DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

ORDINANCE NO. 66

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
(ESTABLISHING CAPACITY FEES WITHIN THE DISTRICT’S ZONE 6
SERVICE AREA;
ADDING CHAPTER 4.53 TO THE DISTRICT CODE)

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF THE SAN BENITO
COUNTY WATER DISTRICT THAT

ORDINANCE NO. 66 IS ENACTED AS

FOLLOWS:

Authority. Pursuant to the Water Code Appendix sections 70-6 and 70-
9.2, the San Benito County Water District (District) has the express
authority to impose fees and charges for water service by any and every
lawful act necessary for a sufficient water supply to be available for present
and future beneficial use, and to establish such fees and charges by
ordinance. District ordinances shall be adopted pursuant to the same
procedures applicable to the County of San Benito. The District adopts
this Ordinance to establish capacity fees all new water service connections
that will receive treated water from the District’s wholesale water
customers within the District’s Zone 6 service area, as the boundaries of
Zone 6 may be amended from time to time, including the Sunnyslope
County Water District and the City of Hollister, as well as potential future
customers in the City of San Juan Bautista, pursuant to sections 66013
and 66016 of the California Government Code.

Findings. The following findings are adopted by the Board.

a. The District owns water treatment plants in the Hollister Urban Area
that deliver treated water to the District’s wholesale water
customers, which provide municipal and industrial water service
within those customers’ respective service areas. These wholesale
customers include the Sunnyslope County Water District and the
City of Hollister. The District contemplates that the City of San Juan
Bautista may be added as a wholesale water customer.

b. The District manages local and imported surface water through the
San Benito River System and the San Felipe Distribution System in
order to deliver imported Central Valley Project (“CVP”) water to the
aforementioned retail water agencies.

G The District’s 2023 San Benito Urban Areas Water Supply and
Treatment Master Plan Update states that current urban water

-5-



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

demands are approximately 5,560 acre-feet per year (“AFY”), and
that, due to anticipated urban growth, projected urban water
demands will be approximately 12,500 AFY by 2045. Because
existing water supplies cannot satisfy anticipated future demand,
the 2023 San Benito Urban Areas Water Supply and Treatment
Master Plan Update identifies potential future projects that can
provide supplemental water supplies for new development.

d. The District finds that new growth within the District’s Zone 6 which
will receive treated water from District-owned treatment facilities
should pay a fair share of the cost of future projects that can provide
supplemental water supplies for new development and that existing
customers should not subsidize the cost of providing supplemental
water for new growth.

e. The capacity fees established herein are for the purposes of funding
capital projects and improvements necessary to provide
supplemental water for new growth within the District’s Zone 6.

f Pursuant to Government Code section 66016.6, the District
prepared a Water Capacity Fee Report (“Capacity Fee Study”) to
evaluate capacity fees that can be charged to new development to
fund the costs of supplemental water supplies that do not exceed
the estimated reasonable cost of providing water service.

g. Pursuant to Government Code section 66016.6, at least 14 days
prior to the meeting held on May 28, 2025, the District posted on its
website, shared with interested stakeholders, and made available to
at its district office, located at 30 Mansfield Road in Hollister,
California, the Capacity Fee Study containing evidence to support
that the capacity fees do not exceed the estimated reasonable cost
of providing service.

h. The District’s decision to adopt capacity fees is not subject to
environmental review under the California Environmental Quality
Act (CEQA). First, the capacity fees, in and of themselves, do not
have the potential for resulting in either a direct physical change in
the environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical
change in the environment and therefore are not considered a
“project” under CEQA. (Pub. Resources Code, § 21065; 14 Cal. Code
Regs., § 15378, subd. (a).) Further, capacity fees are a government
funding mechanism that does not involve any commitment by the
District to any specific project which may result in a potentially
significant physical impact on the environment. (14 Cal. Code Regs.,
§ 15378, subd. (b)(4).)



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

. The capacity fees will not be levied as an incident of property
ownership but are levied solely at the request of a property owner or
its agency for the privilege of gaining access to water supplies from
the District’s treated water system and related facilities.

I The capacity fees for new connections do not involve rates, delivery
charges, or fixed monthly charges for water delivery or treatment.
The capacity fees are imposed only as a condition of receiving water
service through new connections.

k. The capacity fees adopted by this Ordinance do not exceed the
estimated reasonable costs of providing the services for which the
fees or charges are imposed.

Adoption of Water Capacity Fee Report. The capacity fees reflected in the
Raftelis Water Capacity Fee Report are hereby adopted as the new capacity
fees for all new water service connections that will receive treated water
from the District’s wholesale water customers within the District’s Zone 6
service area, as the boundaries of Zone 6 may be amended from time to
time, including the Sunnyslope County Water District and the City of
Hollister as well as potential future customers in the City of San Juan
Bautista.

Addition of Chapter 4.53 to the District Code. Chapter 4.53 shall be added
to the District Code of Regulations setting forth the capacity fees adopted
pursuant to this Ordinance, and shall read in full as follows:

Chapter 4.53 - CAPACITY FEES
4.53.010 - Purpose and intent.

The purpose and intent of this Chapter is to set forth the rules
and regulations that shall apply to capacity fees for new water
service connections that will receive treated water from the
District’s wholesale water customers within the Zone 6 service
area, as the boundaries of Zone 6 may be amended from time
to time, including the Sunnyslope County Water District and
the City of Hollister, as well as potential future customers in
the City of San Juan Bautista.

4.53.020 - Applicability.

The capacity fees established by this Ordinance shall apply to
new water service connections that will receive treated water
from the District’s wholesale water customers within the
District’s Zone 6 service area, as the boundaries of Zone 6 may



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

be amended from time to time, including the Sunnyslope
County Water District and the City of Hollister, as well as
potential future customers in the City of San Juan Bautista.

4.53.030 - Effective date.

The capacity fees shall take effect at 12:01 a.m. on the sixty-
first day following the final Board action on the adoption of
the capacity fee or an increase thereto.

4.53.040 - Capacity fees.

A capacity fee for the right of service in existing, proposed, and
pending water supply, treatment, storage, transmission, and
distribution facilities of the District shall be payable to the
District for all new water service connections that will receive
treated water from the District’s wholesale water customers
within the District’s Zone 6 service area, as the boundaries of
Zone 6 may be amended from time to time, including the
Sunnyslope County Water District and the City of Hollister, as
well as potential future customers in the City of San Juan
Bautista. The capacity fees shall be in the amounts as set
forth in Appendix A of this Chapter, incorporated herein by
reference.

4.53.050 - Adjustment of capacity fees.

The capacity fees shall be automatically adjusted each July 1
using the Consumer Price Index for the San Francisco Bay
Area—All Urban Index for May of the then current year and
May of the previous year.

4.53.060 - Payment of all fees.

No property or facility within the boundaries of the District’s
Zone 6 service area, as the boundaries of Zone 6 may be
amended from time to time, shall be eligible to receive treated
water from the District’s wholesale water customers, including
the Sunnyslope County Water District and the City of
Hollister, as well as potential future customers in the City of
San Juan Bautista, until all applicable capacity fees are paid
in full. Payments shall be made in two equal installments. The
first payment shall be due prior to the recording of the final
subdivision map. The second payment shall be due prior to
obtaining the respective building permit(s) for the
development project.



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

4.53.070 - Effect of Repeal or Amendment on Past Actions
and Obligations.

This Ordinance does not affect prosecutions for ordinance
violations committed prior to the effective date of this
Ordinance, does not waive any fee or penalty due and unpaid
on the effective date of this Ordinance, and does not affect the
validity of any bond or case deposit posted, filed, or deposited
pursuant to the requirements of any ordinance.

4.53.080 - Expiration of building permait.

If a building permit expires, those capacity fees previously
paid in relation thereto shall not be refunded. If a new building
permit is subsequently sought for the same parcel, a capacity
fee shall be paid prior to issuance of a new permit. The amount
of the capacity fee shall be the current capacity fee less the
prior amount paid.

4.53.090 - Fee limitation.

The capacity fees adopted by this Ordinance shall not exceed
the estimated reasonable costs of providing the services for
which the capacity fees are imposed. Any charges that exceed
the reasonable costs of providing the service shall be
refunded.

4.53.100 - Record of fees.

The District shall keep accurate records concerning the
collection of capacity fees. Such records shall set forth the
amount of capacity fees paid for each parcel of land, building,
or improvement within the District’s Zone 6 boundaries.

4.53.110 - Rounded fees.
Capacity fees shall be rounded to the nearest dollar.

4.53.120 - Appeals.

An appeal from any decision or determination made pursuant
to this Chapter may be made to the Board of Directors. Any
such appeal shall be in writing and shall be filed with the
District’s Manager of Administration, Finance, and Business
Services within 15 days after the decision or determination. In

-9-



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

the absence of such an appeal, the decision or determination
shall be deemed final. In the event of such an appeal, the
decision or determination appealed shall be final upon the
final decision reached by the Board of Directors upon such an
appeal.

5. Effective Date of Ordinance. Pursuant to Government Code section
66017(a), this ordinance shall become effective and in full force and effect
at 12:01 a.m. on the sixty-first day after its final passage.

6. Publication. Within 15 days after its passage, this Ordinance shall be
published once in a newspaper of general circulation in the County of San
Benito, State of California, together with the names of the members of the
Board of Directors voting for and against the same.

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 25t day of June 2025, by the San Benito
County Water District Board of Directors by the following vote:

AYES: DIRECTORS:
NOES: DIRECTORS:
ABSENT: DIRECTORS:
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:

-10-



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

(Signature of presiding Board member
Attested by Board Secretary
Ordinance #66)

ATTEST:

Barbara L. Mauro
Board Secretary

-11-

Doug Williams
President



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT—DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

APPENDIX A — WATER CAPACITY FEES

A. RATE PER EQUIVALENT METER - $12,327

B. WATER SUPPLY CAPACITY AT DIFFERENT METER SIZES

The table included herein sets forth the capacity fee for different meter sizes, from 5/8” to 4”.
The District will charge new single family residences which are required to install a 1” meter for
fire requirements at the 5/8” capacity fee.

Meter Size LE Fee, S/mtr
5/8" 1.00 $12,327
3/4" 1.50 $18,490

1" 2.50 $30,817
1.5" 5.00 $61,635
2" 8.00 598,616
3" 17.50 $215,722
4" 31.50 $388,300

Meters Larger than 4”: The capacity fee for meters that are greater than
4” shall be set by the District upon request.

-12-



ATTACHMENT 2

Raftelis Water Capacity Fee Final Report.

-13-



SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

Water Capacity Fee Report

FINAL REPORT / MAY 7, 2025

= RAFTELIS




-15-



= RAFTELIS

May 7, 2025

Mr. Brett Miller, CPA, CPFO
Assistant General Manager

San Benito County Water District
30 Mansfield Road

Hollister, CA 95023

Subject: Water Capacity Fee Report — FINAL
Dear Mr. Miller:

Raftelis is pleased to provide this Water Capacity Fee report for the San Benito County Water District
(SBCWD) to develop a water capacity fee.

This report summarizes the methodology for calculating the fee and presents the recommended water
capacity fee.

It has been a pleasure working with you, and we thank you and SBCWD staff for the support provided during
the course of this study.

Sincerely,

Theresa Jurotich,é;.;l. (KS, WA), PMP
Manager

1 North Calle Cesar Shavaz. Snite 102, Santa Barbara, CA 83133
www.raftelis.com 16



San Senite County Water District / Water Capacity Fee Report — FINAL

Contents

1. Executive Summary 7
1. BACKGTOUNTO iisusnnnuniommummnsosossmsssssssssassssnss s s e sosn sk s s s e s o arinssstssansss 7
1.2. Background of the StUdY..«cussmssanmmmmmermarsesesmeimymmss s iusss s et e 7
1.3, CAPACKHY FEES 1.eureereeneeeseeereseeseesesssesseesssesssssessesestmesssstssessesssssssssessessstaessassassasssanesns 7
1.4. ReCOMMONAOU FOOS iiuciscisimmssssismmmnmimnsrvsnenconsmsisssnsmss srnsessasussssss sonas sorsesamisasauseysansnonsass 8

2. Background .....c.ssusesssisvanes 9

3. Methodology Overview.......... WM |
3.1. Capacity Fee Methodologies.........cocuummmmcmmmmmmmrmimi e 10

3,11, BUY-IN MEINOM.. . e et e e s e ae e e e e e e bbb brbee e et e e e nne e eanrae s 10
3.1.2. Incremental Cost Method .........ccvviiiiiiiiiiecic e 11

G I IRC T o 1V o1 T IV 11 o o PSR PR PP 11
3.1.4. Recommended MethodolOgy..........oviiiiiiiiiiiiiii et 11

3.2. Asset Valuation OPptioNS.......ccccccceinrcnnmmncsemmmesmmmmmmersmmmm e 11
G I B O L4 T [ F= | I @e 1) OO PRTUPPPI 11
3.2.2. Replacement Cost.....ccoiiiiii it 12
3.2.3. Original Cost Less Depreciation .............c e 12
3.2.4. Replacement Cost Less Depreciation (RCLD).........cooviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee e, 12
3.2.5. Recommended Asset Valuation Method............cccccoviiiiiiiiiiiininiicce e 13

4. Capacity Fee Development ......ccaevuvenns 14

-17-



San Benito County Water District / Water Capacity Fee Report ~ FINAL

Tables

Table 4-1: Estimated New Units Served by Growth Projects...........ccccov i e, 14
Table 4-2: Adjusted Capital CoSt..........cuiiiiiiiee e et ae e sbbae e sraeeeeenneeesnee 15
Table 4-3: Water Supply Capacity FEE..........ooviiiiieee et e e s e ee st e e v 15
Table 4-4. Water Supply Capacity at Different Meter Sizes............ccocciviii i, 15
Figures

Figure 3-1: Formula for Equity Buy-In Approach ..ot 10
Figure 3-2: Formula for Incremental Cost Method...........coiiiiiiiiniec e 11

-18-



San Banito County Water Distriet / Water Capacily Fee Report — FINAL

THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

-19-



San Benito County Water Distvict / Water Capacity Fee Report — FINAL 7

1. Executive Summary

1.1. Background

San Benito County Water District (SBCWD) manages the water resources within San Benito County and is
the Groundwater Sustainability Agency for the county. SBCWD provides retail and wholesale potable water
services as well as groundwater replenishment and recycled water. SBCWD owns two surface water
treatment plants and manages local and imported surface water through the San Benito River System and the
San Felipe Distribution System, respectively. A portion of the drinking water delivered to the Sunnyslope
County Water District and City of Hollister becomes recycled water (from the City of Hollister’s reclamation
plant) that is used for irrigation. The imported water improves overall water quality as the groundwater
pumped from local aquifers has varying levels of salts and high mineral content.

1.2. Background of the Study

SBCWD is developing a capacity fee for the purpose of funding potential water supply projects to
accommodate future growth in municipal customers. This report documents the resultant findings, analyses,
and proposed SBCWD water capacity fees. The capacity fees documented in this report are in accordance
with the rules and regulations of California State Government Code Section 66013. This report is the formal
technical documentation in support of adoption of the water capacity facility fees within SBCWD’s service
area including data sources, methodology, results, and comparisons.

The major objectives of the study include the following:
o Develop capacity fees to fund the proposed water supply expansion projects being developed by the
SBCWD;
o Ensuring capacity fees are fair to both future users and to existing users who have invested, and
reinvested, in the water supply system.

1.3. Capacity Fees

Capacity fees are also commonly known as developer fees, development impact fees, connection fees, and
system development charges, among others. This report uses the term capacity fees reflecting the
nomenclature most common in California. Capacity fees are one-time capital charges assessed against a new
development to recover the proportional share of capital facility investment necessary to accommodate
growth. Capacity fees are codified in the California Government Code Sections 66013-60025. Capacity fees
must reflect the link between the fee imposed on, and the benefit received by, a new connection to the system.
The fee charged may not exceed the estimated reasonable cost of providing the service for which the fee is
charged.

Broadly, utilities use one of three different methodologies to calculate capacity fees: Buy-In, Incremental, and
Hybrid; with variations of each dictated by local community and system characteristics, as well as policy
objectives. Utilities have broad latitude in the method and approach used to calculate fees provided the fees
do not exceed the estimated reasonable cost for providing service for which the fee is charged.

-20-



San Benito County Water District / Water Capacity Fee Report — FINAL e

1.4. Recommended Fees
Since SBCWD is capacity constrained, the Raftelis Team recommends using the incremental method. Raftelis
worked closely with SBCWD staff and referenced the Final San Benito Urban Areas Water Supply and
Treatment Master Plan Update (October 25, 2023) to determine the estimated cost of proposed water supply
expansion projects and the estimated number of new equivalent single family dwelling units (EDU) that could
be supported by the proposed water supply expansion projects. In an email from HDR on May 2, 2025, an
EDU was defined as a 5/8” meter (equivalent meter (EM)).

The capacity fee is $12,327/EM. The fee for other meter sizes is determined based on AWWA safe operating

capacities. This fee will be adjusted annually each July 1 using the Consumer Price Index for the San
Francisco Bay Area — All urban index for May of the then current year and May of the previous year.

-21-



San Benito County Water District / Water Capacity Fee Report - FINAL 2

2. Background

For publicly owned systems, most of the assets are typically paid for by the contributions of existing customers
through rates, charges, securing debt, and taxes. In service areas that incorporate new customers, the
infrastructure developed by previous customers is generally extended towards the service of new customers.
Existing customers’ investment in the existing system capacity allows newly connecting customers to take
advantage of unused surplus capacity. To further economic equality among new and existing customers, new
connectors will typically “Buy-In” to the existing and pre-funded facilities based on the existing assets,
effectively putting them on par with existing customers. In other words, the new users are buying into the
existing system based on the replacement costs of existing assets to continue to provide the same level of
service to new customers through repairs, expansions, and upgrades to the system.

The basic economic philosophy behind capacity fees is that the costs of providing service should be paid for by
those that receive utility from the product. To achieve fair distribution of the value of the system, the charge
should reflect a reasonable estimate of the cost of providing capacity to new users and not unduly burden
existing users through a comparable rate increase. Accordingly, many utilities make this philosophy one of
their primary guiding principles when developing their capacity fee structure.

The philosophy that service should be paid for by those that receive utility from the product is often referred to
as “growth-should-pay-for-growth.” The principal is summarized in the American Water Works Association
(AWWA) Manual M26: Water Rates and Related Charges:

“The purpose of designing customer-contributed-capital system charges is to prevent or reduce the
inequity to existing customers that results when these customers must pay the increase in water rates that
are needed to pay for added plant costs for new customers. Contributed capital reduces the need for new
outside sources of capital, which ordinarily has been serviced from the revenue stream. Under a system of
contributed capital, many water utilities are able to finance required facilities by use of a ‘growth-pays-
Sfor-growth’ policy.”

This principle, in general, applies to water, wastewater, and storm drainage systems. In the excerpt above,
customer-contributed-capital system charges are equivalent to capacity fees.

Values shown in report tables and figures are rounded to the digit shown. Therefore, any manual reproduction
of the calculations shown may not match the precise results displayed in the report.

2.



San Benite County Water District / Water Copacity Fee Report — FINAL 10

3. Methodology Overview

A capacity fee is a one-time charge paid by a new water system customer for the cost of backbone facilities
and incremental expansion necessary to provide water system capacity to that new customer. However, it is
also assessed to existing customers requiring increased water system capacity. Backbone facilities refers to
those components of the system that are necessary to provide service to all customers, inclusive of supply,
treatment and transmission lines. Revenues generated by this charge are used to pay for growth-related water
facilities.

3.1. Capacity Fee Methodologies

The method for calculating capacity fees generally utilizes one of the following three approaches: Buy-In,
Incremental, or Hybrid. The Buy-In approach is designed to recover the historical costs of plant investment in
proportion to the amount of built capacity, some of which is available for new growth. The Incremental
approach is designed to recover the costs of future growth-related projects and the additional capacity those
projects will yield. The Hybrid approach is appropriate where some remaining capacity is available in the
existing system and where new, future facilities are required for development.

3.1.1. Buy-In Method

The Buy-In Method is based on the premise that new customers are entitled to service at the same cost as
existing customers. Under this approach, new customers pay only an amount equal to the current system
value, either using the original cost or replacement cost as the valuation basis and either netting the value of
depreciation or not. This net investment, or value of the system, is then divided by the current capacity
utilization on the system by existing users to determine the Buy-In cost per unit.

For example, if the existing system has 100 equivalent dwelling units and the new connector uses an
equivalent unit, then the new customer would pay 1/100 of the total value of the existing system. By
contributing this capacity fee, the new connector has “bought in” to the existing system. The new user has
effectively acquired a financial position on par with existing customers and will face future capital re-
investment on equal financial footing with those customers. This approach is suitable when: (1) an agency has
built most or all of their facilities and only a small, or no, portion of future facilities are required for build-out
development, (2) an agency does not have a detailed adopted long-term capital improvement plan, or (3) an
agency’s “build-out” date is so far out in the future that it is difficult to accurately project growth and required
facilities with precision. Figure 3-1 shows the framework for calculating an Equity Buy-In capacity fee.

ey
E
i

“igure 3-1: Formula for Equity Buy-In Approach

Existing

Vatue of Existing System (5) Capacity

aoe P con [ e Utilizatien Buy-In ($/EDU)
Valuation Reserves principal (EDUs)

23



San Senito County Water District / Water Capacity Fee Report — FINAL 41

3.1.2. Incremental Cost Method

The Incremental-Cost Method states that new development (new users) should pay for the additional capacity
and expansions necessary to accommodate them. This method is typically used when there are specific capital
improvements needed to furnish growth for new development. Under the Incremental-Cost Method, growth-
related capital improvements are allocated to new development based on their estimated usage or capacity
requirements, irrespective of the value of past investments made by existing customers.

For instance, if it costs X dollars ($X) to provide water supply for 100 additional equivalent dwelling units and
a new connector uses one of those equivalents, then the new user would pay $X/100 to connect to the system.
In other words, new customers pay the incremental cost of capacity based on the estimated cost of the new
facility projects. This method is generally used when detailed facilities are identified for the capacity required
to serve new customers and little to no existing system capacity is available for development. While California
Code 66013 (b)(3) does not define a specific period over which to include future projects, these periods can be
as long as a master planning period. Figure 3-2 shows the framework for calculating an incremental cost
capacity fee.

Total Capital Improvements
($) Increased

Capacity ln:;jmen;:al
Expansion EDU
Capital (EDUs)
Projects

3.1.3. Hybrid Method

The Hybrid Method is typically used where some capacity is available to serve new growth, but additional
expansion is still necessary to accommodate new development. Under the hybrid method, the capacity fee is
based on a weighted average of the existing capacity value and the costs of necessary expansions (i.e., the
Buy-In component and the Incremental-cost component).

Capital improvements that are required to serve existing users and expand system capacity to serve future
customers may be included proportionally to the percentage of the cost specifically required for expansion of
the system.

3.1.4. Recommended Methodology

Since SBCWD is capacity constrained, the Raftelis Team recommends using the incremental method.

3.2. Asset Valuation Options

Four principal methods are used to estimate the value of existing facilities: original cost, replacement cost,
original cost less depreciation, and replacement cost less depreciation.

3.2.1. Original Cost

The principal advantages of original cost valuation are relative simplicity and stability since the recorded costs
of fixed assets are held constant. The major criticism levied against the original cost method is that it

-24-



San Benito County Water District / Water Capacity Fee Report ~ FINAL 42

disregards changes in the time value of money, and future capital costs, which are attributable to inflation and
other factors. As evidenced by history, prices tend to increase rather than to remain constant or decrease. This
situation may be exacerbated since most water and sewer systems are developed over time on a piecemeal
basis as demanded by the customer base and service area growth. Consequently, each asset addition is paid
for with dollars of different purchasing power. When these outlays are added together to obtain a plant value,
the result can be misleading. Additionally, original cost does not account for the depreciation of facilities and
other assets as they age, which may not be representative of the state of the systems. We discuss depreciation
in further detail below.

3.2.2. Replacement Cost

Changes in the value of the dollar over time, represented by cost inflation, is recognized by the replacement
cost valuation. The replacement cost represents the cost of duplicating the existing water and sewer facilities
(or duplicating their functions) at current dollars. Unlike the original cost approach, the replacement cost
approach recognizes price level changes that have occurred since plant construction and subsequent
investments. The most accurate replacement cost valuation requires a physical inventory and appraisal of
plant components in terms of their replacement costs at the time of valuation. However, with original cost
records available, a reasonable approximation of replacement cost plant value can be easily derived by
trending historical original costs. This approach employs the use of cost indices to express actual capital
investment by the utility in current dollars. An obvious advantage of the replacement cost approach is that it
accounts for changes in the value of money over time. However, just like original cost it does not account for
the depreciation of facilities and other system assets.

3.2.3. Original Cost Less Depreciation

The current value of water and sewer facilities is materially affected by the effects of age. All assets have
estimated useful lives, which vary by type. For example, pumps may have a 20-year life, buildings 50 years,
and pipelines 40-80 years depending on the material of construction. Each year an asset is revalued by the
fraction of its useful life relative to its original cost. This is referred to as straight line or linear depreciation. At
the end of an asset’s useful life, it is worth zero dollars on paper, though it may still be in service.
Depreciation accounts for estimated devaluation in system assets caused by wear and tear, decay, inadequacy,
and obsolescence. To provide appropriate recognition of the effects of depreciation on existing water and
sewer systems, the original cost valuation can be expressed as net of depreciation to yield the original cost less
depreciation. Accumulated depreciation is computed for each asset and reduces the valuation based on age or
condition, from the respective total original cost.

3.2.4. Replacement Cost Less Depreciation (RCLD)

The RCLD is identical to the original cost less depreciation valuation method, with the exception that asset
cost and asset depreciation is expressed in today’s dollars rather than the value of the dollar when the asset
was placed in service. Original cost and depreciation are inflated using historical indices to reflect today’s
dollars. Replacement cost depreciation is then subtracted from the replacement cost of the asset to yield
replacement cost less depreciation. RCLD allows for an accounting of system assets in present value while
also accounting for proportional devaluation via depreciation. To reiterate from Section 3.2.2, replacement
cost is the common nomenclature; however, in the context of this study it is not a process to appraise or
receive bids on replacing each existing asset or facility; it is instead a method of approximating the
replacement cost of existing facilities based on historical construction cost increases.

-725-



San Benite County Watsr District / Water Capacity Fee Report — FINAL 43

3.2.5. Recommended Asset Valuation Method

Raftelis recommends using the RCLD method to account for today’s replacement cost for system
improvements while acknowledging the remaining useful life of the system facilities. This valuation approach
ensures that future users’ investment represents a fair share of the system in both the accounting sense and the
level of service these future users are purchasing.

-26-



San Benito County Water District / Water Capacity Fee Report — FINAL 14

4. Capacity Fee Development

The incremental method capacity fee is based on the cost of potential water supply expansion projects divided
by the additional capacity provided by those projects. Potential water supply expansion projects have been
identified by SBCWD’s engineering consultants, HDR'.

Table 4-1 shows the steps to determining the estimated number of single-family residential (SFR) dwelling
units that can be served by the proposed water supply expansion projects. Per HDR, the average annual yield
of the North Area Groundwater Phase 1 is anticipated to be approximately 1,000 AF, and the average yield of
the BF Sisk project is anticipated to be approximately 1,500 AF?. Due to mixing of water sources to meet
quality requirements, each unit of demand for new developments will be met with an 81/19 percent mix of
new water source to current water source. This in effect increases the average annual yield to 3,086 AF. The
presumed average demand per single-family residential dwelling unit is 0.33 AF?. Dividing 3,086 AF of
capacity by 0.33 AF of demand per unit results in an estimated 9,353 single-family equivalent units that can
be served by the new capacity. The equivalent meter (EM) size associated with an EDU is a 5/8” meter per
an email from HDR on May 2, 2025.

Table 4-1: Estimated New Units Served by Growth Projects
Average
Annuat Yield,
AF Grawth
North Area Groundwater Phase 1 1,000 100% 1,000
BF Sisk growth-related capacity, AF 1,500 100% 1,500
Total additional capacity, AF 2,500
% of New Demand met through New Sources 0.81
Adjusted additional capacity, AF 3,086
Demand (AF)/SFR unit 0.33
Estimated new units (5/8" meters) 9,353

Table 4-2 shows the development of the growth-related capital cost to be recovered by the capacity fee. The
capital cost for the two growth projects in February 2021 dollars as developed by HDR is $64.1 million*.
Those costs were escalated to 2025 dollars using the Engineering News Record Construction Cost Index for
San Franscico between February 2021 and February 2025. In addition to the capital costs, costs associated
with financing the projects have been included. The discounted value of the cost of issuance on debt funding
and debt interest have been added. The discounted value of the interest earnings on a debt reserve fund
associated with planned debt issues have been subtracted. The cost of issuance and interest earnings on the
debt reserve fund are discounted using a 0.5 percent discount rate, which is the presumed interest earnings
rate. The debt interest has been discounted using an estimated real rate of 2.2 percent, which is calculated as
the debt interest rate (5.6 percent) less the 5-year average Consumer Price Index for San Franscico

(3.4 percent). The adjusted capital cost is $115.3 million.

! Kennedy, Holly, et al., “Final San Benito Urban Areas Water Supply and Treatment Master Plan Update”, HDR,
Folsom, California, October 25, 2023.

2Tbid.

3 Tbid.

4 Tbid.

-97-



San Benito County Watoer District / Water Capacity Fee Report — FINAL 18

Basis of Propased Water Supply €Capacity Fees

Growth Capital Projects $74,364,246
Cost of Issuance, Discounted $458,746
Debt Interest, Discounted $40,972,149
Debt Reserve Interest Earnings Applied towards last payment, Discounted -$500,207
Adjusted Capital Cost $115,294,935

Table 4-3 shows the calculation of the new water supply capacity fee on an equivalent meter basis. The fee is
the adjusted capital cost divided by the estimated equivalent meters that can be served by that capacity. This
fee will be adjusted annually each July 1 using the Consumer Price Index for the San Francisco Bay Area —
All urban index for May of the then current year and May of the previous year.

wi A 4 Nl abar Cirnnkis Prananibu Ean
lable 4-3: Water Supply Capacity Fee

| Line [tem

Adjusted Capital Cost $115,294,935
Equivalent Meters 9,353
Capacity Fee, $/EM $12,327

Table 4-4 shows the initial capacity fee at meter sizes from 5/8” to 4”. SBCWD plans to charge new single
family residences that have to install a 1” meter for fire requirements at the 5/8” capacity fee. As the base
meter size fee is adjusted annually, the other meter sizes will be adjusted according to the ratios shown in

Table 4-4.

Meter Size Ratic Fee, S/mtr
5/8" 1.00 $12,327
3/4" 1.50 $18,490

1" 2.50 $30,817
1.5" 5.00 $61,635
2" 8.00 598,616
3" 17.50 $215,722
4" 31.50 $388,300

_08-



ATTACHMENT 3

Finance Committee Recommendation, May 20, 2025

-29.



BOARD AGENDA MEMO

DATE: May 20. 2025
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Finance Committee (Williams*/Freeman)

SUBJECT: Consider Recommending the Board Approve an Ordinance for a
Capacity Fee

The Finance Committee met on May 20, 2025 and staff reviewed the draft
Ordinance that would implement a capacity fee.

The Finance Committee recommends the Board Approve an Ordinance that
implements a Capacity Fee.

=

Director Wﬂliams*

6irector Freeman

-30-



Prior Committee or Board Action:
Finance Committee Meeting May 20, 2025

Financial Impact: X Yes No

Action Required: _X Ordinance Motion Review
Board Action

Ordinance No. Motion By Second By

Ayes Abstained

Noes Absent

Reagendized Date No Action Taken

_31-



‘ - W
S CON e,
&0 ...-'é:ﬁABUSHEs-..]éP""'

".'.S‘\

d Lii

"
—
4
L]
.....

.',.‘.;1:0 V. s, ;Efi.." :::

bl TP L C
Ll )
TR

l"

Agenda
[tem

# 10



BOARD AGENDA MEMO

DATE: May 20. 2025
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Finance Committee (Williams*/Freeman)

SUBJECT: Consider Recommending the Board Approve the 2025-2026
District Operating and Capital Budgets

The Finance Committee met on May 20, 2025 and staff reviewed the draft
Budget for FY 2025-2026.

The Finance Committee recommends the Board Approve the 2025-2026
District Budget.

R

/ﬁirector Freeman




SAN BENITO COUNTY
WATER DISTRICT

RECOMMENDED BUDGET

For Fiscal Year 2025-2026

PRESENTATION TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS
May 28, 2025



10.

INDEX

Profit & Loss (PL) Schedule

Operating & Non-Operating Revenue
Cost of Water

Wages & Employee Related Expenses
A. Position Control List

Contract Services
Materials & Equipment

General & Administrative
A. Utilities

Capital Projects

Property, Plant & Equipment and Water Rights

Designations and Reserves
A. Net Operating income after Transfers and Contributions
B. Summary of Designation and Restricted Reserve Activity
C. Capital Budget and Source of Funding
D. Cash and Investment Position Summary

General Information

A. Multi-Agency Projects
B. Multi-Year Projects



SECTION 1
PROFIT & LOSS SCHEDULE




18€°07L 01 TLSLILOT 9P TE0ET 0S9°67p 8P'896°17 £97°vEP SL0°002
€9L°L1ST 0S9°€20°7 00L'€70T 0 00L°€20C 0 0
YL8'YT6 0ST'6£T°1 0S6°S8T°1 0 056'88C°1 0 0
688°T6S 00t'¥8L 0SLPEL 0 0SLYEL 0 0
819°207°6 TT6'E0L ST 9€L‘800°1¢ 059°6TY SYLYY6'61 £9TvEY $L0°00T
YTLITL L 001'#85°€T 009°9¥8°LT 088°¢E 00S* VLY 9T 057906 000°CEY
(978°'LSS°T) 0 0 0 0 0 0
(0S0°‘ZET) (00s‘091) (006°1¥1) (0s6°L) (osLLz) (os¢'e) (058°0)
We6'9eE'T 000°008‘8 000°00S'11 0 000°008°11 0 0
CEPTOCT 000607 0SS‘6L1 0 0SS°6L1 0 0
TIS'Y9TL 006°988°C1 001°91¥°€Y 0 00L11€°21 00LY¥L 00L°65€
6££°0€9 0 0 0 0 0 0
SLE'SLS Y 00L'8Y8°1 0S8'7687 008°1¥ 0001192 006v91 0S1°SL
(901°61S‘7)  (SLY‘088'Y) (198°L£8'9) 008°66¢ (z6L°6T8'9)  (L86°1LP) (sz6°1€7)
066‘886°T1 876°68L 81 PP €T 1T 00T°LET TSSPP1°0T L86°18% $L9°6ST
PSYST9'T 0ST'o6L'E 0S8 1ZI'Y 0 St L90"Y 0S8°LY 0659
£80°SSS 0S0'11L 0S8‘S6L 0 009°06L 000°C 0sT'c
6PI'1TS 0ST€TS 0S6°€8S 0$0C 009°8LY 0SL1L ISy
691°61¥ 000°789 0LL'896 051 078°LT6 0s1°9¢ 059y
9€8°L8E‘E 006'FSH'S 0S€'E6r'9 000°S€1 0095519 055081 00T°TS
S78'508°T BLETIS'E PP6ILS'E 0 T8LILETE L89°CLY SLY 191
PLY'PLG T 007011y 00L98%'¥ 0 00L'98V'Y 0 0
¥88°69%'6 0SL*606'€T 0SS‘S8T'P1 000°€€S 008F19°€1 00001 0SLLT
176 0 0 0 0 0 0
LOE06L'S 0SE°sLS'S 0S6°TS€'6 0 0$6°TS€°6 0 0
LOT'L6S 00S°98L 0S¥9s8 000°€ES 00L°S62 0 0SLLT
6P 180°CS 006°LYS'YS 0S1°9L6'ES 0% 051°996°¢$ 000°01$ 0%
eV LA 3png fejo L VSO 9ouo0Z € ouo0Z T Uo7z
ST0T-T07
9707-S707 195png

§20e/e/S

10bpng Aeuiunald
9202-520¢ 196png 189 A |e0sid
12ISIQ 191 Auno) oyuag ueg

IBIA Jo puyf

(sasuadxa)/onuaasi pejeral jenide)) jeio],
anuaAdl s)ySu Apoede)
1saJour sIySu Aoede)

:(sasuadxa) /onuaada pajepau ende)

sjosse Jou ur a3uey)

(sosuadxa) anuaaas Supeiodouou 19N
sasuadxs uneladouou BYIQ
asuadxe jsaru]

SNUIASI JuBID

sanusAal Suneiadouou JOYIO
SJUDUISSISSE puUE Saxe],

SSOY JO Ured jusunsaAu]

SONUIAII JUSWISIAUL pUe 152I01U]
((sasuadxa) anudads Suneradouo)

(ssoy) swoour JunezedQ

sasuadxa Sunerado [e10],
uoneziLowy 2 uoneideq
sasuadxa A

SANRISIUTWPE PUB [BJOUDD)
uawdinbs pue felse

SIDIAIIS JORIUOD)

sosuadxa pajejas 9a4ojdwo pue safem
1918M JO 150D

:sasuadxs BuperadQ

anusaai SunesedQ
SunessdQ LYo
IO1E A\ pPRYSIULY
901AI0S 1018 M
$3[BS IOt
:anudAdl SunesadQ



269'9v8'6 AR E AR 9Ey'Zy0's 0S9°'62¥ 8¥Y'8.6'L £9Z'veY SL0°002
{000°06¥'2) {oo0'06v'2)
000°000'61 000'000°61
(000°009°21) {000'005°05) (000°005°0¢)
Z69°918'6 2LG1ZL02 9Ey 2e0'ee 059°62Y 8¥¥'896°L2 £9CVEY 5/0'002
1emoy 1A 19bpng 101 vSH g 8uoy7 € auoz7 { 8uoz
§202-v20e

9202-Gz0Z 190png

yobpng Aeupnjdid
9202-620¢ 190png Jes A jedsid
s 1eiepn Qiuno) ouuag ueg

1eaA jo pug

juswAed puog sty
spead0id puogd Jo as)
sasuadxs] paieay uein)
Auanoy pajejay puog fiuein

Auanoy
puog pue Juein) 310jaq B3 JO pul



SECTION 2

OPERATING &
NON-OPERATING REVENUE




VIMVH
oy Jod juowikedas 3sa1oiur pue [edioutid e

ANUAJY paje[ay [BdR)

saniAnoe 3unerddo Jof JUSWISINQUIIAL VYA
SNUIATY SuUNeIddo-UoN o0

OSBOIOUI 094G © YIIM ‘Q1eWNSD GZ-4T X PoUWINSSYy e
STUSISSASSY pUE Soxe],

046G C JO 9181 1SoJalUl JITV ] pouunssy e
1Salajuy

HONHAHYE DNILVIHdO-NON

00.$ JO mw.ﬁmﬂu wnuwiuiti je mMOOHmQ S e

AV 09¢ JO AI9AI[Sp porewisy e
IS M\ PI[OAIY

dV 00T — eSS ©
AV 008°C — SITH 1I9M ©
AV 00€'y pounssy e
(Sue[q JUSuneal] ) J91e A\ poysiulj

wolSAsqns Aq sofes 19jem 10J 931eyd JoMmod e
SO[BS 19]EMPUNOID) e
AV 09y —_YI0 ©
AV 00€‘y — syueyd juounear], o
AV 09y pawnsse — sajes [N e
AV 09°6 pawnsse —so[es 3y o
SAEA onf{ — 9 U0/

soSueyoXo pue SIgjsuel] e

¢ auoy7
STYT Ad
woJyj asea1oul y31[s uo paseq — saof ywiIad [[opL e
[ ouo7
HOANAAHY ONILLVEAdO



scocre/s

606°89L°CTS  000°8LY‘6ES 0SLELOI'PPS 008‘PLSS O0SLOVT'THS  009°616$ 009°79%$
€9LLIST 0S9°€70°T 00L°€70°T 0 00L°€0°C 0 0
YL8VC6 0ST°6£7°1 056'88C°1 0 056°88Z°1 0 0
688°76S 00¥'v8L 0SLVEL 0 0SLYEL 0 0
197 18L°T1 009°b¥PL'ST 00S°886°LT 0081V 0S7°709°97 009°606 0S8vEY
TP6°9€€°T 000°008°8 000°005°11 0 000°00S°1 1 0 0
57 (1101 000°602 0SS°6L1 0 05S°6L1 0 0
0v6°L6 000°v¥1 00L°0¥1 0 00L°0¥1 0 0
£L5°696°S 00€°1L9°01 00S1Z1°11 0 00S 12111 0 0
£¥9°09 009°€01 005801 0 0 0 005801
SSE9ETT 000°896°1 00¥°$H0°T 0 005°6¥0°1 00L‘P¥L 002°152
SLEQLS] 00L°8¥8°1 0$8°763°C 008°1¥ 000°119°C 006°v91 0S1°L
S88691'6 0SL‘606°CT 0SS*SRIP1 000°cES 008‘P19°CT 00001 0SLLT
y$ToY 009°LT 009°LT 0 009°LT 0 0
LEL'S9 0027121 001°601 0 001601 0 0
LOE'06L'S 0S£°6LS‘8 0S6°7S€°6 0 0S6°TSE°6 0 0
¥8L19¢ 00%°01S 000°€€ 000°¢€S 0 0 0
¥ZIo¢ 0s¢'61 0SL°LT 0 0 0 0SLLT
8LECSH 000°01 000°01 0 0 000°01 0
SLLLIE 0S<9ts 007°88Y 0 002°88Y 0 0
620°622°C 0$£°858°¢ 058°15¢€°¢ 0 058°15¢€°¢ 0 0
66¥°TL1S 0S11¥2$ 001°8¢$ 0$ 001°582$ 0% 0$
[enV ALA 3png e10], VSO 9JuoZ ¢ ouoZ [ Uo7
ST0T-vT0T

9707-S707 195png

1ebpng Aeupueld

9202-6z0Z 18bpng Jea, |1Bs14
0UISIg 81 AIUNo) olueg ues

3NUIAY [BIo]

(sasuadxa)/enuaaal pajeps [e3des o],
onuaaai spy3u Ayoede)
1sa1dur spy3u Anoede)

:(sasuadxa) ;onuoaau pajepau fende)

anudadl unjesado-uou [gjo),

syein

sonuaaay Suneredo-uou Y10
:sonusAal Surgerado-uou 1910

AjpqejreAy pue Agpuels

xe[, A[uQ pue]

Xe] UONRNSIUILPY Uo7

xe ], asodmg Jersuan
:SJUSUISSASSY PUe SOXB],
SNUSADI JUSUIISIAUI PUEB 1S2IU]
anuaAdYy Junerado-uoN

aNuIANY SunesadQ w10,

BPYRO

I Po[okoy

Io1B M\ POYSIUL

93,] TWSN IojeMpunoiny
$39,4 HuIad oM
so3uByOXH pue SIdJsuel],
adreyD 19mod

adija ueg

a3rey) IEMPUNOID)
anuaAdy sunerdQ



SECTION 3
COST OF WATER




SN PUB | YoBdy “BIOPUSIN
€)[o(J SIN' UeS JOJ SISO AISAI[OP POIRIOOSSY o

AV 00,7 — seseyoind 19jem [BUOIIPPY e
AV §€6°9 — 191eMm [eLnsSnpuU] pue [eddTunjy e

AV YLY 91 — 1orem [emnoLIdy e

4LV 40 LSOO



§eoerels

SLY'PL6'TS 00Z°0TTYS 00L°98F VS 0$ 00L°98V‘pS 0s 08
89611 00S°L6V1 00S°L6¥°1 0 00S°L6¥°1 0 0
85T'8Y 0ST°8Y 0S9'vv 0 059y 0 0
89v°01 0SY°01 0 0 0 0 0
0£0v9T 006°16¢ 0SS vOP 0 0SS‘v0v 0 0
€01°6T¢ 0SYTES 0se'sey 0 0S€E°SeY 0 0
$61°C 000°C 000°C 0 000°C 0 0
S9¢°€s 00¥‘TSY 00L°8S9 0 00L8S9 0 0
8ILVES 009929 000°LT6 0 000°LT6 0 0
LyE'SE 0 05€°€ 0 0S€°SE 0 0
¥61°0L1 0S6°vS1 056991 0 056991 0 0
629°80¢$ 00L°¢6E$ 0S9°v1¢$ 0$ 0S9'v1¢$ 0% 0%
[enpRv dlLA 1e5png [ej0], VSO 9 suoz €2uoz [auoz
§U0Trint

9707-S707 195png

1obpng Aeupuyald
9202-5202 19bpng Jes A jeosiy
10UISI Jetep AlunoD ojuag ues

I9JBAA JO 350)) [BI0],
Joyi() 2 seSueyoxy ‘Iaysuel],
1saxsyu] Teude)) uiseq ul Y4gSN
1sa1oyuf Juswikeday YESN
sadiey)) UOIIRIOISSY
Jomod Ia10 29 Jomod 1901
W20 1tup adija,] ues
1 yoeay] aodijo,f ueg
W20 Anfoed dAD
pa[npatfasay YLSN
[N 198IU0D) JESN
8y 10e0u0) YLSN

119 JO 150D



SECTION 4

WAGES & EMPLOYEE RELATED
EXPENSES

A. Position Control List




‘Testpawt SYHJ Sursn saskojdwa asoyy JoJ uonnqriuod (VOHNAD) [Bopow SYAd
Jo uonuod s Jo1si(] Se [[9m Se papnjoul Ie S1S09 Ue[J 0Ue)SISSY doLo[dwrg pue souemnsul 917 ‘seokojdwa
pUE SI0J03II(T O] OUBINSUI UOISTA PUe [BIUS(] ‘[edIPSIA papiaoid-10nsi(] Aue sapnjour soueinsur s24ojdwg e

(A1p1qer] peniooe papunjun) Ty () AUe pue uonnquIuod SYHJ JeAojdwe paxmbal ay) sepnjour JUSWAINY e
payorNe SI ISI [0NUOD) UONISOJ e

(uowooueape dais a[npayos AIB[es % PUB V10D %¢E) 9SBaIdUl Arejes
0,/ PaWNsse — 11Jouag 901AIAS 221119y pue (3jeuaq ueld B119)9Je0) J1JoUSq [BUONIPPE pUE SOLIB[BS 9pN[OUl SOTBA\ e

ALV THY dHAOTdINA ANV SdDVM



§20¢e/S

S78°S0S°T 8LETIS'E PP6 TLS'E 0 T8LLET'E L89°ELY SLY'191
S8T'1v 8LOEE £90°8¢ 0 14343 €06°1 908°¢
192°01 00911 056°C1 0 0021 059 001
LLY 008°1 0S0°C 0 0SL°1 001 00¢
€11 000%C 00€¥¢€ 0 05s°0¢€ 0Sv'1 00€°C
Tr6°€0l SII'LTI 895°89 0 £8T°8S 8TLE LSS9
LEETT 000°T¢ 000°¥€ 0 006'8C 00v°¢ 00L°1
TeL'sy T06°C8 181°C8 0 715°69 1S6°L 91LY
ETV6LE Sov'sel 191°602 0 0Zs'v61 99¢°8 SLT9
$90°006°1$ 81¥°400°cS 1L9°160°¢$ 0% 11L°608°C$ 6€1°9V1$ 128°¢€1$
[enpPy diLa Jospng [ej0L vVSD 9ou0Z ¢€ouoy 1 auoz
STOTPT0T

9707-S707 133png

19b6png Aieusueid
9202-520¢2 100png ieaA [gosty
1oUIsI] Jeiep) AlunoD opusg ues

sasuadxy paje[dy d4ojdwy pue sagep [e30],
b=1iiTe)

suuojiuf) pue juswdinby reuosied

Sunsa ] Sni(] pue swexy [Bo1SAYd
Suurer],

ooueinsu] avAojdwy

uvonesuadwio)) s, IO M

H1S/31edIpaN

JUSWIOIOY

sofem

sasuadxyy paje(oy daLojduiy pue safep,



0512 0512 05'1Z 0512 0161 VM o/m Buiieig jejo
00°€Z 00z 00'SZ 00°¢Z 0902 Buiyeis (ejoL
s'L gL g} o'} S 1301 OM
LLIBJU| UOHBAIDSUOD ISJBAA - VHMN
L L R { R ._mmmcm—z Em..mo._& UORBAIBSUOD) JOIEAA - VM| dOW/OM
0z 0z 02 02 0'Z €101 OM
l } L L L 11/ 11/ 11syedads Junoooy Jswolsnd| NIFS/OM
L l L ) { 11} JawweiBoid Jeepa] NIFS/OM
gL 59 59 g'9 $'9 {2101 WBO
} 0 0 0 0 UBDIUYDS | D1U0J108|3/jeoud8ll] Ni3s/bul
056 05°S 05'S 05V 0S¥ {7 11 / 1 @2UBUSJUIBY UCKNGUISI JSJEAA R @ouRUSURI [ NIFS/N0
{11 / 11 / | SoUBUSIUIBIN/UORNGLISI J8IBM
L L 3 [ [ ‘_Omm:m_z mocmcwuc_mgco:w._wanu dONW/WRO
oy 0'g 0'S 0's v 1€30] bug
0 L L { ) UBIOIUYOS | O1U0N09|3/|eoL08l3| NiFg/bul
1 ! L l L 11 /1 ueRIuyda | S80.nosay Jerep| nias/Bul
uieiu} Buuing mc_howc_mcw mcm
i [ R L [ v_wwc_mcm JOIUBG/9BID0SS\YAUR]SISSY n_OE\@cm
L 1 L L L 1eauibuz pusig Aindeg]| dow/bug
! L L L 0 Jesuibul ouisig| OWI/Bu3
0'8 0'8 08 0’8 9'9 810 uijuiupy
0 0 0 4] 0 ‘_ow_?.mo_:w Emum>w SjOJJUOD/UORBULIOJUI} JOW/UPY
0 0 0 } { Jabeuepy soueuid| dOWwpY
{esus)) swi | -ed Aesodws |
! L L 0 0 (SO AlsuLIOy) |f / | JWBIUNCODY| JOW/WPY
L L } 1 1 e|) preog / Aieyaidag aanoax3a| niasaupy
| i 1 0 0 (SO AalLioy) Uediuyoa] bununoddy| NIFS/wpyY
l L L F4 4 111/ 11/ 1 1sle10adg oo} NISS/upY
L L L 0 0 JUBJUN000Y BuisiAiedng| dOW/LIPY
! I S0 ! 0 (WD) Jebeuely [eieuss Juelsissy| OWI/wpy
0 0 G0 1 0 Se0IAISG SSeulsng 'eouBUl] ‘UILPY Jebeuepy| OW3/WupY
0 0 0 0 L 1sbeuep Juelsissy| OWI/WpY
L 3 L L | NV Auswuoy) 1ssuibuz/iebeuen [eleuss| OWI/wPY
92-G20Z Ad |SZ0Z-YZ0Z Ad|YZ0Z-€T0Z A4 €20Z-ZT0T Ad|TT0Z-1Z0Z A uonisod 2deg
Jabpng 1ebpng jobpng jebpng jebpng

18t jofu0Y uonisod
jobpng Ateuiujasd
92-5202 3obpng Ad

18I J8jeM Kunog ojueg ues




SECTION 5
CONTRACT SERVICES




SA9AINg UOISOLIO)) INPUO)) JISI[[OH
arepdn) uelq 191selN A1ddng 1918 M
seniAnoe paje[al JAD VMINA'IS

ue[d JuowadeurA I0JBM LS
Bunnsuo) weidold

Apnis dwio)) pue sse[)
[opow 1ojem JO 1509 / Funo3png 191B M
1oddns juswo3eury 19SSy
995 joedwll / sa1ey
SOTAIDS JUWIININAI 93 A01dwy

po0dal I91eMpPUNOIL) [BNUUY e
3unnsuo)) [eIoUAL)

(roqureyo 9183 ‘61 N.LY) 10°foad jured [eusnpuy
syea1q Jofew - asuadxa juaBunuo)
S0UBUSJUIB SQUIDIRJ/ZOPUBUISH/0ISN[ UBS

doUBUDIUTRW [RIOUST 901JO OLNSI(]
QOUBUDJUIBIN

SOIpNIS [BLIBNIOY o
1pne [enuuy e
J[esS9] pue S[TH 1S9\ © Sununoooy

suorjerodo jued juounear], e

suonjerado 1oMISI] ASAINS IIOAIOSSY OISNf UBS e

soo] wresSoxd VM e (3yessa]) sIsA[eUV USe[Joly e

Sunse) A1penb 1o1ep e udisapal e uoneisdung e

(3oenUO) SHS[)) JUSWAINSEIW MO[J WEaNS o SOOIAISS [BISURL) e
suonerad( Sunoouiduy

SJUSWISOURYUS AJLINOJSIOGAD) e SIOIAISS SUNNOY e

S[emaual VY PLOSI(J o

woddns pue sourudjUIRW 2J8MJOS IINdWO)) e SIS 10JA) o

soo1A19s Hoddns y1omiou pue 1oindwo) e SOOIAISS [RISUSL) e
wndwo) 183891

SHOIAYHAS LOVEILNOD



§202/2/S

LEG'LSE'ES  006°PSH'SS
1LE Yy 00¥°001
0 000°61
LIS VST 009°CEY
970'v19°C 00€°66¥°€
Or1°6€1 0SL‘98€
08 V1T 0S1°6Z€
LIELL 00L°99C
SL6LY 000°LS
00¥°61 000°0S 1
126°SL$ 000°€1Z$
[NV LA 198png
ST07-+202

0SE€6P 9 000's€1S 009°sS1°9$ 0SS‘0S1S 007°ZSS
0SS°¢ST 0 0SS°€St 0 0
000°T 0 000°1 0 0
055789 0 00T°18S 0ST°86 001°¢
00S°8ETY 0 00S‘8ETY 0 0
000°LLE 000°S€ 00L°LIE 00v°€T 006
00S°18¢ 0 0SP eV 00Z°v1 058°€T
00L‘LET 000°001 00t ¥T1 001y 00T°6
0SSYL 0 058v9 0ST'€ 0s+'9
000°012 0 000°L0T 000°¢ 0
000°LELS 0$ 0S6°€TIS 0SEvS 00L°8$
1810, VSO 9 duoz gouoz 1 suoz
9207-S20T 135png

1ebpng Areuiuaid
920Z-520¢ 19bpng 1eaA |20SId

10USIJ 181BAA AlUNOD) OJusg Ueg

SIAIIG JOBIIUO)) [BIO],
Sunnsuo) ueidoid

PO

2OUBUUTRIA

sjue]d juswieal ], -suoneradQ
suoneradQ

Jondwo)

Sunnsuo)) [elousn)
Fununoooy

Fuuesurduyg

[eSa1

SINAIIG JoRIIU0)D)



SECTION 6
MATERIALS & EQUIPMENT




juowdinbe romdwio) e
PapIaU SB ‘QIMIUIN] PoIR[oI-0IJ() e
yowdimnby 7 aamruing 991330

[ONUOD JUSPOI 29 PN, @ s1 a1nsopo Jredoy
(178 Pa[oAoY) SULIOND) Jossaxdwod Ire o1neIpAH
S[eRTvYD s3umiy pue 10 ‘saafea juswdinba orneIpAH
3001 9seq pue pueg
uiaed
sarjddns 901130 101081
sjeusjewt urdeospue]
sorjddns doys pue pie£ 10mnsi(q
sarddns uononnsuo)
(-019 s3umyy ‘sdwepo) syred sredar odid pue adig
sIoonpsuer) 2Inssald ©
SOATRA ITY O
S9A[eA punoidispup) o
SoATeA pojerado [Paym ©
se yons sjuowoe[doy e
sorjddng

Q0UBUIUIBW SUNNOY e
S9O1AISS JO[RIA e
[Png e

SOUBUIUIRIA 29 [N, S[ITYIA

juowdmbs [jews jo neday e
("030 “YIppo] ‘vopporq ‘I0JoRI)
‘IOMOIA o'T) Juawdinbo Aaeay] 1011SI(] JO Jredoy e
soueuuIeiA Juowdinbyg

SOATeA UONEIIWAY)) e
sorpddns juoweoe|dos 1910 e
SIOJOWI MON e

SISJOIN

INANdINOA ANV STVIRIHdLVIA



G20crels

LIT61PS 000°789$
Se1'9 00611
yTL1E 05S°SS
8796 00€°LY
yS6°LE 009°611
£9€°0€ 0S£TT
9€6°6¢ 00¥°6S
€e1'e 0006
961°09C 0S¥°98¢
86% 0S+°001$
[emV dLA 1o3png
STOTVI0T

0LL'896% 0S1$ 078°L76$ 0S1°'9€$ 0S9'v$
00L°01 0 0SL°6 056 0
05S°sS 0 0S6°1S 008°C 008
055°81 0 0S0°L1 00S°T 0
00¥°15€ 0 00¥°15€ 0 0
058°ST 0 0SLTI 00¥°C1 00L
000°1¢ 0 00€‘ v 0SS°S 0S1°1
00L‘9 0 0S¥°9 00¢C 0¢
0LS 8¥E 0t 0L9°9¢€ 008°6 056°1
0S¥‘001$ 0% 00S°L6$ 0S6°C$ 0%
[ejoL VSO 9 suoz €U0z 19uo0z
9707-S707 199png

1ebpng Areuiusld
920Z-520z 19bpng e [edsty
wUISIg JoepA Alunoy) oluag ues

jyuawdinby pue sjeLIdIEIA [€I0L
sourusjurej Juowdinby
[ong SPIYIA
Q0URUIIUIRIA] S[OIYSA
SISO
[E1uay] wowdmby pue sjooy
oseyosnd win,] 9ojOAuswdmby
aseyoing sjoo],
sorddng
Hizalliiclig)
jyuswdmby pue speLId)EN



SECTION 7
GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

A. Utilities




SSQ00B Pno[) e

sour] ondo 1qi] e

901A19s ouoydo[al I1ISI(] e
SUOTBOIUNWIUIO))

SNOLIBA ©
9]V 90IAISS PUnoIdiopup) ©
(uono9r0d 991 YSO pue xey Aadoid)

$99,] UOHBISIUTWIPY AJUNO)) OJIUag UBS ©
VMOV ©
UOnuaAId poo]j olefed ©
ALIoyIny Ioje M\ BIOPUSIA BI[o( SINJUBS O
s19s() 1918 dAD ©
UOnBWLIONUT O1[qn{ / SUISTLISAPY UONBIOOSSY SI0INOSAY IoJep\ O
$99J dIYSIOqUISIA] e
93ea[IWl pue [9ABL], (SIITH 1S9\ PU® 1]BSSaT) WSAS 101 |\
o81eT — pIeog [0JJU0)) SIOINOSIY IJBA\ 21BIS e
$3oURIRFUOD) $09] uonoadsur we(] o
S99J SIYSNY IoTBA\
ANpqery e $30,] pue san(J
Ayadoig e
0ueINSU] m@ﬂ@&—\.—m 29110

HALLVILSININAY ANV TVIHINID



seoere/s

6VI‘1TSS 0ST‘€ZSS 0S6°€8S$ 0S0°TS$ 009°8LYS 0SL'ILS 0SS‘1€S
€08v91 00€°911 0ST'evl 0 00S°LT1 0ST°S 005°01
LLY'01 0S€°9 000°S1 0 00T°¢1 006 006
00Z°1 000°SY 0 0 0 0 0
170°8 00S°T1 0SE€YT 0 058°0C 0ST°1 0S€T
v6S LI 0S€YT 0S5°19 0 00€°CS 001°¢ 0S1°9
Ly8'E 006°C 0ST'E 0 0SLT 0¢1 0S¢t
L8E9Y 055°09 0SL°99 0 009°LS 056°S 00T°¢
TLIel 000°S1 000°S 1 0 0SLTI 0SL 00S°1
LET'] 008°1 00L‘1 0 0SH'1 001 051
000°L 001yl 00£v1 0 008°¢1 0S¢ 0s¢
6v9° 14T 00L°S1T 00T°6TT 0S0°C 008991 0S1°%S 00T°9
THL'SS 009°6$ 009°6$ 0% 009°6$ 0% 0%
[enpy dLA 193png ®I0L VSO 9 ouoyz ¢ JuoyZ [auoz
ST0T-P0C

9707-S707 195png

1ebpng Aeunuield

9Z02-5202 196png 1e9A [BOSI4
Pusiq Jerep Alunog) ojusg uesg

AN BNSTUTHIPY
PUE [BI2UOS) [B)0],

JoueIMNSY]

UOHRULIOJU] O1[qNd/SUISHISAPY

asuadxyg uono9[yg

SOUIIJUO))

odes[IA pue [eARI]

osuadxy] ssauisng [eJouan)

SUOTJESIUTIIWIOD)

sorddng 921130

suoneoiqng/suonduosqng

a3e1sog

$99,] pue sen(]

sodreyD) sourul]

AN RASTUIHPY PUE [BIDUID)



201JJO 10IUSI(]
IJB A\ 29 Usel],

ISTe M\ POIOAOSY
Sjue[J JUSWIBAI], JOJB M
S[IoM AISA00dY oIsn[ ueg
(9 suoy) suonelg dung
(¢ auo7) saumored

901JJO JOLNSI(] o
omod

SALLI'TLLN



¥80°'G66  0G0'LL./ 058°G6. 009°06. 0002 0SZ°¢
Zv8'y 006'8L 006'6 00L'6 0S2 0SS
9// 00S°€L 00S'V 005y 0 0
990'¥ 00¥'S 00%'S 009'y 0sZ 0SS
ZrZ'0SS  0S1'269 056'S8. 005’18/ 0S.'L 00L'C
[16°€C  000°6Y 000°6¥ 0006V 0 0
ZrP'osL  000'GLZ 000'59Z 000°592 0 0
08¥'6ZL  000'6ZZ 000°0¢Z 000°'0€2 0 0
£eg 00¥ 0oV 0 00V 0
Zri'z,  002'99 00Z°ZL 00Z'zL 0 0
9v9'vrL  000'CTLL 00S°‘ZhL 0052yl 0 0
q2L'TT 0SS'vT 058'9 00822 0s€'L 00L'C

femoy j1ebpng jejol 9 € I

aLa ouoz auoz auoz

SZ0Z/OSIY S20Z-¥Z0C 9202-520Z 19bpng

jo sy

saninn 386png

1ebpng Aseuiwiaid
920Z-5202 19bpng JesA jeosid
104813 Je)eAn Aluno) ojiuag ues

[ej01 JBjEM 2 Ysel] - SanInN
soa4 [esodsiq - saNN
UlwpY g [BIOUSD - SNIIN
19)eM B ysel] - sanIuN

[ejo] 1amod - sailinun
Buidwing Jalepa PajoAday - sailiin
SliIH 1S9M - Jueld Jusuljeal | J8jep\ - salliiin
jessaT - Juejd jusuneal | I8jepn - seliiin
Aiddng jo 82in0g - seliin
IsiQ g uoissiwsuel ] - saliiiNn
Buidwing - saiinn
9040 JoLSIq - saliIN
Jamod - saniin



SECTION 8
CAPITAL PROJECTS




sopeiddp) [eue)) saumred — Ly6 o
juowooe[doy odid sundi|S — ppe o

sopes3d) Anows[a] VAVIS — 676 o

N0 M JuswoAosdw] Kem([idg zopueuId — €77 o

10901 TeroadS

(N L'9$ ¥dSN) doYAV — dsuadxg wuein — 71 e
(N S'11$ 9MA) dOIQV — ssuadxd ueIin — 671D e

astey wed SIS 'I'd— 6719 o

UOTIBSIISOAU] puk AdAING AleulwIjald

SLOHIOYUd "TV.LIdVO



£50°158°C 000°9.9°Ly 000°S.p°cE 0 000°526'2¢ 000°0SS 0 spoafold [eyided [ejoy

ezL'see 000°G16°} 000'00€° 0 000°08L°} 000°0SS 0 sjoefoid tepads fejo)
0 4] 000°00¢ 0 0 00000¢ 0 sapesbdp jeue] seupied FA L
0 000002 000006t 0 000°005°L 0 0 awsoeidey adid auiidis v6
g 000'GL 0 0 o] 0 0 Apnig usejl4 2y L6
0 000°00} 0 ¢] 0 4] 0 (H8) 108fo14 uonesyipo dwing €6
8.8'vee 000'058 000'05¢ 0 000°05Z [¢] 0 speibdn Aewsia) vavos 626
08 000'062 000°052 0 0 000'082 0 MIOM JusaAcIdw] Aempidg zapueulaH €ce
[} 000°004 0 0 0 [} 0 $521601d Ui UOHONASUOY (01
¢] 000°001 0 0 Q o] ] uooBULIOY O} gng / ssedAg gL AemubiH ov6
§Z6°125°C 000°L09°S¥ 000°SLL°LE 0 000°GLL'LE (1] 0 uopebissauj pue Asaing Aleujwiaid {eloy
0 000'G68 0 0 0 4] 0 ueld JOISB JojeMalSeM-IBieM uenf ueg 122
0 000'00S 0 0 0 4] ] uoisuedx3 JI0AISSaY 009LOBd f444
o] 000'0L 0 0 0 0 0 UNpUOY JesiioH - ApMIS D 19SSNiN B1ge7 00g
oveiore's 0000054 o] Q Q 0 4] JdINMYL pauysieiep olefed 891
00Z'vL 000'000°LZ 000'000'v1 o] 000°000'%1 Q 4] (W 2°9% HaSN) doxqy - asuadxy jueln 6ziQ
928'86 000'000'12 000'005'94 0 000'005'9L 0 0 (N 6'L1$ HMQ) doHQy - ssuadxd jueld 6210
£65'8 000961 000°6.9 0 000°6.9 0 0 osiey weqg ¥sig '4'd 6cL4
0 000°00S 0 [¢] 0 4] 0 saApewssly - Aiddng Jejem aining 6zL
:uopebiysaaul pue Aoaing Areujwijold
sjoaloid jejde)
femoy aiA jabpng fejolL A £313) 9 € I
S202-v20C S20Z-vT0Z suoz auoz auoz
SZIOEH 10 Y 9202-5202 19bpng

saunypuadxy jeyden ebpng

19bpng Asuiwiaid
9202-5202Z 19Bpng Jea A jeosiy
PUISIq 8¥ep Aiuno) oliuag ues



SECTION 9

PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
AND WATER RIGHTS




Ije A\ PaIolg ordoniueg e
puod 98e10)S I91e |\ PO[OKodY e

103[01q uowaaoidwy [eyde) [ yoesy e

SIYITY 1018 dAD @

ST EREN

(SIITH 1S°A\) S1ozAeur Apiqiny, e
(Jressa]) sy[emied ssadde U], e
(31esso7) JOoOI Y} UO IB[OS e

IoMOW T8O QIOULIBIL) o

S)ue) 0IPAY I0J SIONPSURI) INSSAIJ o

sjuowaoe[dal oATEA e

Juawdinbr 29 Jue[d Aledoi]



$€8°620°) 0SS'€EL’s 0S6°76¥'2 0 056°v6¥'Z 0 0 siybny Jerem (e301
620°1 000°LS 058'GL 0 058'G1L 0 0 puod ebriolg JajeM pajphosy
166'v2 0S8°€LL'L 066'66¥% 0 056'66% 0 0 psfold uswanoiduy jeyded | yoesy - dAD
00z'ey 000'L€ 000'.¢ 0 000°L¢ 0 0 Jslem paloig didoniweg
809'096 00.°1£6'L 0512v6't 0 05126l 0 0 Jwdey joeiuoy Aojepusly dAD
syyby 1olem

92069 000°99€ 00¥°'LYZ'L 0 009°022°1L 009°64 00Z'L juswdinb3 pue juejd ‘Ausdoid jejo L
0z9'9p 0 000'801 ) 000'801 ) 0 awdinb3z d1
0 000°604 000'eSY 0 000'eSy 0 0 sjuawwenoidwy g s2INPNIS dJ.
0 0 00005 0 00Z'62 009'64 00zZ'L uswdinb3 pajesadQ jemod d9
S0F'9 000°G1L 0 0 0 ] 0 swdinb3 uogeyodsuel| do
LG0'94 000°L0Z 00v'96¥ 0 00v'96Y 0 0 sjuswisaoidu} g saInoNAg SAL
0 0 000°001 0 000°004 0 0 wawdinb3y Suidwnd Jofew dd
0 00062 000'vE 0 000'vE 0 0 juswdinby Buldwing Jsjfews dd

juswdinbg pue juely ‘Aaadoid
fenjoy QLA jabpng et vso 9 3 1
SZ0Z-¥202 $20Z-vZ0Z auoz auoz auoz
SZ/0S/Y 4O SV 9202-$202 19bpng

sainypuadxy jenden yebpng

1ebpng ABuLIgSI4
9202-520¢ yobpng Jea [eosty
s Jelepm Aiunod ojueg ues



SECTION 10
DESIGNATIONS & RESERVES

A. Net Operating Income after Transfers and Contributions
B. Summary of Designation and Restricted Reserve Activity
C. Capital Budget and Source of Funding

D. Cash and Investment Position Summary




San Benito County Water District

Fiscal Year 2025-2026
Preliminary Budget
Board Meeting - May 28, 2025
Net Operating Income after Transfers and Contributions

Tab10A

Based on budget

Zone 1 Zone 3 Zone 6 GSA Total
NET INCOME FROM OPERATIONS * 200,075 434,263 7,978,448 429,650 9,042,436
Source - Adjustments to net income from operations
Budget Profit Depreciation and amortization 6,550 47,850 4,067,450 - 4,121,850
and Loss
ADJUSTED NET INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 206,625 482,113 12,045,898 429,650 13,164,286
GSA ACTIVITY
GSP Development costs - (monitoring wells etc) - - - - -
Source - SGMA/
GsP GSP Development costs - Principal repayment to Zone 1 40,871 s - (40,871) ~
Total GSA activity 40,871 a - (40,871) A
OTHER TRANSFERS / PAYMENTS
Source- Principal payment - City National Loan = @ (283,805) - (283,805)
Hollister Urban Transfer to Undesignated Reserves (25%) s s (421,718) 5 (421,718)
Area Project
Agreement Transfer to USBR Contract Repayment - Restricted Reserve (75%) = < (1,265,154) = (1,265,154)
TOTAL TRANSFERS TO UNDESIGNATED, RESTRICTED
RESERVE AND LOANS - - (1,970,677) - (1,970,677)
TRANSFERS TO DESIGNATED RESERVES
Contribution to Capital Replacement Reserve (8,262) (21,019) (142,347) - (171,628)
Source-Board Contribution to Capital Improvement Reserve N . 64,080 - 64,080
Approved L .
Designation Contribution to Water Supply Revolving Reserve = - (211,652) - (211,652)
Policy Contribution to Operating Reserve (27,043) (57,101) (2,847 ,545) - (2,931,690)
Contribution to Expanded Pacheco Reservoir Reserve “ & (62,974) - (62,974)
TOTAL TRANSFERS TO DESIGNATED RESERVES (35,305) (78,121) (3,200,438) - (3,313,864)
TRANSFERS TO RESTRICTED RESERVES
Contribution to USBR Contract Repayment Restricted Reserve = = (4,560,862) - (4,560,862)
Contribution to San Felipe Reach 1 Reserve - - (23,741) - (23,741)
Source- Board
Approved Contribution to Water Treatment Plant Replacement Reserve - = (748,960) - (748,960)
Restriction
Policy Contribution to Reach 1 Major Repair and Maintenance Reserve - - 260,310 - 260,310
Contribution to Reliability Charge M&I - - (910,000) - (910,000)
TOTAL TRANSFERS TO RESTRICTED RESERVES - - (5,073,253) - (5,073,253)
Net operating income after transfers and contributions 212,191 403,992 1,801,530 388,779 2,806,492
OTHER
Principal payment - City National Loan
(Recycled Water Project) - - (106,412) - (106,412)
Balance Sheet |  Principal payment - CalPERS UAL Bond (7.939) (9,406) (161,655) - (179,000)
ARGty Principal Payment - USBR In- Basin Capital % - (181,000) - (181,000)
Total Balance sheet activity (7,939) (9,406) (449,067) ; (466,412)
Net Overall Activity| 204,252 | 394,586 | 1,352,463 | 388,779 | 2,340,080




San Benito County Water District
Fiscal Year Budget 2025-2026

Preliminary Budget

Summary of Designation and Restricted Reserve Activity

Tab 10 B

| Zonet Zone 3 Zone 6 GSA Total
Reach 1 Major Repair and Maintenance Reserve -Restricted
Estimated FYE2025 Balance (prior to June 30) & - 3,633,896 - 3,633,896
Withdrawal (funding source for Capital Budget FY2025-
2026) - (499,950) - (499,950)
Contribution from Operating Budget FY2025-26 - - 239,640 - 239,640
Estimated Balance FYE 2025-26 - - 3,373,586 - 3,373,586
Contract Repayment Reserve - Restricted
Estimated FYE2025 Balance (prior to June 30) - - 39,000,000 - 39,000,000
USBR Contract principal payment = - (1,942,152) - (1,942,152)
Withdrawal (funding source for Capital Budget FY2025-
2026) - -
Contribution from the HUA Project Agreement (Principal
and interest repayment - 75%) - - 1,265,154 - 1,265,154
Contribution from Operating Budget FY2025-26 = - 5,237,860 . 5,237,860
Estimated Balance FYE 2025-26 43,560,862 - 43,560,862
San Felipe Reach 1 Reserve - Restricted
Estimated FYE2025 Balance (prior to June 30 ) . - 605,506 - 605,506
Contribution from Operating Budget FY2025-26 - - 23,741 - 23,741
Withdrawal at June 30, 2026 - - » - -
Estimated Balance FYE 2025-26 - - 629,247 - 629,247
District Revolving Fund Reserve - Restricted
Estimated FYE2025 Balance (prior to June 30) 75,000 - - 75,000
Contribution from Operating Budget FY2025-26 - - - - -
Estimated Balance FYE 2025-26 75,000 - - 75,000
Capital Improvement Reserve
Estimated FYE2025 Balance (prior to June 30 ) - 222,728 4,573,396 4,796,124
Contribution from Operating Budget FY2025-26 - - 610,920 610,920
Withdrawal (funding source for Capital Budget FY2025-
2026) - - (675,000) (675,000)
Estimated Balance FYE 2025-26 - 222,728 4,509,316 - 4,732,043
Capital Asset Replacement Reserve
Estimated FYE2025 Balance (prior to June 30) 84,833 536,093 3,630,518 - 4,251,444
Contribution from Operating Budget FY2025-26 8,262 271,019 3,433,747 - 3,713,028
Withdrawal (funding source for Capital Budget FY2025-
2026) - (250,000) (3,291,400) - (3,541,400)
Estimated Balance FYE 2025-26 93,095 557,112 3,772,865 - 4,423,073
Operating Reserve
Estimated FYE2025 Balance (prior to June 30) 137,500 230,000 3,900,000 - 4,267,500
Contribution from Operating Budget FY2025-26 27,043 57,101 2,847,545 - 2,931,690
Estimated Balance FYE 2025-26 164,543 287,101 6,747,545 - 7,199,190




San Benito County Water District
Fiscal Year Budget 2025-2026

Preliminary Budget

Summary of Designation and Restricted Reserve Activity

Tab 10 B

Zone 1 Zone 3 Zone 6 GSA Total
Water Supply Revolving Reserve
Estimated FYE2025 Balance (prior to June 30 ) - - 3,142,632 - 3,142,632
Contribution from Operating Budget FY2025-26 = - 871,652 - 871,652
Withdrawal at June 30, 2026 - - (660,000) - (660,000)
Estimated Balance FYE 2025-26 - - 3,354,284 3,354,284
San Felipe / Hollister Conduit Reserve - Restricted
Estimated FYE2025 Balance (prior to June 30) - - 250,000 - 250,000
Contribution from Operating Budget FY2025-26 - - - -
Estimated Balance FYE 2025-26 - - 250,000 250,000
Self Insurance Reserve
Estimated FYE2025 Balance (prior to June 30 ) - - 100,000 100,000
Contribution from Operating Budget FY2025-26 . - = -
Estimated Balance FYE 2025-26 - - 100,000 100,000
Water Treatment Plant Replacement Reserve
Estimated FYE2025 Balance (prior to June 30) - = 5,768,986 5,768,986
Contribution from Operating Budget FY2025-26 - - 748,960 - 748,960
Estimated Balance FYE 2025-26 - - 6,517,946 - 6,517,946
Other Post Employment Benefit Trust
Estimated FYE2025 Balance (prior to June 30 ) 42,283 68,825 1,032,371 1,143,479
Contribution from Operating Budget FY2025-26 400 6,000 90,000 96,400
Estimated Balance FYE 2025-26 42,683 74,825 1,122,371 - 1,239,879
Reliability Charge M&l
Estimated FYE2025 Balance (prior to June 30) - - 1,551,862 - 1,551,862
Contribution from Operating Budget FY2025-26 - . 910,000 . 910,000
Estimated Balance FYE 2025-26 - - 2,461,862 - 2,461,862
Expanded Pacheco Reservoir Reserve
Estimated FYE2025 Balance (prior to June 30 ) - - 1,745,384 1,745,364
Contribution from Operating Budget FY2025-26 - - 62,974 - 62,974
Estimated Balance FYE 2025-26 - - 1,808,338 - 1,808,338
Total Designations & Restrictions FYE2025-26 $ 79,725,310




San Benito County Water District
Fiscal Year Budget 2025-2026
Preliminary Budget
Board Meeting - May 28, 2025
Captial Budget and Source of Funding

TAB10C

Zone 1 Zone 3 Zone 6 GSA Total Sources of Funding
Restricted and Designated
Capital Budget: Preliminary Survey and Investigation Reserves
B.F. Sisk Dam Raise - - 675,000 675,000 Capital Improvement
Grant Expense - ADRoP (DWR $11.5M) - - 16,500,000 16,500,000 Capital Improvement
Grant Expense - ADRoP (USBR $6.7M) - - 14,000,000 14,000,000 Capital Improvement
Subtotal Budgeted Expense - - 31,175,000 31,175,000
Capital Budget: Special Projects
Hernandez Spillway improvements -| 250,000 - 250,000
Paicines Canal Upgrades - = 300,000 300,000 Capital Asset Replacement
Scada Telemetry upgrades - - 250,000 250,000
HWY25 Pipe Replacement - - 1,500,000 1,500,000
Subtotal Budgeted Expense -| 250,000 2,050,000 2,300,000
Total Preliminary Survey and Investigations and
Special Projects -| 250,000 33,225,000 33,475,000
Capital Budget: Water Rights
USBR Contract Repayment
CVP Amendatory Contract Repayment - - 1,942,150 1,942,150 and Rate Management
WWTP Storage Pond - - 15,850 15,850 Water Supply Revolving
Reach 1 Major Repair and
Reach 1 Capital Improvements - - 499,950 499,950 Replacement
Water Rights - Semitropic Water Storage - - 37,000 37,000 Water Supply Revolving
Total Budgeted Expense - - 2,494,950 2,494,950
Capital Budget: Property Plant and Equipment
Delivery and valve replacement project - - 417,000 417,000
Pressure transducers for hydro tanks - - 100,000 100,000
TO Pressure Reducing Valves - Replace - - 79,400 79,400
Gearmore rear mower - - 38,000 38,000
Variable Frequency Drives - - 24,000 24,000
Diesel generator - - 12,000 12,000
Flowmeter . < 10,000 10,000) Capital Asset Replacement
Tank Access Catwalks - LST - - 150,000 150,000
Solar on roof - LST - - 250,000 250,000
Cathodic protection - LST - - 53,000 53,000
Turbidity analyzers - WH - - 88,000 88,000
Raw water AC unit - - 10,000 10,000
Eye washing tank replacement - - 10,000 10,000
Total Budgeted Expense - - 1,241,400 1,241,400




Fiscal Year 2025-2026
Preliminary Budget

Board Meeting - May 28, 2025

Cash and Investment Position Balances

Tab 10-D

San Benito County Water District
Cash and Investment Position

As of :

Actual

Audited
Fiscal YE

2024

Estimated

Unaudited
Fiscal YE

2025

Estimated

Unaudited
Fiscal YE

2026

Cash and Investments

89,935,455

100,970,000

101,659,500

Designated Net Asset/Cash

Reserved for Operations

3,338,022 4,267,500 7,199,190
Reserved for Capital Asset Replacement
4,063,735 4,251,444 4,423,073
Reserved for Capital Improvements
5,492,339 4,796,124 4,732,043
Reserved for Self-Insurance
100,000 100,000 100,000
Reserved for Water Supply Revolving
2,270,980 3,142,632 3,354,284
Reserve for Expanded Pacheco Reservoir
1,643,685 1,745,364 1,808,338
Total Designated Cash 16,908,761 18,303,064 21,616,928
Restricted Net Asset/Cash
District Revolving Fund
75,000 75,000 75,000
San Felipe-Hollister Conduit Reserve
250,000 250,000 250,000
San Felipe-Reach 1 Reserve
585,030 605,506 629,247
Reach 1 Major Maintenance and Repair
Reserve 3,795,352 3,633,896 3,373,586
Contract Repayment Reserve (USBR)
24,685,457 39,000,000 43,560,862
Water Treatment Plant Replacement Reserve
5,024,780 5,768,986 6,517,946
Other Post Employement Benefit Trust
Reserve 1,047,079 1,143,479 1,239,879
Reliability Charge M&I
696,068 1,551,862 2,461,862

Total Restricted Cash

36,158,766

52,028,729

58,108,381

Undesignated Cash 36,867,928 30,638,207 21,934,190
Total Undesignated Cash 36,867,928 30,638,207 21,934,190




GENERAL INFORMATION

A. Multi-Agency Projects
B. Multi-Year Projects



V-9

0/2'96% $ | 022’96 $ [rejolL

065'291 $ ousig J8jep Aluno) ojuag ueg
0z}'85l $ ouysiq Jejep Aluno) adojsAuung
o8zl $ ejsineg uenp ueg jo AND
0Z1'8Sl $ 18)si|joH 0 Ao

:sasuadxs paleys 10} juswasinquiioy
0/2'96¥ ¢ |sesuadx3 paseys
sjuswasinquiay sasuadxy uorneId0SSYy S$82.1N0Say IS

sjooload Aouaby-3InNl
jobpng Aeunwioid

920¢-520¢ 139ang dv3A 1vOosid
JoLsiq J49)epM AJuno) ojluag ues




8-19

e10

- - 00.L/L uotlsinboy Aepa Jo 143ty unpuo) ese)) ejues/odayoed
609'vvS S | €99°€zS S | 0sCter S s13foud jeyde) jjews
8¢0¢-LT0TC L20¢-9¢0¢ 920¢-5¢0¢ uondusaq afoid
(%22) 21eys amdas

s1o9foad jeude) T yoeay

spoafoid 1ea -3InN
j1obpng Areunuijeid
9¢02-9202 1390an8 Jdv3A TvOoSid
3913S1qg J9)epA AJuno) ojiudg ueg




SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT

May 28, 2025

- Board Requested Action

CRTaES p

Approval of FY 2025-2026 Budget for
San Benito County Water District

Finance Committee has recommended
FY 2025-2026 Budget



Net operating

income after
212,191 - 1,801, $388,779 2,806,492
transfers and $ NS $

contributions

Principal payments $(7.939) $(9,406) $(449,067) $(466,412)

Net overall activity $204,252 $394,586 $1,352,463 $388,779 $2,340,080




Operating Budget

Sources of Funds o Uses of Funds

Water Sales and Service m Annual Operating Expenses

Finished Water Loan and Bond Interest
Taxes Reserve Contributions

Interest m Restricted

Bond Proceeds m Designated

» Undesignated

Development of Operating Budget
Overvnew of Process

"o "'- 'Depi manogers rneef with GM and Asst GM i

= Plan goals for departments
» Make budget plan to meet goals
= Review recurring, historical, and periodic expenses

= Detail expenses on worksheets

» Anficipate revenue and balance expenses
= Designations and Reserves

» General Manager approval




Operating Revenue
Key Assumptions

Hollls’fer Urbon Areo |

Recycled Water

Non- Operahng Revenue

InTeres’r S © OTher Non Oerohn Revenue

Tax and Assessments Capital Related Revenue




Finished Water Revenue

Maintenance
$4,233,500
45%

Raw Water Power
$187,950 Plant Power

2 $445,000
> 5%

Administrative Fee
$73,900
1%

Direct Costs

\
$132,350

1%
\ Replacement Reserve
$522,750

TOTAL $9,352,950 -

Revenue By Source

Ealad e | Hollister Urban Area -
Investment and Finished Water

Interest Revenve $9.352,950
21%

Water Sales and
Service

Other Non-Operating $4,832,600
Revenue 11%
$179,550 ;

0% Hollister Urban Area -
Capacity Rights
$2,023,700

Taxes —

$13,416,100
30%

TOTAL $44,197,750

10



/Cost of Water

Agricultural water — 16,474 AF
Municipal and Industrial water — 6,935 AF
Additional water purchases - 2,700 AF

11

LSy e

s and Employee Related Expenses

~ 1 A > o Cal - R

PERS Retirement (Employer portion only)
Classic - 13.46%
PEPRA - 7.96%

Other Post Employment Benefits

Medical Insurance

Training and Uniforms

Employer Tax

Workers' Compensation Insurance

12

12



Contract Serv:ces General

Legol Serv:ces
Engineering Services
Accounting

General Consulting and Other Service
= Groundwater Sustainability Plan Annual Report

= Employee recruitment services

= Rates /impact fee / capacity fee

Computer
= Computer, software, network and SCADA support

Maintenance
= District / San Justo / Hemandez / Paicines maintenance
= Industrial paint project

=  Mgjor breck contingency

Water Treatment Plants (West Hills & Lessalt) $4,238,500
Water Conservation Programs (WRA) $162,450
Stream Flow Measurement $103,000
Water Quality Testing $52,950
Water Data Collections (SGMA) $30,000
District Operations / Other $28,600




Contract Services - Programs

R | ol r ok ‘- Sl .

SLDMWA (CVP related activities)

USBR Water Management Plan

Hollister Conduit Corrosion Survey

Water Supply Master Plan Update

15

Materials & Equipment

ey e | ~N ¢

Replacements

Pipe and pipe repair parts
Structure equipment supplies
Construction supplies New meters

Repair closure kits Meter replacement supplies
Chemigation valves

16



General and Administrative

P el " ol -

f’v<‘;;‘n’—'!f~/ &
Communications Liability
Insurance

Dam Inspection
Fees

{

Water Rights Fees Membership Fees

’

Summary of District Participation in

Water Conservation Program
Salt Reduction Program

- General Expenditures

18



Expenses by Source
Operahng Bﬂudge’r

—

¥ | 1 § Cos' of Wcﬂer
General Administration
3%

Materials and Equipment / S
4% \ Wages & Employee
Related
Contract Services
G
= | Depreciation &
Amortization

TOTAL $21,165,314 19%

17%

San Benito County Water District
Ne’r Qpera’nng Income qﬁer Trqnsfers cnd Contributions

s S TS Bed Y — Sl e e U

Adjusted Net Income From Operations $206,625 $482,113 $12,045,898 $429,650 $13,164,285
GSA Activity $40,871 $(40,871) $0
T::;%I T;g’n;f;rs Related to Hollister Urban $(1.970,677) $(1.970,677)
Total Transfers to Designated Reserves $(35,305) $(78,121) $(3,200,438) $(3.313,864)
Total Transfers to Resfricted Reserves $(5,073,253) $(5.073,253)

e s $212191  $403992  $1,801,530  $388,779 $2,806,492
Principal Payments

Recycled Water Project Loan $(106,412) $(106,412)
CalPERS UAL Bond $(7.939) $(9.406) $(161,655) $(179.,000)
USBR In-Basin Capital Bond $(181,000) $(181,000)

Net Overall Activity $204,252 $394,586 $1,352,463 $388,779 $2,340,080




CAPITAL BUDGET

Capital Budget

Sources of Funds

m Reserves
Restricted
Designated

Undesignated

Uses of Funds

Property, Plant and Equipment

1 Preliminary Survey and

Investigation
USBR Contract Principal

Loan and Bond Principal

Construction in Progress

m Special Projects




Capital Projects

Grant Expense — ADRoP (DWR $11.5 M)
Grant Expense — ADRoP (USBR $6.7 M)
B.F. Sisk Dam Raise
Total Budgeted Preliminary Survey and Investigation

8 & 10C | Source of funding: Designated Reserve Account

Capital Projects (Continved)

Slipline Pipe Replacement
Paicines Canal Upgrades $300,000
Hernandez Spillway Improvement Work $250,000
SCADA Telemetry Upgrade $250,000

Total Budgeted Special Projects $2,300,000

8 & 10C | Source of funding: Designated Reserve Account

24



Property Plant & Eqmpment

ke ) WP A Y,

o Dehvery and valve replocemen’r pro;ec’rs $4l 7 OOO et
Pressure transducers for hydro tanks $100,000
Pressure reducing valve replacements $79.400

Gearmore rear mower $38,000
Variable Frequency Drives $24,000
Diesel generator $12,000
Flowmeter $10,000

9& 10C| Source of funding: Designated Reserve Account

Property, Plant & Eqmpment (Con’nnued)

 [Lessalt
Solar on roof $250,000

Tank access catwalks $150,000
Cathodic protection $53,000

West Hills
Turbidity analyzers $88,000

Raw water AC unit $10,000

Eye washing tank replacement $10,000

Total Budgeted Property, Plant & Equipment| $1,241,400

9 & 10C| Source of funding: Designated Reserve Account




ANNUAL CVP PAYMENT $1,942,150

Total payment amount is principal

Water Rights (Continued) |

8 Reach 1 Capital Projects b
Project Budget

Small Capital Projects $2,288,735 $492,250

Pacheco / Santa Clara Conduit Right of
Way Acquisition $35,000 $7,700

Total Budgeted Expense (Reach 1 Capital) $2,323,735 $499,950
Source of funding: Reach 1 Major Repair & Maintenance Reserve (Restricted)

Semitropic Stored Water $37,000
Recycled Water Storage Pond $15.850
Total Budgeted Expense (Semitropic & Storage Pond) $52,850




o SOpiiGLBdgRL M MmAn

Preliminary Survey/Investigation & Special Projects $33,475,000
Property, Plant & Equipment $1,241,400
Water Rights $2,494,950

29

- Board Requested Action

Approval of FY 2025-2026 Budget for
San Benito County Water District

30



San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal

Agenda Item: i i
Meeting Date: May 28, 2025
Submitted By: Brett Miller

Presented By: Brett Miller

Agenda Title: Consider Amending Resolution 2024-33 Regarding the District Policy on
Restriction and Designation of District Net Asset/Cash

Detailed Description:

This resolution is brought to the Board every year for approval to maintain or to make changes to
the District’s Restriction and Designations policy for the current fiscal year-end. Staff is only
making one recommended change to the policy which is to change the Operating Reserves from
fifty percent (50%) to one hundred percent (100%). This increase will be implemented equally
over three (3) fiscal years.

Prior Committee or Board Action:
Finance Committee, May 20, 2025

Materials Included:
Finance Committee Recommendation
Draft Resolution with Tables

Financial Impact: X Yes No

Funding Source/ Recap: N/A

Recommendation:
Staff and the Finance Committee recommend the Board approve the amended resolution
regarding the District’s Restriction and Designations Policy.

Action Required: X Resolution X Motion Review
Board Action
Resolution No.  Motion By Second By
Ayes Abstained
Noes Absent

Reagendized Date No Action Taken




BOARD AGENDA MEMO

DATE: May 20. 2025
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Finance Committee (Williams*/Freeman)

SUBJECT: Consider Recommending the Board Approve Resolution for the
Restrictions and Designations to Net Assets/Cash FYE 2025

The Finance Committee met on May 20, 2025 and staff reviewed the draft
resolution for Restrictions and Designations to Net Assets/Cash FYE 2025.

The Finance Committee recommends the Board Approve Resolution for
Restrictions and Designations to Net Assets/Cash FYE 2025.

15irector Freeman



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT
RESOLUTION NO. 2025-12

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
AMENDING RESOLUTION 2024-33 REGARDING
THE DISTRICT POLICY ON
RESTRICTION AND DESIGNATION OF NET ASSETS/CASH

WHEREAS a District Policy Regarding Restriction and Designation of Net
Asset/Cash was developed with the oversight and participation of the Finance
Committee, the District Auditor, and General Counsel; and

WHEREAS the Board of Directors adopted said policy in Resolution 2004-
16 on June 30, 2004; and

WHEREAS said policy called for an annual review and Finance Committee
and Board of Directors conducted the annual review; and

WHEREAS the Board of Directors adopted and amended policies in
Resolutions 2005-16, 2006-10, 2007-11, 2008-22, 2009-14, 2010-12,
2011-14, 2012-13, 2013-14, 2014-08, 2015-06, 2016-12, 2017-12, 2018-08,
2019-09, 2020-09,2021-15, 2022-20, 2023-14, and 2024-33;

WHEREAS the Finance Committee has conducted the annual review for
fiscal year 2025 and the recommended changes to the policy are summarized in
Exhibit A;

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Benito County
Water District that the Policy Regarding Restriction and Designation of Net
Assets attached as Exhibit B and included herein by reference is approved.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the San Benito County Water District Board
of Directors at special meeting of said board held on the 28t day of May 2025,
at Hollister, California, by the following vote:

AYES: DIRECTORS:
NOES: DIRECTORS:
ABSENT: DIRECTORS:

ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

(Resolution #2025-12
Signed by the Presiding Board Member
Attested by the Board Secretary)

Doug Williams
Board President

ATTEST:

Barbara L. Mauro
Board Secretary



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT
Exhibit A

The Policy Regarding Restrictions and Designation of Net Assets/Cash,
effective June 30, 2025, is amended from the policy documented in
Resolution 2024-33, in the following ways:

Table #1 Restricted/Net Assets/Cash is unchanged.
Table #2 Designated/Net Assets/Cash has a change to:

“Reserved for Operations”. It has changed to be: At fiscal year-end, the
District will move from fifty percent to one hundred percent of an average
of the most recent 3 years' annual operating expense (excluding
depreciation, amortization and operating expense associated with the
Hollister Urban Area water treatment plants)by increasing the amount to
be sixty seven percent, then the next fiscal year to eighty four percent,
and then final one hundred percent in the next following fiscal year.



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

Exhibit B

PURPOSE:

Adequate reserved funds (net assets/cash) are a necessary component of the
District’s overall financial management plan and are required to meet various
externally imposed constraints.

Funds are reserved to meet specific future financial obligations and to mitigate
natural, economic, political and regulatory risks. This policy is intended to
document the business practices of the District and accurately reflect the nature,
purpose and management of restricted and designated net assets and accurately
reflect the financial condition of the District to its constituents, creditors,
financial institutions, regulatory agencies, State and Federal agencies and the
general public.

POLICY:
Restricted Net Assets/Cash

In accordance with GASB Statement 34 and FASB Statement 71, net
assets are restricted when constraints placed on their use are externally imposed
by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments.
They are also restricted if their use is constrained by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation. Restricted Net Assets/Cash, the source of
Restriction, the purpose of the Restriction, the method of determining the
amount of Restriction and the treatment of interest is shown on Table I.

Designated Nets Assets/Cash

In accordance with GASB Statement 34, designations of net assets
represent management’s intended use of resources and should reflect plans
approved by the government’s senior management. Designations reflect a
government’s self-imposed limitations on the use of otherwise available current
financial resources. Designated Net Assets/Cash, the purpose of the
Designation, the method of determining the amount of Designation and the
treatment of interest is shown on Table 2.



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

Exhibit B

PROCEDURE:

e Restrictions are to be reviewed by the Finance Committee annually
including but not limited to a review of statutory and regulatory changes
impacting or creating Restriction of District Net Assets/Cash together with
any new or pending constraints resulting from business relationships with
creditors, grantors or contributors.

e For any new or amended contract or other business relationship or action
that creates or changes a restriction of Net Assets/Cash, the nature and
amount of that restriction or change in restriction shall be specifically and
fully detailed in the documents supporting action by the Board and only
the Board shall have the authority to take or approve any action which
has the effect of creating or changing such restriction(s) of Net
Assets/Cash.

e Designations are to be reviewed by the Finance Committee annually and
any changes approved by the Board on or before June 30 each year.

e Adding a designation category requires specific approval of the Board. This
action will include: 1) the purpose of the designation, 2) the dollar amount
of the designation, 3) the method for calculating any annual adjustment(s),
if the dollar amount is to change each year, and 4) whether or not the
interest accrued on the designated amount is to be added to the
designation at the end of each fiscal year.

e Removing a designation category requires specific approval of the Board.

e Changing the method for calculating the annual adjustment(s) of the
designation requires approval of the Board.

e The actual dollar amounts of the designation shall be calculated based on
the defined method and adjusted at year-end for financial reporting
purposes.

e Designated net assets will be segregated into separate financial accounts.

e An identical amount of cash will be designated for annual financial
reporting purposes in order to reflect management’s intention to fund the
commitment of designated net assets. Designated cash will not be
segregated from undesignated cash either in bank/investment accounts
or in financial accounts except when that cash is separately invested in a
manner specifically approved by the Board.

The General Manager shall have full authority and responsibility to carry out
actions of this policy.



Fiscal Year End
2025

Table #1

RESTRICTED NET ASSETS/CASH

Name of
Restricted Net Treatment of Accrued
Asset/Cash Source Of Restriction Purpose Method for Calculating Amount of Restriction Interest

District Revolving
Fund

San Benito County Water
Conservation and Flood Control
District Act (Section 70-7.1(a))

To provide funds which
may be used for
emergencies and to pay
costs necessary for the
establishment of a zone
within the District.

Amount specified in the District Act.

Interest accrued as
specified in the District Act.

San Felipe-
Hollister Conduit
Reserve

USBR Contract Central Valley
Project-Contract Between the
United States and the San
Benito County Water
Conservation and Flood Control
District for Water Service and for
Operation and maintenance of
Certain Works of the San Felipe
Division (Contract #8-07-20-
WO0130)

To meet unforeseen
extraordinary costs and
emergencies.

Amount specified in the Contract.

As specified in contract.




Fiscal Year End
2025 Table #1

RESTRICTED NET ASSETS/CASH

Name of
Restricted Net Treatment of Accrued
Asset/Cash Source Of Restriction Purpose Method for Calculating Amount of Restriction Interest
San Felipe- USBR San Felipe Division- To meet operations and |Amount specified in the Contract As specified in contract.

Reach 1 Reserve |Contract for the Transfer of the |maintenance costs
Operation and Maintenance of  |incurred during period of
Certain San Felipe Division special stress and
Facilities (Contract # 6-07-20- extraordinary repair or
X0290): United States, Santa replacement costs
Clara Valley Water District, and |associate with Reach 1.
San Benito County Water
Conservation and Flood




Fiscal Year End
2025

Table #1

RESTRICTED NET ASSETS/CASH

Name of
Restricted Net Treatment of Accrued
Asset/Cash Source Of Restriction Purpose Method for Calculating Amount of Restriction Interest
USBR Contract |Agreement Between Santa Clara {Funds to pay for San At each fiscal year end, the amount added to the Added to the Restricted

Repayment and
Rate
Management
Reserve

Valley Water District and San
Benito County Water District for
Repayment and Management of
San Felipe Division Facilities.

Felipe Division costs,
including existing
foreseeable and
unforeseeable costs that
may result from
catastrophic failure of
San Felipe Division
facilities. Funds from
this restricted reserve
are to be used for USBR
Amendatory Contract
Repayment . This
USBR Contract
Repayment and Rate
Management Reserve is
intended to provide
funds to make interest
and principal payments
on the Amendatory
contract in an effort to
minimize the impact of
the repayment schedule
on water rates and
taxes.

reserve would be the annual aliocation from the land
tax, interest accrued on the restricted reserve, and the
amount associated with the interest component in M&l
water rates. Withdrawals may be made for the USBR
principal and interest payments required during the
fiscal year as outlined in Exhibit D of the Amendatory
contract NO. 8-07-20-W0130A and for costs associated
with WIHN Act USBR in-basin capital repayment costs.
Effective fiscal year end 2017-2018, the annual
allocation for the Zone 6 land tax is 30% of the land tax
and is subject to annual review by the Board. For fiscal
year end 2013, the reserve balance will be adjusted to
the target minimum of one and one half years of USBR
Amendatory Contract payments and the remaining
balance will be transferred to the Designation for
Hollister Urban Area Water Treatment Plants. The
Capital Recovery components (principal and interest) as
identified in the Water Supply and Treatment
Agreement will be added to the reserve each year in
relative proportion to the reserves funding of the project
costs. Repayment costs assocated with repayment of
the in-basin capital costs will be added back to the
reserve on an amortized basis over the remaining life of
the USBR Amendatory Contract (2036).

Reserve to meet future
obligations associated with
San Felipe Division costs.




Fiscal Year End
2025

Table #1

RESTRICTED NET ASSETS/CASH

Name of
Restricted Net
Asset/Cash

Source Of Restriction

Purpose

Method for Calculating Amount of Restriction

Treatment of Accrued
Interest

Reach 1 Major
Repair and
Replacement
Reserve

Valiey Water District and San

San Felipe Division Facilities.

Agreement Between Santa Clara

Benito County Water District for
Repayment and Management of

To provide funds for
major repair and
replacement associated
with Reach 1.

Initial balance to be transferred from the fiscal year end
2006 balance of the designation USBR Contract
Renewal. Review amount of restriction annually to be
in compliance with Section 4(a) of the Agreement
Between Santa Clara Valley Water District and San
Benito County Water District for Repayment and
Management of San Felipe Division Facilities. When
funds are used from this reserve to pay for Reach 1
Major repair and replacement, they will be replenished
from the operating budget over 5 to 10 years,
depending on life of asset, beginning in the initial
project year. Replenishment will also include a 3%
inflation factor. Target minimum established at
$500,000.

Accrued interest is to be
added to the Restricted
Reserve until such time that
the minimum aggregate
amount is achieved. Once
the minimum aggregate
amount is achieved, the
interest will be added to the
undesignated cash of the
District.




Fiscal Year End
2025

Table #1

RESTRICTED NET ASSETS/CASH

Name of
Restricted Net
Asset/Cash

Source Of Restriction

Purpose

Method for Calculating Amount of Restriction

Treatment of Accrued
Interest

Reserved for
Water Treatment
Plants-Asset
Replacement
Reserve

Hollister Urban Area Water
Supply and Treatment
Agreement: Article 6.3(a)(4)

To provide funds for
capital replacement of
assets of the Water
Supply and Treatment
Program, and funds so
expended will be
replaced through
subsequent
contributions.

Annual contribution of $190,000 for the Lessait water
treatment plant through fiscal year end 2017. Effective
fiscal year 17-18, the annual amount collected is
established at 1.5% of constructed cost of water
treatment plants. Amount is collected through the
capital replacement cost component of the monthly
billing to the Holiister Urban Area retailers to cover
anticipated costs for future capital replacements for
both water treatment plants as reviewed annually by
District Engineer. Effective fiscal year end 2018-2019,
any balance remaining in the Reserve for Hollister
Urban Area Water Treatment Facilities will be
transferred to the Reserve for Water Treatment Plants-
Asset Replacement Reserve.

Interest will accrue.
Interest accrued on
restricted balance is added
to the restriction each fiscal
year-end. Average LAIF
interest rate is applied to
the amount of restriction
during that fiscal year.

Reserve for Other
Post-Employment
Benefits (OPEB)
Trust

CERBT Trust Account

To provide restricted
funds for retiree future
medical payments.

Amount will be reviewed annually by the Board during
the budget process.

As specificed in CERBT
contract




Fiscal Year End 2025

Table #2

DESIGNATED NET ASSETS/CASH
Name of Designated Net | Method for Calculating Amount of Treatment of Accrued
Asset/Cash Purpose Designation interest

Reserved for Operations

The reserves designated for
operating contingencies are
established to provide for
unforeseen needs, revenue
shortfalls, and emergency
appropriations during the year.

At fiscal year end, one hundred percent of an
average of the most recent 3 years' annual
operating expense (excluding depreciation,
amortization and operating expense associated
with the Hollister Urban Area water treatment
plants) is designated for the following year.

No interest accrual.

Reserved for Capital
Improvements

Established by board action(s) to
fund future capital improvement
projects. The purpose of this
designation is to accumulate
funds for specific projects or utility
purpose to provide all or a portion
of the cost.

These designations are for specific new capital
improvement projects. The board decides how
much to fund and for which projects. Funding
level is reviewed annually. Any use of funds is
replenished from the operating budget on an
amortized basis over the assigned life of the
project. Use of funds from this reserve for
preliminary survey and investigation, will be
replenished from the operating budget on an
amortized basis over 5 years.

No interest accrual.

Reserved for Self-insurance

Established by board policy to
fund the contingent liability for the
District's self-insured portion of
vehicle coverage.

Adequacy of funding level will be reviewed
annually.

No interest accrual.




Fiscal Year End 2025

Table #2

DESIGNATED NET ASSETS/CASH
Name of Designated Net Method for Calculating Amount of Treatment of Accrued
Asset/Cash Purpose Designation Interest

Reserved for Capital Asset
Replacement

This designation is to accrue
funding for asset purchase and
replacement in the period of use.
Through this funding reservation,
monies are set aside for planned
future asset expenditures within
specified categories. In addition,
this reserve provides a funding
source for unanticipated asset
needs, mitigates the impact of
large budget expenditures, and
assists with asset management
and long range planning.

The designation will be increased by the
amount of the annual depreciation expense for
each asset multiplied by a factor for each asset
group based on their assigned life. Assets with
assigned lives of 1-15 years are reserved at
100% of their annual depreciation expense.
Assets with assigned lives of 16 to 49 years
are reserved at 50% of their annual
depreciation expense. Assets with assigned
lives of 50+ years and land are not reserved
for.

Interest will accrue. Interest
accrued on designated
balance is added to the
designation at fiscal year
end. Average LAIF interest
rate is applied to the amount
of designation during that
fiscal year.

Water Supply Revolving
Reserve

To provide additional source of
funds for Zone 6 water supply
augmentation through local or
imported water purchases.

Amount of administrative fee from water
sales/transfers and/or funding from operations.
Funding level is reviewed annually. Use of
funds will be replenished from the operating
budget over 5 years on an amortized
basis.Target minimum of $3 million funded
over 5 years.

No interest accrual

Expanded Pacheco Reservoir

To provide funds for the pre-
construction (planning and
design) phase of the project.

Effective July 1, 2018, the reserve wili be
initially funded at $1,000,000. At FYE Amount
will be reviewed annually by the Board during
the budget process.

No interest accrual.

Reserved for Reliability
Charage M&l

Established to fund future water
reliability improvement projects.
The purpose of this designation is
to accumulate funds for specific
reiliability projects to provide all or
a portion of the cost.

These designations are for specific new
reliability capital improvement projects. The
funds are accumulated from the reliability fee
charged each fiscal year.

No interest accrual.




San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal

ta
Agenda Item: i Ul\
Meeting Date: May 28, 2025
Submitted By: Dana Jacobson

Presented By: Dana Jacobson

Agenda Title: Consider Authorizing the Board President to Execute the San Luis &
Delta-Mendota Water Authority Yuba Transfers 2026-2050 Activity
Agreement and Authorizing the General Manager to Terminate the
Existing Activity Agreement

Description: The San Benito County Water District (District) is a participant in the San
Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority (SLDMWA) Yuba Transfer 2015-2025 Activity
Agreement, which provides the District access to supplemental imported water from the
Yuba River. This transfer program is the result of a settlement known as the Lower Yuba
River Accord, which was intended to improve water quality and temperature for fisheries
in the lower Yuba River, while also improving water supply reliability state-wide. The
Yuba Accord consists of a series of agreements, one of which makes water available for
purchase by State Water Project (SWP) and Central Valley Project (CVP) contractors
south of the Delta. Water purchases under this program as shared 50/50 between the SWP
and CVP, with the CVP portion being administered through the SLDMWA activity
agreement.

SLDMWA and the Department of Water Resources are currently in the process of
re-negotiating the purchase agreement with the Yuba County Water Agency. Because the
existing activity agreement expires in 2025, SLDMWA will need a new activity
agreement to cover the program moving forward.

Certain aspects of the purchase program remain outstanding, in particular the pricing for
the transfer water. Past practice has been that Yuba Transfer water is offered at below
market rates as a result of the settlement. The District would only incur water purchase
costs if it elected to make such purchases in any future year. However, the District would
be responsible for its share of administrative costs associated with the new activity
agreement.

Water made available through this program is shared among SLDMWA members on a
pro-rata basis in proportion to each participant’s CVP contract amount for agricultural




water. While we don’t know if the list of participants will change, the District’s prior
share of water and administrative expenses under the previous agreement was 2.1
percent.

The District last received Yuba water in 2020, 2021, and 2022, with a total of 1,137 acre-
feet (AF) being delivered over that timeframe. Administrative costs have averaged less
than $1,000 per year over this same time period.

The existing activity agreement will need to be terminated shortly after execution of the
new activity agreement, but this process has not yet been defined. Staff is requesting that
the General Manager be authorized to terminate the existing activity agreement when
appropriate.

Prior Committee or Board Action:
May 20, 2025 Zone 6 Water Supply and Operations Committee

Financial Impact: X Yes No

Funding Source/ Recap: N/A

Materials included for Information/Consideration:
1. Zone 6 Water Supply and Operations Committee Recommendation
2. Activity Agreement 2026-2050

Recommendation: Staff recommends the Board authorize the Board President to execute
the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority Yuba Transfers 2026-2050 Activity
Agreement and the General Manager to Terminate the Existing Agreement

Action Required: Resolution Motion Review
Board Action

Resolution No. Motion By Second By

Ayes Abstained

Noes Absent

Reagendized Date No Action Taken




BOARD AGENDA MEMO

DATE: May 20, 2025

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Zone 6 Water Supply and Operations Committee
(Williams*/Wright)

SUBJECT: Committee Recommendation that the Board authorize the Board
President to Execute the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority Yuba
Transfers 2026-2050 Activity Agreement and Authorize the General Manager to
Terminate the Existing Activity Agreement

The Zone 6 Water Supply and Operations Committee met on May 20, 2025
and staff reviewed the Yuba Transfers 2026-2050 Activity Agreement.

The Zone 6 Water Supply and Operations Committee recommends the Board
authorize the Board President to Execute the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water
Authority Yuba Transfers 2026-2050 Activity Agreement and Authorize the
General Manager to Terminate the Existing Activity Agreement.

A

Direc}:é‘l{ Wr}gﬁt
/

4

Director Williams*



SAN LUIS & DELTA-MENDOTA WATER AUTHORITY
YUBA TRANSFERS 2026-2050
ACTIVITY AGREEMENT

This Yuba Transfers 2026-2050 Activity Agreement (“Activity Agreement”) is made
effective as of this day of , 2025, by and among the San Luis & Delta-

Mendota Water Authority (“Water Authority”), a joint powers agency of the State of California,
and its members who execute this Activity Agreement (“Activity Agreement Members”).
Capitalized terms used in this Activity Agreement will have the meanings set forth in Section 1

below.
RECITALS

A. The parties to this Activity Agreement, together with certain other local agencies,
have entered into a second amended and restated Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement, dated July
8, 2024 (“JPA Agreement”), by and among the parties indicated therein, establishing the Water
Authority for the purpose of exercising the common powers of the members, including the powers
described in this Activity Agreement.

B. The Activity Agreement Members each are empowered, among other powers, to
provide water service to lands within their boundaries; to contract with the United States, the State
and other public agencies, mutual water companies, and other private parties for such purposes; to
control the quality of water accepted into their respective systems; to transfer water and to purchase
water in order to maximize the efficient, beneficial use of the water supplies available; and to adopt
rules and regulations necessary to exercise such powers.

C. The Activity Agreement Members have each entered into contracts with the United
States for water from the Central Valley Project (“CVP”) for irrigation and/or M&I purposes
within their respective jurisdictional areas and receive water conveyed through the Delta-Mendota
Canal, the San Luis Canal, and/or the Pacheco Pumping Plant and Tunnel.

D. Since 1992, the Activity Agreement Members in most years have received less than
the full contract allocations provided for in their CVP contracts due to hydrologic conditions and/or
regulatory constraints, and the Bureau of Reclamation (“Reclamation”) has projected continued

shortages of such allocations in the future.

YUBA TRANSFERS 2026-2050 ACTIVITY AGREEMENT
Page 1 of 20



E. The Activity Agreement Members recognize the importance of identifying water
supplies available to supplement CVP contract allocations available south of the Sacramento-San
Joaquin River Delta (“Delta”) and the use of transfers to stabilize and better manage water supplies
on a state-wide basis.

F. The Yuba River Accord is part of an effort by the Yuba Water Agency to resolve
issues associated with operation of the Yuba Project in a way that protects lower Yuba River
fisheries and local water supply reliability, while providing revenues for local flood control
projects, water to use for protection and restoration of Delta fisheries, and improvements in state-
wide water supply management.

G. The existing Yuba Accord Long-Term Water Transfer Program (“Yuba Accord
Transfer Program”) is operated pursuant to the Agreement for the Long-Term Purchase of Water
from Yuba County Water Agency by the Department of Water Resources (“Yuba-DWR
Agreement”), Fisheries Agreement (under which Yuba Water Agency operates the Yuba Project
to provide higher flows in the lower Yuba River under certain conditions to improve fisheries
protection and enhancement), Yuba Water Agency’s conjunctive use agreements with its member
units, and Yuba Water Agency’s water transfer option agreement with Contra Costa Water District
and East Bay Municipal Utility District.

H. Pursuant to the Yuba-DWR Agreement, the Department of Water Resources
(“DWR?”) purchases specified components of water for delivery to State Water Project (“SWP”)
contractors and members of the Water Authority.

L. Consistent with and to further facilitate funding the Yuba River Accord, DWR and
Yuba Water Agency have entered into several amendments to the Yuba-DWR Agreement, the
most recent of which is Amendment 7, dated September 30, 2020.

J. In order to implement the purchase and sale of water acquired by DWR under the
Yuba-DWR Agreement to members of the Water Authority, DWR and the Water Authority
entered into that certain Agreement for the Supply and Conveyance of Water by DWR to the San
Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority Under the Dry Year Water Purchase Program, dated
December 21, 2007 (“Dry Year Purchase Agreement”) (see Water Authority Board of Directors
(“Board of Directors”) Resolution No. 2007-277). DWR and the Water Authority have entered
into several amendments to the Dry Year Purchase Agreement, the most recent of which is

Amendment 6, dated September 30, 2020 (see Board of Directors Resolution No. 2020-470).

YUBA TRANSFERS 2026-2050 ACTIVITY AGREEMENT
Page 2 of 20



K. Certain members of the Water Authority were willing to participate in the benefits
and incur the obligations of the Dry Year Purchase Agreement and entered into the May 15, 2008
Yuba Transfer Activity Agreement (see Board of Directors Resolution No. 2008-287).

L. After the Water Authority entered into Amendment 5 to the Dry Year Purchase
Agreement, certain members of the Water Authority entered into the November 24, 2014 Yuba
Transfer Activity Agreement (see Board of Directors Resolution No. 2014-386).

M.  Between 2008 and 2024, Water Authority member agencies received transfer water
pursuant to the Yuba Accord Transfer Program in ten years. In recent years, as in 2022, the only
supplemental water available to the Water Authority members through the Water Authority was
through the Yuba Accord Transfer Program.

N. The June 2007 Environmental Impact Statement for the Proposed Lower Yuba
River Accord provides environmental analysis and coverage for the Yuba Accord Transfer
Program through December 31, 2025.

0. The agreements that comprise the Yuba Accord Transfer Program—the Yuba-
DWR Agreement through Amendment 7, conjunctive use agreements, and water transfer option
agreement—all expire on December 31, 2025.

P. In order to extend the Yuba Accord Transfer Program, Yuba Water Agency filed a
petition for long-term transfer with the State Water Board seeking approvals necessary to continue
operation of the Yuba Accord Transfer Program through December 2050. The Board assigned the
petition to the Board’s Administrative Hearing Office, and the hearing is scheduled to begin in
July 2025 (““Yuba Petition Hearing”).

Q. Yuba Water Agency issued a Final Supplemental Environmental Impact Report for
the Extension of the Yuba Accord Long-Term Water Transfer Program in September 2024 (State
Clearinghouse No. 200506211) (“SEIR”), pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act.
The SEIR provides environmental analysis of and CEQA coverage for the Yuba Accord Transfer
Program through 2050.

R. To facilitate the conveyance of the Yuba Transfer Water in Federal Facilities to the
Water Authority members, the Water Authority is cooperating with Reclamation to prepare the
necessary Warren Act contracts and associated environmental review documents for said contracts
under the National Environmental Policy Act (“NEPA”).

S. For the purchase and sale of water beginning in 2026, it is anticipated that DWR
and Yuba Water Agency will enter into either an Amendment 8 to the Yuba-DWR Agreement or

YUBA TRANSFERS 2026-2050 ACTIVITY AGREEMENT
Page 3 of 20



a short-term extension of the existing Yuba-DWR Agreement (which includes Amendments 1
through 7).

T. In order to implement the purchase and sale of water acquired by DWR under the
Yuba-DWR Agreement to the Activity Agreement Members beginning in 2026, DWR and the
Water Authority anticipate entering into an Amendment 7 to the Dry Year Purchase Agreement.

U. Each of the Activity Agreement Members desire to participate in the benefits and
is willing to incur the obligations of the Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement for transfers
beginning in 2026, including, but not limited to, activities related to the Yuba Petition Hearing,
Warren Act contracts and associated NEPA documents, Yuba-DWR Agreement Amendment § or
short-term extension, and Amendment 7 to the Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement, through the
joint exercise of their common powers, including but not necessarily limited to the power to
acquire water through purchase and transfer.

V. The Water Authority and each of the Activity Agreement Members have shared,
and continue to have, a common interest in sharing information and resources reasonably

necessary to accomplish the purpose in this Activity Agreement.
AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the facts recited above and of the covenants,

terms and conditions set forth herein, the parties agree as follows:

1. DEFINITIONS

A. “Activity Agreement” or “Agreement” shall mean this Yuba Transfer 2026-2050
Activity Agreement.
B. “Activity Agreement Expenses” shall mean all expenses directly incurred by the

Water Authority pursuant to this Activity Agreement and any agreements executed in conjunction
with this Activity Agreement, together with a share of Water Authority Operating Costs allocable
to Activity Agreement Members.

C. “Activity Agreement Member” shall mean a member of the Water Authority who
is signatory to this Activity Agreement. The Activity Agreement Members are listed on Exhibit
“A” attached hereto.

YUBA TRANSFERS 2026-2050 ACTIVITY AGREEMENT
Page 4 of 20



D. “Administration Agreement(s)” shall mean those certain agreements between the
Water Authority and Activity Agreement Members for the undertaking of activities and sharing of
costs and benefits pursuant to Sections 22 and 23 of the JPA.

E. “Board of Directors” shall mean the Board of Directors of the San Luis & Delta-
Mendota Water Authority.

F. “Fiscal Year” shall mean the Water Authority’s March 1 - February 28/29 fiscal
year.

G. “JPA Agreement” shall mean that certain Amended and Restated Joint Exercise
of Powers Agreement effective January 1, 1992, establishing the Water Authority, as it may be
amended or restated over time.

H. “Reallocation Group Participants” shall mean those Activity Agreement
Members who agree to accept the benefits and pay the obligations for Yuba Transfer Water offered
for reallocation by other Activity Agreement Members in accordance with Section 9 of this
Activity Agreement. Reallocation Group Participants are listed on Exhibit “B” to this Agreement;
an Activity Group Member who elects to become a Reallocation Group Participant may withdraw
from that role by written notice to the Water Authority and all other Reallocation Group
Participants.

L “SEIR” shall mean the September 2024 Final Supplemental Environmental Impact
Report for the Extension of the Yuba Accord Long-Term Water Transfer Program (State
Clearinghouse No. 200506211).

J. “Transfer Water” or “Yuba Transfer Water” shall mean the total amount of
water to be transferred by the DWR to Water Authority Members each Year under the Yuba Dry
Year Purchase Agreement beginning in 2026.

K. “Water Authority” shall mean the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority.

L. “Water Authority Operating Costs” shall mean the Water Authority’s rent and
other occupancy charges, acquisition cost of office furniture and equipment, cost of cars and other
vehicles, insurance premiums, salaries and wages of employees including payments in connection
with retirement programs and other benefit programs, fees of creditors, lawyers, engineers and
other consultants, travel, telephone, telecopy and photocopy expenses and any other general
administrative expenses, a share of which will be assigned to this Activity Agreement.

M. “Year” shall mean a calendar year, which is also a “Water Accounting Year” under

the Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement.

YUBA TRANSFERS 2026-2050 ACTIVITY AGREEMENT
Page 5 of 20



N. “Yuba Accord Transfer Program” shall mean the Yuba Accord Long-Term
Water Transfer Program.

0. “Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement” shall mean that certain Agreement for the
Supply and Conveyance of Water by DWR to the San Luis & Delta-Mendota Water Authority
under the Dry Year Water Purchase Program dated, December 21, 2007, as amended by
Amendments 1-6 and any future amendments. A copy of the Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement
and copies of Amendments 1, 5 and 6 to the Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement are attached
hereto for reference as Appendix “1”.

P. “Yuba-DWR Agreement” shall mean the Agreement for the Long-Term Purchase
of Water from Yuba County Water Agency by the Department of Water Resources dated
December 4, 2007, as amended by Amendments 1-7 and any future amendments. A copy of the
Yuba-DWR Agreement and copies of Amendments 1, 5 and 7 to the Yuba-DWR Agreement are
attached hereto as Appendix “2”.

Q. “Yuba Petition Hearing” shall mean the Public Hearing on the Petition for Long-
Term Transfer filed by Yuba Water Agency for Permit 15026 (Application 5632) that is before
the State Water Resources Control Board’s Administrative Hearing Office.

R. All other capitalized terms used herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in

the Yuba-DWR Agreement, and the Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement, respectively.

2. EFFECT ONNOVEMBER 24, 2014 YUBA TRANSFER ACTIVITY AGREEMENT

This Activity Agreement governs participation in all benefits and the incurrence of all
obligations of the Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement for transfers beginning in 2026 and
continuing through the term of the Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement. Participation in all
benefits and incurrence of all obligations of the Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement for transfers
through 2025 are governed by the November 24, 2014 Yuba Transfer Activity Agreement. The
Activity Agreement Members anticipate that the parties to the November 24, 2014 Yuba Transfer
Activity Agreement will terminate that agreement once the benefits and obligations of the transfers
through 2025 are fully realized and satisfied.

3. PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT

The purpose of this Activity Agreement is to allow, through the joint exercise of some or
all of the common powers of the Activity Agreement Members described in the Recitals above, as

appropriate, the Activity Agreement Members to participate through the Water Authority in the

YUBA TRANSFERS 2026-2050 ACTIVITY AGREEMENT
Page 6 of 20



benefits and to share the obligations of the Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement through 2050
under the terms set forth herein and as set forth in the Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement.
4. ORGANIZATION

A. The business of this Activity Agreement shall be conducted by the Water Authority
at large and therefore governed by the Board of Directors of the Water Authority.

B. The Executive Director of the Water Authority or their designee shall act as the
representative of the Water Authority and Activity Agreement Members for membership on the

Management Committee established under the Yuba-DWR Agreement.

S. ROLE OF THE AUTHORITY

A. The parties acknowledge and agree that the Water Authority’s role in this Activity
Agreement is: (1) to provide the umbrella joint powers agreement pursuant to which the parties
may exercise their common powers and to provide services at the expense of the Activity
Agreement Members; (2) to negotiate, implement and administer the Yuba Dry Year Purchase
Agreement for transfers beginning in 2026 for and on behalf of the Activity Agreement Members
by conducting activities including, but not limited to, those related to the Yuba Petition Hearing,
Warren Act contracts and associated NEPA documents, Yuba-DWR Agreement Amendment 8 or
short-term extension, Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement Amendment 7, and other agreements
with DWR and/or Reclamation as may be necessary; and (3) to provide administrative services for
the Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement by providing notices, calculating water allocations,
collecting and submitting schedules from Activity Agreement Members to DWR and/or
Reclamation, and providing billing and accounting services to the Activity Agreement Members
during the term hereof.

B. The role of the Water Authority under this Activity Agreement will be to provide,
through Water Authority staff or contracts with consultants, coordinated services to assist the
Activity Agreement Members in conducting the activities contemplated by this Agreement. The
Water Authority will provide only those services supported with funding from the Activity
Agreement Members or other means that will not impose costs on members of the Water Authority
that are not Activity Agreement Members, in accordance with budgets recommended by staff, and

approved by the Activity Agreement Members and the Board of Directors.

YUBA TRANSFERS 2026-2050 ACTIVITY AGREEMENT
Page 7 of 20



6. BUDGETARY RESPONSIBILITIES

To the extent that the Water Authority prepares budgets for this Activity Agreement, the
Activity Agreement Members agree to cooperate with the Water Authority in the development of
any such budgets for the activities authorized by this Activity Agreement; annually or more
frequently as needed, for presentation to the Board of Directors of the Water Authority in
accordance with Section 22 of the JPA Agreement. Budgeted amounts for this Activity Agreement
will be collected through the invoicing process described in Section 10 of this Activity Agreement,
and formal amendment of such budgets by the Board of Directors is not required for adjustments
of expenditures that are fully collected as described in Section 10 of this Activity Agreement.

7. ACTIVITY AGREEMENT EXPENSES AND ALLOCATION OF OPERATING
COSTS

A. Each member of the Water Authority has entered into an Administration Agreement
which authorizes an agreement by and among the Water Authority and any of its members or other
entities, including associate members, to provide for undertaking and sharing costs and benefits of
any authorized activity of the Water Authority. The Water Authority and the Activity Agreement
Members agree that all Activity Agreement Expenses incurred by the Water Authority under this
Activity Agreement are the costs of the Activity Agreement Members, and not of the Water
Authority, and shall be paid by the Activity Agreement Members.

B. The Activity Agreement Members further agree that the Board of Directors is
authorized to allocate a share of Water Authority Operating Costs, which includes a portion of
costs addressed by the Administration Agreements, as part of the Activity Agreement Expenses to
cover the cost to the Water Authority of administering this Activity Agreement.

C. The Water Authority shall invoice Activity Agreement Members for their share of
Water Authority Operating Costs on a quarterly basis, and Activity Agreement Members shall
make payment to the Water Authority within 15 days of receipt of invoice from the Water
Authority.

8. PROCESS FOR ALLOCATING AND SCHEDULING TRANSFER WATER FOR
IRRIGATION USES IN EACH YEAR

A. Subject to the reallocation provisions contained in Section 9 of this Activity
Agreement, during the term of the Activity Agreement, the Transfer Water shall be allocated only

among Activity Agreement Members based upon their respective CVP water contract quantities

YUBA TRANSFERS 2026-2050 ACTIVITY AGREEMENT
Page 8 of 20



for irrigation as of the date hereof, as agreed by the parties and set forth in Exhibit “C” attached
hereto.

B. By April 12 of each Year, the Water Authority shall provide notice to the Activity
Agreement Members of the final quantity of Transfer Water available during such Year and the
allocation to each Activity Agreement Member.

C. Each activity Agreement Member shall purchase all Transfer Water allocated to it,
unless the Activity Agreement Member is able to reallocate the Transfer Water pursuant to Section
9 of this Agreement.

D. The Water Authority, in consultation with the Activity Agreement Members, shall
develop a process for the scheduling of the Transfer Water allocated in accordance with the
scheduling provisions of the Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement that shall be subject to
modification from time to time by agreement of the parties, without formal amendment of this
Activity Agreement being required.

9. REALLOCATION OF TRANSFER WATER AMONG ACTIVITY AGREEMENT
MEMBERS

A. The Water Authority is obligated to purchase Storage Component Water (formerly
referred to as Component 1, Component 2, and Component 3 water) that is accounted for as
Delivered Transfer Water under the DWR-Yuba Agreement. The Water Authority also has the
opportunity if it so desires to purchase Groundwater Substitution Component Water (formerly
referred to as Component 4 water) that is offered consistent with the Yuba Dry Year Purchase
Agreement and subject to adjustment under the Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement.

1. By May 1 of each Year, each Activity Agreement member wishing to
reallocate all or some portion of the Transfer Water allocated to it under the terms of Section 8 of
this Activity Agreement shall provide written notice to the Reallocation Group Participants and
the Water Authority of the quantity to be reallocated. Each Reallocation Group Participant will
have until May 10 of each Year to notify the offering Activity Agreement Member, the other
Reallocation Group Participants and the Water Authority whether or not it is willing to accept its
share of the reallocated water. A Reallocation Group Participant is not obligated to accept Yuba
Transfer Water offered for reallocation in any Year unless it has provided notice of acceptance of
the offered quantity, but after providing notice of acceptance, the Reallocation Group Participant
is so obligated. In the event all the reallocated quantity is not accepted by the Reallocation Group

Participants, Section 9.A.2 or 3 below will apply. In the event the amount of Transfer Water the

YUBA TRANSFERS 2026-2050 ACTIVITY AGREEMENT
Page 9 of 20



Water Authority is obligated to purchase changes after May 10, such changes shall be applied to
the Reallocation Group Participants’ accepting reallocated water, and shall not apply to an Activity
Agreement Member to the extent its offer to reallocate water has been accepted.

2. Each Activity Agreement Member may request that the Water Authority
offer to the SWP contractors Yuba Transfer Water not reallocated pursuant to Section 9.A.1 above.
For Groundwater Substitution Component Water that is not reallocated pursuant to Section 9.A.1
above, the Water Authority shall notify DWR by May 14 of each year to reduce the total quantity
of Groundwater Substitution Component Water it wishes to purchase.

3. Each Activity Agreement Member will remain obligated to pay for any
Yuba Transfer Water not reallocated to another Activity Agreement Member(s) or to the SWP
contractors pursuant to Section 9.A.1 or 2 above.

B. Reallocation Group Participants may by agreement adjust amongst themselves the
share of Yuba Transfer Water pursuant to Section 8.A of this Activity Agreement each will
acquire. Any such reallocation among Reallocation Group Participants shall be memorialized in
writing designating the parties, the quantity of Yuba Transfer Water, and the period for which the
reallocation is applicable, with a copy immediately provided to the Water Authority.

C. The parties may modify the notice dates or the process for reallocation by means of
an addendum or addendums approved by all of the parties, dated, and attached to this Activity
Agreement. Such addendum(s) shall serve to update the terms without formal amendment of this

Activity Agreement.

10. EXPENSES ASSOCIATED WITH THIS ACTIVITY AGREEMENT

A. The Water Authority shall invoice Activity Agreement Members within 5 days of
receipt of invoices from DWR submitted under the Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement. Activity
Agreement Members shall make payment to the Authority within 15 days of receipt of invoice
from the Water Authority.

1. By May 27 of each year after receipt of invoice from DWR, the Water
Authority shall invoice Activity Agreement Members for an initial annual payment equal to one
half of the estimated Yuba Transfer Water cost for such Activity Agreement Member for all water
for that Year (Storage Component Water and Groundwater Substitution Component Water).

2. By September 4 of each year that the Activity Agreement Members agree
to purchase Groundwater Substitution Component Water, the Water Authority shall bill Activity

YUBA TRANSFERS 2026-2050 ACTIVITY AGREEMENT
Page 10 of 20



Agreement Members for 40 percent of the amount of Groundwater Substitution Component Water
less the amount of any prior invoice for such Groundwater Substitution Component Water.

3. By early January of each year within 5 days of receipt of invoice from
DWR, the Water Authority shall bill each Activity Agreement Member for the final payment to
cover the estimated balance of Yuba Transfer Water cost for the preceding Year, adjusted for any
reallocations pursuant to Section 9 of this Agreement and any remaining applicable credits.

4. In the event that an Activity Agreement Member’s payment has not been
fully credited for Storage Component Water that has been accounted for as Delivered Yuba
Transfer Water that is made available through November 30, 2030, then the remaining funds will
be: (1) applied to future payments due by that Activity Agreement Member for Storage Component
Water Delivered Transfer Water delivered to it on or after July 1, 2031 under subsequent
amendments to Yuba-DWR Agreement and Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement, provided DWR
applies the funds to such future payments under the Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement; or (2) if
there is no such amendments, refunded by the Water Authority to that Activity Agreement
Member, provided DWR refunds such funds to the Water Authority under the Yuba Dry Year
Purchase Agreement.

B. Activity Agreement Expenses included as part of the Yuba Transfer Water cost
shall include, but not be limited to: a monthly DWR administration fee for each month DWR
conveys Transfer Water to the Water Authority and the Activity Agreement Members under the
Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement; payment for all power and conveyance charges that may be
incurred by the SWP for pumping and conveyance of Transfer Water through the Harvey O. Banks
Pumping Plant as set forth in the Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement; costs payable to DWR for
water purchases under this Activity Agreement; conversion of diesel groundwater pumps to
electric pump costs and any other appropriate costs arising from the Yuba Dry Year Purchase
Agreement. These expenses shall be invoiced within five days upon receipt of invoice from DWR.

C. The Activity Agreement Members acknowledge that the Water Authority is bound
to a detailed system that covers the invoicing, payment, and timing of payments to be made to
DWR. These requirements are contained in the Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement, and the
Activity Agreement Members agree to timely pay all Water Authority invoices on the schedule
fixed by the Water Authority so that it can comply with those requirements.

D. Activity Agreement Members shall be bound to accept and pay for the actual costs

of such Activity Agreement Member’s allocated share of Yuba Transfer Water, except that any

YUBA TRANSFERS 2026-2050 ACTIVITY AGREEMENT
Page 11 of 20



Activity Agreement Member may be relieved of its commitment if its timely offer to reallocate its
Yuba Transfer Water is accepted by one or more Reallocation Group Participants under the terms
described in Section 9.A and 9.B of this Activity Agreement. The Water Authority will issue
invoices electronically to the person(s) identified by each Activity Agreement Member so as to
facilitate the prompt remittance of invoices by Activity Agreement Members and subsequent
payment to DWR pursuant to the Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement.

E. Each Activity Agreement Member hereby agrees to pay to the Water Authority any
and all costs arising under the Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement and incurred by the Water
Authority on account of such Activity Agreement Member’s participation, including but not
limited to: (1) interest on late payments, if any; (2) reimbursement of foregone interest on Water
Authority accounts, if any; (3) any other costs incurred by the Water Authority because of such
Activity Agreement Member’s late payment; and (4) all cost incurred for the negotiation and
preparation of agreements associated with the DWR-Yuba Agreement, and the Yuba Dry Year
Purchase Agreement.

F. In addition to invoiced costs described in this Section 10 of this Activity
Agreement, each Activity Agreement Member hereby agrees to directly pay: (1) to Reclamation,
the applicable water rate(s) for additional facility services required to effectuate the delivery of
Transfer Water, if any; and, (2) to the Water Authority, the applicable water rate(s) for operation
and maintenance and conveyance pumping charges for services and facilities used to deliver the

Transfer Water.

11. SOURCE OF PAYMENTS

Each Activity Agreement Member agrees that it will, at all times, have authority and
sufficient money to meet its obligations hereunder and under the JPA Agreement. Each Activity
Agreement Member hereby confirms that the Water Authority and other Activity Agreement
Members are third party beneficiaries of such Activity Agreement Member’s obligations under
this Activity Agreement and may take such actions in law or in equity as may be desirable to

enforce payments hereunder.

12.  INDEMNIFICATION

Each Activity Agreement Member agrees to hold the Water Authority and all Water

Authority members who are not an Activity Agreement Member, free and harmless from and

YUBA TRANSFERS 2026-2050 ACTIVITY AGREEMENT
Page 12 of 20



indemnify each of them against any and all costs, losses, damages, claims and liabilities arising
from actions or inactions taken under this Activity Agreement. This indemnification obligation
includes the obligation of the Activity Agreement Members to defend the Water Authority, and all
members of the Water Authority who are not Activity Agreement Members, at the sole expense of
the Activity Agreement Members, in any action or proceeding brought against the Water Authority
or any of its members not party to this Activity Agreement to recover any such costs, losses,
damages, claims or liabilities arising from this Activity Agreement, as well as the obligation to
pay for any and all costs of litigation incurred by the Water Authority as a result of entering into
this Activity Agreement. Such costs may include, but are not limited to, attorneys’ fees and costs
incurred by the Water Authority to defend its provision of services under this Activity Agreement.

Each Activity Agreement Member agrees to hold harmless the Water Authority, all other
Activity Agreement Members, and all Water Authority members who are not Activity Agreement
Members, from obligations incurred by the Water Authority in order to acquire the Activity
Agreement Member’s respective share of the Transfer Water from DWR pursuant to the Yuba Dry

Year Purchase Agreement.

13. TERM

This Activity Agreement shall take effect on August 8, 2025 (“Effective Date’), assuming
execution by the Water Authority and at least two (2) Water Authority members prior to that date,
and shall remain in full force and effect (1) for the duration of the Yuba Dry Year Purchase
Agreement, or (2) until all of the obligations under the Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement and

this Activity Agreement have been fully satisfied, whichever occurs last.
14. WITHDRAWAL FROM FURTHER PARTICIPATION

No Activity Agreement Member shall be entitled to withdraw from participation in this
Activity Agreement unless it enters into an agreement with one or more of the remaining Activity
Agreement Members to accept assignment of the withdrawing Activity Agreement Member’s
share of Transfer Water and to assume the withdrawing Activity Agreement Member’s obligation
to acquire Transfer Water for the balance of the term of the Yuba Dry Year Purchase Agreement.
The date the Water Authority receives a copy of such fully executed written agreement shall be
the withdrawal date. As of the withdrawal date, all rights of participation in this Activity

Agreement shall cease for the withdrawing Activity Agreement Member, and the withdrawing

YUBA TRANSFERS 2026-2050 ACTIVITY AGREEMENT
Page 13 of 20



Activity Agreement Member shall, within 30 days, pay all such Activity Agreements Member’s
financial obligations incurred prior to such withdrawal date pursuant to the terms of this Activity
Agreement. Unless assumed by the express agreement of the party or parties accepting assignment
of the withdrawing Activity Agreement Member’s share of Transfer Water, such withdrawal shall
not relieve the withdrawing Activity Agreement Member from: (1) its payment obligations
incurred pursuant to this Activity Agreement prior to the date of withdrawal; or, (2) its obligations
to indemnify and hold harmless pursuant to Section 12 of this Activity Agreement that were
incurred prior to the date of withdrawal. Such obligations shall survive the withdrawal of such

Activity Agreement Member.

15. ADMISSION OF NEW MEMBERS

No additional members of the Water Authority may become participants of this Agreement
without the written consent of all of the other Activity Agreement Members and of the Board of
Directors. The admission of any Activity Agreement Member pursuant to this section shall be
documented by that new Activity Agreement Member signing this Activity Agreement. Upon
admission of a new Activity Agreement Member, the parties shall agree to the participation
percentage of such new Activity Agreement Member, to be documented in an amendment to this

Activity Agreement and Exhibit “C” to this Activity Agreement.

16. MISCELLANEOUS

A. California Environmental Quality Act: The physical, operational, and financial

details of the Yuba Accord Transfer Program through 2050 are analyzed by the Yuba Water
Agency as lead agency pursuant to CEQA in its September 2024 Final Supplemental
Environmental Impact Report for the Extension of the Yuba Accord Long-Term Water Transfer
Program (State Clearinghouse No. 200506211). Yuba Water Agency’s Board of Directors
approved the Extension of the Yuba Accord Long-Term Transfer Program on September 17, 2024
and submitted its Notice of Determination to the Office of Planning and Research on that same
date. The Water Authority and/or Activity Agreement Members may be responsible agencies
under CEQA for actions related to water transfers; however, the actions contemplated by this
Activity Agreement are within the scope of Yuba Water Agency’s SEIR, such that no subsequent
or supplemental CEQA review is required. (Pub. Resources Code, § 21166; CEQA Guidelines, §§
15162, 15163, 15168(c).) Further, executing the Activity Agreement is an administrative and

YUBA TRANSFERS 2026-2050 ACTIVITY AGREEMENT
Page 14 of 20



organizational action that will not result in a direct physical change in the environment or a
reasonably foreseeable indirect change to the environment, and thus is not a project as defined by
CEQA Guidelines section 15378(b)(5).

B. Amendments: This Agreement may be amended in writing by the parties hereto.

C. Assignment; Binding on Successors: Except as otherwise provided in this Activity

Agreement, the rights and duties of the Activity Agreement Members may not be assigned or
delegated without the written consent of the Water Authority. Any attempt to assign or delegate
such rights or duties in contravention of this Activity Agreement shall be null and void. Any
approved assignment or delegation shall be consistent with the terms of any contracts, resolutions,
indemnities and other obligations of the Water Authority then in effect. Activity Agreement shall
inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon, the successors and assigns of the Water Authority and

the Activity Agreement Members.

C. Counterparts: This Activity Agreement may be executed by the Water Authority
and the Activity Agreement Members in separate counterparts, each of which when so executed
and delivered shall be an original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and

the same instrument.

E. Choice of Law: This Activity Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State

of California.

F. Severability: If one or more clauses, sentences, paragraphs or provisions of this
Activity Agreement shall be held to be unlawful, invalid or unenforceable, it is hereby agreed by
the Activity Agreement Members and the Water Authority that the remainder of the Activity
Agreement shall not be affected thereby.

G. Headings: The titles of sections of this Activity Agreement are for convenience
only and no presumption or implication of the intent of the parties as to the construction of this

Activity Agreement shall be drawn therefrom.

H. Reasonable Cooperation: Activity Agreement Members will reasonably cooperate

with each other and the Water Authority to perform the obligations under this Activity Agreement,
assist the Water Authority, when necessary, in carrying out its obligations under the Yuba Dry

Year Purchase Agreement, and to carry out the purpose and intent of this Activity Agreement.

YUBA TRANSFERS 2026-2050 ACTIVITY AGREEMENT
Page 15 of 20



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this contract as of the day and year

first above written:
SAN LUIS & DELTA-MENDOTA WATER AUTHORITY

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:

YUBA TRANSFERS 2026-2050 ACTIVITY AGREEMENT
Page 16 of 20



ACTIVITY AGREEMENT MEMBERS

Agency Name:

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:

Agency Name:

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:

Agency Name:

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:

YUBA TRANSFERS 2026-2050 ACTIVITY AGREEMENT
Page 17 of 20



EXHIBIT A
Yuba Transfers 2026-2050 Activity Agreement Members

1) [insert]
2) [insert]
3) [insert]
4) [insert]
5) [insert]
6) [insert]
7) [insert]
8) [insert]
9) [insert]
10) [insert]
11) [insert]

YUBA TRANSFERS 2026-2050 ACTIVITY AGREEMENT
Page 18 of 20



EXHIBIT B
Reallocation Group Participants
1) [insert]
2) [insert]
3) [insert]
4) [insert]
5) [insert]
6) [insert]
7) [insert]
8) [insert]
9) [insert]
10) [insert]
11) [insert]

YUBA TRANSFERS 2026-2050 ACTIVITY AGREEMENT
Page 19 of 20



EXHIBIT C

Allocation of Transfer Water Among Activity Agreement Members

Activity Agreement Contract Allocation (%)
Member Quantity (AF)

Total 100%

YUBA TRANSFERS 2026-2050 ACTIVITY AGREEMENT
Page 20 of 20



San Benito County Water District

Agenda Transmittal
Agenda Item: / 5 / @)
Meeting Date: May 28, 2025

Submitted By: David Macdonald, P.E.

Presented By: David Macdonald, P.E.

Agenda Title:
Consider Awarding a Contract to SafeSmart LLC in the Amount of $56,736 for Materials
for Tank Access Catwalks at the Lessalt Water Treatment Plant

Detailed Description:

The Lessalt Water Treatment Plant was built in 2001 to treat surface water from the San
Luis Reservoir and San Justo Reservoir and serves the City of Hollister and Sunnyslope
County Water District. In order to meet regulatory water quality requirements, it was
upgraded in 2013. This treatment plant is owned by San Benito County Water District and
operated by Sunnyslope County Water District.

The Treatment plant uses Granular Activated Carbon (GAC) and Greensand. These are
used and stored in large tanks and have large manholes for access. The current method of
inspecting/replacing the GAC or Greensand consists of employees using a portable
scaffolding system to access the tanks. These portable scaffolding systems are inefficient
and were meant to be a temporary solution to a continuous problem. It was determined that
permanent catwalks should be installed to decrease risk and make the operation of the tanks
easier to perform.

Sunnyslope County Water District operators found this to be an issue, and Sunnyslope
employees have looked into installing permanent catwalks on the tanks. Two quotes were
received and are within budget for fiscal year 2024-2025.

Financial Impact: X Yes No
Two (2) quotes with the following results:

Bidder Total

Safesmart LLC $56,736

SafeRack, LLC $121,425

Under Labor Code - LAB Division 2 — Employment Regulation and Supervision Part 7 —
Public Works and Public Agencies Chapter 1 — Public Works Article 2 Section 1771, San
Benito County Water District must employ contractors that are compliant with prevailing

-1-



wages and are registered with the Department of Industrial Relations. As some contractors
are unable to provide installation services or installation services in compliance with
prevailing wages, San Benito County Water District is only considering materials in order
to have all quotes similar in scope.

Staff recommends to contract with SafeSmart LLC to purchase the catwalk materials at the
GAC/Greensand tanks for $56,736.

Funding Source/ Recap:
600-1451-0602-110-00 — Lessalt Water Treatment Plant

Environmental Determination:

The project consists of installation of a structure that is addition to an existing structure for
safety and convenience reasons with no expansion of use. It is therefore categorically
exempt from CEQA per California Code of Regulations Title 14 Section 15301.

Material Included for Information/Consideration:

1. Quotes
2. Contract
Recommendation:

Staff recommends the Board consider awarding a contract in the amount of $56,736 to
SafeSmart LLC for the purchase of materials for catwalks on the GAC/Greensand Tanks
at Lessalt Water Treatment Plant.

Action Required: Resolution X Motion Review

Board Action

Resolution No. Motion By Second By
Ayes Abstained
Noes Absent
Reagendized Date No Action Taken




Quotes

Materials
Only

Lessalt
Water
Treatment
Plant
Catwalk



SafeSmart LLC

13238 Florence Avenue

SArESmarT Santa Fe Springs CA 90670
(310) 410-1525

sales@safesmart.com

Bill To

San Benito County Water District
30 Mansfield Rd

Hollister CA 95023-9732

United States

Expires Terms

2/9/2025 50% Down, 50 due upon
delivery

Item Code Description

MISC_S Tank Access Platform

Ship To

San Benito County Water District
30 Mansfield Rd

Hollister CA 95023-9732

United States

Sales Rep
E10104 Daniel Perales

Qty

-90° Ladder Access to reach 8' Platform height

-36" Wide

-Platform size: 27' L x 3' W (34 Planks - 323")
-Handrails along outer edge and end of platform

-3 Support Le

S
-All T6 6061 mm_BicB construction

-Standard Extrusion tread
MISC_S Tank Access Platform

-90° Ladder Access to reach 9' Platform height

-36" Wide

-Platform size: 27' L x 3' W (34 Planks - 323")
-Handrails along outer edge and end of platform

-3 Support Le

S
-All T6 6061 mm.§5c3 construction

-Standard Extrusion tread

Quote is for product, not including installation, unless otherwise stated.

Quote

#QUO7005

11/21/2024
TOTAL
$56,736.00
Expires: 2/9/2025
Order by Contact No.

David Macdonald (831) 637-8218

Units Unit Price Amount
Ea $9,939.00 $19,878.00
Ea $10,128.00 $30,384.00
Subtotal $50,262.00

Shipping - Handling $2,150.00
Tax Total (%) $4,324.00

Total $56,736.00

Sales Tax is mandatory unless a valid exemption certificate is provided at the time of the order. The certificate must be from the current year; otherwise, a new one must be supplied.

All sales are subject to SafeSmart Terms and Conditions of Sale, which may be found at https://safesmartaccess.com/terms-conditions/ . Please contact accounting@safesmart.com for any questions.



SéfeRack“

. RELYDONUS,

San Benito County Water District - Hollister, CA Quote #SAS-172653R5
David MacDonald jan 14, 2025
Senior Engineer

3570 Airline Highway

Hollister, CA 95023

us

SafeRack, LLC
219 Safety Ave, Andrews, SC 29510 | (866) 761-7225 | info@saferack.com
http://www.saferack.com/



Quote #: SAS-172653R5

‘ . Updated: Jan 14, 2025
a e a c Ship Via: FOB

RELY ON US.

TO FROM
David MacDonald Derek Rose
Senior Engineer Reglonal Account Manager
San Benito County Water District - Hollister, CA SafeRack, LLC
3570 Airline Highway 219 Safety Ave,
Hollister, CA 95023 US Andrews, SC 29510 USA
dmacdonald@sbcwd.com 843-708-6443

drose@saferack.com

Description
Sunnyslope Water District - Hollister, CA

This proposal is for QTY (5) Filter Access Platforms:

24'x 3

98" talt / top of walk surface

Modular, bolt-together design

Marine grade aluminum construction

Serrated edge walk surface to prevent slips, trips, and falis
Powder coated yellow handrails

OSHA compliant

No hot work permits or welding required for installation
Re-configurable

Price does not include freight or taxes.

SafeRack solutions are industry best practices for safe, efficient, and reliable access.

Summary

Prices valid until February 10, 2025

Name QrY. Price
Filter Access Platform : 24" x 3%, 99" Tall / Top of Walk Surface 5  $121,425.00
Total $121,425.00

SAS-172653R5 1 of 22



Quote Details

# Description Qry.

1. Fiiter Access Platform : 24' x 3%, 99" Tall / Top of Walk Surface 5
PLATFORM

24'x 3

Prefabricated Stamped positive-traction walk surface

Units have common bolt hole patters for stairs, other platforms and handrails
Cantitever on end

ERECTASTEP LADDER,

6-step base and 4-step extension

Ladder REQUIRES 90000 series ERECTASTEP tower

18" wide round rung

Prefabricated to fit any side of an ERECTASTEP platform,

Aluminum construction

ERECT-A-STEP TOWER SUPPORT

6-Step tower support base and 4-step extension

Prefabricated design to allow for three bolt-up scenarios:

1. Single ERECT-A-STEP platform to a single tower support

2. Two platforms with one tower support between the seam

3. Tower support to go on muitiple sides of a ERECT-A-STEF platform system

Ajuminum Construction

ERECTASTEP HANDRAILS

Universal nut-plate insert

Prefabricated to fit a 36" side of an ERECTASTEP platform

Pipe construction

Aluminum construction (powder coated)

YelfowGate 2.0 - Universal Swing Gate

Adjustable width for Parallel mounting: Adjusts from 24" to 37" (609 mm to 938 mm)
Adjustable width for Perpendicular mounting: Adjusts from 20-5/8" to 33-3/8" (524 mm to 847 mm}
Adjustable swing direction {right-hand or left-hand swing) based on hanging ofientation
Universal mounting system {within this one SKU)

Powder-coated Aluminum construction

5 85 v ® % o 8 v & & * ® e 5 2 e e o @

2 % & & B

Total $121,425.00

SAS-172653R5 2 0of 22



il

«# SafeRack

ORANGE. SAFETY HAS A REW COLOR.

219 Safety Ave,
Andrews, SC 29510

DRAWN BY

Derek Rose

APPROVAL (SIGNATURE)

ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED
HEREIN (S CONFIDENTIAL AND
PROPRIETARY AND MAY NOT BE
DISCLOSED IN ANY FORM
WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN
CONSENT OF SafeRack, LLC

TITLE

Perspective-1

QUOTE # CUSTOMER REV
SAS-172653R5 | San Benito County Water District - Hollister, CA 0o

SAS-172653R5

4 of 22




RRR
Qverah

™ ez ™ ™ N

.5

Haneral Hoghl

] i

-9
Buenatt

Side View

il ]
&% SafeRack

219 Safety Ave,
Andrews, SC 28510

DRAWN BY

Derek Rose

APPROVAL (SIGNATURE}

ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED
HEREIN 1S CONFIDENTIAL AND
PROPRIETARY AND MAY NOT BE
DISCLOSED IN ANY FORM
WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN
CONSENT OF SafeRack, LLC

TITLE

Side-1

QUOTE # CUSTOMER REV
SAS-172653R5 | San Benito County Water District - Hollister, CA 4]

SAS-172653R5

5 of 22




r ek T

Y- 11
Gzl

e d
Top View
el DRAWN BY APPROVAL (SIGNATURE)
P e -
&% SafeRack:
CRAHGE. SAFETY HAS A NEW COLOR. Derek Rose
219 Safety Ave,
Andrews, 5C 28510
ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED TITLE
HEREIN i5 CONFIDENTIAL AND
PROPRIETARY AND MAY NOT BE Top-1
DISCLOSED IN ANY FORM
WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN QUOTE # CUSTOMER REV
CONSENT OF SafeRack, LLC SAS-172653R5 | San Benito County Water District - Hollister, CA |0

SAS-172653R5 6 of 22



o ;B
[ 8] a
Pad View
‘@ﬁ% DRAWN BY APPROVAL (SIGNATURE)
B el o .
i« SafeRack
YRARGE. GAFETY HAS A REW COLOR, Derek Rose

219 Safety Ave,
Andrews, SC 29510
ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED TITLE
HEREIN IS CONFIDENTIAL AND
PROPRIETARY AND MAY NOT BE Pad-1
DISCLOSED IN ANY FORM
WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN QUOTE # CUSTOMER REV
CONSENT OF SafeRack. LLC SAS-172653R5 | San Benito County Water District - Hollister, CA |0

SAS-172653R5 7 of 22



%

FOR S8 At
BY O

SECTION A-A

Base Plate Layout

DRAWN BY APPROVAL (SIGNATURE)

i,

e .

& SafeRack:
ORANGE, SAFETY HAS A NEW COLOR. Derek Rose

219 Safety Ave,

Andrews, SC 23510

ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED TITLE
HEREIN {5 CONFIDENTIAL AND
PROPRIETARY AND MAY NOT BE Pad-2
DISCLOSED IN ANY FORM

WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN QUOTE # CUSTOMER REV
CONSENT OF SafeRack, LLC SAS-172653R5 | San Benito County Water District - Hollister, CA |0

SAS-172653R5 8 of 22



N
|~
g.

DI HOE
C AMCHOR

{
f
i

SECTION A-A

Base Plate Layout

B,

B

=7 SafeRack:

ORAHGE. BAFETY HAS A NEW COLOR,

219 Safety Ave,
Andrews, SC 29510

DRAWN BY APPROVAL (SIGNATURE)

Derek Rose

ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED TITLE
HEREIN IS CONFIDENTIAL AND
PROPRIETARY AND MAY NOT BE Pad-3
DISCLOSED iN ANY FORM

WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN QUOTE # CUSTOMER REV
CONSENT OF SafeRack. LLC SAS-172653R5 | San Benito County Water District - Hollister, CA |0

SAS-172653R5 9 of 22



il DRAWN BY APPROVAL (SIGNATURE)
et ] .
vz SafeRack:

ORAHGE. BAFETY HAS A NEW COLOH,

219 Safety Ave,
Andrews, SC 29510

Derek Rose

ALL INFORMATION CONTAINED TITLE
HEREIN §S CONFIDENTIAL AND
PROPRIETARY AND MAY NOT BE Iso-1
DISCLOSED IN ANY FORM

WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN QUOTE # CUSTOMER REV
CONSENT OF SafeRack, LLC SAS-172653R5 | San Benito County Water District - Hollister, CA |0

SAS-172653R5 10 of 22



Terms and Conditions

EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE AGREED IN WRITING, THESE TERMS AND CONDITIONS GOVERN ALL TRANSACTIONS TO THE EXCLUSION OF OTHER
TERMS AND CONDITIONS. SELLER'S QUOTATIONS AND ESTIMATES ARE NOT OFFERS CAPABLE OF ACCEPTANCE BY YOU, AND ANY ORDER
PLACED BY YOU WILL ONLY BE ACCEPTED BY OUR WRITTEN ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF SUCH ORDER.

1. DEFINITIONS. The definition of terms used, interpretation of this agreement and rights of parties hereto shall be construed under and
governed by the law of the State of South Carolina. “Seller” when used herein means Safe Rack LLC “Purchaser” when used herein means
the person, firm or corporation to whom this quotation is addressed. And “Equipment” or “Praoducts” means those articles, supplies,
drawings, data or other property or services described herein

2. FORMATION OF CONTRACT. All quotations are for immediate acceptance and subject to change or withdrawal without notice before an
order is acknowledged by Seller. A quotation shall not become effective until accepted by an authorized employee of the Seller. A
quotation cannot be changed or varied by any verbal agreement. If a quotation is deemed to constitute an offer, it may be accepted only
on terms set forth in this proposal, including, without limitation, these Terms and Conditions. If a quotation constitutes an acceptance of an
offer, such acceptance is expressly conditioned on Purchaser’s assent solely to the terms of the quotation, including, without limitation,
these Terms and Conditions. An acceptance of any part of the Equipment or services covered hereunder shail be deemed to constitute
such assent to these terms herein. Any additional and/or different terms and conditions proposed by Purchaser and/or any attempt by
Purchaser to vary any of these terms and conditions shall be deemed a material alteration and is hereby objected to and rejected

3. PRICE. Unless otherwise agreed by Seller in writing, Seller’s prices are subject to change without advance notice at any time prior to
order acknowledgment. Seller reserves the right to adjust the invoice price, after the price is quoted to take account of any material
variation in Seller’s costs beyond Seller's reasonable control since the date of the quotation or (if no quotation is issued) the order
acknowledgement, and the invoice so adjusted shall be payable as if the price set out therein were the original contract price. All sales are
subject to increase without notification by the amount of any sales or excise tax levied or charged by any governmental agency and are
subject to any price adjustment necessitated by Seller's compliance with any government action.

4. COMPLIANCE. Purchaser and Seller shall comply with all applicable international, national, state and local laws and regulations with
respect to their performance of this Agreement. Purchaser agrees to adhere and be responsible for all US Export laws and regulations with
respect to the Equipment.

5. SELLER'S RIGHT TO MODIFY. The Seller reserves the right to change, discontinue or modify the design and construction of any product or
to substitute material equal to or superior to that originally specified, without notice to the Purchaser.

6. INSPECTION. Purchaser shall inspect the Equipment promptly upon receipt for non-conformity (including but not limited to non-
conformity for quantity, quality, and/or defects). All claims by Purchaser for shortages in a shipment of Equipment or Equipment damaged
in transit must be made against the carrier. All claims by Purchaser against Seller for nonconforming Equipment and claims for shortages in
a shipment or damaged Equipment (other than claims to be made against the carrier) must be made in writing to Seller within ten (10)
days after receipt of shipment or thirty (30) days after date of shipment, whichever occurs first (the “Inspection Period”), or they are
waived. If Purchaser provides Seller of notice of non-conforming goods within the Inspection Period, Seller may, at its option and as
Purchaser’s sole remedy, (a) repair or replace the non-conforming goods or (b) refund or credit Purchaser for any non-conforming goods.
7. CANCELLATION. Purchaser cannot cancel orders under any circumstances without Purchaser first reaching an agreement in writing with
Seller covering all Seller's damages. At a minimum, such an agreement must reimburse the Seller for all expenses incurred {including but
not limited to costs of purchased materials), engineering costs, and a reasonable mark-up to cover overhead and profit. Cancellation
charges shall be, at a minimum, at least 15% of the purchase price of the goods covered by the cancelled orders.

8. PURCHASER'S RESPONSIBILITIES. Purchaser shall be solely responsible for the following: (a) Providing all the information reasonably
necessary to enable Seller to (ia) evaluate the requirements for performing and (ii) perform the Contract, and that all such information is
full and accurate; (b) Ensuring that all premises, structures, supports, connected equipment and machinery required to provide for the
design, engineering, installation, testing and use of the Products are fit for their purpose and capable of supporting Seller’s Products (c)
Fully to co-operate with Seller in the design, engineering, installation, testing and use of the Products; (d) To use the Products for the
intended purpose only and in accordance with the Product literature; (e) not under any circumstances, to use any unapproved spare part,
connected machinery, service or repair or use the Products in any manner as may render the Products dangerous and agrees that any
breach of these negative criteria will negate all specific and implied conditions and obligations on the part of Seller relating to the quality of
the Products. (f) Purchaser further agrees that it will be liable to Seller for any costs, expenses and losses it suffers by reason of any breach
of these undertakings.

UNLESS OTHERWISE AGREED UPON, PURCHASER SHALL HAVE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY AND ASSUMES ALL RISKS FOR THE OPERATION OF
THE EQUIPMENT BY PURCHASER'S OR OTHER'S EMPLOYEES, AGENTS OR CONTRACTORS INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ALIGNMENT OF
TRUCKS, RAILCARS OR OTHER VESSELS, OR OPERATION IN COMBINATION WITH OTHER EQUIPMENT NOT PURCHASED FROM SELLER.

9, DESIGNS APPROXIMATE, 1. All of Seller’'s specifications, designs, drawings, indications of physical, chemical and electronic properties
and loads and reactions (“the Designs") are made in good faith and are approximate indications only and are not binding in detail unless
Purchaser has specified in writing a particular indication upon which he is relying and Seller shall be entitled to vary the same and/or to
correct errors and omissions provided the Products remain in substantial conformity with the contractual requirements.

10. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY. Purchaser acknowledges that Seller and its affiliates are the owners or licensors of brands, trademarks,
designs, patents, copyrights and other intellectual property relating to Seller’s Products, and that no right or license is conveyed by Seller
to Purchaser to manufacture, have manufactured, modify, import or copy such Products and that Purchaser is not entitled to make any use
of the Designs other than for the purpose of this Contract. Any inventions, modifications, improvements, techniques or know-how affecting
the Products made or gained in the course of performing this Contract, shall belong to Seller absolutely.

11. CONFIDENTIALITY. Neither party shall make use of the other's Confidential Information (as hereinafter defined) for purposes other than
the performance of its obligations under this Agreement. Each party shall protect the other party’s Confidential information by using the
same degree of care as it uses to protect its own information of a like nature, but no less than a reasonable degree of care. The receiving
party shall only disclose the Confidential Information to its employees [consultants and subcontractors] who have a need to know such
Confidential Information in order to perform its obligations under this Agreement. "Confidential Information” shall mean all information of
either party not generally available to the public which is provided to the receiving party by the disclosing party or which the receiving party
has access to or discovers in the performance of this Agreement, including but without limitation, all information relating to a Party’s
products, business and operations including, but not limited to, business plans, financial records, customers, suppliers, vendors, products,
costs, sources, strategies, inventions, procedures, forecasts, sales materials and data, technical advice or knowledge, contractual
agreements, pricing, product specifications, trade secrets, procedures, distribution methods, inventories, marketing strategies, algorithms,
designs, drawings, work sheets, blueprints, manufacturing processes, computer programs and systems and know-how or other intellectual
property of a Party and its affiliates that may be at any time furnished, communicated or delivered by a Party to the other Party, whether in
oral, tangible, electronic or other form. All Confidential Information shall remain the property of the disclosing Party. Confidential

SAS-172653R5 19 of 22



Information shall not include any information that: (a) was rightfully known to a party prior to disclosure by the other party; (b} is rightfully
obtained by a party from a third party; (c¢) is made available by the disclosing party to the public without restrictions; (d) is disclosed by a
party with prior written permission of the other party; (e) is independently developed or learned by the recipient party through legitimate
means; {f) is disclosed by the disclosing party to a third party without a duty of confidentiality on the third party; or (g} is disclosed
pursuant to any applicable laws, regulations, or order of a court of competent jurisdiction, or by the recipient in defense of a claim against
the recipient. Each party will provide reasonable prior notice to the other, unless prohibited by applicable law, if it is required to disclose
any of the other party's Confidential information under operation of law, and such disclosure shall not constitute a breach of this
Agreement.

12, PAYMENT AND CREDIT (a). Credit Terms of Payment: {i). Domestic - Net thirty {30) days from date of invoice, SafeRack requires
deposits on orders $100,000 and over with drawings as follows: 1/3 deposit on receipt of order - due upon receipt; 1/3 deposit upon
receipt of signed drawings back from customer - due upon receipt; 1/3 at shipment - net 30, SafeRack requires deposits on orders
$100,000 and over without drawings as follows: ¥2 deposit on receipt of order - due upon receipt; % at shipment - Net 30. Delinquent
accounts shall bear interest at 18% per annum thereafter, until paid. Said interest rate shall be reduced to the maximum permissible rate
in any state having laws which so require, (i), International - SafeRack requires payment before shipment on International orders. Unless
otherwise agreed to by the Seller's Manager of Credit and Collection, payment shall be in U.S. Funds by wire transfer or irrevocable Letter
of Credit, confirmed by a major U.5. Bank, In addition to stich late payment charges, Seller may add to the amount past due any costs
associated with collection thereof, including reasonable attorneys’ fees. (b). Seller may, in its sole discretion, accept payment for Products
by cash in advance or by money-down with scheduled progress payments. (c). Shipments and deliveries shall be subject to approval of
Seller’s Credit Department. If Purchaser fails to fulfil the terms of payment, or if at any time before payment in full is made (whether or not
payment is yet due) a petition is presented or resolution passed for the winding up or bankruptcy of Purchaser, or in the event of the
appointment of a receiver or administrator of Purchaser’'s business, Seller may defer further shipment or at its option, cance! the unshipped
balance. Seller reserves the right previous to making any shipments, to require from Purchaser satisfactory security for performance of
Purchaser’s obligation. No failure of Seller to exercise any right accruing from any default of Purchase shall impair Seller’s right in case of
any shipment default of Purchaser.

13. SHIPMENT. (a) For domestic sales, freight terms are F.0.B. {as defined by the Uniform Commercial Code) Seller’s plant unless otherwise
expressly stipulated. Seller may, in its discretion, select the carrier unless specified in advance by Purchaser. For international sales, freight
terms are Ex Works (EXW, Incoterms 2010) Seller’s plant unpacked and are subject to VAT or other taxes unless otherwise expressly
stipulated). All applicable local taxes in the destination country are the responsibility of the Purchaser unless otherwise expressly
stipulated.(b) While expected dates of delivery of goods are given in good faith, the same are not of the essence of or in any way terms of
the contract or representations of fact. All shipping dates given are approximate, and while effort is made to maintain schedules, Seller will
not be liable for damages on account of delay. In case of delay by Purchaser in furnishing complete schedules or information, defivery
dates may be extended for a reasonable time depending on factory conditions. (c} The Seller shall not be responsible for reasonable or
excusable delays nor shall the Purchaser refuse to accept delivery because of any such delays. Excusable delays include, without
limitation, delays resulting from accidents, fires, floods, severe weather or other acts of God, strike, lockout or other labor difficuities,
embargoes, government controls or other forms of intervention, inability to obtain labor, materials or services and other causes beyond
Seller's control, If there is a scarcity in any of its products or goods, Seller will allocate its available supply in its sole discretion.

14. TITLE AND RISK OF LOSS. Title to the Equipment shall transfer to the Purchaser on the earlier of full payment and delivery; provided,
however, that in the event delivery is prior to full payment, Seller shall retain a security interest in the Equipment until Seller receives
payment in full, The risk of loss, including, but not limited to the risk of loss, theft, damage or destruction of the products, transfers to
Purchaser F.0.B. Seller's factory. If Purchaser fails to accept delivery of any of the Products on the delivery date provided by Seller, or if
Seller is unable to deliver the Products because Purchaser failed to provide adequate instructions, then (a) the Products will be deemed to
have been delivered to Purchaser; and Seller may, at its option, (i) store the goods at Purchaser’s expense until delivery or {ii) deliver the
goods to Purchaser at Purchaser’s expense.

15. INDEMNITY Purchaser will indemnify, defend and hold Seller, its affiliated companies and their respective directors, officers, empioyees
and agents harmiess from any loss, claim, cost, expense or damage (including payment of reasonable attorneys’ fees) suffered or incurred
by any of them and/or for which any of them may be liable to any third party due to, arising from or in connection with, directly or
indirectly:

(i} any act, omission, negligence, intentional misconduct or violation of law on the part of the Purchaser, its servants, agents or employees;
(i) Purchaser’s statements or representations;

(iii) Purchaser's failure or delay in taking delivery;

{iv) the breach of any provision of this Agreement by Purchaser; or

(v) any infringement or alleged infringement of patents, trademarks, copyright, design, right or other intellectual property right occasioned
by the importation, manufacture or sale of the Equipment if made to the specification or special requirement of Purchaser;

(vi) any breach of the Confidentiality portion of this Agreement or misuse of Seller’s Intellectual Property; or,

{vii) Purchaser’s misuse or modification of the Equipment.

16, LIMITATION OF LIABILITY, Seller's total liability for any and all claims, damages, losses and injuries arising out of or relating to Seller's
performance or breach of any term herein shall not exceed the purchase price of the Equipment. IN NO EVENT, WHETHER IN CONTRACT,
TORT OR OTHERWISE, SHALL SELLER BE LIABLE FOR LIQUIDATED, INDIRECT, EXEMPLARY, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL
DAMAGES, EXPENSES OR COSTS, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO: (1) LOSS OF PROFITS, BUSINESS OR GOODWILL; (2) LOSS OF USE OF
EQUIPMENT OR FACILITIES; OR {3) LOSS RESULTING FROM UNUSABLE MACHINERY OR FACILITY DOWNTIME, HOWSOEVER CAUSED AND
EVEN IF THE POTENTIAL FOR SUCH DAMAGES WAS DISCLOSED AND/OR KNOWN. 17. DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTY. SELLER DOES NOT
WARRANT THE MERCHANTABILITY OF ITS PRODUCTS AND DOES NOT WARRANT THE FITNESS OF THE PRODUCTS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE, SELLER DOES NOT MAKE, AND HEREBY DISCLAIMS AND EXLUDES, ANY WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, OTHER THAN THE
WARRANTY CONTAINED HEREIN. THERE ARE NO WARRANTIES EXPRESS OR IMPLIED BEYOND THAT WHICH IS DESCRIBED BELOW.

18. WARRANTY OF GOODS MANUFACTURED BY SELLER 1. Except to the extent Seller specifies another warranty period in writing, Seller
warrants products and parts manufactured by it and sold hereunder to be free from material defect in material and workmanship for a
period of twenty-four (24) months from date of shipment (the “Warranty Period”) provided, however, that Seller's sole responsibility under
this warranty shall be to either repair or replace at Seller’s option, any part which fails during the Warranty Period because of a defect in
workmanship and material. Such replacement parts shall be provided at no cost to Purchaser, 2. Seller shall be under no liability for breach
of the warranty set forth herein: (i) unless the Equipment has been properly installed, used, maintained and serviced; (ii) unless Purchaser
has promptly informed Seller in writing of the defect alleged within the Warranty Period and within 7 days of the discovery thereof; (iii)
with respect to wearing and consumable parts; (iv) if Purchaser places Products in long-term storage and falls to perform proper long-term
storage preparations per Seller's instructions; and/or (v) to Equipment or component parts or accessories thereof not manufactured by
Seller. 3. Other than those set forth expressly in writing, Seller makes no representation regarding compliance with any state, provincial,
or local law, rules, regulations, building code or ordinance relating to the installation or operation of the Equipment. 4. There are no third-
party beneficiaries of the Warranty granted by Seller herein,

SAS-172653R5 20 of 22



19, WARRANTY OF OTHER MANUFACTURER'S PRODUCTS. Seller makes no warranties or representations of any kind whatsoever, either
expressed, implied or statutory on any component parts or accessories sold hereunder which are not manufactured by Seller. Seller hereby
extends the manufacturer’s warranty or guaranties, if any, given to Seller by the manufacturer of said component parts and accessories,
but only to the extent Seller is able to enforce such warranty or guaranties. Seller does not guaranty warranties of other manufacturers’
products. Claims under any manufacturer’'s warranty shall be made in accordance with the manufacturer's requirements regarding the
return, repair or replacement of the goods. Seller agrees to use its best efforts and will cooperate with Purchaser in enforcing any claims
against manufacturer(s) for defects that may occur.

20. DISPUTE RESQLUTION. All disputes arising under or in connection with this Contract shall be resolved by (a) good-faith negotiations by
knowledgeable, responsible representatives of each party who are fully authorized to settle any such dispute, or (b} in the event such
negotiations do not resolve such dispute, binding arbitration held in South Carolina, by a single arbitrator pursuant to the Commercial
Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association. Each party shall bear its own costs of these procedures; the parties shall equally
split the fees of the arbitration and the arbitrator. Notwithstanding the above, either party shall have the right to seek a temporary
restraining order or an injunction related to the purposes of this Contract, to compel compliance with confidentiality obligations, or to file
suit to compel compliance with this dispute resolution process.

21. NO ASSIGNMENT. Purchaser may not assign, novate or otherwise transfer its rights or obligations under this contract without Seller’s
prior written consent, and any attempt to do so shall be null and void and of no effect.

22. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be construed, and the respective rights and duties of Purchaser and Seller shall be determined,
according to the laws of the State of South Carolina, without giving effect to its principles of conflicts of laws. The UN Convention on
Contracts for the International Sale of Goods shall not apply to this Agreement.

16, MISCELLANEQUS. These Seller's Terms and Conditions of Sale are the sole and exclusive statement of the parties’ understanding and

agreement with respect to the transactions contemplated by this sale, notwithstanding any other terms that might be contained in any

purchase order or other document received from Purchaser or submitted to Seller. These Terms and Conditions of Sale constitute the entire
agreement between the parties regarding the subject matter hereof and can only be modified or changed in writing and signed by
authorized representatives of both parties. No waiver by Seller of any of Seller’'s Terms and Conditions of Sale or any breach hereof shall
constitute or be deemed to be a waiver of any such term or any such breach in any other case. No waiver shall be deemed to occur as a
result of the failure to enforce any term or condition of these Seller's Terms and Conditions of Sale. If any clause or portion hereof shall be
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, the remaining clauses or portions shall remain in full force
and effect, The paragraph headings are for convenience only and shall not be used in interpreting or construing these Seller’s Terms and
Conditions of Sale.

SAS-172653R5 21 of 22



YellowGate

; Preassembled OSHA Cdmpliant “
industrial swing gates

Easily adjusts from
24"[609mm] wide to 37"[939mm]
_in parallel configuration
21"[533mm]wide to 33"(838mm] "
in perpendicular configuration

One Gate. Fits All. Stops Falls.

YellowGate - 1.888.663.0015 | YellowGate.com




YellowGate*Fall Protection

The Most
Adjustable
Swing Gate
Available

» “.Universal mount for easy installation
- no additional partsto order

« - "QSHA compliant
» _Durable - built to last indoors and out
« In-stock and ready-to-ship

200«

COMPLIANT

UNIVERSAL MOUNT

N O

YelluwGate =

L————————24" [609mm]

37" [939mm] i

Easily adjusts from
24"{609mm] wide to 37"[939mm)]
in parallel configuration

Expands an
additional 13”(330mm]

Yelipwiiate
@R EEIHIE

A A PP

Mounts anywhere
with no additional
parts to order.

21"{533mm] wide to 33"{838mm]
in perpendicular configuration

NO MEASURING REQUIRED
One SKU fits all openings

| I BET e
k\ ” * Parallel Perpendicular
» Ve N Mounting Option Mounting Option

YellowGate® can swing either in or out, with a simple in
the field adjustment, for maintenance free closure, every
time. Pre-Assembled & Ready to Install - straight from the
box. No field cutting, drilling, or special tools required.

YellowGate Y| |

Adjustable from 6' [1828mm] to 12' [3657mm]
and 42" [1066mm] in height

Yellanate =l

1.888.663.0015 | YellowGate.com

YG0524_YG2_Muttiple-Product_SeliSheet




SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 28™ day of May, 2025, by and between
the San Benito County Water District, ("District,") and SafeSmart, LLC, ("Consultant™").

1. Description of Project: District desires to undertake supplying the materials for Tank
Access Catwalks at the Lessalt Water Treatment Plant ("the project") and to engage
Consultant to provide the required professional services relating to the project.

2. Scope of Services - Basic; Completion: Consultant shall perform those basic
services in connection with the project as are set forth more particularly in EXHIBIT "A" entitled
"SCOPE OF CONSULTANT SERVICES - BASIC, COMPLETION SCHEDULE" and shall complete
said services in accordance with the completion schedule for them incorporated in said Exhibit.

3. Scope of Services - Additional, Completion Schedule: It is understood by District
and Consultant that it may be necessary, in connection with the project, for Consultant to
perform or secure the performance of services other than those set forth in EXHIBIT "A". In
each such instance, Consultant shall advise the District, in advance and in writing, of the need
for such additional services, their cost and the estimated time required to perform them (if
applicable). Consultant shall not proceed to perform any such required additional services until
District has determined that such service is beyond the scope of the basic services to be
provided, is required, and has given written authorization to perform or obtain it. Each
additional service so authorized shall constitute an amendment to this Agreement, shall be
identified and sequentially numbered as "Additional Consultant Service Order No. 1" and so
forth, shall be subject to all of the provisions of this Agreement, and shall be attached as
EXHIBIT "D" entitled "SCOPE OF CONSULTANT SERVICES - ADDITIONAL; COMPLETION
SCHEDULE."

4, Changes to Scope of Work - Basic Services: District may at any time and, upon a
minimum of ten (10) days' written notice, modify the scope of basic services to be provided
under this Agreement. Consultant shall, upon receipt of said notice, determine the impact on
both time and compensation of such change in scope and notify District in writing. Upon
agreement between District and Consultant as to the extent of said impacts to time and
compensation, an amendment to this Agreement shall be prepared describing such changes.
Execution of the amendment by District and Consultant shall constitute the Consultant's notice
to proceed with the changed scope.

5. Compensation; Retention: Consultant shall be compensated for services rendered to
District pursuant to this Agreement periodically in the amounts, manner and in accordance with
the payment schedule as set forth in EXHIBIT "A" entitled "COMPENSATION." Amounts due to
Consultant from District for services rendered shall be evidenced by the submission to District
by Consultant of an invoice, prepared in a form satisfactory to District, setting forth the amount
of compensation due for the period covered. Invoices, including the paid invoices of any
subconsultants shall, at a minimum set forth the hours and hourly rates of each individual

1



charged to the Project for the invoice period. Compensation shall not include the cost of
executive, administrative and other personnel whose time is not directly identifiable to the
Project. Each such invoice shall be forwarded to District so as to reach it on or before the
fifteenth (15th) day of the month next following the month or months, or other applicable
period, for which the services invoiced were provided. All such invoices shall be in full
accordance with any and all applicable provisions of this Agreement. District will make
payment on each such invoice within thirty (30) days of its receipt, provided however that if
Consultant submits an invoice which is incorrect, incomplete, or not in accordance with the
provisions of this Agreement, then District shall not be obligated to process any payment to
Consultant until a correct and complying invoice has been submitted.

6. Responsibility of Consultant: By executing this Agreement, Consultant warrants to
District that Consultant possesses, or will arrange to secure from others, all of the professional
capabilities, experience, resources and facilities necessary to provide to District the services
contemplated under this Agreement. Consultant further warrants that it will follow the highest
current, generally accepted professional care, skill, diligence and practices to make findings,
render opinions, prepare factual presentations, and provide professional advice and
recommendations regarding this project for which services are rendered under this Agreement
and that the Consultant shall, at no cost to the District, re-perform services which fail to satisfy
the foregoing Standard of Care.

7. Responsibility of District: To the extent appropriate to the project contemplated by
this Agreement, District shall:

7.1 Assist Consultant by placing at its disposal all available information pertinent to
the project, including previous reports and any other relevant data.

7.2 Guarantee access to and make all provision for Consultant to enter upon public
and private property as required for Consultant to perform its services.

7.3 Examine all studies, reports, specifications, proposals and other documents
prepared and presented by Consultant, and render verbally or in writing as may be appropriate,
decisions pertaining thereto within a reasonable time so as not to delay the progress of the
work by Consultant.

7.4 Designate in writing a person to act as District's representative with respect to
work to be performed under this Agreement. Such person shall have complete authority to
transmit instructions, receive information, interpret and define District's policies and decision
with respect to materials, equipment, elements and systems pertinent to Consultant's services.

8. Indemnification: Consultant shall hold District, its officers, boards and commissions,
and members thereof, its employees (collectively "District"), harmless of and free from the
negligent acts, errors and omissions of Consultant arising out of its performance of the services
provided under this Agreement. Should District be named in any suit, or should any claim be
made against District by suit or otherwise arising out of this Agreement, or Consultant's

2



negligent acts, errors and omissions in its performance of the services provided for by this
Agreement, Consultant shall defend and indemnify the District for any judgment rendered
against District or by any sums paid out in settlement or otherwise, but only to the extent
caused by the negligent act, error or omission in the rendering of services under this contract.

9. Insurance: During the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall maintain in full
force and effect at its own cost and expense the following insurance coverage:

9.1 Workers' Compensation Insurance to cover its employees, and Consultant shall
require all contractors and subcontractors similarly to provide Workers' Compensation
Insurance as required by the Labor Code of the State of California for all of the
subcontractors' employees. Each Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with the
provision that it will not be canceled or altered without first giving thirty (30) days prior notice
to the District by certified or registered mail.

9.2 Public Liability Insurance including personal injury and property damage
insurance for all activities of the Consultant and its contractors and subcontractors arising out
of or in connection with this contract, written on a comprehensive general liability form
including, but not limited to, Broad Form Property Damage, blanket contractual, products
liability and completed operations, hazards, vehicle coverage and non-owned auto liability
coverage in an amount not less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) combined single
limit personal injury and property damage for each occurrence.

9.3 Professional Liability Insurance Covering Errors and Omissions. The limits of
coverage shall be no less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) with a provision for no
more than $25,000 deductible. Consultant may not disclaim responsibility or avoid liability for
the acts or omissions of its subcontractors or other professional consultants.

9.4 Certificates of Insurance and properly executed endorsements in a form
acceptable to the District Counsel evidencing the coverage required by the clauses set forth
above shall be filed with the District at the time of execution of this agreement. Each such
policy shall be endorsed with the following language:

(1) The San Benito County Water District is named as additional insured for all
liability arising out of the operations by or on behalf of the named insured, and this policy
protects the additional insured, its officers, agents, and employees against liability for
personal and bodily injuries, deaths or property damage or destruction arising in any respect,
directly or indirectly, in the performance of the contract.

(2) The insurance provided is primary and no other insurance held or owned by
the District shall be called upon to contribute to a loss.

(3) The inclusion of more than one insured shall not operate to impair the rights of

one insured against another insured, and the coverage afforded shall apply as though
separate policies had been issued to each insured.

3



4) The coverage provided by this policy shall not be canceled, non-renewed, or
substantially reduced in amount or scope, without thirty (30) days prior to written notice given
to the District by certified mail.

(5) All rights of subrogation are hereby waived against the District, its officers and
employees when acting within the scope of their appointment or employment.

10. Confidentiality: All District information disclosed to Consultant during the course of
performance of services under this Agreement shall be treated as confidential and shall not be
disclosed to any other persons or parties except as authorized by District, or required by law.

11. Conflict of Interest: Consultant warrants that neither Consultant, nor any of its
employees, agents or subcontractors, have a conflict of interest with respect to the work to be
performed under this Agreement, nor shall such individuals, during this term of this
Agreement, acquire any interest which would conflict in any manner with the performances of
services hereunder.

12, Nondiscrimination: During the performance of this Agreement, Consultant will not
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion,
creed, color, national origin, sex or age. Consultant will take affirmative action to insure that
applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard
to their race, religion, creed, color, national origin, sex or age.

13. Independent Contractor: District and Consultant agree that the relationship
between them created by this Agreement is that of an employer-independent contractor.
Consultant shall be solely responsible for the conduct and control of the work performed
under this Agreement. Consultant shall be free to render professional consulting services to
others during the term of this Agreement, so long as such activities do not interfere with or
diminish Consultant's ability to fulfill the obligations established herein to District.

14. Commencement of Services: Consultant shall proceed with the project upon
execution of this Agreement by the parties.

15. Notice to Proceed; Progress; Completion: Upon execution of this Agreement by
the parties, District shall give Consultant written notice to proceed with the work. Such notice
may authorize Consultant to render all of the services contemplated herein, or such portions
or phases as may be mutually agreed upon. In the latter event, District shall, in its sole
discretion, issue subsequent notices from time to time regarding further portions or phases of
the work. Upon receipt of such notices, Consultant shall diligently proceed with the work
authorized and complete it within the agreed time period.

16. Ownership of Documents: Title to all documents, drawings, specifications, and
the like with respect to work performed under this Agreement shall vest with District at such

4



time as District has compensated Consultant, as provided herein, for the services rendered by
Consultant in connection with which they were prepared.

17. Designation of Key Personnel: The individuals specified in the attached EXHIBIT
"C" shall provide the services set forth herein, and shall be the persons primarily in charge of
such work. Prior to the provision of work by any other individuals on this project, such other
individuals shall first be approved, in writing, by the District Manager or his designee.

18. Mistake of Fact: Each party understands that if any fact with respect to any matter
covered by this Agreement is found hereafter to be other or different from the facts now
believed by that party to be true, such party expressly accepts and assumes the risk of such
possible differences in fact and agrees that this Agreement shall be in all respects effective
and not subject to termination or rescission by reason of any such difference in facts.

19. Term; Termination: The term of this Agreement shall commence upon District's
issuance to Consultant of a notice to proceed for all or a portion of the work, as herein above
provided, and shall terminate upon District's acceptance and payment for all or such portion
of the work as was authorized by such notice, including any and all retention.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, District may, in its sole discretion, terminate this Agreement at
any time and for any reason whatsoever by giving at least ten (10) days prior written notice
of such termination to Consultant. In this latter event, Consultant shall be entitled to
compensation for all services rendered and work performed for District to the date of such
termination.

20. General Provisions:

20.1 Access to Records: Consultant shall maintain all books, records, documents,
accounting ledgers, and similar materials relating to work performed for District under this
Agreement on file for at least one (1) year following the date of final payment to Consultant
by District. Any duly authorized representative(s) of District shall have access to such records
for the purpose of inspection, audit and copying at reasonable times, during Consultant's
usual and customary business hours. Consultant shall provide proper facilities to District's
representative(s) for access and inspection. Consultant shall be entitled to reasonable
compensation for time and expenses relate to such access and inspection activities, which
shall be considered to be an additional service to the District, falling under the provisions of
SECTION 4 herein above.

20.2 Assignment: This Agreement is binding on the heirs, successors, and assigns
of the parties hereto and shall not be assigned by either District or Consultant without the
prior written consent of the other. Any attempt by Consultant to so assign this Agreement or
any rights, duties or obligations arising hereunder shall be void and of no effect.

20.3 Compliance with Laws, Rules, Requlations: All services performed by
Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall be performed in full compliance with all
applicable federal, state, and District laws, including any rules, standards or regulations

5



promulgated thereunder.
20.4 Exhibits Incorporated: All Exhibits referred to in this Agreement and
attached to it are hereby incorporated in it by this reference.

20.5 Integration; Amendment: This Agreement represents the entire
understanding of District and Consultant as to those matters contained herein. No prior oral
or written understanding shall be of any force or effect with respect to those matters covered
init. This Agreement may not be modified or altered except by amendment in writing sign by
both parties.

20.6 Waiver/Validity: Consultant agrees that waiver by District of any one or
more of the conditions of performance under this Agreement shall not be construed as waiver
of any other condition of performance under this Agreement. The acceptance by the District
of the performance of any work or services by Contractor shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any term or condition of this Agreement.

21, Jurisdiction: District and Consultant agree that the law governing this Agreement
shall be that of the State of California. Any suit brought by either party against the other
arising out of the performance of this Agreement shall be filed and maintained in the
Municipal or Superior Court of the County of San Benito. If any part of this Agreement is
found to be in conflict with applicable laws, such part shall be inoperative, null, and void
insofar as it is in conflict with said laws, but the remainder of the Agreement shall continue to
be in full force and effect.

22. Attorney's Fees: In the event any dispute between the parties hereto arising from
or relating to this Agreement shall result in litigation, the prevailing party shall be entitled to
all reasonable costs, including, but not limited to, actual attorney's fees. ‘

23. Notice: Any notices, required to be given pursuant to this Agreement, shall be
deemed to have been given by their deposit, postage prepaid, in the United States Postal
Service, addressed to the parties as follows:

a. To District : San Benito County Water District
30 Mansfield Road
Hollister, CA 95023

b. To Consultant:

Nothing hereinabove shall prevent either District or Consultant from personal deliver of any
such notices to the other party.



IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement the day
and year first above written.

District: CONSULTANT:

By: By:

Title Title

Date Date



‘SafeSmart LLC
13238 Florence Avenue
Santa Fe Springs CA 90670
SAFESMART (310) 410-1525
sales@safesmart.com

Bill To

San Benito County Water District
30 Mansfield Rd

Hollister CA 95023-9732

United States

Expires Terms

2/9/2025 50% Down, 50 due upon
delivery

Item Code Description

MISC_S Tank Access Platform

Exhibit A
Scope/Compensation

Ship To

San Benito County Water District
30 Mansfield Rd

Hollister CA 95023-9732

United States

Sales Rep
E10104 Daniel Perales

Qty

-90° Ladder Access to reach 8' Platform height

-36" Wide

-Platform size: 27' L x 3' W (34 Planks - 323")
-Handrails along outer edge and end of platform

-3 Support Le

s
-All T6 6061 mm_a:::.: construction

-Standard Extrusion tread
MISC_S Tank Access Platform

-90° Ladder Access to reach 9' Platform height

-36" Wide

-Platform size: 27' L x 3' W (34 Planks - 323")
-Handrails along outer edge and end of platform

-3 Support Le

S
-All T6 6061 mm::_sc_,: construction

-Standard Extrusion tread

Quote is for product, not including installation, unless otherwise stated.

Quote

#QUQO7005

11/21/2024
TOTAL

$56,736.00
Expires: 2/9/2025
Order by Contact No.
David Macdonald (831) 637-8218
Units Unit Price Amount
Ea $9,939.00 $19,878.00
Ea $10,128.00 $30,384.00
Subtotal $50,262.00
Shipping - Handling $2,150.00
Tax Total (%) $4,324.00
Total $56,736.00

Sales Tax is mandatory unless a valid exemption certificate is provided at the time of the order. The certificate must be from the current year; otherwise, a new one must be supplied.

All sales are subject to SafeSmart Terms and Conditions of Sale, which may be found at https://safesmartaccess.com/terms-conditions/ . Please contact accounting@safesmart.com for any questions.



San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal

Agenda Item: / 3( b>

Meeting Date: May 28, 2025
Submitted By: David Macdonald, P.E.

Presented By: David Macdonald, P.E.

Agenda Title:
Consider Approval to have Sunnyslope County Water District perform Construction of the
Tank Access Catwalks at the Lessalt Water Treatment Plant (NTE $22,400)

Detailed Description:

The Lessalt Water Treatment Plant was built in 2001 to treat surface water from the San
Luis Reservoir and San Justo Reservoir and serves the City of Hollister and Sunnyslope
County Water District. In order to meet regulatory water quality requirements, it was
upgraded in 2013. This treatment plant is owned by San Benito County Water District and
operated by Sunnyslope County Water District.

The Treatment plant uses Granular Activated Carbon (GAC) and Greensand. These are
used and stored in large tanks and have large manholes for access. The current method of
inspecting/replacing the GAC or Greensand consists of employees using a portable
scaffolding system to access the tanks. These portable scaffolding systems are inefficient
and were meant to be a temporary solution to a continuous problem. It was determined that
permanent catwalks should be installed to decrease risk and make the operation of the tanks
easier to perform.

Sunnyslope County Water District operators found this to be an issue, and Sunnyslope
employees have looked into installing permanent catwalks on the tanks.

Sunnyslope County Water District sent out a Request for Quotes (RFQ) on April 30, 2025
to a list of contractors and posted it on the Sunnyslope County Water District website. The
deadline for this RFQ was May 15, 2025, however no contractors submitted quotes.

The District and Sunnyslope County Water District looked for alternative routes to get the
catwalks installed and Sunnyslope County Water District indicated that they would be
willing to install the catwalks in-house and provided a quote.




The Sunnyslope County Water District quote is as follows:

e Concrete formwork, bar and finishing $8,000
Pouring of three 3’6” wide x 1’ long pads for the
Catwalk support legs
4 footings for each structure — 20 total footings
2.5 yards concrete, 300 ft of #4 bar

e Lifting equipment to place each Catwalk $2,800
Estimated for two days
e Assembly of all 5 catwalks $11,640

Estimated 3 utility workers, 5 days
Total Assembly $22,440
This appears to be a fair price and within budget. As there were no responsive contractors
to the RFQ), this appears to be the best and most cost-efficient option for installing the

catwalks at the Lessalt Water Treatment Plant.

Financial Impact: X Yes No

Funding Source/ Recap:
600-1451-0602-110-00 — Lessalt Water Treatment Plant

Environmental Determination:

The project consists of installation of a structure that is addition to an existing structure for
safety and convenience reasons with no expansion of use. It is therefore categorically
exempt from CEQA per California Code of Regulations Title 14 Section 15301.

Material Included for Information/Consideration:
1. Request for Quote
2. List of Contractors
3. Quote from Sunnyslope County Water District

Recommendation:

Staff recommends the Board approve the amount of $22,440 to Sunnyslope County
Water District for the installation of catwalks on the GAC/Greensand Tanks at Lessalt
Water Treatment Plant.

Action Required: Resolution X Motion Review




Board Action

Resolution No. Motion By Second By
Ayes Abstained
Noes Absent
Reagendized Date No Action Taken




District

3570 Airline Highway Phone (831) 637-4670
Hollister, California 95023-9702 Fax (831) 637-1399

Sunnyslope Water

Request for Quote

Installation of Tank Access Platforms

Project Location: Lessalt Water Treatment Plant, Hollister CA
Date: 4/30/2025
1. Introduction

Sunnyslope County Water District (SSCWD) and San Benito County Water
District (SBCW) have a project at Lessalt Water Treatment Plant to install tank
access platforms. They will be installed to improve the safety of maintenance &
operating staff who currently use a mobile scaffold. This project includes the
construction of concrete footings to support each leg of the new platforms, and
the assembly of each platform.

2. Scope of Provision
a. Assemble and Install

i. Two 27" L x3 W x 8 H, T6 6061 aluminum access platforms along
with handrails and 90° ladders. Material is provided by others
(Exhibit A)

ii. Three 27" L x 3’ W x 9’H, T6 6061 aluminum, access platforms along
with handrails and 90° ladders. Material is provided by others.

b. Prepare the areas for the 1" x 1" x 1" concrete footings, including grading
and leveling, as needed. Excavate specified areas.

Supply and install all necessary formwork to create the footing shapes and
dimensions. Ensure formwork is properly braced and aligned. Supply and
install all reinforcing steel ensure proper placement. Use of #4 rebar at a
6”x 6”x 6” on center cage is adequate. Supply and install anchor bolts in
the correct locations and orientations as specified in the materials, ensure
securement of anchor bolts during concrete placement. Supply and place



concrete. Perform proper consolidation and finishing of the concrete.
Clean up the work area and remove construction debris.

3. Submission of Quotes & Schedule

Due date to submit the quote is 5/15/2025. Quotes must be submitted in writing to
on formal letterhead of the company and signed by an authorized representative.

The project start date shall be coordinated with operations staff based upon the
arrival of the platform materials, the regular operation of the Lessalt treatment plant,
and other factors. Hours shall be limited to 7:30am — 4:30pm. It is anticipated the
project would be completed within 4 weeks of delivery of the platform materials.

4. Prevailing Wage Requirements

The Work under this Contract qualifies as Public Works subject to California Labor
Code Section 1720 et seq. Contractor shall comply with and be bound by all
pertinent sections of the Labor Code beginning with Section 1720 regarding
payment of prevailing wage rates, holiday and overtime pay, hiring of apprentices,
workers compensation insurance, etc., all as set forth by the California Department
of Industrial Relations (DIR). Contractor shall be registered with DIR as a Public
Works Contractor and abide by all relevant reporting requirements. Contractor is
responsible for maintaining and submitting all applicable payroll records and
reports, which shall be made available to District for review upon written request.
Contractor is also responsible for meeting all applicable license, apprenticeship,
payroll record, and nondiscrimination requirements per California Labor Code.

5. Insurance

The District’s requirements for insurance are set forth in the Construction
Agreement with Commercial General Liability coverage of $5 million per
occurrence, Auto Liability of $1 million per accident, and statutory limits for
Workers Compensation Insurance. The Successful Bidder shall deliver the required
insurance certificates to the District prior to beginning work. In no case will the
Notice to Proceed be considered as allowing the Work to begin until the insurance
certificates are received by the District.

Questions regarding this request must be submitted in writing to Alvin Do, at
alvin@sunnyslopewater.org. Site visits must be coordinated through Alvin.




Exhibit A



t

Gser ]

B

¥30AV1T .06

SHVIONVH GAVANVIS VHSO .Z¥

S 9 I 8

V30 153NS @i moi YEL3IVS " w »; i o
Y soocone s00:05
WAOHLVId SSIDDV ANVL i HIOIM TVLIOL

HAOISANNNS Bey

T
HIGIM VAL | HoiEH d31s oeee
SE L1 X8 JHS-NO dn-1i4
ONIING GITAWISSY
5 3 1901 g,zsmmm,«\
’ ; ©3114044NS NO 108 o
N
T (3vINQOW) 3DNVISIG _ ﬁ // L ) 37IS NMONNN
OF1 1304dNS THOIIH WAO4LVTd |} NOILVINISIHIIY Jdld—] {oogk— -
LSt 8 | \
801 \
| {| HOEH V101
1 05t
= = y 1 )
SAILO04 TIGVINNOW
A 4
W AN \ AN P S¥IDOVAL FTAVISNFaY _w L]
HLONIT WOV |
HIONTTIVLIOL |




Lessalt Water Treatment Plant

Catwalk
Materials Only

List of Contractors



Company

Mark Nicholson Co.

Munoz Construction Co.

Durden Construction Inc.

Don Chapin Co.

Monterey Peninsula Engineering
Brigantino Irrigation

Graham Contractors Inc

Pacific Interlock Pavingston
Armer Grading & Paving

Carlos J Romero Grading & Paving Contractors, Inc

Ponce Landscaping

Carig Kitteringham

Galeb Paving, Inc

QA Constructors

Wattis Construction

RNR Paving

Apena Engineering

Ace-High Engineering

Geo. H. Wilson

Trinchero Construction Company, Inc

Tiechert

Granite Construction Company
Sanco
Alder Construction Co

Anderson Pacific Engineering Construction

Auburn Constructors Inc

Clark Bros., Inc.

Disney Construction, Inc

Fanfa, Inc.

GSE Construction Company inc

Contact name

Kurt Nicholson
Antonio Munoz
Gregg Durden

Cody Skow

Ralph Brigantino

Lee Pellicciotti
Quinto Allende

Fernando Flores

Danny Norris
Rich Heiser

Jeff Black

Email

mniestimator@pachell.net
info@amiconstructioninc.com
greqgu@durdenconstruction.com
cskow@donchapin.com
info@mpe2000.com
ralph@brigantinoirrigation.com

info@pacinierock.com
josharmer@amail.com

info@cjrgradingandpaving.com
cps226@aol.com
ckitter@sharp-inc.com
lee@galebpaving.com
gai@gaccorp.com
idavis@wattisconstruction.com

officernrpaving@gmail.com
fernando@apenaengineering.com
estimating@acehighengingering.com
dnorris@gechwilson.com
richheiser@amail.com

info@trincheroconstruction.com

cskow{@donchapin.com

mbovie@teicherl.com

estimating@teichert.com

patricia. arneli@gcinc.com
emplovment@sancopipelines.com
iblack@alderconstruction.com

Angela Schellenber angela@andpac.com

Yvonne

Andy Granner
Lawrance Clark
Rick Disney
Don Fanfa
Ellina Yin

estimating@andpac.com
yvonne@andpac.com

agranner@auburnconstructors.com

info@clarkbrosinc.com
agatis@disneyconstruction.com
ffanfa@msn.com

evin@gseconstruction.com




Gateway Pacific Contractors Inc
John Madonna Construction Co
KG Walters Construction Co. Inc.
SEMA Construction, Inc.

Spiess Construction

Stanek Constructors, Inc.

Syblon Reid

W.M. Lyles Co.

Specialty Construction Inc
Brigantino lrrigation
Calironia Trenchless, Inc

Dodge Construction Network
Golden Bay Construction, Inc.

Central Coast Builder Association

Storm drain line cleaning
Green Line LWC

Scott Gruber
Sizie Ransom
Chuck Chapman
Laura Jevne
George Foote
Kim Valentine

lona@gaatewaypacific.com
scott@imadonna.com
suzieransom@kgwalers.com
estimating.ca@semaconstiruction.com
lievne@sccitanks.com
gfoote@stanekconsiruciors.com
Kimv@srco.com

Karen Reichenberg karenr@srco.com
Kevin Shigematsu kshigematsu@wmlyles.com

Tenaya Pauly
Sheri Shamblin

Ralph
Mike Jardin

Brenda Cusack
Johnny Zanette

Shelly Verba

Brian Honegger

rirent@wmilylesco.com
tpauly@specialtyconstruction.com
SShamblin@specialtyconstruction.com
bids@specialiyconstruction.com
ralph@brigantinoirrigation.com
mjardin@californiatrenchless.com
brenda.cusack@construction.com
johnny@gbayinc.com

admin@cchabuilds.com
To post RFP on Central Coast Builder
Association Online Plan Room

bhonegger@areseniinelwe.com
831 422 2298 ext 750
831 235 1395




.. Sunnyslope Water District

3570 Airline Highway Hollister, CA 95023 € (831) 637-4670 ¢ www.sunnyslopewater.org

Board of Directors General Manager
Michael Alcorn Drew. A. Lander P.E.
Jerry Buzzetta Superintendent

Dee Brown Jose Rodriguez
Edward Mauro Legal Counsel
Orlando Martinez Michael Laredo

May 22, 2025

Dana Jacobson

General Manager

San Benito County Water District
djacobson@sbcwd.com

Dana,

SSCWD opened and closed a public bid offering for the installation of the cat walk at the Lessalt
Water Treatment Plant. The project was advertised through local builders exchange as well as
sent directly to contractors listed with the district who are qualified to perform such work.

Unfortuantly, no bids were received and in the interest of the successful completion of the
project as designed I propose that SSCWD will complete the installation of this work per
manufacturers specifications and we will provide documentation of completion.

The following quote is for the labor portion including the foundations, full assembly and
installation of the cat walk. The quote for the cat walk delivered to the site is separate.

This quote includes:

e Concrete formwork, bar and finishing $ 8,000.00
(Pouring of three 3'6" wide x 1' long pads for the catwalk support legs
4 footings for each structure — 20 total footings 2.5yrds concrete, 300ft #4 bar)

¢ Lifting Equipment to place each Catwalk $ 2,800.00
(Estimated for two days)

e Assembly of all 5 catwalks $11,640.00
(Estimated 3 Utility Workers, 5 days )
Total Assembly $22,440.00

General Manager



San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal

Agenda Item: i L‘/

Meeting Date: May 28, 2025
Submitted By: David Macdonald, P.E.

Presented By: David Macdonald, P.E.

Agenda Title: Consider Awarding a Contract to Pacific Coast Well Drilling, Inc. for the North
San Benito ADROP ASR Well 2, 4, and Optional Well 1 Construction and Authorizing the
General Manager to Execute all Documents Necessary (NTE - $3,595,011)

Detailed Description: As part of the Hollister Urban Area Water and Wastewater Master Plan,
The West Hills Water Treatment Plant was constructed in 2015 and 2016 as a 4.5 MGD potable
water supply for the City of Hollister and surrounding urban areas. Due to continuing drought
conditions at the time, San Benito County Water District, in coordination with the local retail
water agencies, evaluated a number of water supply alternatives and ultimately determined to
choose the Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP) to increase water supply reliability
for existing customers during subsequent droughts. This project includes expanding the current
West Hills Treatment Plant capacity to 6.75 MGD, constructing a conveyance pipeline, and
installing injection and extraction wells in the Fallon Road Area.

This contract approves the drilling and installation of the injection and extraction (ASR or
‘Aquifer Storage and Recovery’) wells in the Fallon Road Area part of this project. It includes
installation of two (2) ASR with the option of a third well at the discretion of the District, as
further described by the tasks below:
e Drilling, purchase, and installation of 26-inch diameter permanent conductor casing
e Drilling pilot borehole below conductor casing
e Reaming 24-inch diameter well borehole below conductor casing
e Hauling and offsite disposal of drilling fluids and cuttings
e Geophysical logging of pilot borehole
e Purchase and install 16-inch diameter type 304 stainless steel well casing and 16-inch
diameter type 304 stainless steel wire-wrapped stainless steel well screen and end fittings
e Purchase and installation of materials for sounding tube, screen/casing centralizers, and
artificial filter pack
e Installation of well seal
e Well development by surging and/or airlifting and overpumping
e Installation and removal of pumping equipment for development and testing
e Testing including:
o Plumbness and Alignment testing
o Variable rate pumping test




o Constant rate pumping test
o Spinner log during constant rate pumping test
Well disinfection
Video log survey
Well destruction in the event of unsuccessful borehole or failed well
Standby Time

The bidding period for the project ended on May 15, 2025, with 4 contractors submitting bids.
Of the 4 bids received, Pacific Coast Well Drilling, Inc. was the lowest responsive bidder at
$3,423,820.00. The complete list of bids is as follows:

1. Pacific Coast Well Drilling, Inc. $3,423,820
2. Well Industries, Inc $3,708,080
3. Zim Industries, Inc $3,817,305
4. South Valley Companies, Inc $4,938,420

Todd Engineers, the design engineer/geologists for the project, prepared the plans and
specifications for the North San Benito ADROP ASR Wells 2, 4, and Optional Well 1, and
provided an engineer’s estimate of $2,777,390 for 2 ASR wells and $4,131,085 for three ASR
wells. Three bids came in below this estimate, giving the District confidence that the bids and
engineer’s estimate were reasonable.

Following the bid opening, SBCWD and Todd Groundwater reviewed the Pacific Coast Well
Drilling, Inc. bid for completeness and relevant experience and determined Pacific Coast Well
Drilling, Inc. to be the lowest competent bidder.

Considering the low bid was 17% less than the engineers estimate, staff recommends awarding a
contract to Pacific Coast Well Drilling, Inc. in the amount of $3,423,820 to construct the ADRoP
ASR Wells 2, 4, and Optional Well 1.

In addition to the $3,423,820 for the North San Benito ADROP ASR Well 2, 4, and Optional
Well 1 contract, staff requests that the Board authorize the General Manager to issue change
orders to the contract in an amount not to exceed 5% ($171,191) of the total contract. This
would bring the total not to exceed Board authorization for the project to $3,595,011.

A significant portion of the project will be funded by grants, including the SGMA
Implementation Grant and the WaterSMARTS Small Storage Grant. Due to funding restrictions
in these grants, this project must be completed by spring 2026.

Environmental Determination:

Per Resolution No. 2025-05 which was passed and adopted at a Special Meeting on April gth
2025, the Board adopted by Resolution the San Benito County Water District Mitigated Negative
Declaration for the Accelerated Drought Response Project. The Board also adopted by
Resolution the California Environmental Quality Act Findings of Fact, Mitigation Measures, and
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the Wells and Pipelines Elements of ADRoP.




Materials Included:
1. Zone 6 Water Supply and Operations Committee Recommendation

2. Construction Contract
3. List of Bids from all bidders

Financial Impact: X Yes No

Funding Source/ Recap:
600-1351-C129-151-02 — SGMA Implementation Grant
600-1351-D129-151-02 — WaterSMART Small Storage Grant

Recommendation: Approve the project authorization in the amount of $3,595,011 and authorize
the General Manager to execute a contract with Pacific Coast Well Drilling, Inc. in the amount
not to exceed $3,423,820.

Action Required: Resolution X Motion Review
Board Action
Resolution No._ Motion By Second By
Ayes Abstained
Noes Absent
Reagendized Date No Action Taken




BOARD AGENDA MEMO

DATE: May 20, 2025

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Zone 6 Water Supply and Operations Committee
(Williams* /Wright)

SUBJECT: Committee Recommendation that the Board Award a Contract to
Pacific Coast Drilling for the North San Benito Accelerated Drought Response
Project (ADRoP) for Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) Well 2, 4 and Optional
Well 1 Construction and Authorize General Manager to execute all necessary
documents (NTE $ 3,423,820)

The Zone 6 Water Supply and Operations Committee met on May 20, 2025 and
staff reviewed the bids for the North San Benito Accelerated Drought Response
Project (ADRoP) for Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) Well 2, 4 and Optional
Well 1 Construction .

The Zone 6 Water Supply and Operations Committee recommends the Board
Award a Contract to Pacific Coast Drilling for the North San Benito Accelerated
Drought Response Project (ADRoP) for Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) Well
2, 4 and Optional Well 1 Construction and Authorize General Manager to
execute all necessary documents (NTE $ 3,423,820).

Ditchor Wikliams recusad Himsek Wf/ﬁﬁ

Director Williams* Dire&/r Wright ~

/%%HL>




AGREEMENT
North San Benito ADRoP ASR Well 2, 4, and Optional Well 1

This Agreement is made this 28" day of _May _ , 2025, between the San Benito County Water
District (*SBCWD") and _Pacific Coast Well Drilling, Inc. ("Contractor") for performance of the
following public work of improvement _North San Benito ADRoP ASR Well 2, 4, and Optional
Well 1 (the "Project” or the “Work"), which shall be performed in accordance with all plans,
specifications and other contract documents attached to or incorporated into this Agreement.

SECTION 1 - SCOPE

A Contractor shali furnish all necessary management, supervision, labor, materials, tools,
supplies, equipment, plant, services, engineering, testing and/or any other act or thing required
to diligently and fully perform and complete the Project in accordance with the Contract
Documents, which is generally described as follows:

1. Per the technical specifications, drill, install, and develop two (2) ASR wells with the
option of a third at the discretion and direction of the District. All wells will require drilling
pilot holes and reaming, if necessary, of the pilot hole to allow for installation of a 16-inch
diameter nominal pipe size stainless steel casing, 16-inch diameter continuous wire
wrap stainless steel well screen, 3-inch diameter filter pack feed pipe, 3-inch diameter
sounding tube, artificial filter pack, and sanitary seal.

The work shall include the following tasks:
o Utility clearance

» Mobilization and demobilization to the project site
* Noise mitigation
» Drilling, purchase, and installation of 26-inch diameter permanent conductor casing
» Installation of conductor sealing materials
o Drilling pilot borehole below conductor casing
* Reaming 24-inch diameter well borehole below conductor casing
¢ Hauling and offsite disposal of drilling fluids
» Hauling and offsite disposal of drilling cuttings
o Geophysical logging of pilot borehole
» Purchase and installation of 16-inch diameter type 204 stainless steel well casing
e Purchase and Installation of 16-inch diameter type 304 stainiess steel wire-wrapped
stainless steel well screen and end fitting
+ Purchase and Installation of materials for sounding tube, screen/casing centralizers, and
artificial filter pack.
s |Installation of well seal.
+ Well development by surging and/or airlifting and overpumping.
¢ Installation and removal of pumping equipment for development and testing.
¢ Testing including
o Plumbness and Alignment testing
o Variable rate pumping test
o Constant rate pumping test

Spec. No. 2025-01 30 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT
ver. 100115



o Spinner log during constant rate pumping test
Well disinfection
Video log survey
Well Destruction in the event of unsuccessful borehole or failed well.
Standby time

Without limiting the foregoing description, Contractor’'s scope of work includes, but is not limited
to, the following:

B.
referen

Submit all required samples, product data, certificates, operations and maintenance
instructions, guarantees, and other submittals no later than 15 days after the date SBCWD
issues a Notice to Proceed and before the preconstruction meeting.

Satisfy all requirements of Section 01-11 Submittals within the attached Technical
Specifications.

Submit a list of all permits and licenses the Contractor shall obtain indicating the agency
granting the permit, the expected date to submit the application, and the required date for
the receipt of the permit.

Protect all materials to be used in the Work in accordance with the specifications.

Protect existing facilities and personal property.

Attend a preconstruction conference with SBCWD to discuss schedule, access, sequence
of work, and other issues.

Prepare and submit a written daily activity report to SBCWD for each day on which work
is performed, including weekends and holidays when worked, and submit reports to
SBCWD no later than the next business day. The daily reports shall, at a minimum,
include the following information: construction activities, construction crew sizes of
general and subcontractors, start or completion of activities, progress on construction
activities (including units or portions of work completed), tests or inspections performed,
deliveries of material or equipment, delays or potential delays, visitors to the site, weather
conditions, construction equipment used, and personal injuries or damage to property.
The Contractor shall be responsible for unloading, hoisting and otherwise handling its own
materials, supplies and equipment.

Coordinate with owner-scheduled events.

The Contractor is responsible for researching and complying with all local codes, agencies
and jurisdictions that regulate and govern the Work.

Contractor shall set up, identify, coordinate, provide safe access, and obtain all
inspections for its work, as required by any authorized agency or applicable code, prior to
covering up work.

The following documents are incorporated into and made part of this Agreement by
ce:

Notice Inviting Bids

Instructions to and Information for Bidders
Bid Forms and Addenda

Bid Payment and Performance Bonds
insurance Requirements (Attachment A)
Special Conditions

Bid Schedule

Spec. No. 2025-01 31 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT
ver. 100115



e Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction (the “Green Book”), excluding
Sections 1 through 9, most recent version (the Standard Specifications)
¢ Change Orders issued in accordance with the Contract Documents

C. These documents shall be referred to collectively as the "Contract Documents." The
Contract Documents are intended to be complementary, and a requirement in one document is
as effective as if it appeared in all of the Contract Documents. In the event of a conflict between
any of the Contract Documents, the documents shall be given effect in the following order:
Change Orders (most recent first), Addenda (most recent first), Technical Specifications, Plans,
Special Conditions, Agreement, Standard Specifications, Bid Forms, Instructions to and
Information for Bidders, Notice Inviting Bids.

D. This agreement is for services related to a project that is subject to the Build America, Buy
America Act (BABAA) requirements under Titie IX of the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act
(“IlJA™), Pub. L. 177-58. Absent an approved waiver, all iron, steel, manufactured products, and
construction materials used in this project must be produced in the United States, as further
outlined by the Office of Management and Budget's Memorandum M-22-11, Initial implementation
Guidance on Application of Buy America Preference in Federal Financial Assistance Programs
for Infrastructure, April 18,2022.

E. Contractor shall comply with all requirements of the Contract Documents. Where there is
a conflict between the requirements of the several Contract Documents, the more stringent
requirements shall govern.

SECTION 2 - PRICE

A SBCWD agrees to pay, and Contractor agrees to accept, the sum of Three Million Four
Hundred Twenty Three Thousand Eight Hundred and Twenty Dollars ($3,423.820) (the "Contract
Price") subject to adjustments for changes in the work as may be directed in writing by SBCWD,
as payment in fuil for the Work. Work to be done at unit prices will be paid based on actual
quantities of work performed and accepted.

B. Contractor shall submit a payment application for the total work completed once each
month and upon completion of the Project and satisfaction of all conditions of the Contract
Documents. SBCWD shall make payment within thirty (30) days of receipt of a complete and
undisputed application, less five percent retention. SBCWD shall release the retained funds (less
any amounts in dispute, deducted for liquidated damages or as required by law, or other offsets)
no less than thirty-five (35) days after the date SBCWD accepts the Work. Pursuant to Public
Contract Code Section 22300, for monies earned by the Contractor and withheld by SBCWD to
ensure the performance of the Contract, the Contractor may, at its option, choose to substitute
securities meeting the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 22300.

If any of the Work is to be paid based on unit prices, Contractor shall submit a monthly itemized
estimate of Work done for the purpose of making progress payments. Contractor shall submit,
with each of its payment requests, an adjusted list of actual quantities, verified by SBCWD, for
unit price items listed, if any, in the Bid Form. Following SBCWD's acceptance of the Work, the
Contractor shall submit to SBCWD a written statement of the final quantities of unit price items
for inclusion in the final payment request. SBCWD shall have the right to adjust any estimate of
quantity and to subsequently correct any error made in any estimate for payment.

Spec. No. 2025-01 32 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT
ver. 100115



C. Contractor agrees to furnish, as a condition of payment, payroll affidavits, receipts,
vouchers, certified payroll reports, and other documents, in form satisfactory to SBCWD, prior to
receipt of any payment. Contractor shall submit Conditional and Unconditional waivers and
release of lien upon (as provided in Civil Code Sections 8132, 8134, 8136 and 8138) on behalf of
itself, subcontractors and suppliers that furnished labor, material, equipment or services to the
Project.

SECTION 3 - ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement represents the entire agreement between SBCWD and Contractor and
supersedes any prior written or oral representations. No oral order, objection, direction, claim or
notice by any party or person shall affect or modify any of the terms or obligations contained in
the Contract Documents.

SECTION 4 - TIME

A Contractor shall complete the Project no later than One Hundred (100) calendar days
following SBCWD's issuance of the Notice to Proceed (the "Contract Time"). This Contract Time
includes completion of Contract Bid Items and optional additive bid items. No additional time will
be added to the contract if the optional additive bid items are accepted. Project completion is
defined as full completion of Scope.

B. Contractor shall provide SBCWD with scheduling information in a form acceptable to
SBCWD, including any changes made by SBCWD in the scheduling of work. Contractor shall
coordinate its work with that of all other contractors, subcontractors and suppliers so as not to
delay or damage their performance.

C. If Contractor fails to complete the Project within the Contract Time, SBCWD will sustain
damage. It is and will be impracticable to determine the actual damage which SBCWD will sustain
in the event of and by reason of such delay, therefore Contractor will pay to SBCWD the sum set
forth in the Special Conditions for each and every calendar day's delay beyond the time prescribed
to complete the Work; Contractor agrees to pay such liquidated damages as herein provided, and
in case the same are not paid, agrees that SBCWD may deduct the amount thereof from any
monies due or that may become due the Contractor under the Contract.

D. it is further agreed that in case Contractor fails to complete the Project in all parts and
requirements within the Contract Time, SBCWD shall have the right to extend the Contract Time
or not, as may seem best to serve the interest of SBCWD; and if it decides to extend Contract
Time, SBCWD shall further have the right to charge fo the Contractor, his heirs, assigns or
sureties, and to deduct from the final payment for the work, all or any part, as it may deem proper,
of the actual cost of engineering, inspection, superintendence, and other overhead expenses
directly chargeable to the Contract that accrue during the period of such extension.

E. The Contractor will not be assessed with liquidated damages or the cost of engineering
and inspection during the delay in the completion of the Project caused solely by acts of God or
of the public enemy, fire, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes,
and unusually severe weather or delays of subcontractors due to such causes; provided, that the
Contractor shall within three (3) days from the beginning of any such delay, notify the Engineer,
in writing of the causes of delay. SBCWD shall ascertain the facts and the extent of delay, and
his findings thereon shall be final and conclusive.

Spec. No. 2025-01 33 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT
ver. 100115



F. As an express condition of any adjustment of the Contract Time or Contract Price on
account of delay, including delay caused by acts of SBCWD, Contractor must give SBCWD
written notice of the commencement of delay within three (3) days of its occurrence.

SECTION 5 - LABOR

A. The Contract is subject to California Labor Code Sections 1720 and following, and
Contractor and any subcontractor shall pay not less than the specified prevailing rates of wage to
all workers employed in performance of the Work. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 1770 of
the California Labor Code, SBCWD has obtained the general prevailing rate of wages and
employer payments for health and welfare, vacation, pension and similar purposes in SBCWD,
as determined by the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations, a copy of which is on file
in the office of SBCWD, and shall be made available for viewing to any interested party upon
request. The Contractor and each subcontractor shall forfeit as a penalty to SBCWD not more
than Two Hundred Dollars ($200) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker paid
less than the stipulated prevailing wage rate in violation of the Labor Code. In addition, the
difference between the prevailing wage rate and the amount paid to each worker for each calendar
day or portion thereof for which each worker was paid less than the stipulated prevailing wage
rate shall be paid to each worker by the Contractor.

B. Contractor's attention is directed to the provisions in Section 1777.5 and 1777.6 of the
Labor Code concerning the employment of apprentices by the Contractor or any subcontractor
under the Contractor. It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to effectuate compliance on
the part of itself and any subcontractors with the requirements for employment of apprentices.
Information relative to apprenticeship standards, wage schedules, and other requirements may
be obtained from the Director of Industrial Relations, ex-officio the Administrator of
Apprenticeship, San Francisco, California, or from the Division of Apprenticeship Standards and
its branch offices.

C. Pursuant to Labor Code Section 1776, the Contractor and each subcontractor shall
maintain weekly certified payroll records showing the name, address, social security number,
work classification, straight time and overtime hours paid each day and week, and the actual per
diem wages paid to each journeyman, apprentice, worker or other employee employed in
connection with the work. Contractor shali certify under penalty of perjury that records maintained
and submitted by Contractor are true and accurate. Contractor shall also require subcontractor(s)
to certify weekly payroll records under penalty of perjury. In the event of noncompliance with the
requirements of this Section, the Contractor shall have ten (10) days in which to comply
subsequent to receipt of written notice specifying any item or actions necessary to achieve
compliance with this section. If Contractor or subcontractor does not comply after such ten (10)-
day period, the Contractor shall, as a penalty to SBCWD, forfeit One Hundred Dollars ($100) for
each day, or portion thereof, for each worker until strict compliance is effectuated.

D. In accordance with Labor Code section 1771.4, the Contractor and each subcontractor
shall furnish the certified payroll records directly to the Department of Industrial Relations (“DIR")
on a weekly basis and in the format prescribed by the DIR, which may include electronic
submission. Contractor shall comply with all requirements and regulations from the DIR relating
to labor compliance monitoring and enforcement.

E. Contractor shall post, at appropriate conspicuous points on the Project site, a schedule
showing all determined general prevailing wage rates and all authorized deductions, if any, from
unpaid wages actually earned.

Spec. No. 2025-01 34 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT
ver. 100115



F. Pursuant to the requirements of Division 4 of the Labor Code, the Contractor will be
required to secure the payment of worker's compensation to its employees in accordance with
the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code. Prior to commencement of work, the Contractor
shall sign and file with the Engineer a certification in the following form:

"I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which require every
employer to be insured against liability for worker's compensation or to undertake self-
insurance in accordance with the provisions before commencing the performance of the
work of this contract.”

G. If the Contract Price is greater than $25,000, Contractor shall, in advance of excavation
five feet or more in depth, submit to SBCWD a detailed plan showing the design of shoring,
bracing, sloping or other provisions to be made for worker protection from the hazard of caving
ground during the excavation. If such plan varies from the shoring system standards, the plan
shall be prepared by a registered civil or structural engineer. The plan shall not be less effective
than the shoring, bracing, sloping, or other provisions of the Construction Safety Orders, as
defined in the California Code of Regulations, and all costs therefor shall be included in the
Contract Price. Nothing in this section shall be deemed to allow the use of a shoring, bracing,
sloping, or other protective system less effective than that required by the Construction Safety
Orders. Nothing in this section shall be construed to impose a tort liability on SBCWD, any of ifs
officers, officials, partners, employees, agents, Contractors or volunteers. SBCWD's review of
the Contractor's excavation plan is only for general conformance to the Construction Safety
Orders. Prior to commencing any excavation, the Contractor shall designate in writing to SBCWD
the "competent person(s)" with the authority and responsibilities designated in the Construction
Safety Orders.

H. Full compensation for conforming to the requirements of this section shall be considered
as included in the Contract Price, and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore.

SECTION 6 - CHANGES IN WORK

A. Contractor shall make no changes in the Work without written direction from SBCWD.
Contractor shall not be compensated for any change made without any SBCWD’s written
direction. No changes in the work covered by this Agreement shall exonerate any surety or any
bond given in connection with this Agreement.

B. If SBCWD directs the Contractor in writing to make changes in the work that materially
affect the cost of performing the work, the Contract Price will be adjusted based on one of the
following:

1. Where the work involved is covered by unit prices contained in the Contract
Documents, by application of unit prices to the quantities involved in the changed
Work;

2. By a combination of existing and new unit prices and related quantities for the

changed work;

3. Time and Materials, calculated as set forth in Section 6(C), below; or
4, By mutual acceptance of a lump sum.
Spec. No. 2025-01 35 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT

ver. 100115



C. The cost for extra or changed work performed on a Time and Materials basis shall be
determined as follows:

1.

Labor: Contractor will be paid cost of labor for workers used in actual and direct
performance of extra work, including only :

(a) Actual Wages: Actual wages paid shall include any employer payments to
or on behalf of workers for health and welfare, pension, vacation, and
similar purposes.

(b) Labor Surcharge: Payments imposed by local, county, state, and federal
laws and ordinances, and other payments made to, or on behalf of,
workers, other than actual wages as defined above, such as taxes and
insurance. lLabor surcharge shall be and shall not exceed that set forth in
California Department of Transportation official labor surcharges schedule
which is in effect on date upon which extra or changed work is
accomplished and which schedule is incorporated herein by reference as
though fully set forth herein.

Material: Only materials furnished by Contractor and necessarily used in
performance of extra Work will be paid for. Cost of such materials will be cost,
including sales tax and delivery charges, to purchaser (Contractor, Subcontractor
or other forces) from supplier thereof, except as the following are applicable: (a) If
cash or trade discount by actual supplier is offered or available to purchaser, it
shall be credited to SBCWD notwithstanding fact that such discount may not have
been taken. (b) For materials salvaged upon completion of extra Work, salvage
value of materials shall be deducted from cost, less discounts, of materials. (c) If
SBCWD determines that cost of a material is excessive, then cost of material shall
be deemed to be lowest reasonably available wholesale price at which material is
available in quantities concerned delivered to Site, less any discounts described in
(a), above.

All products must meet BABAA requirements.

Contractor shall include Manufacturer's Certification for BABAA requirements with
all applicable submittals. If a specific manufacture is used in the bidding, a
statement that Manufacturer will comply with BABAA must be included with the bid
submission. Contractor shall comply with BABAA requirements, including
coordination with manufacturers, distributors, and suppliers to correct deficiencies
in any BABAA documentation.

Engineer/Architect approval of shop drawings or samples shall include review of
BABAA documentation.

Contractor shall certify upon completion that all work and materials have complied
with BABAA requirements.

For any change orders, Contractor shall provide BABAA documentation for any
new products or materials required by the change.

Spec. No. 2025-01 36 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT

ver. 100115



Installation of materials or products that are not compliant with BABAA
requirements shall be considered defective work. Contractor shouid ensure that
Engineer/Architect has an approved Manufacturer's Certification or waiver prior to
items being delivered to the project site.

By submitting an application for payment, based in whole or in part on furnishing
equipment or materials, Contractor certifies that such equipment and materials, to
contractor’s knowledge, are compliant with BABAA requirements.

Equipment: For Contractor-owned equipment, payment will be made at rental
rates listed for equipment in California Department of Transportation official
equipment rental rate schedule which is in effect on date upon which extra Work
is accomplished and which schedule is incorporated herein by reference as though
fully set forth herein. If there is no applicable rate for an item of equipment, then
payment shali be made for Contractor- or Subcontractor-owned equipment at
rental rate listed in the most recent edition of the Association of Equipment
Distributors (AED) book.

(a) For rented equipment, payment will be made based on actual rental
invoices. Equipment used on extra Work shall be of proper size and type.

(b) Cost of equipment shall be calculated at rental rate for equipment of proper
size and type, as determined by SBCWD. Rental rates paid shall be
deemed to cover cost of fuel, oil, lubrication, supplies, small tools,
necessary attachments, repairs and mainienance of any kind, depreciation,
storage, insurance, and all incidentals. Unless otherwise specified,
manufacturer's ratings, and manufacturer-approved modifications, shall be
used to classify equipment for determination of applicable rental rates.
Rental time will not be allowed while equipment is inoperative due to
breakdowns.

(c) Individual pieces of equipment or tools having a replacement value of $100
or less, whether or not consumed by use, shall be considered to be small
tools.

Work Performed by Special Forces or Other Special Services: When SBCWD and
Contractor, by agreement, determine that special service or item of extra Work
cannot be performed by forces of Contractor or those of any Subcontractors,
service or extra Work item may be performed by specialist. Invoices for service or
item of extra Work on basis of current market price thereof may be accepted
without complete itemization of labor, material, and equipment rental costs when
it is impracticable and not in accordance with established practice of special
service industry to provide complete itemization. In those instances wherein
Contractor is required to perform extra Work necessitating a fabrication or
machining process in a fabrication or machine shop facility away from Site,
charges for that portion of extra Work performed in such facility may, by
agreement, be accepted as a specialist billing. In lieu of overhead and profit
provided in paragraph 5(a), below, fifteen percent (15%) will be added to specialist
invoice price, after deduction of any cash or trade discount offered or available,
whether or not such discount may have been taken.

Spec. No. 2025-01 37 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT

ver. 100115



5. QOverhead Defined:

(a

The following constitutes charges that are deemed included in overhead
for all Contract Modifications, including work performed on a Time and
Materials basis. Contractor shall not invoice or receive payment for these
costs separately: Drawings: field drawings, Shop Drawings, etc., including
submissions of drawings; Routine field inspection; General
Superintendence; General administration and preparation of cost
proposals, schedule analysis, Change Orders, and other supporting
documentation; Computer services; Reproduction services; Salaries of
project engineer, superintendent, timekeeper, storekeeper, and
secretaries; Janitorial services; Small tools, incidentals and consumables;
Temporary on-Site facilities (Offices, Telephones, Plumbing, Electrical
Power, lighting; Platforms, Fencing, Water, Home office expenses;
vehicles and fuel used for work otherwise included in the Contract
Documents; Surveying; Estimating; Protection of Work; Handling and
disposal fees; Final cleanup; Other incidental Work; Related warranties.

6. QOverhead and Profit for Time and Materials:

For work Contractor performs on Time and Materials at SBCWD’s direction, the following
markups will be added to the cost of labor, materials and equipment, calculated as
described above.

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

(e)

®

)

Spec. No. 2025-01
ver. 100115

Overhead and profit on labor shall be fifteen percent (15%).
Overhead and profit on materials shall be fifteen percent (15%).
Overhead and profit on equipment rental shall be ten percent (10%).

When work is performed by a first tier Subcontractor, Contractor shall
receive a five percent (5%) markup on Subcontractor's total costs of extra
work. First tier Subcontractor's markup on its Work shall not exceed fifteen
percent (15%).

When extra Work is performed by a lower tier Subcontractor, Contractor
shall receive a total of five percent (5%) markup on the lower tier
Subcontractor's total costs of extra work. Contractor and first tier
Subcontractors and lower tier Subcontractors shall divide the fifteen
percent (15%) markup as mutually agreed.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no case shall the total markup on any
extra work exceed twenty percent (20%) of the direct cost, notwithstanding
the actual number of Contract tiers.

On proposals covering both increases and decreases in Contract Price,
overhead and profit shall be allowed on the net increase only as determined
in this paragraph. When the net difference is a deletion, no percentage for
overhead or profit will be allowed, but rather a deduction shali apply.

38 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT



h The markup shall include profit, small tools, cleanup, supervision,
warranties, cost of preparing the cost proposal, jobsite overhead, and home
office overhead. No markup will be allowed on taxes, insurance, and
bonds.

D. If SBCWD directs the Contractor in writing to make changes in the Work that materially
affect the time required to perform the Work, SBCWD will make a reasonable adjustment to the
Contract Time.

SECTION 7 - CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

A, If any dispute shall arise between SBCWD and Contractor regarding performance of the
work, or any alleged change in the work, Contractor shall timely perform the disputed work and
shall give written notice of a claim for additional compensation for the work to SBCWD within three
(3) days after commencement of the disputed work. Contractor's failure to give written notice
within the three (3)-day period constitutes an agreement by Contractor that it will receive no extra
compensation for the disputed work.

B. If a claim cannot be resolved through direct discussions between SBCWD and Contractor,
disputes for $375,000 or less shall be handled in accordance with Public Contract Code Sections
20104 et seq. SBCWD shali respond in writing within 60 Days of receipt, or, may request in
writing within 30 Days of receipt of the claim, any additional documents supporting the claim or
relating to defenses or claims SBCWD may have against the claimant. If additional information
is needed thereafter, it shall be provided upon request. SBCWD's response shall be submitted
within 30 Days after receipt of the further documents, or within the same period of time taken by
the claimant to produce the additional information or documents, whichever is greater. The
Contractor shall make these records and documents available at all reasonable times, without
any direct charge.

C. If a claim is more than $375,000, the parties agree to participate in mediation with a
mutually agreeable mediator following an exchange of documents reasonably necessary for
resolution of the issues in dispute.

D. If the claimant disputes SBCWD's response, or if SBCWD fails to respond within the
statufory time period(s), the claimant may so notify SBCWD within 15 Days of the receipt of the
response or the failure to respond, and demand an informal conference to meet and confer for
settlement. Upon such demand, SBCWD shall schedule a meet and confer conference within 30
Days.

E. If following the meet and confer conference, the claim or any portion thereof remains in
dispute, the claimant may file a claim pursuant to Government Code sections 900 et seq. and
Government Code sections 910 et seq. For purposes of those provisions, the time within which
a claim must be filed shall be tolled from the time the claimant submits the written claim until the
time the claim is denied, including any time utilized for the meet and confer conference.

F. Submission of a claim, properly certified, with all required supporting documentation, and
written rejection or denial of all or part of the claim by SBCWD, is a condition precedent to any
action, proceeding, litigation, suit, or demand for arbitration by Contractor.

G. Venue for any litigation arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be San Benito
County, California.

Spec. No. 2025-01 39 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT
ver. 100115



H. Pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 9201, SBCWD shall provide Contractor with
timely notification of the receipt of any third-party claim relating to the Contract.

SECTION 8 - INSPECTION AND PROTECTION OF WORK

A Responsibility for, and security of, all work and materials is the responsibility of the
Contractor until final acceptance of the Project by SBCWD.

B. Contractor shall make the work accessible at all reasonable times for inspection by
SBCWD. Contractor shall, at the first opportunity, inspect all material and equipment delivered to
the jobsite by others to be used or incorporated in the Contractor's work and give prompt notice
of any defect therein. Contractor assumes full responsibility to protect the work done hereunder
until final acceptance by SBCWD.

C. When the Work is completed, Contractor shall request, in writing, a final inspection. Within
ten (10) days of the receipt of such request, SBCWD shall make a final inspection. The Contractor
or its representatives may be present at the final inspection. The purpose of such final inspection
shall be to determine whether the Work has been completed in accordance with the Contract
Documents, including all change orders and all interpretations and instructions previously issued.

D. SBCWD may reject materials or Work that does not meet the requirements of the Contract
Documents. if SBCWD does so, Contractor shall promptly remove the rejected materials or work
and replace it with materials or work that meet the requirements of the Contract Documents, at
no additional cost to SBCWD.

SECTION 9 - ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING

A Contractor shall give personal attention to the performance of the Confract and shall keep
the Work under its control.

B. No subcontractors will be recognized as such, and all persons engaged in the work of
construction will be considered as employees of the Contractor, who will be held responsible for
their work which shall be subject to the provisions of the Contract and specifications.

C. No subcontractor who is ineligible to bid work on, or be awarded, a public works project
under Labor Code Sections 1771.1 or 1777.7 can bid on, be awarded or perform work as a
subcontractor on the Project. The Contractor is prohibited from performing work on the Project
with a subcontractor who is ineligible to perform work on a public works project under these
sections of the Labor Code.

D. When a portion of the work which has been subcontracted by the Contractor is not being
prosecuted in a manner satisfactory to SBCWD, the subcontractor shall be removed immediately
on the requisition of SBCWD in the manner required by law and shall not again be employed on
the work.

E. Contractor may not assign any portion of the Contract except upon written consent of
SBCWD.
Spec. No. 2025-01 40 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT

ver. 100115



SECTION 10 - TERMINATION

A Should Contractor fail within seven (7) calendar days from receipt of SBCWD's written
notice to correct any default, including but not limited to failure perform the Work in accordance
with the Contract Documents, failure to comply with the directions of SBCWD, or failure pay its
creditors, SBCWD may terminate this Agreement and/or, in its sole discretion, make a demand
on Contractor’'s performance bond surety. Following a termination for default, SBCWD shall have
the right to take whatever steps it deems necessary to complete the Project and correct
Contractor's deficiencies and charge the cost thereof to Contractor, who shall be liable for the full
cost of SBCWD's corrective action, including reasonable overhead, profit and attorneys' fees.

B. SBCWD may at any time terminate the Contract at SBCWD's convenience upon five (5)
days written notice to Contractor; in the event of termination for convenience, Contractor shall
recover only the actual cost of work completed to the date of termination, which costs are
documented to SBCWD's satisfaction, calculated in accordance with Section 6, above.
Contractor shall not be entitled to any claim or lien against SBCWD for any additional
compensation or damages in the event of such termination.

C. If SBCWD terminates Contractor for cause, and if it is later determined that the termination
was wrongful, such default termination shall automatically be converted to and treated as a
termination for convenience. In such event, Contractor shall be entitled to receive only the
amounts payable under this section, and Contractor specifically waives any claim for any other
amounts or damages, including, but not limited to, any claim for consequential damages or lost
profits.

SECTION 11 - HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION

A SBCWD and all officers and employees thereof connected with the Work, shall not be
answerable or accountable in any manner: for any loss or damage that may happen to the Work
or any part thereof; for any loss or damage to any of the materials or other things used or
employed in performing the Work; for injury to or death of any person; or for damage to property
from any cause except losses due to sole or active negligence of SBCWD's officers or employees.

B. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with legal counsel approved by SBCWD, and hold
harmless SBCWD, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers from and against all liability,
loss, damage, expense, cost (including without limitation reasonable legal counsel fees, expert
fees and all other costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or related to the Work
or the Project, except such loss or damage which is caused by the sole or active negligence or
wiliful misconduct of SBCWD. Should conflict of interest principles preclude a single attorney
from representing both SBCWD and Contractor, or should SBCWD otherwise find Contractor's
legal counsel unacceptable, then Contractor shall reimburse SBCWD its costs of defense,
including without limitation reasonable attorney’s fees, expert fees and all other cost and fees of
litigation. The Contractor shall promptly pay any final judgment rendered against SBCWD (and
its officers, officials, employees and volunteers) except for claims determined by a trier of fact to
have been the result of SBCWD's sole or active negligence of willful misconduct. The foregoing
provisions are intended to be as broad and inclusive as is permitted by the law of the State of
California and will survive termination of this Agreement.

C. Contractor’s obligations under this section apply regardless of whether or not such claim,
charge, damage, demand, action, proceeding, loss, stop notice, cost, expense, judgment, civil
fine or penalty, or liability was caused in part or contributed to by an Indemnitee. However, without

Spec. No. 2025-01 41 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT
ver. 100115



affecting the rights of SBCWD under any provision of this agreement, Contractor shall not be
required to indemnify and hold harmless SBCWD for liability attributable to the active negligence
of SBCWD, provided such active negligence is determined by agreement between the parties or
by the findings of a court of competent jurisdiction. In instances where SBCWD is shown to have
been actively negligent and where SBCWD's active negligence accounts for only a percentage of
the liability involved, the obligation of Contractor will be for that entire portion or percentage of
liability not attributable to the active negligence of SBCWD.

D. In addition to any remedy authorized by law, so much of the money due the Contractor
under and by virtue of the contract as shall be considered necessary by SBCWD, may be retained
by SBCWD until disposition has been made of such suits or claims for damage.

SECTION 12 - BONDS AND INSURANCE
A Bonds

1. Within ten (10) days after being notified of the award of the contract, and before
SBCWD will execute the agreement for construction, the Contractor to whom the
Contract is awarded shall furnish and file with SBCWD Performance and Payment
Surety bonds as set forth below.

2. Contractor shall submit the bonds on the forms provided with the Contract
Documents, duly executed by a responsible corporate surety listed in the United
States Department of the Treasury circular entitled "Companies Holding
Certificates of Authority as Acceptable Sureties on Federal Bonds and as
Acceptable Reinsuring Companies,” authorized to do business in the State of
California and acceptable to SBCWD conditioned upon the faithful performance by
the Contractor of all requirements of the Contract Documents. Each of the bonds
shall be in a sum no less than one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract Price.

B. Insurance

1. Contractor shall obtain, at its sole cost and expense, all insurance required by
Attachment A to this Agreement. Certificates of such insurance and copies of the
insurance policies and endorsements shall be delivered to SBCWD within ten (10)
days after being notified of the award of the contract, and before execution of the
agreement for construction by SBCWD.

SECTION 13 - WARRANTY

Contractor warrants to SBCWD that all materials and equipment furnished shall be new, free from
faults and defects and of good quality and conform to the requirements of the Contract
Documents.

Contractor hereby warrants its work against all deficiencies and defects for the period required by
the Contract Documents or the longest period permitted by California law, whichever is greater.
Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, warranty periods shall begin upon the filing
of the Notice of Completion and shall be for one year.

This Article shall not limit SBCWD's rights under this Contract or with respect to latent defects,
gross mistakes, or fraud. SBCWD specifically reserves all rights related to defective work,

Spec. No. 2025-01 42 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT
ver. 100115



including but not limited to defect claims pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure Section
337.15.

SECTION 14 - LAWS TO BE OBSERVED

A Contractor shall keep itself fully informed of all existing and future state and federal laws
and county and municipal ordinances and regulations that in any manner affect those engaged
or employed in the work, or the materials used in the work, or which in any way affect the conduct
of work, and of all such orders and decrees of bodies or tribunals having any jurisdiction or
authority over the same.

B. Contractor shall at all times observe and comply with, and shall cause all of its agents and
employees to observe and comply with all such existing and future Federal, State and local laws,
ordinances, regulations, orders, and decrees of bodies or tribunals having any jurisdiction or
authority over the Project; and shall protect and indemnify SBCWD, and all officers and
employees thereof connected with the Project, against any claim or liability arising from or based
on the violation of any such law, ordinance, regulation, order, or decree, whether by SBCWD's
representative or their employees. If any discrepancy or inconsistency is discovered in the plans,
drawings, specifications, or contract for the work in relation to any such law, ordinance, regulation,
order or decree, Contractor shall promptly report the same to SBCWD in writing.

C. This Contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State
of California.
D.

SECTION 15 - MISCELLANEOUS

A Existing Utilities

The location of known existing utilities and pipelines are shown on the Plans in their approximate
locations. However, nothing herein shall be deemed to require SBCWD to indicate the presence
of existing service laterals or appurtenances whenever the presence of such utilities on the site
of the project can be inferred from the presence of other visible facilities, such as buildings,
cleanouts, meter and junction boxes, on or adjacent to the site of the Project. Underground
facilities not known to SBCWD may exist, or be in a location different from that which is shown in
the Contract Documents.

Contractor shall take all steps reasonably necessary to ascertain the exact location of all
underground facilities prior to doing work that may damage such facilities or interfere with their
service, including but not limited to calling Underground Service Alert to locate utilities in
accordance with the procedures described in Government Code 4215 et seq. Contractor shall
protect from damage any utility facilities that are to remain in place, be installed, relocated or
otherwise rearranged.

If the Contractor is required to locate, repair damage not due to the Contractor’s failure to exercise
reasonable care, and remove or relocate existing main or trunk line utility facilities, it shall be
compensated under Section 6 of this Contract — Changes in the Work — including payment for
equipment on the Project necessarily idled during such work.

Spec. No. 2025-01 43 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT
ver. 100115



The right is reserved by SBCWD and the owners of underground facilities or their authorized
agents, to enter the job for the purpose of making such changes as are necessary for the
rearrangement of their facilities or for making necessary connection or repairs to their properties.
The Contractor shall cooperate with forces engaged in such work and shall conduct his operations
in such a manner as to avoid any delay or hindrance to the work being performed by such other
forces.

SBCWD will assume the responsibility for the timely removal, relocation, or protection of existing
main or trunk line utility facilities located on the Project site if such utilities are not identified by
SBCWD in the Contract Documents or which can reasonably be inferred from the presence of
other visible facilities.

B. Utility Location

it shall be the Contractor’s responsibility to determine the exact location and depth of all utilities,
including service connections, which have been marked by the respective utility owners and which
the Contractor believes may affect or be affected by the Contractor’s operations. The Contractor
shall not be entitled to additional compensation nor time extensions for work necessary to avoid
interferences nor for repair to damaged utilities if the Contractor does not expose all such existing
utilities as required by this section.

The locating of utilities shall be in conformance with Government Code Section 4216 except for
SBCWD'’s utilities located on SBCWD's property and not on public right-of-way.

After the utility survey is complete, the Contractor shall commence “potholing” or hand digging to
determine the actual location of the pipe, duct, or conduit. Contractor shall notify SBCWD before
starting potholing operations.

The Contractor’s attention is directed to the requirements of Government Code Section 4216.2
(a)(2) which provides: “When the excavation is proposed within 10 feet of a high priority
subsurface installation, the operator of the high priority subsurface installation shall notify the
excavator of the existence of the high priority subsurface installation prior to the legal excavation
start date and time, as such date and time are authorized pursuant to paragraph (1) of subdivision
(a) of 4216.2. The excavator and the operator or its representative shall conduct an onsite
meeting at a mutually-agreed-on time to determine actions or activities required to verify the
location of the high priority subsurface installation prior to start time.” The Contractor shall notify
SBCWD in advance of this meeting.

o Differing Site Conditions

1. The Contractor shall promptly, and before the following conditions are disturbed,
notify SBCWD in writing of any:

(a) Material that the Contractor believes may be material that is hazardous
waste, as defined in Section 25117 of the Health and Safety Code, that is
required to be removed to a Class |, Class li, or Class H! disposal site in
accordance with provisions of existing law.

(b) Subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site differing materially from
those indicated by information about the site made available to bidders
before the deadline for submitting bids, or

Spec. No. 2025-01 44 00 52 13 - AGREEMENT
ver. 100115



(c) Unknown physical conditions at the site of any unusual nature, differing
materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as
inherent in work of the character provided for in this Contract.

Contractor shall give Notice in accordance with the Change Order provisions
above.

SBCWD shall promptly investigate the conditions, and if it finds that such
conditions do materially so differ, or do involve hazardous waste, and cause an
increase or decrease in the Contractor's cost of, or the time required for,
performance of any part of the Work, it shall issue a change order under the
provisions described in the Contract Documents.

No claim of the Contractor under this clause shall be allowed unless the Contractor
has given the notice required in the Contract Documents.

In the event a dispute arises between SBCWD and the Contractor as to whether
the conditions materially differ, or involve hazardous waste, or cause a decrease
or increase in the Contractor's cost of, or time required for, performance of any
part of the work, Contractor shall not be excused from completing the Work as
provided in the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall proceed with all work
to be performed under the Contract. The Contractor shall retain any and all rights
provided either by this Contract or by law, which pertain to the resolution of
disputes and protests.

D. Records and Audits

1.

Contractor and its subcontractors shall establish and maintain records pertaining
to this contract. Contractor's and subcontractors' accounting systems shall
conform to generally accepted accounting principles and all records shall provide
a breakdown of all costs charged under this contract, including properly executed
payrolls, time records, invoices and vouchers.

Contractor shall permit SBCWD and its authorized representatives to inspect,
examine and make copies of Contractor's books, records, accounts, and any and
all data relevant to this Contract at any reasonable time for the purpose of auditing
and verifying statements, invoices, or bills submitted by Contractor pursuant to this
contract and shall provide such assistance as may be reasonably required in the
course of such inspection. SBCWD further reserves the right to examine and re-
examine said books, records, accounts, and data during the three (3)-year period
following the termination of this Contract; and Contractor shall in no event dispose
of, destroy, alter, or mutilate said books, records, accounts, and data in any
manner whatever for three (3) years after the termination of this Contract.

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 8546.7, the parties to this
Contract shall be subject to the examination and audit of representative of the
Auditor General of the State of California for a period of three (3) years after final
payment under the contract. The examination and audit shall be confined to those

Spec. No. 2025-01 45 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT

ver. 100115



matters connected with the performance of this contract including, but not limited
to, the cost of administering the contract.

E. Clayton Act and Cartwright Act

Section 7103.5 of the Public Contract Code specifies that in entering into a public works contract
or a subcontract to supply goods, services or materials pursuant to a public works contract, the
contractor or subcontractor offers and agrees to assign to the awarding body all rights, title, and
interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C.
Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 commencing with Sec. 16700) of Part 2 of
Division 7 of the Business Profession Code, arising from purchase of goods, services or materials
pursuant to the contract or subcontract. Pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 7103.5 the
Contractor and all of its Subcontractors hereby offer and agree to assign to SBCWD all rights,
title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act
(15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 commencing with Sec. 16700) of
Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business Profession Code, arising from purchase of goods, services or
materials pursuant to this Agreement. This assignment shall become effective when SBCWD
tenders final payment to the Contractor without further acknowledgement by the parties.

F. Site Superintendent

The Contractor shall provide competent supervision and staffing of the Work as approved by
SBCWD. The Contractor or designated representative shall be present at the site at all times
while work is actually in progress. Superintendent must be able to proficiently speak, read and
write in English.

G. Character of Workers

If any or person employed by the Contractor or any Subcontractor shall appear to SBCWD to be
incompetent or to act in a disorderly or improper manner, he shall be discharged immediately on
the request of SBCWD, and such person shall not again be employed on the Work.

H. Notices

All notices permitted or required under this Agreement shall be given at the following address, or
at such other address as the parties may provide in writing for this purpose:

San Benito County Water District: CONTRACTOR:
Email: dmacdonald@sbcwd.com Email:
Attn: David Macdonald Attn:

The parties may designate, in writing, other individuals to whom notice is to be given. Notices
shall be deemed to be received upon personal delivery to the addresses above; if sent by email,
upon delivery; if sent by overnight delivery, upon delivery as shown by delivery service records; if
sent by facsimile, upon receipt as confirmed by the sending facsimile equipment; if by United
States Postal Service, five days after deposit in the mail.

Spec. No. 2025-01 46 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT
ver. 100115



SECTION 16 - WAIVERS OF LIEN

Upon request the Contractor shall submit a complete list of major suppliers and/or subcontractors
who will be providing material and/or labor for the performance of the Work, and shall submit with
each payment request waivers of lien from each major supplier and/or subcontractor. Sample
forms to be used will be furnished by SBCWD.

SECTION 17 - CLEAN-UP

Contractor will remove from the project site all debris resulting from performance of the Work no
less often than daily. If Contractor fails to do so, SBCWD may, after twenty-four (24) hours' notice
to Contractor, clean up the site and deduct the cost from the Contract Price.

SECTION 18 - LICENSE REQUIREMENT

Contractor's attention is directed to Business and Professions Code Sections 7000 et seq.
concerning the licensing of contractors. At the time Contractor enters into this Contract and all
times Contractor is performing the Work, Contractor shall have a valid license issued by the
Contractors State License Board in the classification stated in the Special Conditions. All bidders
and subcontractors shall be licensed in accordance with the laws of this State and any contractor
or subcontractor not so licensed is subject to penalties imposed by such laws.

Contractors are required by law to be licensed and regulated by the Contractors’ State License
Board which has jurisdiction to investigate complaints against contractors if a complaint regarding
a patent act or omission is filed within four (4) years of the date of the alleged violation. A
complaint regarding a latent act or omission pertaining to structural defects must be filed within
ten (10) years of the date of the alleged violation. Any questions concerning a contractor may be
referred to the Registrar, Contractors’ State License Board, P.O. Box 26000, Sacramento,
California 95826.

SECTION 19 - COMPLIANCE WITH STATE STORM WATER PERMIT

Contractor shall be required to comply with all aspects of the State Water Resources Control
Board (State Water Board) Water Quality Order No. 2009-0009-DWQ, including any and all
subsequent amendments. National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System General Permit for
Storm Water Discharges Associated with Construction Activity (Permit) for all projects that involve
construction on or disturbance of one acre or more of land or which are part of a larger common
area of development.

Spec. No. 2025-01 47 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT
ver. 100115



SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT: CONTRACTOR:

By: By:
{Authorized Representative of Contractor)

Dated: May 28, 2025

Printed Name:

ATTEST:
Title:
(Attach Notary Acknowledgment for
Authorized Representative of Contractor)
Board Secretary
License No.
Dated:
(Contractor Signature must be Notarized)
Spec. No. 2025-01 48 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT

ver. 100115



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

SPECIAL CONDITIONS
LIQUIDATED DAMAGES
A. As provided in the Notice Inviting Bids, Contractor shall pay to SBCWD the sum of
$1,000 for each and every calendar day's delay in completion of the Work beyond
expiration of the Contract Time.

LICENSE CLASSIFICATION

A. In accordance with Section 3300 of the Public Contract Code, SBCWD has
determined that the Contractor shall have a Class C-57 Well Drilling Contractor
License at the time it enters into the Contract and at all times it is performing the
Work.

ASSIGNED CONTRACTOR PERSONNEL

A. Contractor and subcontractor employees who will perform on this project may be
subject to a background investigation.

COOPERATION AND CARE

A. Should construction be under way by SBCWD, other agencies or other contractors
within or adjacent to the limits of the work specified or should work of any other nature
be under way by other forces within or adjacent to said limits, the Contractor shall
cooperate with all such other contractors or other forces to the end that any delay or
hindrance to their work will be avoided. SBCWD reserves the right to perform other
or additional work at or near the site (including material sources) at any time, by the
use of other forces.

B. Until the final acceptance of the contract, the Contractor shall have the charge and
care of the Work and of the materials to be used therein, including materials for which
partial payment has been received. SBCWD shall not be held responsible for the
care or protection of any material or parts of the Work prior to final acceptance, except
as expressly provided in the Special Conditions.

C. The contractor shall verify all elevations and dimensions shown on the construction
drawings within SBCWD right-of-way prior to starting Work. The contractor shall
notify the owner's representative of any discrepancy in the construction drawings or
site conditions so that proper clarifications can be made before construction begins.

PROGRESS OF THE WORK

A. Hours of work - Overtime and holidays. The Contractor shall perform all work during
the hours of 8:00 am. to 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday unless otherwise
authorized by SBCWD in writing. If the Contractor wishes to work during any other
hours or on weekends, written permission must be received from SBCWD. The
request must be received at least two (2) working days in advance of any work. No
work will be allowed on SBCWD Holidays except in the case of an emergency. A
listing of SBCWD holidays is on file in the office of SBCWD. If Contractor requests
overtime work in which SBCWD will incurs costs, Contractor shall be responsible for

Spec. No. 2025-01 49 00 73 13 -SPECIAL CONDITIONS
ver. 100115



payment of SBCWD's costs incurred in connection with the overtime work. SBCWD
will invoice the Contractor at time and one half to cover the costs incurred. |If
Contractor does not pay the invoice within ten (10) days, SBCWD may deduct the
amount billed from other payments due or to become due to Contractor under the
Contract.

SBCWD shall have the authority to suspend the Work wholly or in part, for such a
period as it may deem necessary.

Inspection. All Work shall be inspected by SBCWD. The charges for inspection shall
be in accordance with SBCWD's regulations. If SBCWD is unable to provide an
inspector or inspectors, Contractor shall reschedule the Work for another time at no
cost to SBCWD. Work performed without inspection shall be rejected.

1.6 LIMITS OF WORK

A. The "limits of work" are shown on the plans. The Contractor shall make its own
arrangements and pay all expenses for additional area required outside of the limits
of work unless provided in the Special Conditions.

1.7 TEMPORARY FIELD OFFICE

NOT USED.

1.8 FUGITIVE DUST

A. In addition to all other environmental and air quality requirements of the Contract
Documents, Contractor must also comply with Monterey Bay Air Resources District’s
Fugitive Dust regulations, to reduce the amount of particulate matter entrained in the

ambient air as a result of the Project.

B. SBCWD has considered these other contractors when determining the Contract Times
and no additional time or compensation will be added to the Contract due to these
requirements.

1.9 BUILD AMERICA BUY AMERICA

A.  Opinions of total project costs and revisions thereof should refltect compliance with
BABAA requirements.

B. Determine and certify that to the best of Provider's knowledge and belief all iron and
steel products, manufactured products, and construction materials referenced in any
technical analysis/report; the plans, specifications, and bidding documents; any bid
addenda; and change orders comply with all federal requirements, including BABAA.

C. Review and approve or take action with respect to shop drawings, samples, and other
required Contractor submittals, including applications for payment, to ensure
compliance with BABAA.

D. Review substitutes and “or equals” for conformity with contract conditions, [insert
name of Agency] regulations, and BABAA requirements.

Spec. No. 2025-01 50 0073 13 -SPECIAL CONDITIONS

ver. 100115



E. Obtain and review manufacturers’' and contractors’ certifications on compliance with
BABAA requirements and maintain copies of certifications in project files.

F. Assist Owner, if needed, in due diligence related to any BABAA waiver request.

END OF SPECIAL CONDITIONS

Spec. No. 2025-01 51 0073 13 -SPECIAL CONDITIONS
ver. 100115



1.

ATTACHMENT A
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR MINOR PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS

Time for Compliance. Contractor shall not commence Work under this Agreement until it has
provided evidence satisfactory to SBCWD that it has secured all insurance required under this
Section. Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance
meeting all the requirements stated herein. Contractor shall not allow any subcontractor to
commence work on any subcontract until it has provided evidence SBCWD that the
subcontractor has secured all insurance required under this Section.

Minimum_Requirements. Contractor shall, at its expense, procure and maintain for the

duration of the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the Agreement by the
Contractor, its agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. Contractor shall also
require all of its subcontractors to procure and maintain the same insurance for the duration
of the Agreement and shall verify subcontractors’ compliance. Contractor's and
subcontractor’s insurance shall meet at least the following minimum levels of coverage:

(A) Minimum Scope of Insurance. Coverage shall be at least as broad as the latest
version of the following: (1) General Liability: Insurance Services Office Commercial
General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001); (2) Automobile Liability: Insurance
Services Office Business Auto Coverage form number CA 0001, code 1 (any auto) or if
Conftractor has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (hon-owned); and (3) Workers’
Compensation and Employer’s Liability: Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by
the State of California and Employer’s Liability Insurance, with statutory limits. The policy
shall not contain any exclusion contrary to the Agreement, including but not limited to
endorsements or provisions limiting coverage for (1) contractual liability or (2) cross liability
for claims or suits by one insured against another.

B) Minimum Limits of Insurance. Contractor shall maintain limits no less than; (1)
General Liability: $2 Million per occurrence, $4 Million aggregate for bodily injury, personal
injury and property damage. If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with
general aggregate limit is used including, but not limited to, form CG 2503, either the
general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this Agreement/location or the general
aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit; (2) Automobile Liability.$1
million per accident for bodily injury and property damage; and (3) Workers’ Compensation
and Employer's Liability: Workers’ Compensation: statutory limits. Employer’'s Liability
limits of $1 million per accident for bodily injury or disease. Defense costs shall be paid in
addition to the limits. Notwithstanding the minimum limits set forth above, any available
insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of coverage shall be
available to the parties required to be named as additional insureds.

©) Notices: Cancellation or Reduction of Coverage. At least fifteen (15) days prior to
the expiration of any such policy, evidence showing that such insurance coverage has
been renewed or extended shall be filed with SBCWD. If such coverage is cancelled or
materially reduced, Contractor shall, within ten (10) days after receipt of written notice of
such cancellation or reduction of coverage, file with SBCWD evidence of insurance
showing that the required insurance has been reinstated or has been provided through
another insurance company or companies. In the event any policy of insurance required
under this Agreement does not comply with these specifications or is canceled and not
replaced, SBCWD has the right but not the duty to obtain the insurance it deems

Spec. No. 2025-01 52 0073 13 -ATTACHMENT A
ver. 100115 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS



necessary and any premium paid by SBCWD will be promptly reimbursed by Contractor
or SBCWD may withhold amounts sufficient to pay premium from Contractor payments.
in the alternative, SBCWD may suspend or terminate this Agreement.

3. Insurance Endorsements. The insurance policies shall contain the following provisions, or
Contractor shall provide endorsements on forms approved by SBCWD, to add the following
provisions to the insurance policies:

A) General Liability. The general liability policy shall include or be endorsed
(amended) to state that: (1) using ISO CG forms 20 10 and 20 37 (including completed
operations), or endorsements providing the exact same coverage, SBCWD, its directors,
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers and any other Additional Insured
named in the Special Conditions shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to
the Work or ongoing and completed operations performed by or on behalf of the
Contractor, including materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with such
work; and (2) using ISO form 20 01, or endorsements providing the exact same coverage,
the insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects SBCWD, its directors,
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers and any other Additional Insured
named in the Special Conditions, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of
coverage excess of the Contractor's scheduled underlying coverage. Any excess
insurance shall contain a provision that such coverage shall also apply on a primary and
noncontributory basis for the benefit of SBCWD, before SBCWD's own primary insurance
or self-insurance shall be called upon to protect it as a named insured. Any insurance or
self-insurance maintained by SBCWD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents,
and volunteers and any other Additional Insured named in the Special Conditions shall be
excess of the Contractor's insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in
any way.

(B) Automobile Liability. The automobile liability policy shall include or be endorsed
(amended) to state that: (1) SBCWD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents,
and volunteers and any other Additional Insured named in the Special Conditions shall be
covered as additional insureds with respect to the ownership, operation, maintenance,
use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Contractor
or for which the Contractor is responsible; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance as respects SBCWD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and
volunteers and any other Additional Insured named in the Special Conditions, or if excess,
shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Contractor's scheduled
underlying coverage. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by SBCWD, its
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers and any other Additional
insured named in the Special Conditions shall be excess of the Contractor's insurance
and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way. Notwithstanding the minimum
limits set forth above, any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified
minimum limits of coverage shall be available to the parties required to be named as
additional insureds.

(C) Workers’ Compensation and Employer's Liability Coverage. The insurer shall
agree, using form WC 00 03 13 or the exact equivalent to waive all rights of subrogation
against SBCWD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers and
any other Additional Insured named in the Special Conditions for losses paid under the
terms of the insurance policy.

Spec. No. 2025-01 53 0073 13 -ATTACHMENT A
ver. 100115 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS



D) All_Coverages. Each insurance policy required by this Agreement shall be
endorsed to include the following provisions:

® coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced or canceled except after
thirty (30) days (10 days for nonpayment of premium) prior written notice by
certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to SBCWD and all
additional insureds,

(ii) any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies,
including breaches of warranties, shall not affect coverage provided to SBCWD
and any other additional insureds,

iii) standard separation of insureds provisions,

(iv) no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to SBCWD, and
all additional insureds,

(v) waiver of any right of subrogation of the insurer against SBCWD, its
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or any other additional
insureds, or shall specifically allow Contractor or others required to provide
insurance in compliance with these specifications to waive their right of recovery
prior to a loss. By signing this agreement, Contractor hereby waives its own right
of recovery against SBCWD or any other additional insureds, and shall require
similar written express waivers and insurance clauses from each of its
subcontractors.

4. Deductibles and Self-Insurance Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must
be declared to and approved by SBCWD. Contractor shall guarantee that, at the option of
SBCWD, either: (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured
retentions as respects SBCWD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and
volunteers and any other Additional Insured named in the Special Conditions; or (2) the
Contractor shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation
costs, claims, and administrative and defense expenses.

5. Claims Made Policies. Claims made policies are not acceptable.

6. Subcontractor Insurance Requirements. Contractor shall not allow any subcontractors to
commence work on any subcontract relating to the work under the Agreement until Contractor
has verified that the subcontractor has provided evidence to SBCWD that they have secured
all insurance required under this Section. If requested by Contractor, SBCWD may approve
different scopes or minimum limits of insurance for particular subcontractors. The Contractor
and SBCWD shall be named as additional insureds on all subcontractors’ policies of
Commercial General Liability Insurance.

7. Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's
rating no less than A:VII, licensed to do business in California, and satisfactory to SBCWD.

8. Verification of Coverage. Contractor shall furnish SBCWD with original certificates of
insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by this Agreement on forms
satisfactory to SBCWD. The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy shall be
signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. All certificates

Spec. No. 2025-01 54 00 73 13 -ATTACHMENT A
ver. 100115 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS



and endorsements must be received and approved by SBCWD before work commences.
SBCWD reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance
policies, at any time.

9. Reservation of Rights. SBCWD reserves the right to modify these requirements, including
limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special
circumstances.

END OF INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Spec. No. 2025-01 55 0073 13 -ATTACHMENT A
ver. 100115 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS



San Benito County Water District

North San Benito ADROP ASR Wells 2, 4, and Optional Well 1

BID SUMMARY

Bid Opening: May 15, 2025 @ 2:00 PM
Total Bids Received:

Apparent Low Bidder: Pacific Coast Well Drilling

AI
.’/0
06.
&
& &
& L/ F
& &S N%3 e
S/ &S S ES S
NI & & &
VI I IR IE /XS
) $ /S NS < 2/ &
BIDDER'S NAME BiD AMOUNT <° & o ) e \s <& Q'
I e D o -0 & < & & >
IS NS oSS E &/ @
QQ N N <& ..90 &
) 3 & & 3
&S ES LSS o
) &0 ) & ® <
& o &
Q /f$ O»
&
N . .
Ry Total (Basis of Low Bid
A3 Determination)

1|Pacific Coast Well Drilling, Inc $3,423,820.00 X X X X X $3,423,820.00
2{Well industries, Inc $3,708,080.00 X X X X X $3,708,080.00
3{Zim Industries, inc. $3,817,305.00 X X X X X $3,817,305.00
4iSouth Valley Companies, Inc $4,938.420.00 X X X X X $4,938,420.00
5

6




San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal

Agenda Item: H 5/

Meeting Date: May 28, 2025
Submitted By: David Macdonald, P.E.

Presented By: David Macdonald, P.E.

Agenda Title: Consider Awarding a Contract to Pacific Coast Well Drilling, Inc. for the North
San Benito ADROP ASR Well 3, 5, and Optional Well 1 Construction and Authorizing the
General Manager to Execute all Documents Necessary (NTE - $3,655,911)

Detailed Description: As part of the Hollister Urban Area Water and Wastewater Master Plan,
The West Hills Water Treatment Plant was constructed in 2015 and 2016 as a 4.5 MGD potable
water supply for the City of Hollister and surrounding urban areas. Due to continuing drought
conditions at the time, San Benito County Water District, in coordination with the local retail
water agencies, evaluated a number of water supply alternatives and ultimately determined to
choose the Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADROoP) to increase water supply reliability
for existing customers during subsequent droughts. This project includes expanding the current
West Hills Treatment Plant capacity to 6.75 MGD, constructing a conveyance pipeline, and
installing injection and extraction wells in the Fallon Road Area.

This contract approves the drilling and installation of the injection and extraction (ASR or
‘Aquifer Storage and Recovery’) wells in the Fallon Road Area part of this project. It includes
installation of two (2) ASR with the option of a third well at the discretion of the District as
further described by the tasks below:
e Drilling, purchase, and installation of 26-inch diameter permanent conductor casing
e Drilling pilot borehole below conductor casing
e Reaming 24-inch diameter well borehole below conductor casing
e Hauling and offsite disposal of drilling fluids and cuttings
e Geophysical logging of pilot borehole
e Purchase and Install 16-inch diameter type 304 stainless steel well casing and 16-inch
diameter type 304 stainless steel wire-wrapped stainless steel well screen and end fittings
e Purchase and installation of materials for sounding tube, screen/casing centralizers, and
artificial filter pack
e Installation of well seal
e Well development by surging and/or airlifting and over pumping
e Installation and removal of pumping equipment for development and testing
e Testing including:
o Plumbness and Alignment testing
o Variable rate pumping test




o Constant rate pumping test
o Spinner log during constant rate pumping test
Well disinfection
Video log survey
Well destruction in the event of unsuccessful borehole or failed well
Standby Time

The bidding period for the project ended on May 15, 2025 with 4 contractors submitting bids.
Of the 4 bids received, Pacific Coast Well Drilling, Inc. was the lowest responsive bidder at
$3,481,820.00. The complete list of bids is as follows:

1. Pacific Coast Well Drilling, Inc. $3,481,820
2. Well Industries, Inc $3,848,080
3. Zim Industries, Inc $3,992,795
4. South Valley Companies, Inc $4,938,420

Todd Engineers, the design engineer/geologists for the project, prepared the plans and
specifications for the North San Benito ADROP ASR Wells 3, 5, and Optional Well 1, and
provided an engineer’s estimate of $2,777,390 for 2 ASR wells and $4,131,085 for three ASR
wells. Three bids came in below this estimate, giving the District confidence that the bids and
engineers estimate were reasonable.

Following the bid opening, SBCWD and Todd Groundwater reviewed the Pacific Coast Well
Drilling, Inc. bid for completeness and relevant experience and determined Pacific Coast Well
Drilling, Inc. to be the lowest competent bidder.

Considering the low bid was 16% less than the engineers estimate, staff recommends awarding a
contract to Pacific Coast Well Drilling, Inc. in the amount of $3,481,820 to construct the ADRoP
ASR Wells 3, 5, and Optional Well 1.

In addition to the $3,481,820 for the North San Benito ADROP ASR Well 3, 5, and Optional
Well 1 contract, staff requests that the Board authorize the General Manager to issue change
orders to the contract in an amount not to exceed 5% ($174,091) of the total contract. This
would bring the total not to exceed Board authorization for the project to $3,655,911.

A significant portion of the project will be funded by grants, including the SGMA
Implementation Grant and the WaterSMARTS Small Storage Grant. Due to funding restrictions
in these grants, this project must be completed by spring 2026.

Environmental Determination:

Per Resolution No. 2025-05 which was passed and adopted at a Special Meeting on April 9"
2025, the Board adopted by Resolution the San Benito County Water District Mitigated Negative
Declaration for the Accelerated Drought Response Project. The Board also adopted by
Resolution the California Environmental Quality Act Findings of Fact, Mitigation Measures, and
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for the Wells and Pipelines Elements of ADRoP.




Materials Included:
1. Zone 6 Water Supply and Operations Committee Recommendation

2. Construction Contract
3. List of Bids from all bidders

Financial Impact: X Yes No

Funding Source/ Recap:
600-1351-C129-151-02 — SGMA Implementation Grant
600-1351-D129-151-02 — WaterSMART Small Storage Grant

Recommendation: Approve the project authorization in the amount of $3,655,911 and authorize
the General Manager to execute a contract with Pacific Coast Well Drilling, Inc. in the amount
not to exceed $3,481,820.

Action Required: Resolution X Motion Review
Board Action
Resolution No.  Motion By Second By
Ayes Abstained
Noes Absent
Reagendized Date No Action Taken




BOARD AGENDA MEMO

DATE: May 20, 2025

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Zone 6 Water Supply and Operations Committee
(Williams* / Wright)

SUBJECT: Committee Recommendation that the Board Award a Contract to
Pacific Coast Drilling for the North San Benito Accelerated Drought Response
Project (ADRoP) for Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) Well 3, 5 and Optional
Well 1 Construction and Authorize General Manager to execute all necessary
documents (NTE $ 3,481,820)

The Zone 6 Water Supply and Operations Committee met on May 20, 2025 and
staff reviewed the bids for the North San Benito Accelerated Drought Response
Project (ADRoP) for Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) Well 3, 5 and Optional
Well 1 Construction .

The Zone 6 Water Supply and Operations Committee recommends the Board
Award a Contract to Pacific Coast Drilling for the North San Benito Accelerated
Drought Response Project (ADRoP) for Aquifer Storage and Recovery (ASR) Well
3, 5 and Optional Well 1 Construction and Authorize General Manager to
execute all necessary documents (NTE $ 3,481,820),

Ol Willigms W2lusy! him&€ /@W

Director Williams* DirectoyWright

(B %M>




AGREEMENT
North San Benito ADRoP ASR Well 3, 5, and Optional Well 1

This Agreement is made this 28" day of _May , 2025 , between the San Benito County Water
District (“SBCWD") and _Pacific Coast Well Drilling, Inc_ ("Contractor”") for performance of the
following public work of improvement __North San Benito ADRoP ASR Well 3, 5, and Optional
Well 1 (the "Project” or the “Work"), which shall be performed in accordance with all plans,
specifications and other contract documents attached to or incorporated into this Agreement.

SECTION 1 - SCOPE

A Contractor shail furnish all necessary management, supervision, labor, materials, tools,
supplies, equipment, plant, services, engineering, testing and/or any other act or thing required
to diligently and fully perform and complete the Project in accordance with the Contract
Documents, which is generally described as follows:

1. Per the technical specifications, drill, install, and develop two (2) ASR wells with the
option of a third at the discretion and direction of the District. All wells will require drilling
pilot holes and reaming, if necessary, of the pilot hole to allow for installation of a 16-inch
diameter nominal pipe size stainless steel casing, 16-inch diameter continuous wire
wrap stainless steel well screen, 3-inch diameter filter pack feed pipe, 3-inch diameter
sounding tube, artificial filter pack, and sanitary seal.

The work shall include the following tasks:
o Utility clearance

» Mobilization and demobilization to the project site
+ Noise mitigation
¢ Drilling, purchase, and installation of 26-inch diameter permanent conductor casing
+ Installation of conductor sealing materials
¢ Dirilling pilot borehole below conductor casing
» Reaming 24-inch diameter well borehole below conductor casing
+ Hauling and offsite disposal of drilling fluids
» Hauling and offsite disposal of drilling cuttings
¢ Geophysical logging of pilot borehoie
» Purchase and Installation of 16-inch diameter type 204 stainless steel well casing
¢ Purchase and Installation of 16-inch diameter type 304 stainless steel wire-wrapped
stainless steel well screen and end fitting
¢ Purchase and Installation of materials for sounding tube, screen/casing centralizers, and
artificial filter pack.
¢ Installation of well seal.
* Well development by surging and/or airlifting and overpumping.
+ Installation and removal of pumping equipment for development and testing.
¢ Testing including
o Plumbness and Alignment testing
o Variable rate pumping test
o Constant rate pumping test

Spec. No. 2025-02 30 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT
ver. 100115



o Spinner log during constant rate pumping test
Well disinfection
Video log survey
Well Destruction in the event of unsuccessful borehole or failed well.
Standby time

Without limiting the foregoing description, Contractor's scope of work includes, but is not limited
to, the following:

B.
referen

Specifications.

Submit a list of all permits and licenses the Contractor shall obtain indicating the agency
granting the permit, the expected date to submit the application, and the required date for
the receipt of the permit.

Protect all materials to be used in the Work in accordance with the specifications.

Protect existing facilities and personal property.

Attend a preconstruction conference with SBCWD to discuss schedule, access, sequence
of work, and other issues.

Prepare and submit a written daily activity report to SBCWD for each day on which work
is performed, inclu ing weekends and holidays when worked, and submit reports to

deliveries of material or equipment, delays or potential delays, visitors to the site, weather
conditions, construction equipment used, and personal injuries or damage to property.
The Contractor shall be responsible for unloading, hoisting and otherwise handling its own
materials, supplies and equipment,

Coordinate with owner-scheduled events.

The Contractor is responsible for researching and complying with all local codes, agencies
and jurisdictions that regulate and govern the Work.

Contractor shall set up, identify, coordinate, provide safe access, and obtain all
inspections for its work, as required by any authorized agency or applicable code, prior to
covering up work.

The following documents are incorporated into and made part of this Agreement by
ce:

Notice Inviting Bids
Instructions to and Information for Bidders
Bid Forms and Addenda

Bid Payment and Performance Bonds
Insurance Requirements (Attachment A)
Special Conditions

Bid Schedule

Spec. No. 2025-02 31 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT
ver. 100115



* Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction (the “Green Book™), excluding
Sections 1 through 9, most recent version (the Standard Specifications)
* Change Orders issued in accordance with the Contract Documents

C. These documents shall be referred to collectively as the "Contract Documents." The
Contract Documents are intended to be complementary, and a requirement in one document is
as effective as if it appeared in all of the Contract Documents. In the event of a conflict between

D. This agreement is for services related to a project that is subject to the Build America, Buy
America Act (BABAA) requirements under Title IX of the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act

E. Contractor shali comply with all requirements of the Contract Documents. Where there is
a conflict between the requirements of the several Contract Documents, the more stringent
requirements shall govern.

SECTION 2 - PRICE

A, SBCWD agrees to pay, and Contractor agrees to accept, the sum of Three Million Four
Hundred Eighty One Thousand Eight Hundred and Twenty Dollars ($_3.481.820 ) (the "Contract
Price") subject to adjustments for changes in the work as may be directed in writing by SBCWD,
as payment in full for the Work. Work to be done at unit prices will be paid based on actual
quantities of work performed and accepted.

B. Contractor shall submit a payment application for the total work completed once each
and upon completion of the Project and satisfaction of all conditions of the Contract

any amounts in dispute, deducted for liquidated damages or as required by law, or other offsets)
no less than thirty-five (35) days after the date SBCWD accepts the Work. Pursuant to Public
Contract Code Section 22300, for monies earned by the Contractor and withheld by SBCWD to
ensure the performance of the Contract, the Contractor may, at its option, choose to substitute
securities meeting the requirements of Public Contract Code Section 22300.

If any of the Work is to be paid based on unit prices, Contractor shall submit a monthly itemized
estimate of Work done for the purpose of making progress payments. Contractor shall submit,
with each of its payment requests, an adjusted list of actual quantities, verified by SBCWD, for
unit price items listed, if any, in the Bid Form. Following SBCWD’s acceptance of the Work, the
Contractor shall submit to SBCWD a written statement of the final quantities of unit price items
for inclusion in the final payment request. SBCWD shall have the right to adjust any estimate of
quantity and to subsequently correct any error made in any estimate for payment.

Spec. No. 2025-02 32 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT
ver. 100115



o Contractor agrees to furnish, as a condition of payment, payrolil affidavits, receipts,
vouchers, certified payroll reports, and other documents, in form satisfactory to SBCWD, prior to
receipt of any payment. Contractor shall submit Conditional and Unconditional waivers and
release of lien upon (as provided in Civil Code Sections 8132, 8134, 8136 and 8138) on behalf of
itself, subcontractors and suppliers that furnished labor, material, equipment or services to the
Project.

SECTION 3 - ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement represents the entire agreement between SBCWD and Contractor and
supersedes any prior written or oral representations. No oral order, objection, direction, claim or
notice by any party or person shall affect or modify any of the terms or obligations contained in
the Contract Documents.

SECTION 4 - TIME

A, Contractor shall complete the Project no later than One Hundred (100) calendar days
following SBCWD's issuance of the Notice to Proceed (the "Contract Time"). This Contract Time
includes completion of Contract Bid items and optional additive bid items. No additional time will
be added to the contract if the optional additive bid items are accepted. Project completion is
defined as full completion of Scope.

B. Contractor shall provide SBCWD with scheduling information in a form acceptable to
SBCWD, including any changes made by SBCWD in the scheduling of work. Contractor shall
coordinate its work with that of all other contractors, subcontractors and suppliers so as not to
delay or damage their performance.

C. If Contractor fails to complete the Project within the Contract Time, SBCWD will sustain
damage. It is and will be impracticable to determine the actual damage which SBCWD wiill sustain
in the event of and by reason of such delay, therefore Contractor will pay to SBCWD the sum set
forth in the Special Conditions for each and every calendar day's delay beyond the time prescribed
to complete the Work; Contractor agrees to pay such liquidated damages as herein provided, and
in case the same are not paid, agrees that SBCWD may deduct the amount thereof from any
monies due or that may become due the Contractor under the Contract.

D. It is further agreed that in case Contractor fails to complete the Project in all parts and
requirements within the Contract Time, SBCWD shall have the right to extend the Contract Time
or not, as may seem best to serve the interest of SBCWD; and if it decides to extend Contract
Time, SBCWD shall further have the right to charge to the Contractor, his heirs, assigns or
sureties, and to deduct from the final payment for the work, all or any part, as it may deem proper,
of the actual cost of engineering, inspection, superintendence, and other overhead expenses
directly chargeable to the Contract that accrue during the period of such extension.

E. The Contractor will not be assessed with liquidated damages or the cost of engineering
and inspection during the delay in the completion of the Project caused solely by acts of God or
of the public enemy, fire, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes,
and unusually severe weather or delays of subcontractors due to such causes; provided, that the
Contractor shall within three (3) days from the beginning of any such delay, notify the Engineer,
in writing of the causes of delay. SBCWD shall ascertain the facts and the extent of delay, and
his findings thereon shall be final and conclusive.

Spec. No. 2025-02 33 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT
ver. 100115



F. As an express condition of any adjustment of the Contract Time or Contract Price on
account of delay, including delay caused by acts of SBCWD, Contractor must give SBCWD
written notice of the commencement of delay within three (3) days of its occurrence.

SECTION 56 - LABOR

A The Contract is subject to California Labor Code Sections 1720 and following, and
Contractor and any subcontractor shall pay not less than the specified prevailing rates of wage to
all workers employed in performance of the Work. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 1770 of
the California Labor Code, SBCWD has obtained the general prevailing rate of wages and
employer payments for health and welfare, vacation, pension and similar purposes in SBCWD,
as determined by the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations, a copy of which is on file
in the office of SBCWD, and shall be made available for viewing to any interested party upon
request. The Contractor and each subcontractor shall forfeit as a penalty to SBCWD not more
than Two Hundred Dollars ($200) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker paid
less than the stipulated prevailing wage rate in violation of the Labor Code. In addition, the
difference between the prevailing wage rate and the amount paid to each worker for each calendar
day or portion thereof for which each worker was paid less than the stipulated prevailing wage
rate shall be paid to each worker by the Contractor.

B. Contractor's attention is directed to the provisions in Section 1777.5 and 1777.6 of the
Labor Code concerning the employment of apprentices by the Contractor or any subcontractor
under the Contractor. It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to effectuate compliance on
the part of itself and any subcontractors with the requirements for employment of apprentices.
Information relative to apprenticeship standards, wage schedules, and other requirements may
be obtained from the Director of Industrial Relations, ex-officioc the Administrator of
Apprenticeship, San Francisco, California, or from the Division of Apprenticeship Standards and
its branch offices.

C. Pursuant to Labor Code Section 1776, the Contractor and each subcontractor shall
maintain weekly certified payroll records showing the name, address, social security number,
work classification, straight time and overtime hours paid each day and week, and the actual per
diem wages paid to each journeyman, apprentice, worker or other employee employed in
connection with the work. Contractor shall certify under penalty of perjury that records maintained
and submitted by Contractor are true and accurate. Contractor shall also require subcontractor(s)
to certify weekly payroll records under penalty of perjury. In the event of noncompliance with the
requirements of this Section, the Contractor shall have ten (10) days in which to comply
subsequent to receipt of written notice specifying any item or actions necessary to achieve
compliance with this section. If Contractor or subcontractor does not comply after such ten (10)-
day period, the Contractor shall, as a penalty to SBCWD, forfeit One Hundred Dollars ($100) for
each day, or portion thereof, for each worker until strict compliance is effectuated.

D. In accordance with Labor Code section 1771.4, the Contractor and each subcontractor
shall furnish the certified payroll records directly to the Department of Industrial Relations (“DIR”)
on a weekly basis and in the format prescribed by the DIR, which may include electronic
submission. Contractor shall comply with all requirements and regulations from the DIR relating
to labor compliance monitoring and enforcement.

E. Contractor shall post, at appropriate conspicuous points on the Project site, a schedule
showing all determined general prevailing wage rates and all authorized deductions, if any, from
unpaid wages actually earned.

Spec. No. 2025-02 34 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT
ver. 100115



F. Pursuant to the requirements of Division 4 of the Labor Code, the Contractor will be
required to secure the payment of worker's compensation to its employees in accordance with
the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code. Prior to commencement of work, the Contractor
shall sign and file with the Engineer a certification in the following form:

"l am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which require every
employer to be insured against liability for worker's compensation or to undertake self-
insurance in accordance with the provisions before commencing the performance of the
work of this contract.”

G. If the Contract Price is greater than $25,000, Contractor shall, in advance of excavation
five feet or more in depth, submit to SBCWD a detailed plan showing the design of shoring,
bracing, sloping or other provisions to be made for worker protection from the hazard of caving
ground during the excavation. If such plan varies from the shoring system standards, the plan
shall be prepared by a registered civil or structural engineer. The plan shall not be less effective
than the shoring, bracing, sloping, or other provisions of the Construction Safety Orders, as
defined in the California Code of Regulations, and all costs therefor shall be included in the
Contract Price. Nothing in this section shall be deemed to allow the use of a shoring, bracing,
sloping, or other protective system less effective than that required by the Construction Safety
Orders. Nothing in this section shall be construed to impose a tort liability on SBCWD, any of its
officers, officials, partners, employees, agents, Contractors or volunteers. SBCWD's review of
the Contractor's excavation plan is only for general conformance to the Construction Safety
Orders. Prior to commencing any excavation, the Contractor shall designate in writing to SBCWD
the "competent person(s)" with the authority and responsibilities designated in the Construction
Safety Orders.

H. Full compensation for conforming to the requirements of this section shall be considered
as included in the Contract Price, and no additional compensation will be allowed therefore.

SECTION 6 - CHANGES IN WORK

A Contractor shall make no changes in the Work without written direction from SBCWD.
Contractor shall not be compensated for any change made without any SBCWD's written
direction. No changes in the work covered by this Agreement shall exonerate any surety or any
bond given in connection with this Agreement.

B. If SBCWD directs the Contractor in writing to make changes in the work that materially
affect the cost of performing the work, the Contract Price will be adjusted based on one of the
following:

1. Where the work involved is covered by unit prices contained in the Contract
Documents, by application of unit prices to the quantities involved in the changed
Work;

2. By a combination of existing and new unit prices and related quantities for the

changed work;

3. Time and Materials, calculated as set forth in Section 6(C), below; or
4, By mutual acceptance of a lump sum.
Spec. No. 2025-02 35 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT

ver. 100115



C. The cost for extra or changed work performed on a Time and Materials basis shall be
determined as follows:

1.

Labor: Contractor will be paid cost of labor for workers used in actual and direct
performance of extra work, including only :

(a) Actual Wages: Actual wages paid shall include any employer payments to
or on behalf of workers for health and welfare, pension, vacation, and
similar purposes.

(b) Labor Surcharge: Payments imposed by local, county, state, and federal
laws and ordinances, and other payments made to, or on behalf of,

though fully set forth herein.
Material: Only materials furnished by Contractor and necessarily used in

performance of extra Work will be paid for. Cost of such materials will be cost,
including sales tax and delivery charges, to purchaser (Contractor, Subcontractor

(a), above.
All products must meet BABAA requirements.

Contractor shall include Manufacturer's Certification for BABAA requirements with
all applicable submittals. If a specific manufacture is used in the bidding, a

Engineer/Architect approval of shop drawings or samples shall include review of
BABAA documentation.

Contractor shall certify upon completion that all work and materials have complied
with BABAA requirements.

For any change orders, Contractor shall provide BABAA documentation for any
new products or materials required by the change.

Spec. No. 2025-02 36 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT

ver. 100115



Installation of materials or products that are not compliant with BABAA
requirements shall be considered defective work. Contractor should ensure that
Engineer/Architect has an approved Manufacturer's Certification or waiver prior to
items being delivered to the project site.

By submitting an application for payment, based in whole or in part on furnishing
equipment or materials, Contractor certifies that such equipment and materials, to
contractor’s knowledge, are compliant with BABAA requirements.

Equipment: For Contractor-owned equipment, payment will be made at rental
rates listed for equipment in California Department of Transportation official
equipment rental rate schedule which is in effect on date upon which extra Work
is accomplished and which schedule is incorporated herein by reference as though
fully set forth herein. If there Is no applicable rate for an item of equipment, then
payment shall be made for Contractor- or Subcontractor-owned equipment at
rental rate listed in the most recent edition of the Association of Equipment
Distributors (AED) book.

(a) For rented equipment, payment will be made based on actual rental
invoices. Equipment used on extra Work shali be of proper size and type.

(b) Cost of equipment shall be calculated at rental rate for equipment of proper
size and type, as determined by SBCWD. Rental rates paid shall be
deemed to cover cost of fuel, oil, lubrication, supplies, small tools,
necessary attachments, repairs and maintenance of any kind, depreciation,
storage, insurance, and all incidentals.  Unless otherwise specified,
manufacturer's ratings, and manufacturer-approved modifications, shall be
used to classify equipment for determination of applicable rental rates.
Rental time will not be allowed while equipment is inoperative due to
breakdowns.

(c) Individual pieces of equipment or tools having a replacement value of $100
or less, whether or not consumed by use, shall be considered to be smali
tools.

Work Performed by Special Forces or Other Special Services: When SBCWD and
Contractor, by agreement, determine that special service or item of extra Work

without complete itemization of labor, material, and equipment rental costs when
it is impracticable and not in accordance with established practice of special
service industry to provide complete itemization. In those instances wherein

charges for that portion of extra Work performed in such facility may, by
agreement, be accepted as a specialist billing. In lieu of overhead and profit
provided in paragraph 5(a), below, fifteen percent (15%) will be added to specialist
invoice price, after deduction of any cash or trade discount offered or available,
whether or not such discount may have been taken.

Spec. No. 2025-02 37 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT

ver. 100115



5. Overhead Defined:

(a)

The following constitutes charges that are deemed included in overhead
for all Contract Modifications, including work performed on a Time and
Materials basis. Contractor shalil not invoice or receive payment for these
costs separately: Drawings: field drawings, Shop Drawings, etc., including
submissions of drawings; Routine field inspection; General
Superintendence; General administration and preparation of cost
proposals, schedule analysis, Change Orders, and other supporting
documentation; Computer services; Reproduction services; Salaries of
project engineer, superintendent, timekeeper, storekeeper, and
secretaries; Janitorial services; Small tools, incidentals and consumables;
Temporary on-Site facilities (Offices, Telephones, Plumbing, Electrical
Power, lighting; Platforms, Fencing, Water, Home office expenses;
vehicles and fuel used for work otherwise included in the Contract
Documents; Surveying; Estimating; Protection of Work; Handling and
disposal fees; Final cleanup; Other incidental Work; Related warranties.

6. Overhead and Profit for Time and Materials:

For work Contractor performs on Time and Materials at SBCWD's direction, the following
markups will be added to the cost of labor, materials and equipment, calculated as
described above.

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

(e

®

@

Spec. No. 2025-02
ver, 100115

Overhead and profit on {abor shall be fifteen percent (15%).
Overhead and profit on materials shall be fifteen percent (15%).
Overhead and profit on equipment rental shall be ten percent (10%).

When work is performed by a first tier Subcontractor, Contractor shall
receive a five percent (5%) markup on Subcontractor's total costs of extra
work. First tier Subcontractor's markup on its Work shall not exceed fifteen
percent (15%).

When extra Work is performed by a lower tier Subcontractor, Contractor
shall receive a total of five percent (5%) markup on the lower tier
Subcontractor's total costs of extra work. Contractor and first tier
Subcontractors and lower tier Subcontractors shall divide the fifteen
percent (15%) markup as mutually agreed.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no case shall the total markup on any
extra work exceed twenty percent (20%) of the direct cost, notwithstanding
the actual number of Contract tiers.

On proposals covering both increases and decreases in Contract Price,
overhead and profit shall be ailowed on the net increase only as determined
in this paragraph. When the net difference is a deletion, no percentage for
overhead or profit will be allowed, but rather a deduction shall apply.

38 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT



(h) The markup shall include profit, smail tools, cleanup, supervision,
warranties, cost of preparing the cost proposal, jobsite overhead, and home
office overhead. No markup will be allowed on taxes, insurance, and
bonds.

D. If SBCWD directs the Contractor in writing to make changes in the Work that materially
affect the time required to perform the Work, SBCWD will make a reasonable adjustment to the
Contract Time.

SECTION 7 - CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

A If any dispute shall arise between SBCWD and Contractor regarding performance of the
work, or any alleged change in the work, Contractor shall timely perform the disputed work and
shall give written notice of a claim for additional compensation for the work to SBCWD within three

B. If a claim cannot be resolved through direct discussions between SBCWD and Contractor,
disputes for $375,000 or less shall be handled in accordance with Public Contract Code Sections
20104 et seq. SBCWD shall respond in writing within 60 Days of receipt, or, may request in

any direct charge.

C. If a claim is more than $375,000, the parties agree to participate in mediation with a
mutually agreeable mediator following an exchange of documents reasonably necessary for
resolution of the issues in dispute.

D. If the claimant disputes SBCWD's response, or if SBCWD fails to respond within the
statutory time period(s), the claimant may so notify SBCWD within 15 Days of the receipt of the
response or the failure to respond, and demand an informal conference to meet and confer for
settlement. Upon such demand, SBCWD shali schedule a meet and confer conference within 30
Days.

E. If following the meet and confer conference, the claim or any portion thereof remains in
dispute, the claimant may file a claim pursuant to Government Code sections 900 et seq. and
Government Code sections 910 et seq. For purposes of those provisions, the time within which
a claim must be filed shall be tolled from the time the claimant submits the written claim until the
time the claim is denied, including any time utilized for the meet and confer conference.

F. Submission of a claim, properly certified, with all required supporting documentation, and
written rejection or denial of all or part of the claim by SBCWD, is a condition precedent to any
action, proceeding, litigation, suit, or demand for arbitration by Contractor.

G. Venue for any litigation arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be San Benito
County, California.

Spec. No. 2025-02 39 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT
ver. 100115



H. Pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 9201, SBCWD shall provide Contractor with
timely notification of the receipt of any third-party claim relating to the Contract.

SECTION 8 - INSPECTION AND PROTECTION OF WORK

A Responsibility for, and security of, all work and materials is the responsibility of the
Contractor until final acceptance of the Project by SBCWD.

8. Contractor shall make the work accessible at all reasonable times for inspection by
SBCWD. Contractor shall, at the first opportunity, inspect all material and equipment delivered to
the jobsite by others to be used or incorporated in the Contractor's work and give prompt notice
of any defect therein. Contractor assumes full responsibility to protect the work done hereunder
until final acceptance by SBCWD.

C. When the Work is completed, Contractor shall request, in writing, a final inspection. Within
ten (10) days of the receipt of such request, SBCWD shall make a final inspection. The Contractor
or its representatives may be present at the final inspection. The purpose of such final inspection
shall be to determine whether the Work has been completed in accordance with the Contract
Documents, including all change orders and all interpretations and instructions previously issued.

D. SBCWD may reject materials or Work that does not meet the requirements of the Contract
Documents. If SBCWD does so, Contractor shall promptly remove the rejected materials or work
and replace it with materiais or work that meet the requirements of the Contract Documents, at
no additional cost to SBCWD.

SECTION 9 - ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING

A. Contractor shall give personal attention to the performance of the Contract and shall keep
the Work under its control.

B. No subcontractors will be recognized as such, and all persons engaged in the work of
construction will be considered as employees of the Contractor, who will be held responsible for
their work which shall be subject to the provisions of the Contract and specifications.

C. No subcontractor who is ineligible to bid work on, or be awarded, a public works project
under Labor Code Sections 1771.1 or 1777.7 can bid on, be awarded or perform work as a
subcontractor on the Project. The Contractor is prohibited from performing work on the Project
with a subcontractor who is ineligible to perform work on a public works project under these
sections of the Labor Code.

D. When a portion of the work which has been subcontracted by the Contractor is not being
prosecuted in a manner satisfactory to SBCWD, the subcontractor shall be removed immediately
on the requisition of SBCWD in the manner required by law and shall not again be employed on
the work.

E. Contractor may not assign any portion of the Contract except upon written consent of
SBCWD.
Spec. No. 2025-02 40 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT

ver. 100115



SECTION 10 - TERMINATION

Contractor shall not be entitled to any claim or lien against SBCWD for any additional
compensation or damages in the event of such termination.

C. If SBCWD terminates Contractor for cause, and if it is later determined that the termination
was wrongful, such default termination shall automatically be converted to and treated as a
termination for convenience. In such event, Contractor shall be entitled to receive only the
amounts payable under this section, and Contractor specifically waives any claim for any other
amounts or damages, including, but not limited to, any claim for consequential damages or lost

profits.

SECTION 11 - HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION

le or
or any part thereof: for any loss or damage to any of the materials or other things used or
employed in performing the Work: for injury to or death of any person; or for damage to property
from any cause except losses due to sole or active negligence of SBCWD's officers or employees.

B. Contractor shall indemnify, defend with legal counsel approved by SBCWD, and hold

legal counsel unacceptable, then Contractor shall reimburse SBCWD its costs of defense,
i i i i s fees, expert fees and all other cost and fees of

C. Contractor's obligations under this section apply regardless of whether or not such claim,
charge, damage, demand, action, proceeding, loss, stop notice, cost, expense, judgment, civil
fine or penalty, or liability was caused in part or contributed to by an Indemnitee. However, without

Spec. No. 2025-02 41 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT
ver. 100115



under and by virtue of the contract as shall be considered necessary by SBCWD, may be retained
by SBCWD until disposition has been made of such suits or claims for damage.

SECTION 12 - BONDS AND INSURANCE
A Bonds
1. Within ten (10) days after being notified of the award of the contract, and before
SBCWD will execute the agreement for construction, the Contractor to whom the

Contract is awarded shall furnish and file with SBCWD Performance and Payment
Surety bonds as set forth below.

shall be in a sum no less than one hundred percent (100%) of the Contract Price.

1. Contractor shall obtain, at its sole cost and €xpense, all insurance required by

SECTION 13 - WARRANTY

Contractor warrants to SBCWD that all materials and equipment furnished shail be new, free from
faults and defects and of good quality and conform to the requirements of the Contract
Documents.

This Article shall not limit SBCWD's rights under this Contract or with respect to latent defects,
gross mistakes, or fraud. SBCWD specifically reserves all rights related to defective work,

Spec. No. 2025-02 42 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT
ver. 100115



including but not limited to defect claims pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure Section
337.15.

SECTION 14 - LAWS TO BE OBSERVED

A Contractor shall keep itself fully informed of all existing and future state and federal laws
and county and municipal ordinances and regulations that in any manner affect those engaged
or employed in the work, or the materials used in the work, or which in any way affect the conduct
of work, and of all such orders and decrees of bodies or tribunals having any jurisdiction or
authority over the same.

B. Contractor shall at all times observe and comply with, and shall cause all of its agents and
employees to observe and comply with all such existing and future Federal, State and local laws,
ordinances, regulations, orders, and decrees of bodies or tribunals having any jurisdiction or
authority over the Project; and shall protect and indemnify SBCWD, and all officers and
employees thereof connected with the Project, against any claim or liability arising from or based
on the violation of any such law, ordinance, regulation, order, or decree, whether by SBCWD's
representative or their employees. If any discrepancy or inconsistency is discovered in the plans,
drawings, specifications, or contract for the work in relation to any such law, ordinance, regulation,
order or decree, Contractor shall promptly report the same to SBCWD in writing.

C. This Contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State
of California.
D.

SECTION 15 - MISCELLANEOUS

A Existing Utilities

The location of known existing utilities and pipelines are shown on the Plans in their approximate
locations. However, nothing herein shall be deemed to require SBCWD to indicate the presence
of existing service laterals or appurtenances whenever the presence of such utilities on the site
of the project can be inferred from the presence of other visible facilities, such as buildings,
cleanouts, meter and junction boxes, on or adjacent to the site of the Project. Underground
facilities not known to SBCWD may exist, or be in a location different from that which is shown in
the Contract Documents.

Contractor shall take all steps reasonably necessary to ascertain the exact location of all
underground facilities prior to doing work that may damage such facilities or interfere with their
service, including but not limited to calling Underground Service Alert to locate utilities in
accordance with the procedures described in Government Code 4215 et seq. Contractor shall
protect from damage any utility facilities that are to remain in place, be installed, relocated or
otherwise rearranged.

If the Contractor is required to locate, repair damage not due to the Contractor’s failure to exercise
reasonable care, and remove or relocate existing main or trunk line utility facilities, it shall be
compensated under Section 6 of this Contract — Changes in the Work - including payment for
equipment on the Project necessarily idled during such work.

Spec. No. 2025-02 43 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT
ver. 100115



The right is reserved by SBCWD and the owners of underground facilities or their authorized
agents, to enter the job for the purpose of making such changes as are necessary for the
rearrangement of their facilities or for making necessary connection or repairs to their properties.
The Contractor shall cooperate with forces engaged in such work and shall conduct his operations
in such a manner as to avoid any delay or hindrance to the work being performed by such other
forces.

SBCWD will assume the responsibility for the timely removal, relocation, or protection of existing
main or trunk line utility facilities located on the Project site if such utilities are not identified by
SBCWD in the Contract Documents or which can reasonably be inferred from the presence of
other visible facilities.

B. Utility Location

It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to determine the exact location and depth of all utilities,
including service connections, which have been marked by the respective utility owners and which
the Contractor believes may affect or be affected by the Contractor’'s operations. The Contractor
shall not be entitled to additional compensation nor time extensions for work necessary to avoid
interferences nor for repair to damaged utilities if the Contractor does not expose all such existing
utilities as required by this section.

The locating of utilities shall be in conformance with Government Code Section 4216 except for
SBCWD's utilities located on SBCWD's property and not on public right-of-way.

After the utility survey is complete, the Contractor shall commence “potholing” or hand digging to
determine the actual location of the pipe, duct, or conduit. Contractor shall notify SBCWD before
starting potholing operations.

The Contractor's attention is directed to the requirements of Government Code Section 4216.2
(a)(2) which provides: “When the excavation is proposed within 10 feet of a high priority
subsurface installation, the operator of the high priority subsurface installation shall notify the
excavator of the existence of the high priority subsurface installation prior to the legal excavation
start date and time, as such date and time are authorized pursuant to paragraph (1) of subdivision
(a) of 4216.2. The excavator and the operator or its representative shall conduct an onsite
meeting at a mutually-agreed-on time to determine actions or activities required to verify the
location of the high priority subsurface installation prior to start time.” The Contractor shall notify
SBCWD in advance of this meeting.

o Differing Site Conditions

1. The Contractor shall promptly, and before the following conditions are disturbed,
notify SBCWD in writing of any:

(a) Material that the Contractor believes may be material that is hazardous
waste, as defined in Section 25117 of the Health and Safety Code, that is
required to be removed to a Class |, Class Il, or Class Il disposal site in
accordance with provisions of existing law.

(b) Subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site differing materially from
those indicated by information about the site made available to bidders
before the deadline for submitting bids, or

Spec. No. 2025-02 44 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT
ver. 100115



© Unknown physical conditions at the site of any unusual nature, differing
materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as
inherent in work of the character provided for in this Contract.

Contractor shall give Notice in accordance with the Change Order provisions
above.

SBCWD shail promptly investigate the conditions, and if it finds that such
conditions do materially so differ, or do involve hazardous waste, and cause an
increase or decrease in the Contractor's cost of, or the time required for,
performance of any part of the Work, it shall issue a change order under the
provisions described in the Contract Documents.

No claim of the Contractor under this clause shall be allowed uniess the Contractor
has given the notice required in the Contract Documents.

D. Records and Audits

1.

Contractor and its subcontractors shall establish and maintain records pertaining
to this contract. Contractor's and subcontractors’ accounting systems shall
conform to generally accepted accounting principles and ali records shall provide
a breakdown of all costs charged under this contract, including properly executed
payrolls, time records, invoices and vouchers.

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 8546.7, the parties to this
Contract shall be subject to the examination and audit of representative of the
Auditor General of the State of California for a period of three (3) years after final
payment under the contract. The examination and audit shall be confined to those

Spec. No. 2025-02 45 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT

ver. 100115



matters connected with the performance of this contract including, but not limited
to, the cost of administering the contract.

E. Clayton Act and Cartwright Act

Section 7103.5 of the Public Contract Code specifies that in entering into a public works contract
or a subcontract to supply goods, services or materials pursuant to a public works contract, the
contractor or subcontractor offers and agrees to assign to the awarding body all rights, title, and
interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C.
Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 commencing with Sec. 16700) of Part 2 of
Division 7 of the Business Profession Code, arising from purchase of goods, services or materials
pursuant to the contract or subcontract. Pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 7103.5 the
Contractor and all of its Subcontractors hereby offer and agree to assign to SBCWD all rights,
title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act
(15 U.S.C. Sec. 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 commencing with Sec. 16700) of
Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business Profession Code, arising from purchase of goods, services or
materials pursuant to this Agreement. This assignment shall become effective when SBCWD
tenders final payment to the Contractor without further acknowledgement by the parties.

F. Site Superintendent

The Contractor shall provide competent supervision and staffing of the Work as approved by
SBCWD. The Contractor or designated representative shall be present at the site at all times
while work is actually in progress. Superintendent must be able to proficiently speak, read and
write in English.

G. Character of Workers

If any or person employed by the Contractor or any Subcontractor shall appear to SBCWD to be
incompetent or to act in a disorderly or improper manner, he shall be discharged immediately on
the request of SBCWD, and such person shall not again be employed on the Work.

H. Notices

All notices permitted or required under this Agreement shall be given at the following address, or
at such other address as the parties may provide in writing for this purpose:

San Benito County Water District: CONTRACTOR:
Email: dmacdonald@sbcwd.com Email:
Attn:  David Macdonald Attn:

The parties may designate, in writing, other individuals to whom notice is to be given. Notices
shall be deemed to be received upon personal delivery to the addresses above; if sent by email,
upon delivery; if sent by overnight delivery, upon delivery as shown by delivery service records; if
sent by facsimile, upon receipt as confirmed by the sending facsimile equipment; if by United
States Postal Service, five days after deposit in the mail.

Spec. No. 2025-02 46 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT
ver. 100115



SECTION 16 - WAIVERS OF LIEN

Upon request the Contractor shall submit a complete list of major suppliers and/or subcontractors
who will be providing material and/or labor for the performance of the Work, and shall submit with

each payment request waivers of lien from each major supplier and/or subcontractor. Sample
forms to be used will be furnished by SBCWD.

SECTION 17 - CLEAN-UP

Contractor will remove from the project site all debris resulting from performance of the Work no
less often than daily. If Contractor fails to do so, SBCWD may, after twenty-four (24) hours' notice
to Contractor, clean up the site and deduct the cost from the Contract Price.

SECTION 18 - LICENSE REQUIREMENT

Contractor's attention is directed to Business and Professions Code Sections 7000 et seq.
concerning the licensing of contractors. At the time Contractor enters into this Contract and ail
times Contractor is performing the Work, Contractor shall have a valid license issued by the

and subcontractors shail be licensed in accordance with the laws of this State and any contractor
or subcontractor not so licensed is subject to penalties imposed by such laws.

Contractors are required by law to be licensed and regulated by the Contractors’ State License

Board which has Jurisdiction to investigate complaints against contractors if a complaint regarding

referred to the Registrar, Contractors’ State License Board, P.O. Box 26000, Sacramento,
California 95826.

Spec. No. 2025-02 47 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT
ver. 100115



SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT: CONTRACTOR:

By: By:
(Authorized Representative of Contractor)

Dated: May 28, 2025

Printed Name:

ATTEST:

Title:
(Attach Notary Acknowledgment for
Authorized Representative of Contractor)

Board Secretary

License No.

Dated:

(Contractor Signature must be Notarized)

Spec. No. 2025-02 48 00 52 13 -AGREEMENT
ver. 100115



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

SPECIAL CONDITIONS
LIQUIDATED DAMAGES
A. As provided in the Notice Inviting Bids, Contractor shall pay to SBCWD the sum of
$1,000 for each and every calendar day's delay in completion of the Work beyond
expiration of the Contract Time.

LICENSE CLASSIFICATION

A. In accordance with Section 3300 of the Public Contract Code, SBCWD has
determined that the Contractor shall have a Class C-57 Well Drilling Contractor
License at the time it enters into the Contract and at all times it is performing the
Work.

ASSIGNED CONTRACTOR PERSONNEL

A. Contractor and subcontractor employees who will perform on this project may be
subject to a background investigation.

COOPERATION AND CARE

A. Should construction be under way by SBCWD, other agencies or other contractors
within or adjacent to the limits of the work specified or should work of any other nature
be under way by other forces within or adjacent to said limits, the Contractor shall
cooperate with all such other contractors or other forces to the end that any delay or
hindrance to their work will be avoided. SBCWD reserves the right to perform other
or additional work at or near the site (including material sources) at any time, by the
use of other forces.

B. Until the final acceptance of the contract, the Contractor shall have the charge and
care of the Work and of the materials to be used therein, including materials for which
partial payment has been received. SBCWD shall not be held responsible for the
care or protection of any material or parts of the Work prior to final acceptance, except
as expressly provided in the Special Conditions.

C. The contractor shall verify all elevations and dimensions shown on the construction
drawings within SBCWD right-of-way prior to starting Work. The contractor shall
notify the owner's representative of any discrepancy in the construction drawings or
site conditions so that proper clarifications can be made before construction begins.

PROGRESS OF THE WORK

A. Hours of work - Overtime and holidays. The Contractor shall perform all work during
the hours of 8:00 am. to 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday unless otherwise
authorized by SBCWD in writing. If the Contractor wishes to work during any other
hours or on weekends, written permission must be received from SBCWD. The
request must be received at least two (2) working days in advance of any work. No
work will be allowed on SBCWD Holidays except in the case of an emergency. A
listing of SBCWD holidays is on file in the office of SBCWD. If Contractor requests
overtime work in which SBCWD will incurs costs, Contractor shall be responsible for

Spec. No. 2025-02 49 00 73 13 -SPECIAL CONDITIONS
ver. 100115



payment of SBCWD's costs incurred in connection with the overtime work. SBCWD
will invoice the Contractor at time and one half to cover the costs incurred. If
Contractor does not pay the invoice within ten (10) days, SBCWD may deduct the
amount billed from other payments due or to become due to Contractor under the
Contract.

B. SBCWD shall have the authority to suspend the Work wholly or in part, for such a
period as it may deem necessary.

C. Inspection. All Work shall be inspected by SBCWD. The charges for inspection shall
be in accordance with SBCWD’s regulations. If SBCWD is unable to provide an
inspector or inspectors, Contractor shall reschedule the Work for another time at no
cost to SBCWD. Work performed without inspection shall be rejected.

1.6 LIMITS OF WORK

A. The "limits of work" are shown on the plans. The Contractor shall make its own
arrangements and pay all expenses for additional area required outside of the limits
of work unless provided in the Special Conditions.

1.7 TEMPORARY FIELD OFFICE

NOT USED.

1.8 FUGITIVE DUST

A. In addition to ali other environmental and air quality requirements of the Contract
Documents, Contractor must also comply with Monterey Bay Air Resources District's
Fugitive Dust regulations, to reduce the amount of particulate matter entrained in the
ambient air as a result of the Project.

B. SBCWD has considered these other contractors when determining the Contract Times
and no additional time or compensation will be added to the Contract due to these
requirements.

1.9 BUILD AMERICA BUY AMERICA

A.  Opinions of total project costs and revisions thereof should reflect compliance with
BABAA requirements.

B. Determine and certify that to the best of Provider's knowledge and belief all iron and
steel products, manufactured products, and construction materials referenced in any
technical analysis/report; the plans, specifications, and bidding documents; any bid
addenda; and change orders comply with all federal requirements, including BABAA.

C. Review and approve or take action with respect to shop drawings, samples, and other
required Contractor submittals, including applications for payment, to ensure
compliance with BABAA.

D. Review substitutes and “or equals” for conformity with contract conditions, [insert
name of Agency] regulations, and BABAA requirements.

Spec. No. 2025-02 50 00 73 13 -SPECIAL CONDITIONS

ver. 100115



E. Obtain and review manufacturers’ and contractors’ certifications on compliance with
BABAA requirements and maintain copies of certifications in project files.

F. Assist Owner, if needed, in due diligence related to any BABAA waiver request.

END OF SPECIAL CONDITIONS

Spec. No. 2025-02 51 00 73 13 -SPECIAL CONDITIONS
ver. 100115



1.

ATTACHMENT A
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR MINOR PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS

Time for Compliance. Contractor shall not commence Work under this Agreement until it has
provided evidence satisfactory to SBCWD that it has secured all insurance required under this
Section. Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance
meeting all the requirements stated herein. Contractor shall not allow any subcontractor to
commence work on any subcontract until it has provided evidence SBCWD that the
subcontractor has secured all insurance required under this Section.

Minimum Requirements. Contractor shall, at its expense, procure and maintain for the

duration of the Agreement insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the Agreement by the
Contractor, its agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors. Contractor shall also
require all of its subcontractors to procure and maintain the same insurance for the duration
of the Agreement and shall verify subcontractors’ compliance. Contractor's and
subcontractor’s insurance shall meet at least the following minimum levels of coverage:

(A) Minimum Scope of Insurance. Coverage shall be at least as broad as the latest
version of the following: (1) General Liability: Insurance Services Office Commercial
General Liability coverage (occurrence form CG 0001); (2) Automobile Liability: insurance
Services Office Business Auto Coverage form number CA 0001, code 1 (any auto) or if
Contractor has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-owned); and (3) Workers’
Compensation and Employer’s Liability: Workers’ Compensation insurance as required by
the State of California and Employer’s Liability insurance, with statutory limits. The policy
shall not contain any exclusion contrary to the Agreement, including but not limited to
endorsements or provisions limiting coverage for (1) contractual liability or (2) cross liability
for claims or suits by one insured against another.

(B) Minimum Limits of Insurance. Contractor shall maintain limits no less than: (1)
General Liability: $2 Million per occurrence, $4 Million aggregate for bodily injury, personal
injury and property damage. If Commercial General Liability Insurance or other form with
general aggregate limit is used including, but not limited to, form CG 2503, either the
general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this Agreement/location or the general
aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit; (2) Automobile Liability:$1
million per accident for bodily injury and property damage; and (3) Workers’ Compensation
and Employer’s Liability: Workers’ Compensation: statutory limits. Employer's Liability
limits of $1 million per accident for bodily injury or disease. Defense costs shall be paid in
addition to the limits. Notwithstanding the minimum limits set forth above, any available
insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of coverage shall be
available to the parties required to be named as additional insureds.

© Notices; Cancellation or Reduction of Coverage. At least fifteen (15) days prior to
the expiration of any such policy, evidence showing that such insurance coverage has

been renewed or extended shall be filed with SBCWD. If such coverage is cancelled or
materially reduced, Contractor shall, within ten (10) days after receipt of written notice of
such cancellation or reduction of coverage, file with SBCWD evidence of insurance
showing that the required insurance has been reinstated or has been provided through
another insurance company or companies. In the event any policy of insurance required
under this Agreement does not comply with these specifications or is canceled and not
replaced, SBCWD has the right but not the duty to obtain the insurance it deems

Spec. No. 2025-02 52 0073 13 -ATTACHMENT A
ver. 100115 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS



necessary and any premium paid by SBCWD will be promptly reimbursed by Contractor
or SBCWD may withhold amounts sufficient to pay premium from Contractor payments.
In the alternative, SBCWD may suspend or terminate this Agreement.

3. Insurance Endorsements. The insurance policies shall contain the following provisions, or
Contractor shall provide endorsements on forms approved by SBCWD, to add the following
provisions to the insurance policies:

(A) General _Liability. The general liability policy shall include or be endorsed
(amended) to state that: (1) using ISO CG forms 20 10 and 20 37 (including completed
operations), or endorsements providing the exact same coverage, SBCWD, its directors,
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers and any other Additional Insured
named in the Special Conditions shall be covered as additional insureds with respect to
the Work or ongoing and completed operations performed by or on behalf of the
Contractor, including materials, parts or equipment furnished in connection with such
work; and (2) using ISO form 20 01, or endorsements providing the exact same coverage,
the insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects SBCWD, its directors,
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers and any other Additional Insured
named in the Special Conditions, or if excess, shall stand in an unbroken chain of
coverage excess of the Contractor's scheduled underlying coverage. Any excess
insurance shall contain a provision that such coverage shall also apply on a primary and
noncontributory basis for the benefit of SBCWD, before SBCWD's own primary insurance
or self-insurance shall be called upon to protect it as a named insured. Any insurance or
self-insurance maintained by SBCWD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents,
and volunteers and any other Additional Insured named in the Special Conditions shall be
excess of the Contractor’s insurance and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in
any way.

B) Automobile Liability. The automobile liability policy shall include or be endorsed
(amended) to state that; (1) SBCWD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents,
and volunteers and any other Additional Insured named in the Special Conditions shall be
covered as additional insureds with respect to the ownership, operation, maintenance,
use, loading or unloading of any auto owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Contractor
or for which the Contractor is responsible; and (2) the insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance as respects SBCWD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and
volunteers and any other Additional Insured named in the Special Conditions, or if excess,
shall stand in an unbroken chain of coverage excess of the Contractor's scheduled
underlying coverage. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by SBCWD, its
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers and any other Additional
Insured named in the Special Conditions shall be excess of the Contractor’s insurance
and shall not be called upon to contribute with it in any way. Notwithstanding the minimum
limits set forth above, any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified
minimum limits of coverage shall be available to the parties required to be named as
additional insureds.

) Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Coverage. The insurer shall
agree, using form WC 00 03 13 or the exact equivalent to waive all rights of subrogation
against SBCWD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers and
any other Additional Insured named in the Special Conditions for losses paid under the
terms of the insurance policy.

Spec. No. 2025-02 53 00 73 13 -ATTACHMENT A
ver. 100115 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS



(D)  All Coverages. Each insurance policy required by this Agreement shall be
endorsed to include the following provisions:

M coverage shall not be suspended, voided, reduced or canceled except after
thirty (30) days (10 days for nonpayment of premium) prior written notice by
certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to SBCWD and all
additional insureds,

(i) any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of the policies,
including breaches of warranties, shall not affect coverage provided to SBCWD
and any other additional insureds,

(i) standard separation of insureds provisions,

(iv) no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to SBCWD, and
all additional insureds,

(V) waiver of any right of subrogation of the insurer against SBCWD, its
officials, officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, or any other additional
insureds, or shall specifically allow Contractor or others required to provide
insurance in compliance with these specifications to waive their right of recovery
prior to a loss. By signing this agreement, Contractor hereby waives its own right
of recovery against SBCWD or any other additional insureds, and shall require
similar written express waivers and insurance clauses from each of its
subcontractors.

Deductibles and Self-insurance Retentions. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must
be declared to and approved by SBCWD. Contractor shall guarantee that, at the option of
SBCWD, either: (1) the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured
retentions as respects SBCWD, its directors, officials, officers, employees, agents, and
volunteers and any other Additional Insured named in the Special Conditions; or (2) the
Contractor shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigation
costs, claims, and administrative and defense expenses.

Claims Made Policies. Claims made policies are not acceptable.

Subcontractor Insurance Requirements. Contractor shall not allow any subcontractors to
commence work on any subcontract relating to the work under the Agreement until Contractor
has verified that the subcontractor has provided evidence to SBCWD that they have secured
all insurance required under this Section. If requested by Contractor, SBCWD may approve
different scopes or minimum limits of insurance for particular subcontractors. The Contractor
and SBCWD shall be named as additional insureds on all subcontractors’ policies of
Commercial General Liability Insurance.

Acceptability of Insurers. Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's
rating no less than A:VIi, licensed to do business in California, and satisfactory to SBCWD.

8. Verification of Coverage. Contractor shall furnish SBCWD with original certificates of
insurance and endorsements effecting coverage required by this Agreement on forms
satisfactory to SBCWD. The certificates and endorsements for each insurance policy shall be
signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. All certificates

Spec. No. 2025-02 54 0073 13 -ATTACHMENT A
ver. 100115 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS



and endorsements must be received and approved by SBCWD before work commences.
SBCWD reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance
policies, at any time.

Reservation of Rights. SBCWD reserves the right to modify these requirements, including
limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special
circumstances.

END OF INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Spec. No. 2025-02 55 00 73 13 -ATTACHMENT A
ver. 100115 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS



San Benito County Water District

North San Benito ADROP ASR Wells 3, 5, and Optional Well 1

BID SUMMARY

Bid Opening: May 15, 2025 @ 3:00 PM
Total Bids Received:

Apparent Low Bidder: Pacific Coast Well Drilling

o
AVO
P
S
& /.O».w \w.n'o A/Oe
&/ S S &S
¥ &/ & & &/ &
N/ &/ S S S »
N i 5/ ® & S &
BIDDER'S NAME BID AMOUNT «° & o ) P \s <& 00
il -a A= AN lallit =] e O 3 Y Of (9 .. Alo Oﬁ O
< ¥ ¥ & & A 2 Ly
Vtv //0. ) N 6.0 >
@ O X & & <&
& &S &SR S S
& ¢O ./0 & OO [
& o &
Q /ﬁ.v hVOf
< . .
X Total (Basis of Low Bid
? Determination)
1{Pacific Coast Well Drilling $3,451,820.00 X X X x X $3,481,820.00
2{Well Industries, Inc. $3,848,080.00 X X X X X $3,848,080.00
3|Zim Industries, Inc. $3,992,795.00 X X X X X $3,992,795.00
41South Valley Companies, Inc. $4,938,420.00 X X X X X $4,938,420.00
5
8




San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal

Agenda Item: [ LC}

Meeting Date: May 28, 2025
Submitted By: Jeff Cattaneo

Presented By: Jeff Cattaneo

Agenda Title: Consider Authorizing General Manager to Execute a Contract with Kennedy Jenks
Inc. Consultants for Construction Management Services Related to Phase 2 of the
ADROP Project (NTE $2,388,128)

Detailed Description:

With the adoption of the Urban Area Water Supply Master Plan (Master Plan) 2023 Update, the
District has begun moving forward with the recommendations from the Master Plan for water
supply reliability for the existing customers in the urban area.

The preferred project from the Master Plan for water supply reliability is the ADRoP, or Aquifer
Storage and Recovery project. This project will take water in years that supply exceeds
immediate demand and treat the water to drinking water standards and inject the water into the
ground for future recovery during droughts. Originally constructed to treat up 4.5 million
gallons per day of water, the addition of the ADRoP project will require an expansion of West
Hills to treat up to 6.75 million gallons per day, construction of a transmission pipeline to the
well field located on Fallon Road, and the construction of the injection/extraction wells.

Funding for the project comes from the water supply reliability fee, adopted by the District in
January of 2023. The fee is applied to all Municipal and Industrial water sold through the
District. Total project cost is estimated to be approximately $55 million including the associated
conveyance pipelines and the injection/extraction wells. In November of 2022, the District
applied for and ultimately received three grants to help offset the cost of the project. Two of the
grants totaling approximately $13.5 million dollars came from state funding, and an additional
$6.7 million dollars came by way of a United States Bureau of Reclamation grant for Small
Storage Projects.

As with any project of this magnitude, hiring a construction manager to not only manage and
supervise the day-to-day construction operations and contractor, but also to complete a
constructability review of the design plans prior to putting the project out to bid is critical. The
designer of Phase 2 , HDR has the capability of providing construction management (CM)
services during the construction of the facility and was considered by SBCWD to provide
services. However, the advantages of having a third-party CM that could provide a “fresh eyes”




look at the facilities far outweighed any advantage that HDR might have as the result of their
familiarity with the design. This is the same standard the District has used for construction
management in all past construction projects.

For Phase 1, West Hills Expansion, District staff requested proposals from competent
engineering firms to provide those services. The District received two proposals, one from MNS
Engineers Inc., and one from Kennedy-Jenks. District staff reviewed both proposals and set up
individual interviews for both firms. From those interviews Kennedy-Jenks was considered the
best firm given their familiarity with West Hills, demonstration of knowledge of water treatment
plant design, and a clear commitment to the construction management for the West Hills
expansion. For Phase 2 because of the value of continuity between Phase 1 and Phase 2, and the
fact that Phase 1 and Phase 2 will be under construction simultaneously, staff recommends the
District will continue with Kennedy-Jenks

Materials Included:
Zone 6 Water Supply and Operations Committee Recommendation
Scope of Services, Fee estimate for services, and related documents reviewed for consideration

Financial Impact: X Yes No
Funding Source/ Recap: 600-1351-A219-151-02 — ADRoP
Recommendation: Authorize General Manager to Execute a Contract with Kennedy Jenks Inc.

Consultants for Construction Management Services Related to Phase 2 of ADRoP in an amount
not to exceed $2,388,128, with a 5% contingency of $119,406 totaling $2,507,534.

Action Required: Resolution X Motion Review
Board Action
Resolution No._ Motion By Second By
Ayes Abstained
Noes Absent
Reagendized Date No Action Taken




BOARD AGENDA MEMO

DATE: May 20, 2025

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Zone 6 Water Supply and Operations Committee
(Williams* /Wright)

SUBJECT: Committee Recommendation that the Board Authorize the General
Manager to Execute a Contract with Kennedy-Jenks, Inc. Consultants for
Construction Management Services related to Phase 2 of the Accelerated
Drought Response Project (ADRoP)

The Zone 6 Water Supply and Operations Committee met on May 20, 2025 and
staff reviewed the proposal from Kennedy/Jenks Consultants for Construction
Management Services related to Phase 2 of the Accelerated Drought Response
Project (ADRoP).

The Zone 6 Water Supply and Operations Committee recommends the Board
Authorize the General Manager to Execute a Contract with Kennedy-Jenks,
Inc. Consultants for Construction Management Services related to Phase 2 of
the Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP).

O ) 7 / 2
JIRVIW) WLQ)OAWMA dantid
Director Williams* Director Wright

/

/



SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 28t day of May, 2025, by and between
the San Benito County Water District, ("District,") and Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc. ,
("Consultant").

1. Description of Project: District desires to undertake a Construction Management
Services related to Phase 2 of the Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP) ("the
project") and to engage Consultant to provide the required professional services relating to the
project.

2. Scope of Services - Basic; Completion: Consultant shall perform those basic
services in connection with the project as are set forth more particularly in EXHIBIT "A" entitled
"SCOPE OF CONSULTANT SERVICES - BASIC, COMPLETION SCHEDULE" and shall complete
said services in accordance with the completion schedule for them incorporated in said Exhibit.

3. Scope of Services - Additional, Completion Schedule: It is understood by District
and Consultant that it may be necessary, in connection with the project, for Consultant to
perform or secure the performance of services other than those set forth in EXHIBIT "A". In
each such instance, Consultant shall advise the District, in advance and in writing, of the need
for such additional services, their cost and the estimated time required to perform them (if
applicable). Consultant shall not proceed to perform any such required additional services until
District has determined that such service is beyond the scope of the basic services to be
provided, is required, and has given written authorization to perform or obtain it. Each
additional service so authorized shall constitute an amendment to this Agreement, shall be
identified and sequentially numbered as "Additional Consultant Service Order No. 1" and so
forth, shall be subject to all of the provisions of this Agreement, and shall be attached as
EXHIBIT "D" entitled "SCOPE OF CONSULTANT SERVICES - ADDITIONAL; COMPLETION
SCHEDULE."

4, Changes to Scope of Work - Basic Services: District may at any time and, upon a
minimum of ten (10) days' written notice, modify the scope of basic services to be provided
under this Agreement. Consultant shall, upon receipt of said notice, determine the impact on
both time and compensation of such change in scope and notify District in writing. Upon
agreement between District and Consultant as to the extent of said impacts to time and
compensation, an amendment to this Agreement shall be prepared describing such changes.
Execution of the amendment by District and Consultant shall constitute the Consultant's notice
to proceed with the changed scope.

5. Compensation; Retention: Consultant shall be compensated for services rendered to
District pursuant to this Agreement periodically in the amounts, manner and in accordance with
the payment schedule as set forth in EXHIBIT "B" entitled "COMPENSATION." Amounts due to
Consultant from District for services rendered shall be evidenced by the submission to District
by Consultant of an invoice, prepared in a form satisfactory to District, setting forth the amount

1



of compensation due for the period covered. Invoices, including the paid invoices of any
subconsultants shall, at a minimum set forth the hours and hourly rates of each individual
charged to the Project for the invoice period. Compensation shall not include the cost of
executive, administrative and other personnel whose time is not directly identifiable to the
Project. Each such invoice shall be forwarded to District so as to reach it on or before the
fifteenth (15th) day of the month next following the month or months, or other applicable
period, for which the services invoiced were provided. All such invoices shall be in full
accordance with any and all applicable provisions of this Agreement. District will make
payment on each such invoice within thirty (30) days of its receipt, provided however that if
Consultant submits an invoice which is incorrect, incomplete, or not in accordance with the
provisions of this Agreement, then District shall not be obligated to process any payment to
Consultant until a correct and complying invoice has been submitted.

6. Responsibility of Consultant: By executing this Agreement, Consultant warrants to
District that Consultant possesses, or will arrange to secure from others, all of the professional
capabilities, experience, resources and facilities necessary to provide to District the services
contemplated under this Agreement. Consultant further warrants that it will follow the highest
current, generally accepted professional care, skill, diligence and practices to make findings,
render opinions, prepare factual presentations, and provide professional advice and
recommendations regarding this project for which services are rendered under this Agreement
and that the Consultant shall, at no cost to the District, re-perform services which fail to satisfy
the foregoing Standard of Care.

7. Responsibility of District: To the extent appropriate to the project contemplated by
this Agreement, District shall:

7.1 Assist Consultant by placing at its disposal all available information pertinent to
the project, including previous reports and any other relevant data.

7.2 Guarantee access to and make all provision for Consultant to enter upon public
and private property as required for Consultant to perform its services.

7.3 Examine all studies, reports, specifications, proposals and other documents
prepared and presented by Consultant, and render verbally or in writing as may be appropriate,
decisions pertaining thereto within a reasonable time so as not to delay the progress of the
work by Consultant.

7.4 Designate in writing a person to act as District's representative with respect to
work to be performed under this Agreement. Such person shall have complete authority to
transmit instructions, receive information, interpret and define District's policies and decision
with respect to materials, equipment, elements and systems pertinent to Consultant's services.

8. Indemnification: Consultant shall hold District, its officers, boards and commissions,

and members thereof, its employees (collectively "District"), harmless of and free from the
negligent acts, errors and omissions of Consultant arising out of its performance of the services

2



provided under this Agreement. Should District be named in any suit, or should any claim be
made against District by suit or otherwise arising out of this Agreement, or Consultant's
negligent acts, errors and omissions in its performance of the services provided for by this
Agreement, Consultant shall defend and indemnify the District for any judgment rendered
against District or by any sums paid out in settlement or otherwise, but only to the extent
caused by the negligent act, error or omission in the rendering of services under this contract.

9. Insurance: During the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall maintain in full
force and effect at its own cost and expense the following insurance coverage:

9.1 Workers' Compensation Insurance to cover its employees, and Consultant shall
require all contractors and subcontractors similarly to provide Workers' Compensation
Insurance as required by the Labor Code of the State of California for all of the
subcontractors' employees. Each Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with the
provision that it will not be canceled or altered without first giving thirty (30) days prior notice
to the District by certified or registered mail.

9.2 Public Liability Insurance including personal injury and property damage
insurance for all activities of the Consultant and its contractors and subcontractors arising out
of or in connection with this contract, written on a comprehensive general liability form
including, but not limited to, Broad Form Property Damage, blanket contractual, products
liability and completed operations, hazards, vehicle coverage and non-owned auto liability
coverage in an amount not less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) combined single
limit personal injury and property damage for each occurrence.

9.3 Professional Liability Insurance Covering Errors and Omissions. The limits of
coverage shall be no less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) with a provision for no
more than $25,000 deductible. Consultant may not disclaim responsibility or avoid liability for
the acts or omissions of its subcontractors or other professional consultants.

9.4 Certificates of Insurance and properly executed endorsements in a form
acceptable to the District Counsel evidencing the coverage required by the clauses set forth
above shall be filed with the District at the time of execution of this agreement. Each such
policy shall be endorsed with the following language:

(1) The San Benito County Water District is named as additional insured for all
liability arising out of the operations by or on behalf of the named insured, and this policy
protects the additional insured, its officers, agents, and employees against liability for
personal and bodily injuries, deaths or property damage or destruction arising in any respect,
directly or indirectly, in the performance of the contract.

(2) The insurance provided is primary and no other insurance held or owned by
the District shall be called upon to contribute to a loss.

(3) The inclusion of more than one insured shall not operate to impair the rights of

3



one insured against another insured, and the coverage afforded shall apply as though
separate policies had been issued to each insured.

(4) The coverage provided by this policy shall not be canceled, non-renewed, or
substantially reduced in amount or scope, without thirty (30) days prior to written notice given
to the District by certified mail.

(5) All rights of subrogation are hereby waived against the District, its officers and
employees when acting within the scope of their appointment or employment.

10. Confidentiality: All District information disclosed to Consultant during the course of
performance of services under this Agreement shall be treated as confidential and shall not be
disclosed to any other persons or parties except as authorized by District, or required by law.

11. Conflict of Interest: Consultant warrants that neither Consultant, nor any of its
employees, agents or subcontractors, have a conflict of interest with respect to the work to be
performed under this Agreement, nor shall such individuals, during this term of this
Agreement, acquire any interest which would conflict in any manner with the performances of
services hereunder.

12, Nondiscrimination: During the performance of this Agreement, Consultant will not
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion,
creed, color, national origin, sex or age. Consultant will take affirmative action to insure that
applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard
to their race, religion, creed, color, national origin, sex or age.

13. Independent Contractor: District and Consultant agree that the relationship
between them created by this Agreement is that of an employer-independent contractor.
Consultant shall be solely responsible for the conduct and control of the work performed
under this Agreement. Consultant shall be free to render professional consulting services to
others during the term of this Agreement, so long as such activities do not interfere with or
diminish Consultant's ability to fulfill the obligations established herein to District.

14, Commencement of Services: Consultant shall proceed with the project upon
execution of this Agreement by the parties.

15. Notice to Proceed; Progress; Completion: Upon execution of this Agreement by
the parties, District shall give Consultant written notice to proceed with the work. Such notice
may authorize Consultant to render all of the services contemplated herein, or such portions
or phases as may be mutually agreed upon. In the latter event, District shall, in its sole
discretion, issue subsequent notices from time to time regarding further portions or phases of
the work. Upon receipt of such notices, Consultant shall diligently proceed with the work
authorized and complete it within the agreed time period.




16. Ownership of Documents: Title to all documents, drawings, specifications, and
the like with respect to work performed under this Agreement shall vest with District at such
time as District has compensated Consultant, as provided herein, for the services rendered by
Consultant in connection with which they were prepared.

17. Designation of Key Personnel: The individuals specified in the attached EXHIBIT
"C" shall provide the services set forth herein, and shall be the persons primarily in charge of
such work. Prior to the provision of work by any other individuals on this project, such other
individuals shall first be approved, in writing, by the District Manager or his designee.

18. Mistake of Fact: Each party understands that if any fact with respect to any matter
covered by this Agreement is found hereafter to be other or different from the facts now
believed by that party to be true, such party expressly accepts and assumes the risk of such
possible differences in fact and agrees that this Agreement shall be in all respects effective
and not subject to termination or rescission by reason of any such difference in facts.

19. Term; Termination: The term of this Agreement shall commence upon District's
issuance to Consultant of a notice to proceed for all or a portion of the work, as herein above
provided, and shall terminate upon District's acceptance and payment for all or such portion
of the work as was authorized by such notice, including any and all retention.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, District may, in its sole discretion, terminate this Agreement at
any time and for any reason whatsoever by giving at least ten (10) days prior written notice
of such termination to Consultant. In this latter event, Consultant shall be entitled to
compensation for all services rendered and work performed for District to the date of such
termination.

20. General Provisions:

20.1 Access to Records: Consultant shall maintain all books, records, documents,
accounting ledgers, and similar materials relating to work performed for District under this
Agreement on file for at least one (1) year following the date of final payment to Consultant
by District. Any duly authorized representative(s) of District shall have access to such records
for the purpose of inspection, audit and copying at reasonable times, during Consultant's
usual and customary business hours. Consultant shall provide proper facilities to District's
representative(s) for access and inspection. Consultant shall be entitled to reasonable
compensation for time and expenses relate to such access and inspection activities, which
shall be considered to be an additional service to the District, falling under the provisions of
SECTION 4 herein above.

20.2 Assignment: This Agreement is binding on the heirs, successors, and assigns
of the parties hereto and shall not be assigned by either District or Consultant without the

prior written consent of the other. Any attempt by Consultant to so assign this Agreement or
any rights, duties or obligations arising hereunder shall be void and of no effect.

20.3 Compliance with Laws, Rules, Requlations: All services performed by

5



Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall be performed in full compliance with all
applicable federal, state, and District laws, including any rules, standards or regulations
promulgated thereunder.

20.4 Exhibits Incorporated: All Exhibits referred to in this Agreement and
attached to it are hereby incorporated in it by this reference.

20.5 Integration; Amendment: This Agreement represents the entire
understanding of District and Consultant as to those matters contained herein. No prior oral
or written understanding shall be of any force or effect with respect to those matters covered
init. This Agreement may not be modified or altered except by amendment in writing sign by
both parties.

20.6 Waiver/Validity: Consultant agrees that waiver by District of any one or
more of the conditions of performance under this Agreement shall not be construed as waiver
of any other condition of performance under this Agreement. The acceptance by the District
of the performance of any work or services by Contractor shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any term or condition of this Agreement.

21. Jurisdiction: District and Consultant agree that the law governing this Agreement
shall be that of the State of California. Any suit brought by either party against the other
arising out of the performance of this Agreement shall be filed and maintained in the
Municipal or Superior Court of the County of San Benito. If any part of this Agreement is
found to be in conflict with applicable laws, such part shall be inoperative, null, and void
insofar as it is in conflict with said laws, but the remainder of the Agreement shall continue to
be in full force and effect.

22, Attorney's Fees: In the event any dispute between the parties hereto arising from
or relating to this Agreement shall result in litigation, the prevailing party shall be entitled to
all reasonable costs, including, but not limited to, actual attorney's fees.

23. Notice: Any notices, required to be given pursuant to this Agreement, shall be
deemed to have been given by their deposit, postage prepaid, in the United States Postal
Service, addressed to the parties as follows:

a. To District : San Benito County Water District
30 Mansfield Road
Hollister, CA 95023

b. To Consultant: Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, Inc.
212 North California Boulevard, Ste. 810
Walnut Creek, CA 94596



Nothing hereinabove shall prevent either District or Consultant from personal deliver of any
such notices to the other party.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement the day
and vyear first above written.

District: CONSULTANT:

By: By:

Title Title

Date Date



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE

San Benito County Water District
Kennedy Jenks Project Scope Proposal
1. ASR Wellfields and Pipeline Project

2. Wells Project

5/16/2025

Kennedy Jenks Scope of Weork

Task Description

Description

Deliverables

1.1 Project Management - PM & Accounting
Support

These tasks includes the management responsibilities associated with proper construction management (CM)
team coordination and scheduling, budget tracking and control, invoice preparation, subconsultant
management and invoice processing, and coordination.

Monthly submittal of invoices

1.2 Pre-Construction Activities & Meeting -
Both Projects

Perform a pre-construction site survey to document all preexisting site conditions with digital photographs.
Coordinate the pre-construction meeting with all project partners. Meeting will be structured around safety,
quality control, budget control, schedule control, communication protocols, and overall partnership between
the City, Design Engineer, the Contractor, and our CM Team.

Site survey report including photographs.
Prepare and distribute meeting agenda and
meeting minutes.

1.3 Pre-Construction Survey

Review Contract Documents for constructability at the 95% design levels. Look for problem areas that could
lead to delays, disputes, change orders, or potential document contradictions during construction.

Submit findings to District in a tabular format
with critical items identified, recommendations,
and a column for the District/Design Engineer
responses

1.4 Biddablity/Constructability Review &
Workshops

Review Contract Documents for constructability at the 95% design levels. Look for problem areas that could
lead to delays, disputes, change orders, or potential document contradictions during construction,
Includes participation in design workshops.

Submit findings to District in a tabular format with
critical items identified, recommendations, and a
column for the District/Design Engineer responses

2.1 Construction Management

Conduct construction progress with the District, Design Engineer, Contractor, and applicable project
stakeholders. KJ will prepare the meeting agenda in advance of the meeting and transmit meeting minutes to
all attendees.

Establish a communication protocol with all project stakeholders at the commencement of the Project during
the pre-construction meeting. Provide written correspondence to the Contractor as necessary to manage the
Project in an efficient and timely manner and in accordance with the Contract Documents. All Project
correspondence and documentation shall be issued through the electronic document control system.

Review and approve the Contractor’s monthly progress payment requests. KJ will verify that all supporting
documentation (redlined drawings and certified payrolls) and releases have been provided before transmitting
the pay application to the District’s Project Manager for review and approval.

Provide lead construction management for the
project, coordinating ail project activities. Prepare
and distribute cooresponsdence and facilitate
problem solving.

Prepare and submit recommended monthly progress
payments from the contractor.

Prepare and distribute project coorespondence.




2.2 Dcoument Management Resident
Engineer - RFI & Submittals, Letters & CCO

Develop and maintain a document control system to manage and track all Project documentation, including,
at a minimum, contract plans and specifications, correspondence, meeting agendas, meeting minutes,
submittals, shop drawings, requests for information (RFIs), potential change orders, change orders, field
directives, allowances, daily reports, and photographs. The document control system will be accessible by the
District, Design Engineer, and the Contractor. The document control system will be capable of generating
logs for submittals, RFIs, and change orders. The District will have access to daily logs, quality assurance and
inspection reports, and documentation stored. Upon completion of the Project, all documentation uploaded to
the document control system will be neatly organized in a project archive with a standard and uniform file
naming convention and shall be transmitted in a format acceptable to the District.

Establish and implement a change management procedure, including management of the change order
process, field orders, allowances. Reviewing, negotiating, and responding to proposed change orders (PCOs)
from the Contractor. Implement a proactive approach to minimize change orders to the extent possible.
Review Contractor’s change order proposal. KJ will facilitate change order meetings with the District and the
Contractor as needed for the review and negotiation of PCOs and preparation of change order packages.
Responses to change order requests shall be provided in accordance with the Contract Documents. All
negotiated change orders shall be reviewed and approved by the District’s Project Manager. KJ will monitor
and verify the performance of the authorized change order work.

Project document system development and
maintenance.

Final document archive delivery.

Prepare and distribute submittals, review
comments and logs.

Prepare field orders, allowances as directed by the
Districet.

Implement change management procedure.
Review all change orders requests by the
contractor.

Prepare and distribute RFIs, review and comments
and logs.

2.3 Construction Schedule

Review and approve the Contractor’s Baseline Schedule, weekly look-ahead schedules, monthly schedule
updates, recovery schedules, and time impact analyses (TIAs).

Prepare and distribute schedule review comments

2.4 Construction Observation - Ciivil/Mech
AS

Observe, document, and determine the acceptability of construction work. Coordinate resolutions for issues
encountered in the field without direction or extra cost. Monitor all aspects of the Project, including job site
safety, construction activities, including personnel and equipment, and testing for compliance with Contract
Documents. Perform onsite monitoring of construction work with respect to quality, schedule, plans and
specifications, health and safety, and design intent. Document all changes of conditions, disputes, and extra
work. Prepare daily inspection reports, track deficient work to correction and notify District and Contractor of
corrective action required. Provide photo documentation. Coordinate, observe, and document all testing
(pressure, leakage testing, performance).

Daily project reports, including photo
documentation, personnel, and equipment records.
Document unsafe conditions.

Coordinate testing and provide test results to the
District, EOR and Contractor.




Observe, document, and determine the acceptability of construction work. Coordinate resolutions for issues
encountered in the field without direction or extra cost. Monitor all aspects of the Project, including job site
safety, construction activities, including personnel and equipment, and testing for compliance with Contract
Documents. Perform onsite monitoring of construction work with respect to quality, schedule, plans and
specifications, health and safety, and design intent. Document all changes of conditions, disputes, and extra
work. Prepare daily inspection reports, track deficient work to correction and notify District and Contractor of
corrective action required. Provide photo documentation. Coordinate, observe, and document all testing
(pressure, leakage testing, performance).

Daily project reports, including photo
documentation, personnel, and equipment records.
Document unsafe conditions.

Coordinate testing and provide test results to the
District, EOR and Contractor.

2.5 Construction Observation - Electrical

Provide material testing and specialty inspection services, including soil testing, welding inspection, concrete
testing, coating inspection, electrical and controls inspection, masonry testing, adhesive anchor inspection,
2.6 Special Inspection CTS and reinforced steel testing as needed to verify materials are furnished and installed in accordance with the
contract documents. Develop and maintain reports and results of inspection and material testing services to
compliance with the contract documents

Provide testing results to District, EOR and
Contractor

Conduct monthly labor compliance interviews. The Contractor is responsible for submitting their certified . . .
Conduct monthly Labor compliance interviews.

2.7 Ltabor Compliance - Silveria payrolls to the DIR monthly. KJ will submit required records documenting inspector hours worked to the DIR . . .
monthly Labor Compliance documentation reviews.
SWPPP/BMP submittal reviews.
Comply with all environmental permitting requirements. Verify the contractor implements and maintains Review MMRP compliance.

2.8 Enviromental Compliance- Dudeck SWPPP, BMP, and biological requirements. Coordinate contractor corrections.

Review Equipment Manufacturer O&M Manuals and O&M Lesson Training Plans approved by the Design
Engineer. Observe Equipment Manufactures’ Installation Inspections, where specified. Review Contractor
approved COPI (Certificates of Proper Installation) from Manufacturers. Observe Equipment Manufacturer
Training Sessions, Review Contractor checkout & start-up procedures submittal. Oversee Equipment water
3.1 Startup & Commissioning - TSC testing: hydraulic testing, pump performance testing. Review Contractor pre-start-up mechanical equipment
test reports and installation checklists.

Review Contractor pre-start-up electrical equipment test reports and installation checklists loop checks, motor
rotation checklists. Oversee System Water Testing and functional testing of equipment and systems in local
and remote. Oversee pre-demonstration and demonstration period testing.

Prepare and distibute stgart-up lans and review
comments.

Coordinate and assist with implementation of
Contractor’s training program.




3.2 Warranty & O&M Manuals

Verify warranties are submitted by the Contractor as specified in the Contract Documents. Coordinate with
the District to verify that proper operations and maintenance manuals and any training materials have been
provided in accordance with the contract documents.

Deliver warranties and O&M manuals

3.3 Project Punmch List & Close Out -

Coordinate with the District, Design Engineer, and the Contractor to prepare punch lists for outstanding items
of work, including all documentation and submittals required by the contract documents, upon Substantial
Completion of the Project. Review and advise on items to be completed or corrected with the issuance of a
Certificate of Substantial Completion. Prepare Project punch list.

Coordinate with the District, Design Engineer, and the Contractor to prepare punch lists for outstanding items
of work, including all documentation and submittals required by the contract documents, upon Substantial
Completion of the Project. Review and advise on items to be completed or corrected with the issuance of a
Certificate of Substantial Completion. Prepare Project punch list

Provide recommendation for substantial
completeion. Prepare punch list and perform final
inspections to ensure pojec completeness.

4.0 Other Direct Costs - ODCs Procore and
Subsistance

Develop and maintain an electronic document control system (Procore) to manage and track all Project
documentation including, at a minimum, contract plans and specifications, correspondence, meeting agendas,
meeting minutes, submittals, shop drawings, requests for information (RFls), potential change orders, change
orders, ficld directives, allowances. daily reports, and photographs. The document control system will be
accessible by District, the Design Engineers, and the contractor. Facilitate separate Procore one training
session for District, design engineers, and the contractor. The document control system will be capable of
generating logs for submittals, RFIs and change orders. Upon completion of the Project, all documentation
uploaded to the document control system will be neatly organized in a project archive with a standard and
uniform file naming convention and shall be transmitted in a format acceptable to District.

Provide project document system including training
and final document archive delivery. Provide
inspector subsistence as required by DIR.




EXHIBIT B

COMPENSATION
San Benito County Water District
Kennedy Jenks Project Proposal 5.1.25
1. ASR Wellfields and Pipeline Project
2. Wells Project
Kennedy lenks Staffing - Estimates
Project Staffing Plan 2025
Months Bill Rate Jan Feb Mar Apr May. June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Hrs |Total Price
176 160 168 176 168 168 176 168 168 176 156 168
Task Description
1.1 Project Management - PM & Accounting RE s 309 0 0 0 4 4 2 4 4 4 24 s 7,416
Support
1.1 Project Management - PM & Accounting VD s 120 0 0 0 4 " 4 2 4 4 2 s 2,880
Support
1.2 v_.mﬁo:m::n:a: Activities & Meeting - Ks s 160 0 o 40 20 0 0 0 0 0 30 s 28,800
Both Projects
1.2 Em.n.osm_:_n:o: Activities & Meeting - LV/MEF s 191 o 0 20 40 0 0 o 0 0 20 s 15,280
Both Projects
1.2 Pre-Construction Acti s & Meeting - Dahl 0 0 0 $ 5000 0 0 0 o 0 10% s 5,500
Both Projects Markup
¢ 10%
1.3 Pre-Construction Survey Dudek $0 $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ - $ - O - S - $ - $ - $ 22,000
Markup
1.4 Biddablity/Constructability Review & Yellow is Phase 2
KS 60 25 40 20 20 0 0 0 0 0 37,
Workshops $ S 0 0 108 $ /800 workshops (4) &
Reviews
1.4 Biddablity/Constructability Review 1N $ 212 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10 $ 2,120
" . . - 10%
1.4 Biddablity/Constructability Review Dahl S 5000 S 5000 $ 5,000 Matkup S 16,500
2.1 Construction Management KS $ 360 0 80 40 40 80 80 80 80 80 560 $ 201,600




2.1 Construction Management DAHL $ & $ = $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 S 1,000 $ 1,000 zw.w”a $ 7,700
2.5 t . i W/MF § 1o 0 0 40 0 80 80 80 80 80 a0 | 91,680
Engineer - RFl & Submittals, Letters & CCO
2.3 Construction Schedule KS s 341 0 0 20 20 8 8 8 8 8 30 S 27,280
M.“ Construction Observation - Ciivil/Mech s $ 22 ) 0 168 176 168 168 176 156 168 1180 |$ 250,160
2.5 Construction Observation - Electrical I8 $ 212 0 0 0 0 0 0 40 40 40 120 $ 25,440
2.6 Special Inspection CTS cTs $ - $ - $ . $10000 $ 10000 $ 10000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000 _s,%m_ o |8 66,000
2.7 Labor Compliance - Silveria z“ﬂ_ﬁ“ " $ - 8§ - 5 3500 $ 3500 $ 3500 § 3500 $ 3500 $ 3,500 $ 3,500 zww”m o |8 26,950
2.8 Enviromental Compliance- Dudeck Dudek S » $ - $ - $ 4000 $ 4,000 $ 4000 $ 4000 $ 4,000 $ 4,000 z%ﬁ o S 26,400
3.1 Startup & Commissioning - TSC KS/TR $ 360 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $ - e
totals above
3.2 Warranty & O&M Manuals Lv/DM $ 191 (¢] (o] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 $ -
3.3 Project Punmch List & Close Out - KS s 360 0 0 0 0 (6] 0 0 0 0 0 $ -
3.3 Project Punch List & Close Out - Lv/omM $ 191 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S =
A.0.0ther Direct:Costs=ODCs Procore:and $ - § - § 5000 § 5000 $ 5000 $ 5000 $ 5000 $ 5000 $ 5000 Atcost |$ 35,000
Subsistance
Totals 2025 0 25 50 20 100 348 364 344 344 392 72 384 2743 |'$ 896,506




Kennedy Jenks Staffing - Estimates
Project Staffing Plan 2026
Months Bill Rate Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total Hrs |Total Price
160 160 176 176 160 176 176 168 160 176 152 168
Task Description
1.1 Project Management - PM & Accounting RE s 309 4 4 4 4 4 4 % 4 4 2 4 2 8 s 14,832
Support ?
1.1 Project Management - PM & Accounting VD $ 120 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 48 s 5.760
Suppart ~
1.2 Pre-Construction Activities & Meeting - No activities for
KS 360 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o] 0 0 0 - 7
Both Projects $ $ this period for
Tasks 1.2-1.4
1.2 Pre-Construction Activities & Meeting - LV/ME ¢ 200 o 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 s R
Baoth Projects
1.2 Pre-Construction Activities & Meeting - Dahi 0 o 0 0 o 0 0 o 0 0 o o o $ }
Both Projects
1.3 Pre-Construction Survey Dudek 0 0 0 0 0 0 [4] 0 0 0 0 0 0 $ =
KS $ 360 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 S -
JL $ 225 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 L -
1.4 Biddablity/Constructability Review Dahl 0 0 0 0 [} 0 0 0 0 [} 0 0 (4] $ -
2.1 Construction Management KS $ 360 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 100 120 100 1040 $ 374,400
2.1 Construction Management DAHL 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 $ 1000 $ 1,000 $ 1000 $ 1,000 $ 1,000 gww”u s 13,200
2.2 D¢ ) id\
LV/MF 200 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 960 192,
Engineer - RFl & Submittals, Letters & CCO / $ $ 92,000




2.3 Construction Schedule KS 360 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 20 108 38,880
MM Construction Observation - Ciivil/Mech Ls 25 160 160 176 176 160 176 176 168 160 176 0 0 1688 379,800
2.5 Construction Observation - Electrical it 25 40 40 40 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 80 840 189,000
2.6 Special Inspection CTS s $ 10000 § 10000 $ 10000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000 §$ 10,000 $ 10,000 $ 10,000 § - ZSH 121,000
arkup
N Silveria/ 10%
2.7 Labor Compliance - 3500 § 3500 $ 3500 $ 3500 § 3,500 $ 3500 § 3500 $ 3500 $ 3500 $ 3500 § 3500 S - 42,350
Next Level Markup
2.8 Enviromental Compliance- Dudeck Dudek 4000 $ 4000 $ 4000 $ 4000 $ 4000 $ 4000 $ 4000 $ 4000 $ 4000 $ 4000 S 4000 § - z_Sw . 48,400
arku
3.1 Startup & Commissioning - TSC above KS/TR 360 0 0 0 0 o] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - Task 3 included in
totals above
3.2 Warranty & O&M Manuals above  LV/DM 200 4] 0 0 0 [} 0 4] 0 0 0 0 0 0 -
3.3 Project Punmch List & Clase Out - above KS 360 0 0 0 0 0 0 4] 0 [} 0 0 0 0 -
3.3 Project Punch List & Close Out - above LV/DM 200 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -
m.ouwmﬁhnw:mn Costs;- ODCs Procore and 6000 $ 6000 $ 6000 S 6000 $ 6000 $ 6000 $ 6000 $ 6000 $ 6000 § 6000 $ 6000 $ 6000 AtCost 72,000
UuDSH
Totals 2026 376 376 392 432 416 432 432 424 416 452 296 288 4732 1,491,622
Project Totals 376 401 442 452 516 780 796 768 760 844 668 672 7475 2,388,128




San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal
Agenda Item: l ﬂ
Meeting Date: May 28, 2025
Submitted By: Jeff Cattaneo

Presented By: Jeff Cattaneo

Agenda Title: Consider Authorizing General Manager to Execute an Agreement with Todd
Groundwater for Professional Services Associated with ADRoP Well Construction, Fallon Road
(NTE $472,540)

Detailed Description: San Benito County Water District “District” has been planning an ASR
program in Northern San Benito Basin for several years. Recently based on the recommendations
in the updated Urban Area Water Supply Master Plan, the District with the help of State and
Federal funding, approved the first step in an ASR project in the Fallon Road area dubbed
“Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP)”. This project will take CVP water in years
that supply exceeds immediate demand and treat the water to drinking water standards and inject
the water into the ground for future recovery during droughts.

The ADRoP project will be a key component of the District’s long-term water supply portfolio.
Diversity in water supply sources are essential to minimize impacts from shortages due to
drought or interruptions in supply sources. Identified in the Hollister Urban Area Water and
Wastewater Master Plan as the Aquifer Storage and Recovery project, ADRoP will provide the
District with a source of water that is not subject to outside environmental or political issues that
we so commonly see associated with imported water from the State and Federal projects.

Four wells are planned to be constructed on private land where the District is securing permanent
casements, with a 5™ well planned if necessary. The 4 wells constructed will be used to inject
and extract water treated at the West Hills Water Treatment Plant. Water treated at West Hills
will then be conveyed through the City of Hollister’s potable water distribution system to San
Felipe Road where the District will construct a new conveyance line to connect to the wells field.
It is estimated that drilling of the 4 wells will be complete in 200 calendar days. An optional 5%
well is included in the bids for wells should the District determine that a 5" well be needed to
achieve the desired storage and production rates.

The Todd Groundwater scope of work and associated budget estimate are organized assuming
four of the five ASR wells will be constructed. An optional task has been included to add the
required incremental budget increases should the District decide to construct all five wells.
Assumptions for labor, materials, equipment, and other direct costs are presented below.




SCOPE OF WORK

TASK 1. PRE-CONSTRUCTION PLANNING

TASK 2. OBSERVATION DURING WELL DRILLING, CONSTRUCTION, AND TESTING

TASK 3. WELL PERFORMANCE TESTING

TASK 4. WELL CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTATION REPORT

TASK 5. COORDINATION WITH CIVIL ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT TEAM
TASK 6. PROJECT MANAGEMENT

TASK 7. OPTIONAL OBSERVATION, TESTING, AND REPORTING SERVICES FOR FIFTH ASR WELL

The Todd Groundwater proposal for management and oversight for the first 4 wells is $393,600

with an additional $78,940 for management and oversight of the 5™ well, bringing the total Todd
Groundwater proposal to $472,540 which is approximately 8% of the constructed cost.

Materials Included:
Zone 6 Water Supply and Operations Committee Recommendation
Copy of Contract, Scope of Services, Fee estimate for services from Todd Groundwater

Financial Impact: X Yes No
Funding Source/ Recap: 600-1351-A219-151-02 — ADRoP

Recommendation: Authorize General Manager to Execute an contract with Todd Groundwater
for Professional Services Associated with ADRoP Well Construction, Fallon Road

Action Required: Resolution X Motion Reyiew
Board Action
Resolution No._ Motion By Second By
Ayes Abstained
Noes Absent
Reagendized Date No Action Taken




BOARD AGENDA MEMO

DATE: May 20, 2025

TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Zone 6 Water Supply and Operations Committee
(Williams* /Wright)

SUBJECT: Committee Recommendation that the Board Authorize the General
Manager to Execute an Agreement with Todd Groundwater for Professional
Services Associated with the Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP)
Well Construction, Fallon Road

The Zone 6 Water Supply and Operations Committee met on May 20, 2025 and
staff reviewed the proposal from Todd Groundwater for Professional Services
Associated with the Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP) Well
Construction, Fallon Road.

The Zone 6 Water Supply and Operations Committee recommends the Board
Authorize the General Manager to Execute an Agreement with Todd
Groundwater for Professional Services Associated with the Accelerated Drought
Response Project (ADRoP) Well Construction, Fallon Road;

Direefor Wright



SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 28" day of May, 2025, by and between
the San Benito County Water District, ("District,") and Todd Groundwater, ("Consultant").

1. Description of Project: District desires to undertake Construction Phase Professional
Services, Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP) ASR Wells near Fallon Road ("the
project") and to engage Consultant to provide the required professional services relating to the
project.

2. Scope of Services - Basic; Completion: Consultant shall perform those basic
services in connection with the project as are set forth more particularly in EXHIBIT "A" entitled
"SCOPE OF CONSULTANT SERVICES - BASIC, COMPLETION SCHEDULE" and shall complete
said services in accordance with the completion schedule for them incorporated in said Exhibit.

3. Scope of Services - Additional, Completion Schedule: It is understood by District
and Consultant that it may be necessary, in connection with the project, for Consultant to
perform or secure the performance of services other than those set forth in EXHIBIT "A". In
each such instance, Consultant shall advise the District, in advance and in writing, of the need
for such additional services, their cost and the estimated time required to perform them (if
applicable). Consultant shall not proceed to perform any such required additional services until
District has determined that such service is beyond the scope of the basic services to be
provided, is required, and has given written authorization to perform or obtain it. Each
additional service so authorized shall constitute an amendment to this Agreement, shall be
identified and sequentially numbered as "Additional Consultant Service Order No. 1" and so
forth, shall be subject to all of the provisions of this Agreement, and shall be attached as
EXHIBIT "D" entitled "SCOPE OF CONSULTANT SERVICES - ADDITIONAL; COMPLETION
SCHEDULE."

4.  Changes to Scope of Work - Basic Services: District may at any time and, upon a
minimum of ten (10) days' written notice, modify the scope of basic services to be provided
under this Agreement. Consultant shall, upon receipt of said notice, determine the impact on
both time and compensation of such change in scope and notify District in writing. Upon
agreement between District and Consultant as to the extent of said impacts to time and
compensation, an amendment to this Agreement shall be prepared describing such changes.
Execution of the amendment by District and Consultant shall constitute the Consultant's notice
to proceed with the changed scope.

5. Compensation; Retention: Consultant shall be compensated for services rendered to
District pursuant to this Agreement periodically in the amounts, manner and in accordance with
the payment schedule as set forth in EXHIBIT "B" entitled "COMPENSATION." Amounts due to
Consultant from District for services rendered shall be evidenced by the submission to District
by Consultant of an invoice, prepared in a form satisfactory to District, setting forth the amount
of compensation due for the period covered. Invoices, including the paid invoices of any

1



subconsultants shall, at a minimum set forth the hours and hourly rates of each individual
charged to the Project for the invoice period. Compensation shall not include the cost of
executive, administrative and other personnel whose time is not directly identifiable to the
Project. Each such invoice shall be forwarded to District so as to reach it on or before the
fifteenth (15th) day of the month next following the month or months, or other applicable
period, for which the services invoiced were provided. All such invoices shall be in full
accordance with any and all applicable provisions of this Agreement. District will make
payment on each such invoice within thirty (30) days of its receipt, provided however that if
Consultant submits an invoice which is incorrect, incomplete, or not in accordance with the
provisions of this Agreement, then District shall not be obligated to process any payment to
Consultant until a correct and complying invoice has been submitted.

6. Responsibility of Consultant: By executing this Agreement, Consultant warrants to
District that Consultant possesses, or will arrange to secure from others, all of the professional
capabilities, experience, resources and facilities necessary to provide to District the services
contemplated under this Agreement. Consultant further warrants that it will follow the highest
current, generally accepted professional care, skill, diligence and practices to make findings,
render opinions, prepare factual presentations, and provide professional advice and
recommendations regarding this project for which services are rendered under this Agreement
and that the Consultant shall, at no cost to the District, re-perform services which fail to satisfy
the foregoing Standard of Care.

7. Responsibility of District: To the extent appropriate to the project contemplated by
this Agreement, District shall:

7.1 Assist Consultant by placing at its disposal all available information pertinent to
the project, including previous reports and any other relevant data.

7.2 Guarantee access to and make all provision for Consultant to enter upon public
and private property as required for Consultant to perform its services.

7.3 Examine all studies, reports, specifications, proposals and other documents
prepared and presented by Consultant, and render verbally or in writing as may be appropriate,
decisions pertaining thereto within a reasonable time so as not to delay the progress of the
work by Consultant. '

7.4 Designate in writing a person to act as District's representative with respect to
work to be performed under this Agreement. Such person shall have complete authority to
transmit instructions, receive information, interpret and define District's policies and decision
with respect to materials, equipment, elements and systems pertinent to Consultant's services.

8. Indemnification: Consultant shall hold District, its officers, boards and commissions,
and members thereof, its employees (collectively "District"), harmless of and free from the
negligent acts, errors and omissions of Consultant arising out of its performance of the services
provided under this Agreement. Should District be named in any suit, or should any claim be

2



made against District by suit or otherwise arising out of this Agreement, or Consultant's
negligent acts, errors and omissions in its performance of the services provided for by this
Agreement, Consultant shall defend and indemnify the District for any judgment rendered
against District or by any sums paid out in settlement or otherwise, but only to the extent
caused by the negligent act, error or omission in the rendering of services under this contract.

0. Insurance: During the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall maintain in full
force and effect at its own cost and expense the following insurance coverage:

9.1 Workers' Compensation Insurance to cover its employees, and Consultant shall
require all contractors and subcontractors similarly to provide Workers' Compensation
Insurance as required by the Labor Code of the State of California for all of the
subcontractors' employees. Each Workers' Compensation policy shall be endorsed with the
provision that it will not be canceled or altered without first giving thirty (30) days prior notice
to the District by certified or registered mail.

9.2 Public Liability Insurance including personal injury and property damage
insurance for all activities of the Consultant and its contractors and subcontractors arising out
of or in connection with this contract, written on a comprehensive general liability form
including, but not limited to, Broad Form Property Damage, blanket contractual, products
liability and completed operations, hazards, vehicle coverage and non-owned auto liability
coverage in an amount not less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) combined single
limit personal injury and property damage for each occurrence.

9.3 Professional Liability Insurance Covering Errors and Omissions. The limits of
coverage shall be no less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) with a provision for no
more than $25,000 deductible. Consultant may not disclaim responsibility or avoid liability for
the acts or omissions of its subcontractors or other professional consultants.

9.4 Certificates of Insurance and properly executed endorsements in a form
acceptable to the District Counsel evidencing the coverage required by the clauses set forth
above shall be filed with the District at the time of execution of this agreement. Each such
policy shall be endorsed with the following language:

(D The San Benito County Water District is named as additional insured for all
liability arising out of the operations by or on behalf of the named insured, and this policy
protects the additional insured, its officers, agents, and employees against liability for
personal and bodily injuries, deaths or property damage or destruction arising in any respect,
directly or indirectly, in the performance of the contract.

(2) The insurance provided is primary and no other insurance held or owned by
the District shall be called upon to contribute to a loss.

(3) The inclusion of more than one insured shall not operate to impair the rights of
one insured against another insured, and the coverage afforded shall apply as though

3



separate policies had been issued to each insured.

4) The coverage provided by this policy shall not be canceled, non-renewed, or
substantially reduced in amount or scope, without thirty (30) days prior to written notice given
to the District by certified mail.

(5) All rights of subrogation are hereby waived against the District, its officers and
employees when acting within the scope of their appointment or employment.

10. Confidentiality: All District information disclosed to Consultant during the course of
performance of services under this Agreement shall be treated as confidential and shall not be
disclosed to any other persons or parties except as authorized by District, or required by law.

11. Conflict of Interest: Consultant warrants that neither Consultant, nor any of its
employees, agents or subcontractors, have a conflict of interest with respect to the work to be
performed under this Agreement, nor shall such individuals, during this term of this
Agreement, acquire any interest which would conflict in any manner with the performances of
services hereunder.

12. Nondiscrimination: During the performance of this Agreement, Consultant will not
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion,
creed, color, national origin, sex or age. Consultant will take affirmative action to insure that
applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard
to their race, religion, creed, color, national origin, sex or age.

13. Independent Contractor: District and Consultant agree that the relationship
between them created by this Agreement is that of an employer-independent contractor.
Consultant shall be solely responsible for the conduct and control of the work performed
under this Agreement. Consultant shall be free to render professional consulting services to
others during the term of this Agreement, so long as such activities do not interfere with or
diminish Consultant's ability to fulfill the obligations established herein to District.

14, Commencement of Services: Consultant shall proceed with the project upon
execution of this Agreement by the parties.

15. Notice to Proceed; Progress; Completion: Upon execution of this Agreement by
the parties, District shall give Consultant written notice to proceed with the work. Such notice
may authorize Consultant to render all of the services contemplated herein, or such portions
or phases as may be mutually agreed upon. In the latter event, District shall, in its sole
discretion, issue subsequent notices from time to time regarding further portions or phases of
the work. Upon receipt of such notices, Consultant shall diligently proceed with the work
authorized and complete it within the agreed time period.

16. Ownership of Documents: Title to all documents, drawings, specifications, and

4



the like with respect to work performed under this Agreement shall vest with District at such
time as District has compensated Consultant, as provided herein, for the services rendered by
Consultant in connection with which they were prepared.

17. Designation of Key Personnel: The individuals specified in the attached EXHIBIT
"C" shall provide the services set forth herein, and shall be the persons primarily in charge of
such work. Prior to the provision of work by any other individuals on this project, such other
individuals shall first be approved, in writing, by the District Manager or his designee.

18. Mistake of Fact: Each party understands that if any fact with respect to any matter
covered by this Agreement is found hereafter to be other or different from the facts now
believed by that party to be true, such party expressly accepts and assumes the risk of such
possible differences in fact and agrees that this Agreement shall be in all respects effective
and not subject to termination or rescission by reason of any such difference in facts.

19. Term; Termination: The term of this Agreement shall commence upon District's
issuance to Consultant of a notice to proceed for all or a portion of the work, as herein above
provided, and shall terminate upon District's acceptance and payment for all or such portion
of the work as was authorized by such notice, including any and all retention.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, District may, in its sole discretion, terminate this Agreement at
any time and for any reason whatsoever by giving at least ten (10) days prior written notice
of such termination to Consultant. In this latter event, Consultant shall be entitled to
compensation for all services rendered and work performed for District to the date of such
termination.

20. General Provisions:

20.1 Access to Records: Consultant shall maintain all books, records, documents,
accounting ledgers, and similar materials relating to work performed for District under this
Agreement on file for at least one (1) year following the date of final payment to Consultant
by District. Any duly authorized representative(s) of District shall have access to such records
for the purpose of inspection, audit and copying at reasonable times, during Consultant's
usual and customary business hours. Consultant shall provide proper facilities to District's
representative(s) for access and inspection. Consultant shall be entitled to reasonable
compensation for time and expenses relate to such access and inspection activities, which
shall be considered to be an additional service to the District, falling under the provisions of
SECTION 4 herein above.

20.2 Assignment: This Agreement is binding on the heirs, successors, and assigns
of the parties hereto and shall not be assigned by either District or Consultant without the
prior written consent of the other. Any attempt by Consultant to so assign this Agreement or
any rights, duties or obligations arising hereunder shall be void and of no effect.

20.3 Compliance with Laws, Rules, Requlations: All services performed by
Consultant pursuant to this Agreement shall be performed in full compliance with all

5



applicable federal, state, and District laws, including any rules, standards or regulations
promulgated thereunder.

20.4 Exhibits Incorporated: All Exhibits referred to in this Agreement and
attached to it are hereby incorporated in it by this reference.

20.5 Integration; Amendment: This Agreement represents the entire
understanding of District and Consultant as to those matters contained herein. No prior oral
or written understanding shall be of any force or effect with respect to those matters covered
in it. This Agreement may not be modified or altered except by amendment in writing sign by
both parties.

20.6 Waiver/Validity: Consultant agrees that waiver by District of any one or
more of the conditions of performance under this Agreement shall not be construed as waiver
of any other condition of performance under this Agreement. The acceptance by the District
of the performance of any work or services by Contractor shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any term or condition of this Agreement.

21. Jurisdiction: District and Consultant agree that the law governing this Agreement
shall be that of the State of California. Any suit brought by either party against the other
arising out of the performance of this Agreement shall be filed and maintained in the
Municipal or Superior Court of the County of San Benito. If any part of this Agreement is
found to be in conflict with applicable laws, such part shall be inoperative, null, and void
insofar as it is in conflict with said laws, but the remainder of the Agreement shall continue to
be in full force and effect.

22. Attorney's Fees: In the event any dispute between the parties hereto arising from
or relating to this Agreement shall result in litigation, the prevailing party shall be entitled to
all reasonable costs, including, but not limited to, actual attorney's fees.

23. Notice: Any notices, required to be given pursuant to this Agreement, shall be
deemed to have been given by their deposit, postage prepaid, in the United States Postal
Service, addressed to the parties as follows:

a. To District : San Benito County Water District
30 Mansfield Road
Hollister, CA 95023

b. To Consultant: Chad Taylor
Todd Groundwater
1301 Marina Village Parkway, Suite 320
Alameda, CA 94501

Nothing hereinabove shall prevent either District or Consultant from personal deliver of any
such notices to the other party.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement the day
and year first above written.

District: CONSULTANT:

By: By:

Title Title

Date Date



EXHIBIT A

SCOPE
G R O U NDWATER
May 19, 2025
PROPOSAL
To: Jeff Cattaneo, PE and Dana Jacobson, General Manager

San Benito County Water District

From: Chad Taylor, PG, CHG, Vice President and Principal Hydrogeologist and
Garrett Erickson, PG, Associate Geologist

Re: Construction Phase Professional Services, Accelerated Drought Response
Project ASR Wells near Fallon Road, San Benito County Water District

INTRODUCTION

Since its founding in 1953, San Benito County Water District (SBCWD) has actively managed
water resources in San Benito County, focusing on conjunctive use of groundwater and
surface water sources. Recent formal management has included preparation of a
Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) in compliance with the California Sustainable
Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) and Water and Wastewater Management, Supply,
and Treatment plans for the San Benito Urban Area. The need for additional groundwater
storage in the Basin has long been recognized by SBCWD, which has evaluated and
implemented managed aquifer recharge (MAR) projects over the last 20 plus years. The
North San Benito Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project (ASR Project) was detailed in the
GSP for the North San Benito Groundwater Basin (Basin) to better utilize wet year water
supplies, available groundwater storage capacity and provide supplemental water during
dry periods. However, following SBCWD’s completion of the ASR Project conceptual design,
another series of severe drought and intense wet periods occurred, demonstrating the need
for SBCWD to accelerate a portion of the ASR Project to have storage facilities in place as
soon as possible. SBCWD subsequently revised the ASR Project to incorporate multiple
phases, allowing for the expedited implementation of the first phase. The first phase of the
ASR Project is the Accelerated Drought Response Project (ADRoP), which was
conceptualized to include up to five ASR wells, expansion of the West Hills Water Treatment
Plant (WHWTP) and construction of pipelines to convey injection and recovery water
between the five ASR wells, WHWTP, and the City of Hollister Distribution System.

Todd Groundwater (Todd) was part of a team that assisted SBCWD in assessing
hydrogeologic and other conditions in multiple areas of the Basin to evaluate ASR feasibility
and identify the most appropriate location for the ADRoP facilities. That process indicated
the area around Fallon Road north of the City of Hollister (Hollister) best met the needs of
the ADRoP and it was subsequently selected for land acquisition and facility design. The

1301 Marina Village Parkway, Suite 320 | Alameda, CA 94501 | 510 747 6920 | toddgroundwater.com



Todd component of that design included development of technical specifications for the
construction of up to five ASR wells at locations selected by SBCWD and their civil
engineering team. These specifications were published in two packages for drilling
contractor solicitation in April 2025. The bid documents for the solicitation were structured
to include two wells in each of two contracts for a total of four wells. The fifth well was
identified as an optional component of both bid packages to give SBCWD the flexibility to
control costs and assess long-term ADRoP needs. In recent discussions, SBCWD staff have
indicated that they may elect to only construct four of the five ASR wells originally planned
to be included in ADRoP. This approach has been considered and incorporated into this
proposal.

We are pleased to submit this proposal to provide professional services to SBCWD for the
construction phase of ADRoP, set to begin in June 2025. This proposal addresses drilling,
logging, final well design, well testing, reporting, coordination, and project management for
construction of the ADRoP ASR wells. The scope of work presented below provides
professional services during each aspect of the construction process defined in the technical
specifications for the five ADRoP ASR wells. The scope and budget also include coordination
with SBCWD, the project civil engineers (HDR), and project construction management team
{Kennedy Jenks) throughout well construction and testing.

The proposed scope of work and associated budget estimate are organized assuming four of
the five ASR wells will be constructed. An optional task has been included to add the
required incremental budget increases should SBCWD decide to construct all five wells.
Assumptions for labor, materials, equipment, and other direct costs are presented below. A
schedule of charges for each task is presented in Table 1 attached at the end of this
proposal.

SCOPE OF WORK
TASK 1. PRE-CONSTRUCTION PLANNING

For this task, Todd will participate in pre-construction meetings with the selected
contractors prior to mobilization. The four planned and one optional ASR wells are being
organized under two separate drilling and construction contracts. One contract will be for
ASR Wells 2 and 4 (NSBASR-2 and 4) with an option for Well 1 {(NSBASR-1) and another for
NSBASR-3 and 4 also with an option for NSBASR-1. While we understand that the apparent
low bidder for both contracts may be the same driller, we assume SBCWD will require one
drilling rig and crew for each contract so that two wells can be advanced simuitaneously.
Therefore, we also assume pre-construction planning will be required for each drilling crew
as if the work were being handled by two separate contractors. During the pre-construction
meetings with the contractor and their drilling crews we will confirm the sequencing of
tasks, work hours, sound mitigation requirements, schedules, equipment and materials, and
communication protocols during all components of the project for each set of wells. We will
also provide preliminary review of lithologic sample management, formation cuttings and
fluids management procedures, water discharge requirements, and

Proposal
NSB ADRoP ASR
Construction Observation 2 TODD GROUNDWATER



submittal/documentation requirements. We assume that SBCWD and the drilling contractor
{or contractors) will be responsible for well permits, site access coordination, and all other
planning required prior to mobilization of drilling equipment.

Meetings:

¢ Two pre-construction meetings, one with the selected drilling contractor for each
set of wells, SBCWD staff, other project team members, and representatives of
property owners.

TASK 2. OBSERVATION DURING WELL DRILLING, CONSTRUCTION, AND TESTING

The well drilling, construction, and testing process includes multiple phases and components
over the course of several weeks. During much of this time, work at a well site will take
place round the clock without days off {i.e., 24 hours a day and seven days a week). Staffing
well projects with experienced geologists full-time during every phase of drilling and
construction is very expensive and, in our experience, unnecessary. Qur approach is
therefore to and Todd will provide onsite observation of key field activities related to the
drilling, construction, development, and aquifer testing of each ASR well. Todd personnel
will be in daily contact with the drilling contractor and on 24-hour call to manage issues on
site as they arise. Daily updates will be provided to SBCWD and the project team to
coordinate and communicate findings and decision points in the field.

Todd will coordinate, observe, and document key field activities during borehole drilling,
logging, construction, and testing. Todd will coordinate with the chosen contractors so that
drilling, logging, construction, development, and aquifer testing of each well conforms to
the technical specifications and are appropriately documented. All field work will be
performed under the supervision of a California Professional Geologist.

Anticipated activities and Todd staff involvement for each phase of the work at each well
are summarized below:

s Mobilize bucket auger or reverse rotary rig for installation of surface conductor
casing.

o We assume conductor casing drilling and construction will occur during
daylight hours only.

o Todd staff will be onsite during mobilization prior to and at the beginning of
conductor casing drilling to establish communication and set expectations
with the drilling contractor’s field staff.

o Todd staff does not anticipate being present full-time during conductor
casing construction.

¢ Drill pilot borehole, conduct geophysical logging, define final well design, ream
borehole, and construct well.

o During this phase work is expected to continue 24 hours a day and seven (7)
days a week.

Proposal
NSB ADRoP ASR
Construction Observation 3 TODD GROUNDWATER



o Todd staff under the supervision of a licensed Professional Geologist will be
onsite at the start of pilot borehole to coordinate soil sample collection,
identification, and storage protocols and define roles and responsibilities.

o Todd staff will also be onsite periodically during pilot borehole drilling to
confirm proper soil sample collection and handling and prepare incremental
lithologic logs.

o Todd personnel will be onsite when the pilot borehole reaches planned total
depth to confirm subsurface conditions, evaluate lithology, and prepare for
geophysical logging.

o Our staff will remain onsite for the entirety of geophysical logging to begin
to refine the well design and prepare recommendations for final well
construction.

o Todd staff will not be onsite during borehole reaming unless circumstances
require our presence.

o Our personnel will be onsite full-time during most of well construction to
confirm the depth placement and correct installation of all materials and
collect and record information for the preparation of as-built drawings.

¢ Develop the well by combined airlifting/swabbing.

o Todd personnel will be onsite periodically during airlifting/swabbing well

development to confirm procedures and check results.
e Install a temporary test pump and develop by overpumping.

o Todd staff will provide pump intake depth, setting, and production capacity
requirements to the drilling contractor but will not be onsite during
temporary test pump installation.

o Our staff will be periodically present during overpumping development to
collect specific capacity information and observe development progress.
This onsite presence will be more frequent and longer duration as
development progresses.

e Conduct aquifer testing, including a step-drawdown and constant-rate discharge
tests.

o We will have experienced staff onsite full time during all aquifer testing of
each well to confirm appropriate testing procedures; monitor and record
water levels, production rates, sand content, select physical and chemical
parameters of produced water, and discharge conditions; and collect water
quality samples for laboratory analyses.

¢ Conduct downhole surveys including alignment (gyroscopic survey), vertical flow
profile (spinner log) survey, and video log survey.

o Todd staff will be onsite full-time during most of these surveys, especially
the vertical flow profile and video log surveys.

+ Disinfect well, move rig offsite, build temporary well completion, cleanup site.

o We assume SBCWD staff will perform final evaluation of site conditions and
Todd staff will not be present during this phase of well construction unless
onsite for other purposes.

Proposal
NSB ADRoP ASR
Construction Observation 4 TODD GROUNDWATER



During periods when Todd personnel are not onsite, they will be in routine remote
communication with contractor crew representatives and project managers. This remote
communication will vary depending on the phase of the project and the intensity of onsite
activity. During periods of active work, Todd staff will send daily email updates to SBCWD
staff and other project team members summarizing work completed, challenges
encountered, upcoming scheduled activities, potential future challenges, and other
information relevant to the project.

Once total depth has been reached in each well and geophysical logs and soil samples have
been accepted by Todd staff we will prepare a recommended final design for circulation and
discussion with SBCWD staff and other project team members. These recommendations will
be presented in a brief email accompanied by a drawing of recommended well construction
along with geophysical results and a preliminary lithologic log. Discussion of our final well
design recommendations will be held either through phone calls, email exchanges, or
remote web meetings, depending on feedback from SBCWD staff and other project team
members. Final designs will need to be transmitted to the contractor(s) shortly after
geophysical log and soil sample acceptance, so efficient coordination for and approval of the
final well design for each well is important.

During installation of casing and well screens, Todd will confirm that materials delivered to
the site are those required in and installed in a manner consistent with the technical
specifications.

During mechanical and pumping development, Todd will monitor activities both onsite and
remotely, direct measurement and data collection, monitor improvements in specific
capacity, modify testing requirements as necessary, and identify when development is
complete. Development will continue until measurements of specific capacity are consistent
and show good hydraulic connection with the aquifer and turbidity and suspended solids in
discharge water is minimized.

TASK 3. WELL PERFORMANCE TESTING

Todd will design and observe an aquifer testing program, including a variable discharge (step
rate) aquifer test (8 hours in duration) and a constant rate discharge test (between 12 and
24 hours, dependent on aquifer parameters and discharge conditions). During development
and testing of each well, we will monitor water levels using rented pressure transducers and
evaluate test results. For cost estimation purposes it is assumed that two transducers will be
needed for approximately three weeks (21 days) for each well. The contractor will also
install a continuous-reading flowmeter on the discharge to monitor production rate during
testing of each well. The hydraulic response observed in the pumping well will be used to
evaluate well hydraulic performance and local aquifer hydraulic properties.

Near the completion of aquifer testing of each well, a sample will be collected for water
quality analyses by SBCWD staff with assistance from Todd personnel. Following aquifer
testing, final downhole surveys, including video logging and a plumbness and alignment

Proposal
NSB ADRoP ASR
Construction Observation 5 TODD GROUNDWATER



(gyroscope) tests will be conducted, and the wells will be disinfected. Todd will be onsite to
observe each of these activities.

TASK 4. WELL CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTATION REPORT

After completion of construction and testing of all wells, Todd will prepare a final well
construction documentation report that summarizes all the activities for the drilling and
construction of the ADRoP ASR wells. The report will document activities and data collected
during drilling, construction, testing, and water quality sampling and will include details
relating to equipment, materials, dimensions, and findings. The report will include detailed
as-built well drawings and present recommendations for initial injection rates and backwash
rates and frequency for each well.

Supporting information will be included in appendices to the report. This will include
conformed contract documents and specifications, well permits, complete copies of
geophysical logs, and alignment and video log survey summaries will be included in
appendices to the report. A Department of Water Resources (DWR) Well Completion Report
form for each well documenting lithology and well construction details will be completed by
the contractor and reviewed by Todd staff prior submittal to DWR and SBCWD. These forms
will also be included in appendices to the documentation report.

The documentation report will be presented to SBCWD for review in draft prior to
finalization.

Deliverables:

* Reviewed and finalized DWR Well Completion Reports for each well for submittal to
DWR and SBCWD.

¢ Draft and Final documentation report. Draft documents will be provided as pdf and
word files for review; final work products will be provided electronically in a pdf.

TASK 5. COORDINATION WITH CIVIL ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT
TEAM

We expect there will be coordination requirements with other members of SBCWD’s ADRoP
team during well drilling and construction. This may include communication, task
coordination, information sharing, technical document review, or other general
coordination with civil engineering and construction management team members. The time
and effort required for this task is uncertain, but our experience in developing ADRGP to
date has indicated that some coordination will be necessary and we have used our recent
experience to estimate the level of effort for estimating costs associated with this task.

TASK 6. PROJECT MANAGEMENT

This task will cover project administration and all communications between Todd, SBCWD,
and contractors for the duration of the project. This includes budget tracking, invoicing,

Proposal -
NSB ADRoP ASR
Construction Observation 6 TODD GROUNDWATER



internal coordination, and preparing for and participating in progress calls during well
drilling, construction, and testing.

The budget estimate for this task has been prepared using the following assumptions:

s Progress meetings will be weekly, will be held remotely, and be one half hour on
average. Each well will require 10 weekly progress calls and at least one Todd staff
member will attend each meeting. The agenda for these meetings will be
standardized and Todd staff will not be responsible for preparing meeting minutes
or other meeting documentation.

o  Todd will assist SBCWD staff in reviewing and responding to contractor submittals
pertaining to well drilling and construction. The proposed budget assumes three (3)
submittals per well and three (3) hours of review per submittal.

* Todd will assist agency staff in responding to Contractor Requests for Information
(RFIs) pertaining to well drilling and construction. The proposed budget assumes
three (3) RFis per well and three (3) hours per RFl.

¢ Todd anticipates that the well design may change due to subsurface conditions and
material availability. Costs assume up to three (3) design changes to each well.

o Todd will assist the agency in reviewing Contractor invoices pertaining to weill
drilling and construction. Costs assume three (3) invoices per well at two hours per
invoice.

Meetings:
o Weekly remote progress meetings throughout the duration of well drilling,
construction, development, and testing.
* As-needed remote calls and meetings to discuss submittals, RFls, design changes,
and/or contractor invoice review.

Deliverables:

* Responses to submittals, RFls, well design changes, and contractor invoice review
consistent with the assumptions listed above.

TASK 7. OPTIONAL OBSERVATION, TESTING, AND REPORTING SERVICES FOR FIFTH ASR
WELL

As noted above, the preceding tasks assume the construction of four ASR wells. If SBCWD
decides to authorize construction of the fifth ASR well (described in both bid solicitation
packages as Optional NSBASR-1), we will request that this optional task be added to our
contract for professional services. This task includes the incremental additional time and
budget to provide equivalent professional services associated with the fifth ASR well
consistent with Tasks 1 through 6 above.

STAFFING

Our team for this project will include the same staff that has been working with SBCWD on
the ADRoP feasibility, planning, and design process for several years augmented by

Proposal
NSB ADRoP ASR
Construction Observation 7 TODD GROUNDWATER



geologists and engineers with experience in construction of large-scale injection wells for
MAR. This team is familiar with historical and current Basin conditions, knows the ADRoP,
and has a long history of successful partnership with SBCWD. The team will be led by Chad
Taylor, PG, CHG who is Vice President and Principal Hydrogeologist at Todd. Day to day
management and field staff coordination will be provided by Garrett Erickson, PG. Garrett is
an Associate Geologist at Todd and has a wide range of experience with well drilling and
construction projects, including in San Benito County. Garrett has recently been leading
Todd’s team in the construction and testing of high-capacity injection wells for the
Monterey One Water Pure Water Monterey recycled water recharge project in Seaside,
California and he will bring his experience with that award-winning and high-profile project
to SBCWD’s ADRoP. To provide cost efficiency, most onsite observation during drilling,
construction, and testing will be provided by our Staff Geologists Edward Potts, GIT and
Evan Bosinger. Both are experienced geologists familiar with rotary drilling, municipal well
construction, and drilling coordination. We have additional resources, and more Todd staff
may participate on an as-needed basis.

SCHEDULE

The work described in this scope will begin as soon as the contractors have been selected
and drilling and well construction is scheduled. The work will continue until all well drilling,
construction, and testing is complete, at which time reporting will begin. The total schedule
for completion of this scope of work will therefore be dependent on contractor selection
and the time required for the completion of field work. We estimate the well
documentation report for all the wells can be completed within approximately two months
following completion of all project field work and delivery f alf water quality laboratory
results. We are aware that grant funding deadlines may affect project completion deadlines,
and we are prepared to work with SBCWD to address any related schedule considerations.

COST ESTIMATE

The estimated project budget for this scope of work not including the optional task for the
fifth ASR Well is $393,600. The optional task to add professional services associated with the
fifth ASR well would increase the estimated budget by $78,940 to a total of $472,540. This
budget assumes that laboratory costs for groundwater analyses will be billed directly to
SBCWD, as in the recent exploratory borehole testing projects.

Todd Groundwater submits monthly invoices on a time and materials basis in accordance
with the attached schedule of charges. This allows flexibility in the laboratory scope without
the need for amendment of our contract. We regard this as a not-to-exceed budget, and we
will not bill in excess of the total estimated costs without your prior written approval. If
additional technical labor is required, costs will be assessed and may be added to the scope
via change orders.

Proposal
NSB ADRoP ASR
Construction Observation 8 TODD GROUNDWATER



—— i
Table 1. Estimated Costs - Construction Phase Professional Services, | u U
Accelerated Drought Response Project ASR Wells GROUNDWATER
Chad Taylor, Garrett Erickson,
Principal Assocaite Staff GIS Analyst / Total
yreogeok : logi : Labor | TotalLabor | Transducer | Other
2025 Hourly Rates $300 $200 $175 $190 $160 Hours Costs Rental Costs | Direct Costs | Total Costs
TASK 1. PRE-CONSTRUCTION PLANNING 16 16 16 0 0 48 $10,800 $0 $0 $10,800
TASK 2. OBSERVATION DURING WELL DRILLING, CONSTRUCTION, AND TESTING
Task 2.1. Observation during Drilling, Construction, and Testing of NSBASR-2 16 100 160 2 0 278 $53,180 $0 $4,600 $57,780'
Task 2.2. Observation during Drilling, Construction, and Testing of NSBASR-3 16 100 160 2 0 278 $53,180 $0 $4,600 $57,780
Task 2.3. Observation during Drilling, Construction, and Testing of NSBASR-4 16 100 160 2 0 278 $53,180 S0 $4,600 $57,780
Task 2.4. Observation during Drilling, Construction, and Testing of NSBASR-5 16 100 160 2 0 278 $53,180! S0 $4,600 $57,780
Task 2 Subtotal: 64 400 640 8 0 1,112 $212,720 $0 $18,400 $231,120
TASK 3. WELL PERFORMANCE TESTING
Task 3.1. Performance Testing of NSBASR-2 8 24 12 0 4] 44 $9,300 $3,000 $460 $12,760
Task 3.2. Performance Testing of NSBASR-3 8 24 12 0 0 44 $9,300 $3,000 $460 $12,760
Task 3.3. Performance Testing of NSBASR-4 8 24 12 0 0 44 $9,300 $3,000 $460 $12,760
Task 3.4. Performance Testing of NSBASR-5 8 24 12 0 0 44 $9,300 $3,000 $460 $12,760
Task 3 Subtotal: 32 96 48 0 0 176 $37,200 $12,000 $1,840 $51,040
TASK4. WELL CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTATION REPORT 20 60 40 20 0 140 $28,800 $0 S0 $28,800
TASK 5. COORDINATION WITH CIVIL ENGINEERING AND
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT TEAM 100 50 0 0 0 150 $40,000 $0 $0 $40,000!
TASK 6. PROJECT MANAGEMENT
Task 5.1. Project M {budget tracking, invoicing, meetings) 30 30 8 0 0 68 $16,400 S0 S0 $16,400
Task 5.2. Contractor Submittals and RFI Responses 20 30 8 4 8 70 $15,440 $0 $0 $15,440
Task 6 Subtotal: 50 60 16 4 8 138 $31,840 $0 $0 $31,840
Estimated Total Cost without Optional Task 7: 282 682 760 32 8 1,764| $361,360 $12,000( $20,240| $393,600
TASK 7. OPTIONAL OBSERVATION, TESTING, AND REPORTING SERVICES FOR FIFTH ASR WELL
Task 6.1. Observation during Drilling, Construction, and Testing of NSBASR-1 16 100 160 0 0 276 $52,800 S0 $4,600 $57,400
Task 6.2. Performance Testing of NSBASR-1 8 24 12 0 0 44 $9,300 $3,000 $460 $12,760
Task 6.3. Include Well NSBASR-1 in Documentation Report 5 10 4 4 0 23 $4,960 S0 S0 $4,960
Task 6.4. Well NSBASR-1 Project M nent and Coordination 4 8 4 0 2 18 $3,820 $0 S0 $3,820
Optional Task 7 Subtotal: 33 142 180 4 2 361 $70,880 $3,000 $5,060 $78,940
Estimated Total Cost Including Optional Task 7: 315 824 940 36 2,125| $432,240 $15,000| $25,300| $472,540

Des by: GE

P Estimate, ADReP ASR Well Prof Services 20250518 s« - ADRoP Well Condt Budiget Ckd by: CT




TOD!

GROUNDWATER

PLANNING e DEVELOPMENT ¢ MANAGEMENT ¢ PROTECTION

SCHEDULE OF CHARGES: 2025
Title

President

Principal Hydrogeologist / Vice President
Principal Hydrogeologist
Principal Engineer

Principal Hydrogeologist
Senior Hydrogeologist
Senior Hydrologist

Senior Hydrogeologist

Senior Engineer

Consulting Hydrogeologist
Consulting Engineer
Consulting Modeler
Associate Engineer
Associate Geologist
Associate Geologist

Senior Data Analyst/Graphics
Staff Geologist

Staff Geologist

Staff Geologist

Office Manager

Rates are subject to adjustment in January
Travel Time

Name

Iris Priestaf
Chad Taylor
Michael Maley
Maureen Reilly
Liz Elliott

Dan Craig

Gus Yates
Arden Wells
Lindsay Hall
Sally McCraven
Katherine White
Walt McNab
Sebastien Poore
Garrett Erickson
Kyle Young
Michael Wottrich
Edward Potts
Nicole Grimm
Evan Bosinger

Cynthia Obuchi

Travel time will be charged at regular hourly rates.

Litigation, Depositions, and Testimony

Deposition and trial testimony are charged at twice hourly rates.

Outside Services

Hourly
Rate

$310
$300
$300
$300
$300
$300
$300
$270
$270
$300
$300
$280
$230
$200
$200
$190
$175
$175
$170
$160

All services not ordinarily furnished by Todd Groundwater, including printing,

subcontracted services, local mileage, travel by common carrier, etc. are billed at

cost. Local mileage is billed at the current Federal mileage rate.

1301 Marina Village Parkway, Suite 320 | Alameda, CA 94501 | 510 747 6920 | toddgroundwater.com



COMPENSATION

EXHIBIT B

[ — -
Table 1. Estimated Costs - Construction Phase Professional Services, i
" e o
Accelerated Drought Response Project ASR Wells Gt =
Chad Taylor, Garrett Erickson,
Principal Assocaite Staff GIS Analyst / Total
i : / il Labor Total Labor | Transducer Other
2025 Hourly Rates $300 $200 $175 $190 $160 Hours Costs Rental Costs | Direct Costs | Total Costs
TASK 1. PRE-CONSTRUCTION PLANNING 16 16 16 0 0 a8 $10,800 $0 $0 $10,800
TASK 2. OBSERVATION DURING WELL DRILLING, CONSTRUCTION, AND TESTING
Task 2.1. Observation during Drilling, Construction, and Testing of NSBASR-2 16 100 160 2 0 278 $53,180 S0 $4,600 $57,780
Task 2.2. Observation during Drilling, Construction, and Testing of NSBASR-3 16 100 160 2 0 278 $53,180 $0 $4,600 $57,780
Task 2.3. Observation during Drilling, Construction, and Testing of NSBASR-4 16 100 160 2 0 278 $53,180 So $4,600 $57,780
Task 2.4. Observation during Drilling, Construction, and Testing of NSBASR-S 16 100 160 2 0 278 $53,180/ $0 $4,600 $57,780
Task 2 | 64 400 640 8 Q0 1,112 $212,720 $0 $18,400 $231,120
TASK 3. WELL PERFORMANCE TESTING
Task 3.1. Performance Testing of NSBASR-2 8 24 12 0 0 44 $9,300 $3,000 $460 $12,760
Task 3.2. Performance Testing of NSBASR-3 8 24 12 0 0 44 $9,300 $3,000 $460 $12,760
Task 3.3. Performance Testing of NSBASR-4 8 24 12 0 0 44 $9,300 $3,000 $460 $12,760
Task 3.4. Performance Testing of NSBASR-5 8 24 12 0 0 44 $9,300 $3,000 $460 $12,760
Task 3 32 96 48 0 0 176 $37,200 $12,000 $1,840 $51,040
TASK4. WELL CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTATION REPORT 20 60 40 20 0 140 $28,800 $0 $0 $28,800
TASK 5. COORDINATION WITH CIVIL ENGINEERING AND
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT TEAM 100 50 0 0 0 150 $40,000 S0 $0 $40,000
TASK 6. PROJECT MANAGEMENT
Task 5.1. Project t (budget tracking, invoicing, meetings) 30 30 8 0 0 68 $16,400 $0 $0 $16,400
Task 5.2. Contractor Submittals and RF) Responses 20 30 8 4 8 70 $15,440 S0 $0 $15,440
Task 6 Subtotal: 50 60 16 4 8 138 $31,840 $0 $0 $31,840
Estimated Total Cost without Optional Task 7: 282 682 760 32 8| 1,764| $361,360 $12,000| $20,240| $393,600
TASK 7. OPTIONAL OBSERVATION, TESTING, AND REPORTING SERVICES FOR FIFTH ASR WELL
Task 6.1. Observation during Drilling, Construction, and Testing of NSBASR-1 16 100 160 0 0 276 $52,800 S0 $4,600 $57,400
Task 6.2. Performance Testing of NSBASR-1 8 24 12 0 0 44 $9,300 $3,000 $460 $12,760
Task 6.3. Include Well NSBASR-1 in Documentation Report 5 10 4 4 0 23 $4,960 S0 S0 $4,960
Task 6.4. Well NSBASR-1 Project M and Coordination 4 8 4 0 2 18 $3,820 so $0 $3,820
Optional Task 7 Sut 33 142 180 4 2 361 $70,880 $3,000 $5,060 $78,940
Estimated Total Cost Including Optional Task 7: 315 824 940 36 2,125| $432,240 $15,000| $25,300| $472,540

ewmate, ADAGP ASR Well Prof Services 10130515 alss - ADRSP Wall Cantt Sudgel

Des by: GE
Chd by: CT



PLANNING  DEVELOPMENT o IV {ENT @ PROTECTION

SCHEDULE OF CHARGES: 2025

Title Name Hourly
Rate
President Iris Priestaf $310
Principal Hydrogeologist / Vice President Chad Taylor $300
Principal Hydrogeologist Michael Maley $300
Principal Engineer Maureen Reilly $300
Principal Hydrogeologist Liz Elliott $300
Senior Hydrogeologist Dan Craig $300
Senior Hydrologist Gus Yates $300
Senior Hydrogeologist Arden Wells $270
Senior Engineer Lindsay Hall $270
Consulting Hydrogeologist Sally McCraven $300
Consulting Engineer Katherine White $300
Consulting Modeler Walt McNab $280
Associate Engineer Sebastien Poore $230
Associate Geologist Garrett Erickson $200
Associate Geologist Kyle Young $200
Senior Data Analyst/Graphics Michael Wottrich $190
Staff Geologist Edward Potts $175
Staff Geologist Nicole Grimm $175
Staff Geologist Evan Bosinger $170
Office Manager Cynthia Obuchi $160

Rates are subject to adjustment in January

Travel Time

Travel time will be charged at regular hourly rates.

Litigation, Depositions, and Testimony

Deposition and trial testimony are charged at twice hourly rates.

Qutside Services

All services not ordinarily furnished by Todd Groundwater, including printing,
subcontracted services, local mileage, travel by common carrier, etc. are billed at
cost. Local mileage is billed at the current Federal mileage rate.

1301 Marina Village Parkway, Suit2 320 | Alameds, CA 94501 | 510 747 5920 | toddgroundwater.com



San Benito County Water District
Agenda Transmittal

Agenda Item: f g

Meeting Date: May 20, 2026
Submitted By: Brett Miller

Presented By: Brett Miller

Agenda Title: Consider Resolution for the San Benito County Water District, Acting as
the Groundwater Sustainability Agency for the North San Benito Groundwater Basin,
Requesting the County of San Benito to Collect a Groundwater Management Fee on the
Property Tax Rolls

Detailed Description:

On July 14, 2021, the Board of Directors, acting as the Groundwater Sustainability
Agency, adopted a Groundwater Management Fee (Fee) in compliance with the
requirements of California Water Code section 10730(a). This fee is a per acre charge
based upon the type of land usage classification (i.e. Areas benefitting from GSP, Upland
Areas, M & I Areas).

Annually, the Board of Directors must adopt a resolution requesting the County of San
Benito collect the Fee by placing the charge on property tax rolls for benefitting parcels
outside of the City of Hollister, Sunnyslope County Water District and City of San Juan
Bautista. The charge for parcels within those service areas will be billed directly to those
agencies.

There are a total of 3166 parcels that will be assessed. The total amount to be collected
by this action is $ 471,432.

Prior Committee or Board Action(s):
Resolutions 2021-13, 2021-14, 2022-18, 2023-15, 2024-24

Financial Impact: X Yes No

Funding Source/ Recap: N/A

Material Included for Information/Consideration:
Finance Committee Recommendation
Draft Resolution




Recommendation: Staff and the Finance Committee recommend the Board approve
Resolution 2025-13 to request the County to Collect the Groundwater Management Fee.

Action Required: X Resolution Motion Review
Board Action
X _Resolution No. Motion By Second By
Ayes Abstained
Noes Absent
Reagendized Date No Action Taken




BOARD AGENDA MEMO

DATE: May 20. 2025
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Finance Committee (Williams*/Freeman)

SUBJECT: Consider Recommending the Board Approve Resolution requesting
County of San Benito to collect a Groundwater Management Fee on
Property Tax Rolls

The Finance Committee met on May 20, 2025 and staff reviewed the draft
resolution requesting County of San Benito to collect a Groundwater
Management Fee on Property Tax Rolls. .

The Finance Committee recommends the Board Approve Resolution requesting
County of San Benito to collect a Groundwater Management Fee on Property
Tax Rolls.

//W%

/ﬁrector Freeman




DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-13

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE SAN BENITO COUNTY WATER DISTRICT,
ACTING AS THE GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY AGENCY
FOR THE NORTH SAN BENITO GROUNDWATER BASIN,
REQUESTING THE COUNTY OF SAN BENITO TO COLLECT
A GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT FEE ON THE PROPERTY TAX ROLLS

WHEREAS, on July 14, 2021, the Board of Directors of the San Benito County
Water District, acting as the groundwater sustainability agency for the North San
Benito Groundwater Basin (the “San Benito County Water District GSA”), duly adopted
and levied a Groundwater Management Fee pursuant to the authority and in
compliance with the requirements of California Water Code section 10730(a);

WHEREAS, California Water Code section 10730(d) authorizes the San Benito
County Water District GSA (the “GSA”) to request collection of the Groundwater
Management Fee in the same manner as ordinary municipal ad valorem taxes;

WHEREAS, a list of parcels and the amount of the Groundwater Management
Fee to be collected for each parcel for Fiscal Year 2025-2026 (the “2025-2026 Roll”)
has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of California Water Code
section 10730(d)(2), and is on file with the General Manager of the San Benito County
Water District, which 2025-2026 Roll is included herein by reference;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San
Benito County Water District, acting as the San Benito County Water District GSA,
that the GSA hereby requests the County of San Benito to collect, on the County
property tax rolls for fiscal year 2025-26, the Groundwater Management Fee in the
amounts shown with respect to the parcels on the 2025-2026 Roll.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the General Manager of the San Benito
County Water District is authorized and directed to deliver a copy of this Resolution
and 2025-2026 Roll and all pertinent information to the San Benito County Auditor-
Controller and Board of Supervisors by August 1, 2025.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the President of the Board is authorized to
sign this Resolution on behalf of the Board and the GSA.

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the San Benito County Water
District, acting as the San Benito County Water District GSA, at a regular Board
Meeting, this 28th day of May 2025 by the following vote:

AYES: DIRECTORS:
NOES: DIRECTORS:
ABSENT: DIRECTORS:
ABSTAIN: DIRECTORS:



DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT---DRAFT

(Signature of presiding Board member
Attested by Board Secretary
Resolution #2025-13)

Doug Williams
President

ATTEST:

Barbara L. Mauro
Board Secretary



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
002-230-004-000 0.18 0.18 100 $1.40 93100
002-230-005-000 0.17 0.17 100 $1.30 93100
002-230-006-000 0.15 0.15 100 $1.20 93100
002-230-007-000 0.26 0.26 100 $1.90 93100
002-230-008-000 14.85 14.85 100 $95.10 93100
002-240-010-000 1.79 1.79 100 $11.70 93100
002-240-011-000 1.75 1.75 100 $11.40 93100
002-240-018-000 3.21 3.21 100 $20.80 93100
002-240-019-000 3.69 3.69 100 $23.80 93100
002-240-020-000 3.77 3.77 100 $24.30 93100
002-250-004-000 29.09 29.09 100 $186.10 93100
002-250-005-000 10.1 10.1 100 $64.80 93100
002-310-002-000 11.06 11.06 100 $70.90 93100
002-500-002-000 15.23 15.23 100 $97.60 93100
002-550-003-000 9 9 100 $57.80 93100
002-550-004-000 3 3 100 $19.40 93100
002-550-007-000 0.78 0.78 100 $5.20 93100
002-550-008-000 18.07 18.07 100 $115.70 93100
002-550-016-000 3.77 3.77 100 $24.30 93100
002-550-017-000 3.16 3.16 100 $20.40 93100
002-550-018-000 3.8 3.8 100 $24.50 93100
002-550-019-000 1.04 1.04 100 $6.90 93100
002-620-062-000 0.65 0.65 100 $4.40 93100
011-030-005-000 7.54| 4.688374706] 62.18003589 $30.20 93100
011-030-006-000 3.8 38 100 $24.50 93100
011-030-038-000 7.47| 0.713264995| 9.548393503 $4.80 93100
011-030-046-000 2.04| 1.989798487] 97.53914152 $13.00 93100
011-030-061-000 5.45] 2.782005244| 51.04596778 $18.00 93100
011-070-003-000 5.76 5.76 100 $37.10 93100
011-070-004-000 5.37 5.37 100 $34.60 93100
011-140-006-000 0.68 0.68 100 $4.60 93100
011-140-007-000 29.03] 21.40438059| 73.73193452 $137.00 93100
011-140-014-000 3.14 3.14 100 $20.30 93100
011-140-017-000 6.67 6.67 100 $42.90 53100
011-140-022-000 13.36 13.36 100 $85.60 93100
011-140-028-000 3.53 3.53 100 $22.80 93100
011-140-032-000 5.11 5.11 100 $32.90 93100
011-140-034-000 4,92 4.92 100 $31.70 93100
011-140-035-000 5.967 5.967 100 $38.40 53100
011-140-036-000 4.3 4.3 100 $27.70 93100
011-140-038-000 2.74 2.74 100 $17.80 93100
011-140-039-000 0.94 0.94 100 $6.30 93100
011-140-040-000 5.67 5.67 100 $36.50 93100
011-140-041-000 1.95 1.95 100 $12.70 93100
011-140-042-000 12.16 12.16 100 $78.00 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
011-140-043-000 12.75 12.75 100 $81.70 93100
011-140-044-000 5.03 5.03 100 $32.40 93100
011-140-045-000 5.29| 4.272855631; 80.77231816 $27.60 93100
011-140-046-000 3.84 3.84 100 $24.80 93100
011-140-047-000 20.04 20.04 100 $128.30 93100
011-140-048-000 9.22 9.22 100 $59.20 93100
011-140-049-000 10.81 10.81 100 $69.30 93100
011-140-050-000 5.17| 1.943000475] 37.58331421 $12.70 93100
011-140-051-000 5.28] 5.238484617 99.2137238 $33.70 93100
011-200-002-000 18.89 18.89 100 $121.00 53100
011-200-005-000 13.75 13.75 100 $88.10 93100
011-200-006-000 0.4 0.4 100 $2.80 93100
011-200-007-000 9.08 9.08 100 $58.30 93100
011-200-010-000 53.33] 25.38411084| 47.59818271 $162.50 93100
011-200-020-000 10.94) 10.0127687; 91.52439397 $64.20 93100
011-200-024-000 15.47 15.47 100 $99.10 93100
011-200-025-000 4.46] 2.135309665| 47.87689832 $13.90 93100
011-200-026-000 4.9 4.9 100 $31.60 93100
011-200-027-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
011-200-028-000 1.63 1.63 100 $10.70 93100
011-200-029-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
011-200-031-000 34.36] 14.66263891| 42.67357076 $93.90 93100
011-200-034-000 13.44 13.44 100 $86.10 93100
011-200-035-000 5.16 5.16 100 $33.20 93100
011-200-040-000 5.54 5.54 100 $35.70 93100
011-200-041-000 5.12 5.12 100 $33.00 93100
011-200-042-000 5.13] 4.716457708] 91.93874675 $30.40 93100
011-200-043-000 51 51 100 $32.80 93100
011-200-044-000 5.34] 2.335772878] 43.74106513 $15.20 93100
011-200-046-000 5.02] 2.887810263| 57.52610085 $18.70 93100
011-200-048-000 5.43} 2.307126513 42.48851773 $15.00 93100
011-200-049-000 5.01 5.01 100 $32.30 93100
011-200-050-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
011-200-051-000 19.48 19.48 100 $124.70 93100
011-250-005-000 6.83] 4.361037299| 63.85120496 $28.10 93100
011-250-014-000 20.41) 1.222634311| 5.990368993 $8.10 93100
011-250-015-000 1.5 1.5 100 $9.80 93100
012-010-006-000 0.55 0.55 100 $3.80 93100
012-010-007-000 3 3 100 $19.40 93100
012-010-015-000 34.17 34.17 100 $218.60 93100
012-010-018-000 4.24 4.24 100 $27.30 93100
012-010-019-000 3.12 3.12 100 $20.20 93100
012-010-023-000 107.26 107.26 100 $685.60 93100
012-010-024-000 74.86 74.86 100 $478.60 93100
012-010-025-000 5.71 5.71 100 $36.70 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage in Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
012-010-027-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
012-010-028-000 6.94 6.94 100 $44.60 93100
012-010-029-000 50 50 100 $319.80 93100
012-010-030-000 126.03 126.03 100 $805.60 93100
012-010-031-000 21.25 21.25 100 $136.00 93100
012-020-001-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
012-020-021-000 167.78 167.78 100 $1,072.40 93100
012-020-022-000 40.67 40.67 100 $260.10 93100
012-020-023-000 12.8 12.8 100 $82.00 93100
012-030-003-000 1.36 1.36 100 $8.90 93100
012-030-008-000 10.89 10.89 100 $69.80 93100
012-030-011-000 4.13 4.13 100 $26.60 93100
012-030-017-000 3.05 3.05 100 $19.70 93100
012-030-019-000 17.88 17.88 100 $114.50 93100
012-030-020-000 1.05 1.05 100 $7.00 93100
012-030-023-000 2.51 2.51 100 $16.30 93100
012-030-028-000 6.08 6.08 100 $39.10 93100
012-030-030-000 6.07 6.07 100 $39.00 93100
012-030-031-000 5.07 5.07 100 $32.60 93100
012-030-033-000 5.85 5.85 100 $37.60 93100
012-030-035-000 5.16 5.16 100 $33.20 93100
012-030-036-000 5.36 5.36 100 $34.50 93100
012-030-037-000 5.07 5.07 100 $32.60 93100
012-030-038-000 5.07 5.07 100 $32.60 93100
012-030-039-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
012-030-040-000 5.11 5.11 100 $32.90 93100
012-030-041-000 5.23 5.23 100 $33.70 93100
012-030-042-000 5.87 5.87 100 $37.80 93100
012-030-043-000 1.04 1.04 100 $6.90 93100
012-030-045-000 104.42 104.42 100 $667.50 93100
012-040-010-000 2.5 2.5 100 $16.20 93100
012-040-021-000 45.01| 35.93789796 79.8442523 $229.90 93100
012-040-022-000 25.26 25.26 100 $161.70 93100
012-040-035-000 1.52 1.52 100 $10.00 93100
012-040-036-000 3.32 3.32 100 $21.50 93100
012-040-037-000 0.76 0.76 100 $5.10 93100
012-040-039-000 6.24 6.24 100 $40.10 93100
012-040-042-000 15.16 15.16 100 $97.10 93100
012-040-044-000 44.95 44.95 100 $287.50 93100
012-040-045-000 15.8 15.8 100 $101.20 93100
012-040-046-000 2.82 2.82 100 $18.30 93100
012-040-047-000 0.31 0.31 100 $2.20 93100
012-040-049-000 6.08 6.08 100 $39.10 93100
012-040-051-000 18.14 18.14 100 $116.20 93100
012-040-053-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xlsxinformational



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel }In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
012-040-054-000 4.15 4.15 100 $26.80 93100
012-040-055-000 1.3 1.3 100 $8.60 93100
012-040-056-000 5.22 5.22 100 $33.60 93100
012-040-057-000 5.8 5.8 100 $37.30 93100
012-040-058-000 5.62 5.62 100 $36.20 93100
012-050-007-000 0.09 0.09 100 $0.80 93100
012-050-009-000 68.54 68.54 100 $438.20 93100
012-050-016-000 54.15 54.15 100 $346.30 93100
012-050-019-000 55.2 55.2 100 $353.00 93100
012-050-020-000 50.86 50.86 100 $325.20 93100
012-060-001-000 80 80 100 $511.50 93100
012-060-002-000 73.49 73.49 100 $469.90 93100
012-060-003-000 16.16 16.16 100 $103.50 93100
012-060-004-000 64.61 64.61 100 $413.10 93100
012-070-001-000 247.69 247.69 100 $1,583.00 93100
012-070-003-000 86.31 86.31 100 $551.80 93100
012-080-002-000 100 100 100 $639.30 93100
012-080-003-000 56.56 56.56 100 $361.70 93100
012-080-004-000 25.94 25.94 100 $166.00 93100
012-080-005-000 37.64 37.64 100 $240.80 93100
012-090-003-000 198.22| 56.65048009| 28.57959847 $362.20 93100
012-090-018-000 5.26] 1.053516571f 20.02883215 $7.00 93100
012-100-004-000 2.68 2.68 100 $17.40 93100
012-100-011-000 106.58 106.58 100 $681.30 93100
012-100-014-000 48.62} 25.30262433] 52.04159673 $161.90 93100
012-100-015-000 2.68 2.68 100 $17.40 93100
012-100-016-000 22.39 22.39 100 $143.30 93100
012-100-017-000 45.87 45.87 100 $293.40 93100
012-110-003-000 18.29 18.29 100 $117.10 93100
012-110-004-000 7.48 7.48 100 $48.00 93100
012-110-005-000 132.03 132.03 100 $843.90 93100
012-120-001-000 291.42 291.42 100 $1,862.40 93100
012-120-002-000 40 40 100 $255.90 93100
012-130-002-000 19.55 19.55 100 $125.20 93100
012-130-003-000 18.22 18.22 100 $116.70 93100
012-130-005-000 29.32 29.32 100 $187.60 93100
012-130-006-000 1.41 1.41 100 $9.30 93100
012-130-007-000 18.33 18.33 100 $117.40 93100
012-130-008-000 17.99 17.99 100 $115.20 93100
012-130-020-000 20 20 100 $128.10 93100
012-130-022-000 48.72 48.72 100 $311.60 93100
012-130-026-000 23.14 23.14 100 $148.10 93100
012-130-028-000 18.66 18.66 100 $119.50 93100
012-130-033-000 5.97 5.97 100 $38.40 93100
012-130-034-000 0.56 0.56 100 $3.80 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformational



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
012-130-035-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
012-130-036-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
012-130-039-000 6.58 6.58 100 $42.30 93100
012-130-040-000 3.42 342 100 $22.10 93100
012-130-041-000 27.7 27.7 100 $177.30 93100
012-140-028-000 231.1| 0.010008513| 0.004330815 $0.30 93100
012-160-009-000 4.67 4.67 100 $30.10 93100
012-160-010-000 7.76 7.76 100 $49.80 93100
012-160-012-000 0.76 0.76 100 $5.10 93100
012-160-030-000 9.17| 0.517306475| 5.641291984 $3.60 93100
012-160-032-000 0.47 0.47 100 $3.30 93100
012-160-033-000 2.6 2.6 100 $16.90 93100
012-160-034-000 6.03 6.03 100 $38.80 93100
012-160-035-000 35.82} 25.85749306] 72.18730614 $165.50 93100
012-160-038-000 20.93| 0.039916938] 0.190716379 $0.50 93100
012-160-039-000 9.68| 6.987731234| 72.18730614 $44.90 93100
012-160-040-000 6.27| 4.526144095] 72.18730614 $29.20 93100
012-170-001-000 18.75 18.75 100 $120.10 93100
012-170-002-000 0.164 0.164 100 $1.30 93100
012-170-004-000 2 2 100 $13.00 93100
012-170-006-000 0.89 0.89 100 $5.90 93100
012-170-007-000 0.88 0.88 100 $5.90 93100
012-180-001-000 0.07 0.07 100 $0.70 93100
012-180-002-000 0.32 0.32 100 $2.30 93100
012-180-003-000 0.73 0.73 100 $4.90 93100
012-180-004-000 5.31 5.31 100 $34.20 93100
012-180-005-000 0.205 0.205 100 $1.60 93100
012-180-006-000 0.272 0.272 100 $2.00 93100
012-180-007-000 0.275 0.275 100 $2.00 93100
012-180-008-000 1.11 1.11 100 $7.30 93100
012-190-007-000 37.73} 33.74737308| 89.44440254 $215.90 93100
012-190-008-000 1.09 1.09 100 $7.20 93100
012-190-009-000 1.09 1.09 100 $7.20 93100
012-190-010-000 1.09 1.09 100 $7.20 93100
012-190-013-000 19.81| 8.677462344| 43.80344444 $55.70 93100
012-190-014-000 7.52 7.52 100 $48.30 93100
012-190-016-000 9.95 9.95 100 $63.80 93100
012-190-021-000 11 11 100 $70.50 93100
012-190-023-000 7.9 7.9 100 $50.70 93100
012-190-026-000 1.08 1.08 100 $7.20 93100
012-190-027-000 2.27 2.27 100 $14.80 93100
012-190-028-000 19.08| 18.9809758f 99.48100526 $121.50 93100
012-190-025-000 12.02 12.02 100 $77.10 93100
012-190-032-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
012-190-033-000 5.58 5.58 100 $35.90 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xlsxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
012-190-035-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
012-190-036-000 4.78 4,78 100 $30.80 93100
012-190-037-000 4,46 4.46 100 $28.70 93100
012-190-040-000 1.15 1.15 100 $7.60 93100
012-190-044-000 1.1 1.1 100 $7.30 93100
012-190-045-000 1.1 1.1 100 $7.30 93100
012-190-046-000 11 1.1 100 $7.30 93100
012-190-047-000 1.11 1.11 100 $7.30 93100
012-190-048-000 25 25 100 $160.00 93100
012-200-003-000 4.99| 0.788044054] 15.79246602 $5.30 93100
012-200-008-000 58.68| 25.06724691] 42.71855301 $160.40 93100
013-010-001-000 28.86| 28.83498758| 99.91333187 $184.50 93100
013-010-005-000 318.15 318.15 100 $2,033.20 93100
013-010-010-000 21.2 21.2 100 $135.70 93100
013-010-014-000 9 9 100 $57.80 93100
013-010-016-000 8.32 8.32 100 $53.40 93100
013-010-017-000 5.52 5.52 100 $35.50 93100
013-010-019-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
013-010-021-000 185.37| 184.624501| 99.59783191 $1,180.00 93100
013-010-023-000 14.47 14.47 100 $92.70 93100
013-010-025-000 13.86 13.86 100 $88.80 93100
013-010-026-000 0.076 0.076 100 $0.70 93100
013-010-028-000 50 50 100 $319.80 93100
013-010-029-000 67.57 67.57 100 $432.00 93100
013-010-031-000 5.86 5.86 100 $37.70 93100
013-010-032-000 299.09 299.09 100 $1,911.40 93100
013-010-034-000 27.5 27.5 100 $176.00 93100
013-010-035-000 27.5 275 100 $176.00 93100
013-010-036-000 27.5 27.5 100 $176.00 93100
013-010-037-000 27.5 27.5 100 $176.00 93100
013-020-001-000 181.33 181.33 100 $1,158.90 93100
013-020-004-000 82.23]| 78.96029768] 96.02371115 $504.80 93100
013-020-005-000 135.43} 135.3231212| 99.92120819 $865.00 93100
013-020-006-000 146.22| 141.1773214] 96.55130718 $902.40 93100
013-020-008-000 173.42 173.42 100 $1,108.40 93100
013-020-009-000 195.37 195.37 100 $1,248.70 93100
013-020-010-000 135.13 135.13 100 $863.70 93100
013-020-013-000 157.8 157.8 100 $1,008.60 53100
013-020-014-000 182.11 182.11 100 $1,163.90 93100
013-020-017-000 209.5 209.5 100 $1,339.00 93100
013-020-019-000 87.04| 83.28568944| 95.68668364 $532.40 93100
013-020-020-000 156.08 156.08 100 $997.60 93100
013-030-005-000 17.56} 12.33791495| 70.26147468 $79.10 53100
013-030-006-000 13.3] 7.725359452| 58.08540941 $49.60 93100
013-030-007-000 25.92} 20.44148895| 78.86376909 $130.90 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax information.xisxInformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
013-030-008-000 10.92] 8.383861655| 76.77528988 $53.80 93100
013-040-005-000 305.25 305.25 100 $1,950.80 93100
013-040-006-000 2 2 100 $13.00 93100
013-040-014-000 151.72 151.72 100 $969.70 93100
013-040-015-000 222.63 222.63 100 $1,422.90 93100
013-040-022-000 64.36 64.36 100 $411.50 93100
013-040-024-000 29.14 29.14 100 $186.50 93100
013-040-025-000 161.06 161.06 100 $1,029.40 93100
013-040-026-000 171.63 171.63 100 $1,097.00 93100
013-040-027-000 254.5 254.5 100 $1,626.50 93100
013-040-028-000 9.5 9.5 100 $61.00 93100
013-040-029-000 9.5 9.5 100 $61.00 93100
013-040-030-000 9.5 9.5 100 $61.00 93100
013-040-031-000 9.5 9.5 100 $61.00 93100
013-040-032-000 209.09| 208.6483282| 99.78876476 $1,333.50 93100
013-040-033-000 143.42 143.42 100 $916.70 93100
013-040-034-000 159.93 159.93 100 $1,022.20 93100
013-040-035-000 178.85 178.85 100 $1,143.10 93100
013-050-001-000 68.34 68.34 100 $436.90 93100
013-050-002-000 2.65 2.65 100 $17.20 93100
013-050-003-000 96.95 96.95 100 $619.80 93100
013-050-004-000 77.15 77.15 100 $493.20 93100
013-050-005-000 57.36 57.36 100 $366.80 93100
013-050-007-000 31.16 31.16 100 $199.40 93100
013-050-010-000 50 50 100 $319.80 93100
013-050-013-000 59.86 59.86 100 $382.80 93100
013-050-014-000 0.44 0.44 100 $3.10 93100
013-050-017-000 92.99 92.99 100 $594.50 93100
013-050-018-000 61.26 61.26 100 $391.70 93100
013-050-021-000 38.51 38.51 100 $246.30 93100
013-050-024-000 41.27 41.27 100 $264.00 93100
013-050-025-000 38.98 38.98 100 $249.30 93100
013-050-027-000 0.76 0.76 100 $5.10 93100
013-050-028-000 77.02 77.02 100 $492.40 93100
013-050-029-000 49.04 49.04 100 $313.60 93100
013-050-030-000 49.57 49.57 100 $317.00 93100
013-050-031-000 41.79 41.79 100 $267.30 93100
013-050-032-000 41.79 41.79 100 $267.30 93100
013-050-033-000 48.76 48.76 100 $311.80 93100
013-050-034-000 48.76 48.76 100 $311.80 93100
013-060-004-000 1.44 1.44 100 $9.50 93100
013-060-015-000 512 2816 55 $1,799.70 93100
013-060-016-000 2.22 2.22 100 $14.40 93100
013-060-018-000 251.72 251.72 100 $1,608.70 93100
013-060-026-000 67.18 67.18 100 $429.50 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xIsxInformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
013-060-027-000 44.68 44,68 100 $285.80 93100
013-060-028-000 53.77 53.77 100 $343.80 93100
013-060-023-000 53.82 53.82 100 $344.20 93100
013-060-030-000 53.71 53.71 100 $343.50 93100
013-060-031-000 54.28 54.28 100 $347.10 93100
013-060-032-000 54.28 54.28 100 $347.10 93100
013-060-033-000 506.53 506.53 100 $3,237.00 93100
013-070-005-000 6.74 6.74 100 $43.30 93100
013-070-006-000 468.94 468.94 100 $2,996.80 93100
013-070-008-000 85.74{ 80.8615603| 94.31019396 $517.00 93100
013-070-009-000 15.45 15.45 100 $99.00 93100
013-070-010-000 432.28| 429.6608019| 99.39409687 $2,745.80 93100
013-070-011-000 140.73 140.73 100 $899.50 93100
013-070-017-000 83.44 83.44 100 $533.40 93100
013-070-018-000 19.7 19.7 100 $126.10 93100
013-070-019-000 9.92 9.92 100 $63.60 93100
013-070-020-000 211.61 211.61 100 $1,352.40 93100
013-070-021-000 9.91 9.91 100 $63.60 93100
013-080-004-000 105.23 105.23 100 $672.70 93100
013-080-005-000 29.3 29.3 100 $187.50 93100
013-080-006-000 4.79 4.79 100 $30.90 93100
013-080-007-000 141.74 141.74 100 $906.00 93100
013-080-009-000 213.07 213.07 100 $1,361.80 93100
013-080-010-000 162 162 100 $1,035.40 93100
013-080-011-000 300.81 300.81 100 $1,922.40 93100
013-090-007-000 166.43| 164.6965951] 98.95847812 $1,052.70 93100
013-090-011-000 120.55 120.55 100 $770.60 93100
013-090-018-000 118.64| 75.76900306] 63.86463508 $484.40 93100
013-090-020-000 73.5 73.5 100 $469.90 93100
013-090-021-000 30.06 30.06 100 $192.30 93100
013-090-022-000 106.19 106.19 100 $678.80 93100
013-090-025-000 108.97 108.97 100 $696.60 93100
013-090-026-000 116.07 116.07 100 $741.90 93100
013-090-036-000 136.21| 39.60461561 29.0761439 $253.30 93100
013-090-038-000 211.32| 202.2642727] 95.71468516 $1,292.70 93100
013-090-040-000 260.76| 218.4491034| 83.77400805 $1,396.10 93100
013-100-006-000 45.1 45.1 100 $288.40 93100
013-100-007-000 66.92 66.92 100 $427.90 93100
013-100-008-000 0.68 0.68 100 $4.60 93100
013-100-014-000 18.16 18.16 100 $116.30 93100
013-100-015-000 145.56 145.56 100 $930.40 93100
013-100-018-000 186.51 186.51 100 $1,192.00 93100
013-100-022-000 181.94 181.94 100 $1,162.80 93100
013-110-011-000 25.56| 2.544816648] 9.956246667 $16.50 93100
013-110-015-000 183.44| 80.90090215 44.1021054 $517.20 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xlsxinformational



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
013-120-009-000 189.93 189.93 100 $1,213.90 93100
013-120-010-000 20.97 20.97 100 $134.20 93100
013-120-011-000 79.1 79.1 100 $505.70 93100
013-120-012-000 464.73 464.73 100 $2,969.90 93100
013-120-013-000 32.159 32.159 100 $205.70 93100
013-120-014-000 4.03 4.03 100 $26.00 93100
013-120-015-000 62.59 62.59 100 $400.20 93100
013-120-016-000 36.49 36.49 100 $233.40 93100
013-130-007-000 11.5 115 100 $73.70 93100
013-130-012-000 0.99 0.99 100 $6.60 93100
013-130-014-000 93.38 93.38 100 $596.90 93100
013-130-023-000 195.23 195.23 100 $1,247.80 93100
013-130-024-000 9.78 9.78 100 $62.70 93100
013-130-026-000 182.51 182.51 100 $1,166.50 93100
013-140-004-000 8.86| 5.088630233] 57.43374981 $32.80 93100
013-150-010-000 13.98 13.98 100 $89.60 93100
013-150-012-000 0.009 0.009 100 $0.30 93100
013-150-013-000 0.236 0.236 100 $1.80 93100
013-150-021-000 2.96 2.96 100 $19.20 93100
013-150-022-000 13.71 13.71 100 $87.90 93100
013-150-023-000 27.89 27.89 100 $178.50 93100
013-150-026-000 17.17 17.17 100 $110.00 93100
013-150-027-000 2.89 2.89 100 $18.70 93100
013-150-030-000 30.56 30.56 100 $195.50 93100
013-150-032-000 9.44 9.44 100 $60.60 93100
013-150-033-000 50.56 50.56 100 $323.30 93100
014-010-001-000 172.07 172.07 100 $1,099.80 93100
014-020-001-000 139.35 139.35 100 $890.70 93100
014-020-005-000 169.59 169.59 100 $1,083.90 93100
014-020-006-000 182.27 182.27 100 $1,165.00 93100
014-020-007-000 106.26 106.26 100 $679.30 93100
014-030-003-000 111.12 111.12 100 $710.30 93100
014-030-004-000 49.11 49.11 100 $314.10 93100
014-040-002-000 85.39 85.39 100 $545.90 93100
014-040-003-000 49.73 49.73 100 $318.00 93100
014-040-004-000 49.83 49.83 100 $318.70 93100
014-040-005-000 49.87 49.87 100 $318.90 93100
014-040-008-000 71.79 71.79 100 $459.00 93100
014-040-009-000 23.99 23.99 100 $153.50 93100
014-050-002-000 100 100 100 $639.30 93100
014-050-003-000 35 35 100 $223.90 93100
014-050-004-000 30 30 100 $192.00 93100
014-060-002-000 25.9 25.9 100 $165.80 93100
014-060-003-000 55.7 55.7 100 $356.20 93100
014-060-004-000 40.27 40.27 100 $257.60 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xlsxinformational



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel {In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
014-060-005-000 22.59 22.59 100 5144.60 93100
014-060-007-000 1.42 1.42 100 $9.30 93100
014-060-008-000 1.24 1.24 100 $8.20 93100
014-060-009-000 139.53 139,53 100 $891.80 93100
014-070-002-000 11.58 11.58 100 $74.20 93100
014-070-003-000 33.03 33.03 100 $211.30 93100
014-070-004-000 28.09 28.09 100 $179.70 93100
014-070-005-000 28.09 28.09 100 $179.70 93100
014-080-001-000 72.46 72.46 100 5463.30 93100
014-080-005-000 1.49 1.49 100 $9.80 93100
014-080-007-000 1.81 1.81 100 $11.80 93100
014-080-008-000 58.39 58.39 100 $373.40 93100
014-080-009-000 63.76 63.76 100 $407.70 93100
014-090-002-000 220.17 220.17 100 $1,407.10 93100
014-090-003-000 15.39 15.39 100 598.60 93100
014-090-008-000 261.47 261.47 100 $1,671.00 93100
014-090-016-000 0.33 0.33 100 $2.40 93100
014-090-017-000 12.18 12.18 100 578.10 93100
014-090-024-000 42.46 42.46 100 $271.60 93100
014-090-032-000 501.61 501.61 100 $3,205.50 93100
014-090-039-000 78.56 78.56 100 $502.20 93100
014-090-043-000 51.21 51.21 100 $327.50 93100
014-090-044-000 39.95 39.95 100 $255.50 93100
014-090-045-000 39.72 39.72 100 $254.10 93100
014-090-048-000 13.08 13.08 100 $83.80 93100
014-090-049-000 43.28 43.28 100 $276.80 93100
014-090-050-000 232.22 232.22 100 51,484.10 93100
014-090-051-000 191.82 191.82 100 $1,226.00 93100
014-090-053-000 37.93 37.93 100 $242.60 93100
014-090-056-000 96.26 96.26 100 $615.40 93100
014-090-057-000 8.38 8.38 100 553.80 93100
014-090-058-000 1.76 1.76 100 $11.50 93100
014-100-001-000 23 23 100 $147.20 93100
014-100-002-000 40 40 100 $255.90 93100
014-120-004-000 490.12 490.12 100 $3,132.10 93100
014-120-005-000 92.61 92.61 100 $592.00 93100
014-120-006-000 112.81 112.81 100 $721.10 93100
014-120-007-000 49.55 49.55 100 $316.90 93100
014-120-008-000 37.5 37.5 100 $239.90 93100
014-120-009-000 37.5 37.5 100 $239.90 93100
014-120-011-000 87.38 87.38 100 $558.60 93100
014-120-012-000 115 115 100 $735.10 93100
014-120-014-000 6.27 6.27 100 540.30 93100
014-120-015-000 98.32 98.32 100 $628.50 93100
014-120-018-000 6.5 6.5 100 541.80 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
014-120-019-000 24.16 24.16 100 $154.60 93100
014-120-020-000 12.81 12.81 100 $82.10 93100
014-120-055-000 143.14 143.14 100 $914.90 93100
014-120-058-000 25.6 25.6 100 $163.80 93100
014-120-059-000 8.01 8.01 100 $51.40 93100
014-120-060-000 56.77 56.77 100 $363.00 93100
014-120-061-000 109.27 109.27 100 $698.50 93100
014-120-063-000 73.59 73.59 100 $470.50 93100
014-120-064-000 5.8 5.8 100 $37.30 93100
014-130-001-000 20 20 100 $128.10 93100
014-130-002-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
014-130-003-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
014-130-004-000 118 118 100 $754.30 93100
014-130-005-000 40 40 100 $255.90 93100
015-010-001-000 24.5| 24.38579912{ 99.53387395 $156.10 93100
015-010-010-000 15.29 15.29 100 $98.00 93100
015-010-013-000 1.98 1.98 100 $12.90 93100
015-010-015-000 7.62 7.62 100 $48.90 93100
015-010-019-000 21.34 21.34 100 $136.60 93100
015-010-020-000 2.19 2.19 100 $14.20 93100
015-010-022-000 25.7 25.7 100 $164.50 93100
015-010-024-000 32.2 32.2 100 $206.00 93100
015-020-001-000 2.1 2.1 100 $13.70 93100
015-020-002-000 5.68 5.68 100 $36.50 93100
015-020-013-000 53 5.3 100 $34.10 93100
015-020-014-000 5.59 5.59 100 $36.00 93100
015-020-016-000 394 39.4 100 $252.00 93100
015-020-018-000 21.42 21.42 100 $137.10 93100
015-020-019-000 12.67 12.67 100 $81.20 93100
015-020-020-000 14.89 14.89 100 $95.40 93100
015-020-021-000 13.87 13.87 100 $88.90 93100
015-020-022-000 30.07 30.07 100 $192.40 93100
015-020-023-000 19.67 19.67 100 $125.90 93100
015-030-006-000 75.62 75.62 100 $483.50 93100
015-030-010-000 30.44 30.44 100 $194.80 93100
015-030-013-000 5.34 5.34 100 $34.40 93100
015-030-016-000 17.67 17.67 100 $113.20 93100
015-030-018-000 2.33 2.33 100 $15.10 93100
015-030-019-000 231 231 100 $15.00 93100
015-030-021-000 17.15 17.15 100 $109.80 93100
015-030-024-000 104 104 100 $66.70 93100
015-030-025-000 45.34 45.34 100 $290.00 93100
015-030-026-000 2.95 2.95 100 $19.10 93100
015-030-028-000 18.83 18.83 100 $120.60 93100
015-030-030-000 10.83 10.83 100 $69.50 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xlsxinformational



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
015-030-031-000 13.36 13.36 100 $85.60 93100
015-030-032-000 59.99 59.99 100 $383.60 93100
015-040-001-000 280.35 280.35 100 $1,791.70 93100
015-040-003-000 10.63 10.63 100 568.20 93100
015-040-004-000 2 2 100 $13.00 93100
015-040-005-000 22 22 100 $140.80 93100
015-040-006-000 18 18 100 $115.30 93100
015-040-007-000 65.15 65.15 100 $416.60 93100
015-040-009-000 7.85 7.85 100 $50.40 93100
015-040-010-000 10.02 10.02 100 564.30 93100
015-040-011-000 24.45 24.45 100 $156.50 93100
015-050-001-000 50 50 100 $319.80 93100
015-050-005-000 60.14 60.14 100 5384.50 93100
015-050-016-000 8.96 8.96 100 $57.50 93100
015-050-019-000 0.57 0.57 100 $3.90 93100
015-050-020-000 10.5 10.5 100 $67.30 93100
015-050-021-000 2 2 100 $13.00 93100
015-050-025-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
015-050-026-000 11.29 11.29 100 $72.40 93100
015-050-027-000 0.29 0.29 100 $2.10 93100
015-050-028-000 10.12 10.12 100 $64.90 93100
015-050-031-000 4.47 4.47 100 528.80 93100
015-050-032-000 1.076 1.076 100 $7.10 93100
015-050-033-000 0.771 0.771 100 $5.20 93100
015-050-035-000 0.21 0.21 100 $1.60 93100
015-050-037-000 0.81 0.81 100 $5.40 93100
015-050-039-000 0.38 0.38 100 $2.70 93100
015-050-040-000 11.68 11.68 100 $74.90 93100
015-050-041-000 0.31 0.31 100 $2.20 93100
015-050-043-000 0.39 0.39 100 $2.70 93100
015-050-045-000 0.65 0.65 100 $4.40 93100
015-050-046-000 2.2 2.2 100 $14.30 93100
015-050-047-000 0.46 0.46 100 $3.20 93100
015-050-048-000 0.42 0.42 100 $2.90 93100
015-050-051-000 3.54 3.54 100 522.90 93100
015-050-052-000 8.86 8.86 100 $56.90 93100
015-050-053-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
015-050-054-000 5 5 100 532.20 93100
015-050-055-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
015-050-059-000 5.19 5.19 100 $33.40 93100
015-050-061-000 38.09 38.09 100 5243.60 93100
015-050-062-000 40.9 40.9 100 $261.60 93100
015-050-063-000 18.23 18.23 100 $116.70 93100
015-050-064-000 5.02 5.02 100 $32.30 93100
015-050-065-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax lnformation.xlsxlnformational



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel {in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage fn Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
015-050-066-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
015-060-004-000 24.21 24.21 100 $155.00 93100
015-060-005-000 22.12 22.12 100 $141.60 93100
015-060-008-000 13.46 13.46 100 $86.30 93100
015-060-011-000 70.93 70.93 100 $453.50 93100
015-060-016-000 2.52 2.52 100 $16.40 93100
015-060-019-000 0.723 0.723 100 $4.90 93100
015-060-022-000 1.28 1.28 100 $8.40 93100
015-060-023-000 6.55 6.55 100 $42.10 93100
015-060-024-000 6.1 6.1 100 $39.20 93100
015-060-025-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
015-060-026-000 5.08 5.08 100 $32.70 93100
015-060-027-000 3.48 3.48 100 $22.50 93100
015-060-028-000 3.54 3.54 100 $22.90 93100
015-060-029-000 15.97 15.97 100 $102.30 53100
015-060-030-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
015-060-031-000 4.88 4.88 100 $31.40 93100
015-060-033-000 35.22 35.22 100 $225.30 93100
015-060-034-000 5.5 5.5 100 $35.40 93100
015-060-035-000 27.87 27.87 100 $178.30 93100
015-060-037-000 2.5 2.5 100 $16.20 93100
015-060-038-000 14.88 14.88 100 $95.30 93100
015-070-005-000 62.25 62.25 100 $398.00 93100
015-070-007-000 58.12 58.12 100 $371.60 93100
015-070-012-000 1.36 1.36 100 $8.90 93100
015-070-015-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
015-070-016-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
015-070-017-000 48 48 100 $307.00 93100
015-070-018-000 2 2 100 $13.00 93100
015-070-030-000 0.22 0.22 100 $1.70 93100
015-070-035-000 13.88 13.88 100 $88.90 93100
015-070-036-000 5.01 5.01 100 $32.30 93100
015-070-038-000 6.6 6.6 100 $42.40 93100
015-070-039-000 6.76 6.76 100 $43.40 93100
015-070-040-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
015-070-041-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
015-070-043-000 16.34 16.34 100 $104.70 93100
015-070-045-000 11.26 11.26 100 $72.20 93100
015-070-047-000 1.6 1.6 100 $10.50 93100
015-070-048-000 15 15 100 $96.10 93100
015-070-049-000 7.4 7.4 100 $47.50 93100
015-070-050-000 0.37 0.37 100 $2.60 93100
015-070-051-000 9.46 9.46 100 $60.70 93100
015-070-052-000 9.45 9.45 100 $60.60 93100
015-080-001-000 133.7 133.7 100 $854.60 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xlsxinformational



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
015-080-003-000 6.01 6.01 100 $38.70 93100
015-080-004-000 5.02 5.02 100 $32.30 93100
015-080-005-000 5.02 5.02 100 $32.30 93100
015-080-006-000 5.02 5.02 100 $32.30 93100
015-080-007-000 81.67 81.67 100 $522.10 93100
015-090-005-000 29.5 29.5 100 $188.80 93100
015-090-006-000 30 30 100 $192.00 93100
015-090-007-000 0.5 0.5 100 $3.40 93100
015-090-008-000 99.5 99.5 100 $636.10 93100
015-090-009-000 75.65 75.65 100 $483.70 93100
015-090-010-000 71.25 71.25 100 $455.50 93100
015-090-015-000 31.57 31.57 100 $202.00 93100
015-090-016-000 39.25 39.25 100 $251.10 93100
015-090-017-000 1.25 1.25 100 $8.20 93100
015-100-002-000 27.71 27.71 100 $177.30 93100
015-100-003-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
015-100-005-000 0.88 0.88 100 $5.90 93100
015-100-012-000 1.73 1.73 100 $11.30 93100
015-100-016-000 8.75 8.75 100 $56.20 93100
015-100-017-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
015-100-021-000 7.78 7.78 100 $50.00 93100
015-100-022-000 497 4,97 100 $32.00 93100
015-100-024-000 5.18 5.18 100 $33.40 93100
015-100-025-000 5.18 5.18 100 $33.40 93100
015-100-026-000 15.61 15.61 100 $100.00 93100
015-100-027-000 15.65 15.65 100 $100.30 93100
015-100-030-000 4.96 4.96 100 $31.90 93100
015-100-031-000 4.93 4.93 100 $31.80 93100
015-100-032-000 18.2 18.2 100 $116.50 93100
015-100-033-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
015-100-034-000 34.94 3494 100 $223.50 93100
015-100-035-000 20.04 20.04 100 $128.30 93100
015-100-036-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
016-010-006-000 0.29 0.29 100 $2.10 93100
016-010-011-000 8.49 8.49 100 $54.50 93100
016-010-012-000 15.04 15.04 100 $96.40 93100
016-010-017-000 0.42 0.42 100 $2.90 93100
016-010-018-000 0.27 0.27 100 $2.00 93100
016-010-020-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
016-010-024-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-010-025-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
016-010-026-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
016-010-027-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
016-010-034-000 4.99 4,99 100 $32.10 93100
016-010-035-000 491 491 100 $31.60 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformational



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
016-010-036-000 129.35 129.35 100 $826.80 93100
016-010-037-000 38.34 38.34 100 $245.20 93100
016-010-038-000 38.34 '38.34 100 $245.20 53100
016-010-046-000 25.03 25.03 100 $160.20 93100
016-010-047-000 371.98 371.98 100 $2,377.20 93100
016-010-048-000 337.36} 87.17435673] 25.84015791 $557.30 93100
016-010-049-000 23.44 23.44 100 $150.00 93100
016-010-050-000 141 14.1 100 $90.30 93100
016-020-003-000 11.14 11.14 100 $71.40 93100
016-020-004-000 3.09 3.09 100 $20.00 93100
016-020-006-000 12.8 12.8 100 $82.00 93100
016-020-014-000 35.3 35.3 100 $225.80 93100
016-020-016-000 95.23 95.23 100 $608.80 93100
016-020-020-000 8.87 8.87 100 $56.90 93100
016-020-021-000 11.31 11.31 100 $72.50 93100
016-020-029-000 1.64] 0.600575016| 36.62042782 $4.10 93100
016-020-030-000 4.8 4.8 100 $30.90 93100
016-020-032-000 14.48 14.48 100 $92.80 93100
016-020-033-000 2.28 2.28 100 $14.80 93100
016-020-036-000 4.8 4.8 100 $30.90 93100
016-020-042-000 5.03 5.03 100 $32.40 93100
016-020-043-000 7.5 7.5 100 $48.20 93100
016-020-044-000 7.61 7.61 100 $48.90 93100
016-020-045-000 0.01 0.01 100 $0.30 93100
016-020-046-000 0.61 0.61 100 $4.10 93100
016-020-047-000 9.68| 9.38526627] 96.95523006 $60.20 93100
016-020-048-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-020-049-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-020-050-000 5.22 5.22 100 $33.60 93100
016-020-051-000 5.1 5.1 100 $32.80 93100
016-020-052-000 10.28| 4.312775811] 41.95307209 $27.80 93100
016-020-053-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
016-020-055-000 2.36 2.36 100 $15.30 93100
016-020-056-000 1.81 1.81 100 $11.80 93100
016-020-057-000 5.57 5.57 100 $35.80 93100
016-020-058-000 5| 1.484648546| 29.69297092 $9.70 93100
016-030-014-000 214.68{ 50.8611579f 23.69161445 $325.30 93100
016-050-004-000 9.52| 8.360858377] 87.82414262 $53.70 93100
016-050-009-000 50.67| 0.968985708 1.91234598 $6.40 93100
016-050-011-000 7.03 7.03 100 $45.20 93100
016-050-015-000 0.23 0.23 100 $1.70 93100
016-050-021-000 1.09 1.09 100 $7.20 93100
016-050-022-000 0.1 0.1 100 $0.90 93100
016-050-026-000 3.71 371 100 $24.00 93100
016-050-032-000 9.96 9.96 100 $63.90 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xlsxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |[In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
016-050-033-000 9.69 9.69 100 $62.20 93100
016-050-036-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-050-037-000 6.78 6.78 100 $43.60 93100
016-050-044-000 88.77| 64.88014653] 73.08791994 $414.80 93100
016-050-047-000 7.75 7.75 100 $49.80 93100
016-050-043-000 22.19 22.19 100 $142.00 93100
016-050-051-000 249.18| 22.44905865f 9.009917355 $143.70 93100
016-050-054-000 27.64 12.526016] 45.31843704 $80.30 93100
016-050-056-000 194.76 194.76 100 $1,244.80 93100
016-050-059-000 20.34 20.34 100 $130.20 93100
016-050-060-000 20 20 100 $128.10 93100
016-060-011-000 12.79 12.79 100 $82.00 93100
016-060-012-000 14.19 14.19 100 $90.90 93100
016-060-020-000 17.32 17.32 100 $110.90 93100
016-060-022-000 17.26 17.26 100 $110.50 93100
016-060-029-000 9.69] 2.689945851 27.7600191 $17.40 93100
016-060-033-000 25.16] 25.15978533] 99.99991468 $161.00 93100
016-060-044-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-060-049-000 2.74 2.74 100 $17.80 93100
016-060-050-000 1.11 1.11 100 $7.30 93100
016-060-051-000 1.23 1.23 100 $8.10 93100
016-060-052-000 1.85 1.85 100 $12.10 93100
016-060-053-000 1.31 1.31 100 $8.60 93100
016-060-054-000 1.54 1.54 100 $10.10 93100
016-060-055-000 2.05 2.05 100 $13.30 93100
016-060-056-000 244 244 100 $15.80 93100
016-060-057-000 2.16 2.16 100 $14.10 93100
016-060-058-000 1.95 1.95 100 $12.70 93100
016-060-065-000 10.08| 6.182536834] 61.33469081 $39.80 93100
016-060-066-000 34.15 34.15 100 $218.50 93100
016-060-067-000 32.479 32.479 100 $207.80 93100
016-060-070-000 4.07| 3.867332562] 95.02045608 $25.00 93100
016-060-071-000 30.73 30.73 100 $196.60 93100
016-060-072-000 13.95 13.95 100 $89.40 93100
016-060-073-000 1.11 1.11 100 $7.30 93100
016-060-074-000 7.6 7.6 100 $48.80 93100
016-060-075-000 3.97 3.97 100 $25.60 93100
016-060-076-000 1.13 1.13 100 $7.50 93100
016-060-077-000 14.44 14.44 100 $92.50 93100
016-060-078-000 41.63 41.63 100 $266.30 93100
016-060-081-000 19.69 19.69 100 $126.10 93100
016-060-082-000 3.79 3.79 100 $24.50 93100
016-060-083-000 1.78 1.78 100 $11.60 93100
016-060-084-000 1.71 1.71 100 $11.20 93100
016-060-085-000 2.07 2.07 100 $13.50 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xIsxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |[In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
016-060-086-000 3.48| 2.446013539| 70.28774536 $15.90 93100
016-060-087-000 1.52| 0.159114071| 10.46803097 $1.30 93100
016-060-088-000 5.54| 3.893941093] 70.28774536 $25.10 93100
016-060-089-000 2.48| 1.743136085| 70.28774536 $11.40 93100
016-060-090-000 2.52] 0.26379438| 10.46803097 $1.90 93100
016-060-091-000 5] 0.523401544] 10.46803097 $3.60 93100
016-070-003-000 17.06 17.06 100 $109.30 93100
016-070-005-000 21.36 21.36 100 $136.70 93100
016-070-009-000 19.46 19.46 100 $124.60 93100
016-070-010-000 19.24 19.24 100 $123.20 93100
016-070-011-000 12.88 12.88 100 $82.60 93100
016-070-014-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
016-070-015-000 21.34 21.34 100 $136.60 93100
016-070-022-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
016-070-031-000 10.08 10.08 100 $64.70 93100
016-070-034-000 11.35 11.35 100 $72.80 93100
016-070-035-000 28.57 28.57 100 $182.80 93100
016-070-036-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-070-037-000 4.89 4.89 100 $31.50 93100
016-070-039-000 4.88 4.88 100 $31.40 93100
016-070-040-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
016-070-041-000 11.7 11.7 100 $75.00 93100
016-070-042-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
016-070-043-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-070-047-000 4.58 4.58 100 $29.50 93100
016-070-048-000 4.99 4.99 100 $32.10 93100
016-070-049-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-070-050-000 4.87 4.87 100 $31.40 93100
016-070-051-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-070-052-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-070-053-000 5.23 5.23 100 $33.70 93100
016-070-054-000 1.32] 0.232893888 17.6434764 $1.70 93100
016-070-055-000 1.28| 0.609670443| 47.63050333 $4.10 93100
016-070-059-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-070-060-000 10.66 10.66 100 $68.40 93100
016-070-061-000 5.4 5.4 100 $34.80 93100
016-070-062-000 5.07 5.07 100 $32.60 93100
016-070-063-000 3.72 3.72 100 $24.00 93100
016-070-064-000 4.65 4.65 100 $30.00 93100
016-070-065-000 4.9} 3.207018847| 65.44936423 $20.70 93100
016-070-068-000 5.62]| 1.348424693] 23.99332194 $8.90 93100
016-080-002-000 100 100 100 $639.30 93100
016-080-003-000 20 20 100 $128.10 93100
016-080-005-000 40.42 40.42 100 $258.50 93100
016-080-012-000 23.28 23.28 100 $149.00 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax information.xlsxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
016-080-013-000 9.7 9.7 100 $62.20 93100
016-080-019-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-080-020-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-080-021-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-080-022-000 5.02 5.02 100 $32.30 93100
016-080-023-000 5.42 5.42 100 $34.90 93100
016-080-024-000 5.8 5.8 100 $37.30 93100
016-080-025-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-080-026-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-080-027-000 5.1 5.1 100 $32.80 93100
016-080-029-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-080-030-000 0.009 0.009 100 50.30 93100
016-080-031-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
016-080-032-000 14.8 14.8 100 594.80 93100
016-080-033-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-080-034-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-080-035-000 5.01 5.01 100 $32.30 93100
016-080-036-000 5.09 5.09 100 $32.80 93100
016-080-037-000 6.05 6.05 100 $38.90 93100
016-080-038-000 5.02 5.02 100 $32.30 93100
016-080-039-000 5.01 5.01 100 $32.30 93100
016-080-040-000 4.46 4.46 100 $28.70 93100
016-080-041-000 4.63 4.63 100 $29.80 93100
016-080-042-000 7.06 7.06 100 $45.40 93100
016-090-011-000 16.1 16.1 100 $103.10 93100
016-090-017-000 19.02 19.02 100 $121.80 93100
016-090-018-000 129.35 129.35 100 $826.80 93100
016-090-019-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
016-090-020-000 8.25 8.25 100 $53.00 93100
016-090-021-000 9.42 9.42 100 $60.40 93100
016-090-022-000 4.58 4.58 100 $29.50 93100
016-090-025-000 10.16 10.16 100 565.20 93100
016-090-027-000 5.01 5.01 100 $32.30 93100
016-090-028-000 6.01 6.01 100 $38.70 93100
016-090-029-000 8.01 8.01 100 $51.40 93100
016-090-032-000 26.18 26.18 100 $167.50 93100
016-090-033-000 15.26 15.26 100 597.80 93100
016-100-006-000 29.15 29.15 100 $186.50 93100
016-100-007-000 14.33 14.33 100 $91.80 93100
016-100-008-000 21.09 21.09 100 5135.00 93100
016-100-009-000 20 20 100 $128.10 93100
016-100-013-000 0.21 0.21 100 $1.60 93100
016-100-014-000 1.94 1.94 100 $12.60 93100
016-100-021-000 0.35 0.35 100 $2.50 93100
016-100-023-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax lnformation.xlsxlnformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
016-100-024-000 10.78 10.78 100 $69.10 93100
016-100-025-000 7.46 7.46 100 $47.90 93100
016-100-026-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-100-027-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-100-030-000 14.84 14.84 100 $95.10 93100
016-100-031-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
016-100-035-000 7.9 7.9 100 $50.70 93100
016-100-036-000 8 8 100 $51.40 93100
016-100-037-000 22.11 22.11 100 $141.50 93100
016-100-038-000 21.97 21.97 100 $140.60 93100
016-100-039-000 10.88 10.88 100 $69.80 93100
016-100-040-000 7.59 7.59 100 $48.80 93100
016-100-041-000 4.83 4.83 100 $31.10 93100
016-100-042-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-100-043-000 0.17 0.17 100 $1.30 93100
016-110-001-000 0.8 0.8 100 $5.40 93100
016-110-002-000 29.54 29.54 100 $189.00 93100
016-110-013-000 14.04 14.04 100 $90.00 93100
016-110-014-000 14.04 14.04 100 $90.00 93100
016-110-017-000 7.94 7.94 100 $51.00 93100
016-110-018-000 10.18 10.18 100 $65.30 93100
016-110-021-000 0.516 0.516 100 $3.50 93100
016-110-024-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-110-026-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-110-027-000 4.87 4.87 100 $31.40 93100
016-110-028-000 5.25 5.25 100 $33.80 93100
016-110-030-000 8.189 8.189 100 $52.60 93100
016-110-031-000 9.42 9.42 100 $60.40 93100
016-110-032-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
016-110-033-000 5.42 5.42 100 $34.90 93100
016-110-034-000 5.42 5.42 100 $34.90 93100
016-110-035-000 23.11 23.11 100 $147.90 93100
016-110-036-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-110-037-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-110-038-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-110-040-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-110-044-000 4.69 4.69 100 $30.20 93100
016-110-045-000 4.96 4.96 100 $31.90 93100
016-110-046-000 4.56 4.56 100 $29.40 93100
016-110-047-000 5.04 5.04 100 $32.50 93100
016-110-049-000 16.58 16.58 100 $106.20 93100
016-110-050-000 6.7 6.7 100 $43.10 93100
016-110-051-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-110-052-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-110-053-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel {In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage in Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
016-110-054-000 2.73 2.73 100 $17.70 93100
016-110-055-000 2.27 227 100 $14.80 93100
016-110-056-000 39.6 39.6 100 $253.30 93100
016-110-057-000 0.45 0.45 100 $3.10 93100
016-120-001-000 50 50 100 $319.80 93100
016-120-002-000 219.93 219.93 100 $1,405.60 93100
016-120-007-000 12.32 12.32 100 $79.00 93100
016-120-010-000 15.68 15.68 100 $100.40 93100
016-120-011-000 172 172 100 $1,099.30 93100
016-120-012-000 6.03 6.03 100 $38.80 93100
016-120-014-000 249.29 249.29 100 $1,593.20 93100
016-130-007-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
016-130-008-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
016-130-009-000 19.85 19.85 100 $127.10 93100
016-130-010-000 19.9 19.9 100 $127.40 93100
016-130-011-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
016-130-015-000 0.15 0.15 100 $1.20 93100
016-130-016-000 35.23 35.23 100 $225.40 93100
016-130-019-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-130-020-000 5.06 5.06 100 $32.60 93100
016-130-021-000 5.1 5.1 100 $32.80 93100
016-130-022-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-130-023-000 25.89 25.89 100 $165.70 93100
016-130-024-000 26 26 100 $166.40 93100
016-130-025-000 20.68 20.68 100 $132.40 93100
016-130-026-000 213 213 100 $136.40 93100
016-130-027-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-140-006-000 12 12 100 $76.90 93100
016-140-007-000 20 20 100 $128.10 93100
016-140-009-000 0.33 0.33 100 $2.40 93100
016-140-010-000 4.57 4.57 100 $29.50 93100
016-140-012-000 56.93 56.93 100 $364.00 93100
016-140-014-000 46.28 46.28 100 $296.00 93100
016-140-015-000 5.14 5.14 100 $33.10 93100
016-140-016-000 14.52 14.52 100 $93.00 93100
016-140-017-000 6.04 6.04 100 $38.80 93100
016-140-018-000 26.37 26.37 100 $168.80 93100
016-150-004-000 9.16 9.16 100 $58.80 93100
016-150-019-000 5.54 5.54 100 $35.70 93100
016-150-020-000 10.07 10.07 100 $64.60 93100
016-150-021-000 10.07 10.07 100 $64.60 93100
016-150-022-000 18.81 18.81 100 $120.40 93100
016-150-034-000 5.11 5.11 100 $32.90 93100
016-150-035-000 5.11 511 100 $32.90 93100
016-150-036-000 5.11 5.11 100 $32.90 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |[In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
016-150-037-000 29.65 29.65 100 $189.70 93100
016-150-039-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-150-040-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-150-041-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-150-042-000 5.12 5.12 100 $33.00 93100
016-150-043-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-150-044-000 5.12 5.12 100 $33.00 93100
016-150-046-000 5.11 5.11 100 $32.90 93100
016-150-048-000 7.87 7.87 100 $50.50 93100
016-150-049-000 8.4 8.4 100 $53.90 93100
016-150-050-000 8.72 8.72 100 $56.00 93100
016-150-054-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-150-055-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-150-056-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-150-057-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-150-058-000 5.19 5.19 100 $33.40 93100
016-150-059-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-150-060-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-150-061-000 10.21 10.21 100 $65.50 93100
016-150-063-000 4.32 432 100 $27.90 93100
016-150-064-000 4.32 432 100 $27.90 93100
016-150-065-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-150-066-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-150-067-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-150-068-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-150-069-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-150-070-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-150-071-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-150-072-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-150-073-000 6.7 6.7 100 $43.10 93100
016-150-074-000 5.11 5.11 100 $32.90 93100
016-150-077-000 22.16 22.16 100 $141.90 93100
016-150-078-000 6 6 100 $38.60 93100
016-160-001-000 1.08 1.08 100 $7.20 93100
016-160-002-000 1.05 1.05 100 $7.00 93100
016-160-003-000 1.08 1.08 100 $7.20 93100
016-160-004-000 1.07 1.07 100 $7.10 93100
016-160-005-000 1.03 1.03 100 $6.80 93100
016-160-006-000 1.02 1.02 100 $6.80 93100
016-160-007-000 1.03 1.03 100 $6.80 93100
016-160-008-000 1.05 1.05 100 $7.00 93100
016-160-009-000 1.05 1.05 100 $7.00 93100
016-160-010-000 1.03 1.03 100 $6.80 93100
016-160-011-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
016-160-012-000 1.02 1.02 100 $6.80 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformationa!




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage in Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
016-160-013-000 1.06 1.06 100 $7.00 93100
016-160-014-000 1.08 1.08 100 $7.20 93100
016-160-015-000 1.04 1.04 100 $6.90 93100
016-160-016-000 1.07 1.07 100 $7.10 93100
016-160-017-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
016-160-018-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
016-160-019-000 1.03 1.03 100 $6.80 93100
016-160-020-000 1.05 1.05 100 $7.00 93100
016-160-021-000 1.04 1.04 100 $6.90 93100
016-160-022-000 1.02 1.02 100 $6.80 93100
016-160-023-000 1.01 1.01 100 $6.70 93100
016-160-024-000 1.06 1.06 100 $7.00 93100
016-160-025-000 1.03 1.03 100 $6.80 93100
016-160-026-000 1.05 1.05 100 $7.00 93100
016-160-027-000 1.01 1.01 100 $6.70 93100
016-160-028-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
016-160-029-000 1.05 1.05 100 $7.00 93100
016-160-030-000 1.07 1.07 100 $7.10 93100
016-170-001-000 572 5.72 100 $36.80 93100
016-170-002-000 4.41 4.41 100 $28.40 93100
016-170-003-000 4.23 4.23 100 $27.30 93100
016-170-004-000 4.18 4.18 100 $27.00 93100
016-170-005-000 493 4.93 100 $31.80 93100
016-170-006-000 12.6 12.6 100 $80.80 93100
016-170-007-000 4.33 4.33 100 $27.90 93100
016-170-008-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
016-170-009-000 4.41 4.41 100 $28.40 93100
016-170-010-000 4.2 4.2 100 $27.10 93100
016-170-011-000 7.09 7.09 100 $45.60 93100
016-170-012-000 7.29 7.29 100 $46.80 93100
016-170-013-000 4.45 4.45 100 $28.70 93100
016-170-014-000 471 471 100 $30.30 93100
016-170-015-000 4.72 4.72 100 $30.40 93100
016-170-016-000 4.68 4.68 100 $30.20 93100
016-170-017-000 4,72 4.72 100 $30.40 93100
016-170-018-000 4.69 4.69 100 $30.20 93100
016-170-019-000 412 4.12 100 $26.60 93100
016-170-020-000 4.6 4.6 100 $29.60 93100
016-170-021-000 4.72 4.72 100 $30.40 93100
016-170-022-000 4.68 4.68 100 $30.20 93100
016-170-023-000 4.66 4.66 100 $30.00 93100
016-170-024-000 432 4.32 100 $27.90 93100
016-170-025-000 4.34 4.34 100 $28.00 93100
016-170-026-000 4.64 4.64 100 $29.90 93100
016-170-027-000 4,19 419 100 $27.00 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformational



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
016-170-028-000 4.95 4.95 100 $31.90 93100
016-170-029-000 4.78 4.78 100 $30.80 93100
016-170-030-000 4.79 4.79 100 $30.90 93100
016-170-031-000 4.76 4.76 100 $30.70 93100
016-170-032-000 4.77 4.77 100 $30.70 93100
016-170-035-000 4.78 4.78 100 $30.80 93100
016-170-036-000 44.24 44.24 100 $282.90 93100
017-010-002-000 15.69 15.69 100 $100.50 93100
017-010-005-000 41.58 41.58 100 $265.90 93100
017-010-006-000 40.25 40.25 100 $257.40 93100
017-010-011-000 6.71 6.71 100 $43.10 93100
017-010-013-000 37.12 37.12 100 $237.40 93100
017-010-014-000 49.08 49.08 100 $313.90 93100
017-010-015-000 64.79 64.79 100 $414.30 93100
017-010-016-000 32.39 32.39 100 $207.20 93100
017-010-017-000 40.82 40.82 100 $261.10 93100
017-010-018-000 10.69 10.69 100 $68.60 93100
017-020-003-000 4.39 4.39 100 $28.30 93100
017-020-004-000 4.39 4.39 100 $28.30 93100
017-020-005-000 4.39 4.39 100 $28.30 93100
017-020-020-000 4.94 4.94 100 $31.80 93100
017-020-021-000 4.94 4,94 100 $31.80 93100
017-020-022-000 4.94 4.94 100 $31.80 93100
017-020-025-000 5.2 5.2 100 $33.50 93100
017-020-026-000 5.19 5.19 100 $33.40 93100
017-020-028-000 5.11 5.11 100 $32.90 93100
017-020-029-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-030-000 5.43 5.43 100 $34.90 93100
017-020-035-000 5.01 5.01 100 $32.30 93100
017-020-036-000 5.01 5.01 100 $32.30 93100
017-020-037-000 5.03 5.03 100 $32.40 93100
017-020-038-000 5.01 5.01 100 $32.30 93100
017-020-040-000 4.84 4.84 100 $31.20 93100
017-020-043-000 9.52 9.52 100 $61.10 93100
017-020-044-000 9.5 9.5 100 $61.00 93100
017-020-045-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
017-020-046-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
017-020-047-000 5.92 5.92 100 $38.10 93100
017-020-048-000 5.7 5.7 100 $36.70 93100
017-020-049-000 5.73 5.73 100 $36.90 93100
017-020-050-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-051-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-052-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-053-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-054-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformational



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
017-020-055-000 5.3 5.3 100 $34.10 93100
017-020-056-000 5.3 53 100 $34.10 93100
017-020-057-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-058-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-059-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-060-000 5.01 5.01 100 $32.30 93100
017-020-061-000 5.01 5.01 100 $32.30 93100
017-020-062-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-063-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-064-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-065-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-066-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-067-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-068-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-069-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-070-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-071-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-072-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-073-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-074-000 7.47 7.47 100 $48.00 93100
017-020-075-000 5.13 5.13 100 $33.00 93100
017-020-076-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-077-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-078-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-079-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-080-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-081-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-020-082-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-030-010-000 31.18 31.18 100 $199.50 93100
017-030-015-000 38.95 38.95 100 $249.10 93100
017-030-022-000 6.2 6.2 100 $39.90 93100
017-030-023-000 13 13 100 $83.30 93100
017-030-024-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-030-025-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-030-026-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-030-027-000 7.93 7.93 100 $50.90 93100
017-030-028-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-030-029-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-030-033-000 8.28 8.28 100 $53.20 93100
017-030-034-000 8.54 8.54 100 $54.80 93100
017-030-035-000 4.95 4.95 100 $31.90 93100
017-030-036-000 4.98 4.98 100 $32.10 93100
017-030-037-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-030-038-000 13.14 13.14 100 $84.20 93100
017-030-040-000 9.8 9.8 100 $62.90 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information xisxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
017-030-041-000 56.69 56.69 100 $362.50 93100
017-030-042-000 55.83] 55.35511494| 99.14940881 $354.00 93100
017-030-043-000 4.69 4.69 100 $30.20 93100
017-030-044-000 6.49 6.49 100 $41.70 93100
017-040-004-000 30.04 30.04 100 $192.20 93100
017-040-006-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-040-008-000 9.54 9.54 100 $61.20 93100
017-040-012-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-040-014-000 5.17 5.17 100 $33.30 93100
017-040-015-000 0.001 0.001 100 $0.30 93100
017-040-016-000 10.04{ 2.456777456f 24.46989498 $15.90 93100
017-040-017-000 20.06 20.06 100 $128.40 93100
017-040-020-000 7.19 7.19 100 $46.20 93100
017-040-021-000 7.2 7.2 100 $46.30 93100
017-040-022-000 10.65| 7.680463866] 72.11703161 $49.30 93100
017-040-023-000 10.65| 0.957769331] 8.993139256 $6.40 93100
017-040-024-000 4.83 4.83 100 $31.10 93100
017-040-025-000 4.8 4.8 100 $30.90 93100
017-040-026-000 4.96 4.96 100 $31.90 93100
017-040-027-000 4.95 4.95 100 $31.90 93100
017-040-028-000 4.97 4.97 100 $32.00 93100
017-040-029-000 4.84 4.84 100 $31.20 93100
017-040-030-000 5.04 5.04 100 $32.50 93100
017-040-031-000 5.07 5.07 100 $32.60 93100
017-040-032-000 15.61 15.61 100 $100.00 93100
017-040-033-000 5.2 5.2 100 $33.50 93100
017-050-007-000 372.35| 7.570902266| 2.033275753 $48.60 93100
017-050-011-000 181.67| 11.39283576| 6.271170671 $73.10 93100
017-060-001-000 40 40 100 $255.90 93100
017-060-002-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
017-060-003-000 132.45 132.45 100 $846.60 93100
017-060-009-000 20 20 100 $128.10 93100
017-060-011-000 55.68 55.68 100 $356.00 93100
017-060-017-000 4.63 4.63 100 $29.80 93100
017-060-019-000 0.5 0.5 100 $3.40 93100
017-060-020-000 0.35 0.35 100 $2.50 93100
017-060-021-000 4.04 4.04 100 $26.10 93100
017-060-022-000 0.13 0.13 100 $1.10 93100
017-060-023-000 0.21 0.21 100 $1.60 93100
017-060-024-000 0.16 0.16 100 $1.30 93100
017-060-030-000 46.71 46.71 100 $298.70 93100
017-060-031-000 44.98 44,98 100 $287.70 93100
017-060-032-000 26 26 100 $166.40 93100
017-060-033-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
017-060-034-000 10.64 10.64 100 $68.20 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xlsxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |[in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
017-060-035-000 5.04 5.04 100 $32.50 93100
017-060-036-000 5.04 5.04 100 $32.50 93100
017-060-037-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-060-038-000 6.09 6.09 100 $39.20 93100
017-060-039-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-060-040-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-060-041-000 5.67 5.67 100 $36.50 93100
017-070-002-000 10.77 10.77 100 $69.10 93100
017-070-007-000 5.03 5.03 100 $32.40 93100
017-070-010-000 12.94 12.94 100 $82.90 93100
017-070-011-000 12.41 12.41 100 $79.50 93100
017-070-012-000 12.01 12.01 100 $77.00 93100
017-070-013-000 12.45 12.45 100 $79.80 93100
017-070-028-000 5.94 5.94 100 $38.20 93100
017-070-029-000 5.05 5.05 100 $32.50 93100
017-070-030-000 4.99 4.99 100 $32.10 93100
017-070-031-000 4.99 4.99 100 $32.10 93100
017-070-032-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-070-033-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-070-035-000 5.94 5.94 100 $38.20 93100
017-070-036-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-070-037-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-070-038-000 0.001 0.001 100 $0.30 93100
017-070-039-000 4.95 495 100 $31.90 93100
017-070-040-000 7.75 7.75 100 $49.80 93100
017-070-042-000 0.001 0.001 100 $0.30 93100
017-070-043-000 9.41 9.41 100 $60.40 93100
017-070-044-000 4.78 4.78 100 $30.80 93100
017-070-045-000 4.49 4.49 100 $28.90 93100
017-070-046-000 4.92 4.92 100 $31.70 93100
017-070-047-000 9.99 9.99 100 $64.10 93100
017-070-048-000 4.74 4.74 100 $30.50 93100
017-070-049-000 2.85 2.85 100 $18.50 93100
017-070-050-000 4.92 492 100 $31.70 93100
017-070-051-000 4.86 4.86 100 $31.30 93100
017-070-052-000 4.92 4.92 100 $31.70 93100
017-070-053-000 453 4.53 100 $29.20 93100
017-070-054-000 459 4.59 100 $29.60 93100
017-070-055-000 491 491 100 $31.60 93100
017-070-056-000 5.06 5.06 100 $32.60 93100
017-070-057-000 5.03 5.03 100 $32.40 93100
017-070-058-000 5.08 5.08 100 $32.70 93100
017-070-059-000 5.06 5.06 100 $32.60 93100
017-070-060-000 5.02 5.02 100 $32.30 93100
017-070-061-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel ]in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage Charge to SBC Tax Code
017-070-062-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-070-063-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-070-064-000 7.88 7.88 100 $50.60 93100
017-070-066-000 3.95 3.95 100 $25.50 93100
017-070-067-000 4.86 4.86 100 $31.30 93100
017-070-068-000 4.86 4.86 100 $31.30 93100
017-070-069-000 4.86 4.86 100 $31.30 93100
017-070-070-000 4.86 4.86 100 $31.30 93100
017-070-071-000 4.47 4.47 100 $28.80 93100
017-070-072-000 474 4.74 100 $30.50 93100
017-070-073-000 473 473 100 $30.50 93100
017-070-074-000 4.94 494 100 $31.80 93100
017-070-075-000 5.08 5.08 100 $32.70 93100
017-080-009-000 25.31 25.31 100 $162.00 93100
017-080-011-000 498 4,98 100 $32.10 93100
017-080-015-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-080-016-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-080-018-000 4.94 4,94 100 $31.80 93100
017-080-022-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-080-023-000 4.81 4381 100 $31.00 93100
017-080-025-000 4.82 4.82 100 $31.00 93100
017-080-026-000 49 4.9 100 $31.60 93100
017-080-027-000 4.84 4.84 100 $31.20 93100
017-080-029-000 478 4.78 100 $30.80 93100
017-080-031-000 5.08 5.08 100 $32.70 93100
017-080-032-000 5.01 5.01 100 $32.30 93100
017-080-033-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-080-034-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-080-035-000 5.11 5.11 100 $32.90 93100
017-080-036-000 511 5.11 100 $32.90 93100
017-080-039-000 5.11 5.11 100 $32.90 93100
017-080-040-000 4.94 4.94 100 $31.80 93100
017-080-041-000 4.99 4.99 100 $32.10 93100
017-080-042-000 498 4.98 100 $32.10 93100
017-080-043-000 4.98 4.98 100 $32.10 93100
017-080-044-000 4.98 4.98 100 $32.10 93100
017-080-045-000 497 4.97 100 $32.00 93100
017-080-046-000 4.98 4.98 100 $32.10 93100
017-080-049-000 5.11 5.11 100 $32.90 93100
017-080-050-000 6.89 6.89 100 $44.30 93100
017-080-051-000 4.96 4.96 100 $31.90 93100
017-080-052-000 4.61 4.61 100 $29.70 93100
017-080-053-000 7.05 7.05 100 $45.30 93100
017-080-054-000 7.05 7.05 100 $45.30 93100
017-090-001-000 46.24 46.24 100 $295.70 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xlsxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage in Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code

017-090-002-000 74.1 74.1 100 $473.70 93100
017-090-004-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
017-090-005-000 41.19 41.19 100 $263.50 93100
017-090-009-000 99.96 99.96 100 $639.00 93100
017-090-010-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
017-090-013-000 49.75 49.75 100 $318.20 93100
017-090-014-000 3.42 3.42 100 $22.10 93100
017-100-009-000 30 30 100 $192.00 93100
017-100-014-000 0.38 0.38 100 $2.70 93100
017-100-016-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-100-017-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-100-018-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-100-019-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-100-020-000 5.16 5.16 100 $33.20 93100
017-100-021-000 5.58 5.58 100 $35.90 93100
017-100-022-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-100-023-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-100-024-000 5.1 5.1 100 $32.80 93100
017-100-025-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-100-026-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-100-027-000 10.06 10.06 100 $64.50 93100
017-100-028-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-100-029-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-100-030-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-100-031-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-100-032-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-100-033-000 6 6 100 $38.60 93100
017-100-034-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-100-035-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-100-036-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-100-037-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-100-038-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-100-039-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-100-042-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-100-043-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-100-044-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-100-045-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-100-046-000 30.7 30.7 100 $196.40 93100
017-100-051-000 5.16 5.16 100 $33.20 93100
017-100-052-000 5.03 5.03 100 $32.40 93100
017-100-053-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-100-054-000 5.01 5.01 100 $32.30 93100
017-100-056-000 5.01 5.01 100 $32.30 93100
017-100-057-000 28.5 28.5 100 $182.40 93100
017-100-058-000 23.88 23.88 100 $152.80 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformational



Percent Parcel

Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
017-100-059-000 5.18 5.18 100 $33.40 93100
017-100-060-000 5.8 5.8 100 $37.30 93100
017-100-061-000 5.27 5.27 100 $33.90 93100
017-100-062-000 5.03 5.03 100 $32.40 93100
017-120-001-000 30.24 30.24 100 $193.50 93100
017-120-002-000 29.95 29.95 100 $191.60 93100
017-120-003-000 49.97 49.97 100 $319.60 93100
017-120-008-000 0.27 0.27 100 $2.00 93100
017-120-009-000 38.57 38.57 100 $246.70 93100
017-120-010-000 10.07 10.07 100 $64.60 93100
017-120-011-000 56.32 56.32 100 $360.10 93100
017-120-012-000 10.61 10.61 100 $68.00 93100
017-120-017-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-120-018-000 4.85 4.85 100 $31.20 93100
017-130-001-000 97 97 100 $620.10 93100
017-130-012-000 19.97 19.97 100 $127.90 93100
017-130-019-000 3.81 3.81 100 $24.60 93100
017-130-029-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
017-130-030-000 5.24 5.24 100 $33.70 93100
017-130-038-000 5.01 5.01 100 $32.30 93100
017-130-040-000 10.19 10.19 100 $65.40 93100
017-130-041-000 4.77 4.77 100 $30.70 93100
017-130-042-000 9.33 9.33 100 $59.90 93100
017-130-046-000 5.06 5.06 100 $32.60 93100
017-130-050-000 4.9 4.9 100 $31.60 93100
017-130-051-000 59.1 59.1 100 $377.90 93100
017-130-052-000 4.58 4.58 100 $29.50 93100
017-130-053-000 5 5 100 $32.20 53100
017-130-054-000 5.27 5.27 100 $33.90 93100
017-130-055-000 7.26 7.26 100 $46.60 93100
017-130-060-000 5.07 5.07 100 $32.60 93100
017-130-061-000 5.06 5.06 100 $32.60 93100
017-130-067-000 5.06 5.06 100 $32.60 93100
017-130-068-000 5.07 5.07 100 $32.60 93100
017-130-069-000 4.99 4.99 100 $32.10 93100
017-130-070-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-130-071-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-130-072-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-130-073-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-130-074-000 9.68 9.68 100 $62.10 93100
017-130-079-000 10.84 10.84 100 $69.50 93100
017-130-082-000 4.78 4.78 100 $30.80 93100
017-130-083-000 4.78 4.78 100 $30.80 93100
017-130-086-000 50 50 100 $319.80 93100
017-130-087-000 10.41 10.41 100 $66.80 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel ]in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
017-130-088-000 5.62 5.62 100 $36.20 93100
017-130-089-000 5.35 5.35 100 $34.40 93100
017-140-008-000 15.57 15.57 100 $99.70 93100
017-140-009-000 24.43 24.43 100 $156.40 93100
017-140-012-000 40 40 100 $255.90 93100
017-150-012-000 8 8 100 $51.40 93100
017-150-013-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
017-150-024-000 2.029 2.029 100 $13.20 93100
017-150-032-000 12.69 12.69 100 $81.30 93100
017-150-033-000 12.69 12.69 100 $81.30 93100
017-150-036-000 5.48 5.48 100 $35.30 93100
017-150-038-000 5.43 5.43 100 $34.90 93100
017-150-039-000 5.43 5.43 100 $34.90 93100
017-150-040-000 9.11 9.11 100 $58.50 93100
017-150-044-000 10.59 10.59 100 $67.90 93100
017-150-046-000 4.92 4.92 100 $31.70 93100
017-150-047-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-150-053-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-150-054-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-150-055-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-150-056-000 4.89 4.89 100 $31.50 93100
017-150-057-000 491 4.91 100 $31.60 93100
017-150-058-000 7.54 7.54 100 $48.40 93100
017-150-059-000 5.47 5.47 100 $35.20 93100
017-150-060-000 4.64 4.64 100 $29.90 93100
017-150-061-000 4.64 4.64 100 $29.90 93100
017-150-062-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
017-150-073-000 5.5 5.5 100 $35.40 93100
017-150-074-000 4.5 4.5 100 $29.00 93100
017-150-077-000 4.65 4.65 100 $30.00 93100
017-150-078-000 4.64 4.64 100 $29.90 93100
017-150-079-000 4.98 4.98 100 $32.10 93100
017-150-080-000 8.09 8.09 100 $51.90 93100
017-150-081-000 8.1 8.1 100 $52.00 93100
017-150-082-000 7.46 7.46 100 $47.90 93100
017-150-083-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-150-084-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-150-085-000 24.28 24.28 100 $155.40 93100
017-150-086-000 4.59 4.59 100 $29.60 93100
017-150-087-000 4.92 4.92 100 $31.70 93100
017-150-088-000 4.47 4.47 100 $28.80 93100
017-150-089-000 4.47 4.47 100 $28.80 93100
017-150-090-000 5.09 5.09 100 $32.80 93100
017-150-091-000 6.39 6.39 100 $41.10 93100
017-160-001-000 145 145 100 $926.80 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel jin Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
017-160-005-000 168.25 168.25 100 $1,075.40 93100
017-160-006-000 160 160 100 $1,022.70 93100
017-160-009-000 1.55 1.55 100 $10.20 93100
017-160-010-000 1.74 1.74 100 $11.40 93100
017-160-012-000 0.93 0.93 100 $6.20 93100
017-170-005-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
017-170-006-000 5.95 5.95 100 $38.30 93100
017-170-007-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-170-008-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-170-012-000 20.35 20.35 100 $130.30 93100
017-170-013-000 4.99 4.99 100 $32.10 93100
017-170-014-000 4.92 4.92 100 $31.70 93100
017-170-015-000 20.55 20.55 100 $131.60 93100
017-170-018-000 5.83 5.83 100 $37.50 93100
017-170-019-000 24.22 24.22 100 $155.00 93100
017-180-002-000 20 20 100 $128.10 93100
017-180-003-000 20 20 100 $128.10 93100
017-180-004-000 29.26 29.26 100 $187.20 93100
017-180-005-000 30 30 100 $192.00 93100
017-180-020-000 0.35 0.35 100 $2.50 93100
017-180-021-000 0.33 0.33 100 $2.40 93100
017-180-024-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-180-025-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-180-026-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-180-027-000 9.81 9.81 100 $62.90 93100
017-180-028-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
017-180-029-000 15 15 100 $96.10 93100
017-180-030-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-180-031-000 4.6 4.6 100 $29.60 93100
017-180-034-000 8.48 8.48 100 $54.40 93100
017-180-035-000 5.43 5.43 100 $34.90 93100
017-180-036-000 5.41 5.41 100 $34.80 93100
017-180-037-000 5.4 54 100 $34.80 93100
017-180-038-000 4.96 4.96 100 $31.90 93100
017-180-039-000 5.19 5.19 100 $33.40 93100
017-180-040-000 5.2 5.2 100 $33.50 93100
017-180-042-000 4.92 4.92 100 $31.70 93100
017-180-043-000 4.54 4.54 100 $29.30 93100
017-180-044-000 4.53 4.53 100 $29.20 93100
017-180-045-000 4.66 4.66 100 $30.00 93100
017-180-046-000 4.88 4.88 100 $31.40 93100
017-180-047-000 5.81 5.81 100 $37.40 93100
017-180-048-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-180-049-000 5 5 100 $32.20 953100
017-180-050-000 6.59 6.59 100 $42.40 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xlIsxinformational



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
017-180-052-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
017-180-053-000 28.66 28.66 100 $183.40 93100
017-180-054-000 21.05 21.05 100 $134.80 93100
017-180-055-000 4.81 4.81 100 $31.00 93100
017-180-056-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-001-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-002-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-003-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-004-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-005-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-006-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-007-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-008-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-009-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-010-000 5.39 5.39 100 $34.70 93100
017-190-011-000 5.22 5.22 100 $33.60 93100
017-190-012-000 5.03 5.03 100 $32.40 93100
017-190-013-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-014-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-015-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-016-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-017-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-018-000 5.43 5.43 100 $34.90 93100
017-190-019-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-020-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-021-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-022-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-023-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-024-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-025-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-026-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-030-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-031-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-032-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-190-033-000 5.35 5.35 100 $34.40 93100
017-190-034-000 6.18 6.18 100 $39.70 93100
017-190-035-000 5.53 5.53 100 $35.60 93100
017-200-001-000 7.15 7.15 100 $45.90 93100
017-200-002-000 . 5.1 5.1 100 $32.80 93100
017-200-003-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-200-004-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-200-005-000 4.99 4.99 100 $32.10 93100
017-200-006-000 0.009 0.009 100 $0.30 93100
017-200-007-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-200-008-000 14 14 100 $89.70 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
017-200-009-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
017-200-010-000 20.01 20.01 100 $128.10 93100
017-200-011-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-200-012-000 5.31 5.31 100 $34.20 93100
017-200-013-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-200-014-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-200-015-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-200-016-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-200-017-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-200-018-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-200-019-000 22 22 100 $140.80 93100
017-200-020-000 0.56 0.56 100 $3.80 93100
017-200-021-000 16.079 16.079 100 $103.00 93100
017-200-022-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-200-023-000 20 20 100 $128.10 93100
017-200-024-000 5.1 5.1 100 $32.80 93100
017-200-025-000 5.1 5.1 100 $32.80 93100
017-200-026-000 10.08 10.08 100 $64.70 93100
017-200-027-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-200-028-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-200-029-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-200-030-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
017-200-031-000 25 25 100 $160.00 93100
017-200-032-000 68.02 68.02 100 $434.90 93100
018-010-002-000 152.77 152.77 100 $976.50 93100
018-010-005-000 22.87 22.87 100 $146.40 93100
018-010-006-000 300 300 100 $1,917.30 93100
018-010-010-000 54.62 54.62 100 $349.30 93100
018-010-011-000 225.78 225.78 100 $1,443.00 93100
018-010-012-000 23.08 23.08 100 $147.70 93100
018-010-013-000 48.36 48.36 100 $309.30 93100
018-020-005-000 19.04 19.04 100 $121.90 93100
018-020-007-000 101.21 101.21 100 $647.00 93100
018-020-011-000 30.09 30.09 100 $192.50 93100
018-020-012-000 25.86 25.86 100 $165.50 93100
018-020-014-000 33.27 33.27 100 $212.80 93100
018-020-015-000 104.43 104.43 100 $667.60 93100
018-020-016-000 82.62 82.62 100 $528.20 93100
018-030-011-000 81.5 81.5 100 $521.00 93100
018-030-012-000 175.71 175.71 100 $1,123.00 93100
018-030-013-000 27.73 27.73 100 $177.40 93100
018-030-014-000 134.86 134.86 100 $862.00 93100
018-030-020-000 61.08 61.08 100 $390.60 93100
018-030-021-000 2.28 2.28 100 $14.80 93100
018-050-011-000 247.95 247.95 100 $1,584.70 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxInformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
018-050-012-000 3.62 3.62 100 $23.40 93100
018-050-013-000 41.38 41.38 100 $264.70 93100
018-050-014-000 577.76 577.76 100 $3,692.10 93100
018-050-015-000 14.6 14.6 100 $93.50 93100
018-050-016-000 8.38 8.38 100 $53.80 93100
018-050-017-000 53.94 53.94 100 $344.90 93100
018-060-005-000 6 6 100 $38.60 93100
018-060-008-000 13.79 13.79 100 $88.40 93100
018-060-012-000 6 6 100 $38.60 93100
018-060-015-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
018-060-017-000 5.36 5.36 100 $34.50 93100
018-060-018-000 5.41 5.41 100 $34.80 93100
018-060-021-000 5.34 5.34 100 $34.40 93100
018-060-022-000 5.09 5.09 100 $32.80 93100
018-060-023-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
018-060-024-000 62.34 62.34 100 $398.60 93100
018-060-025-000 8.189 8.189 100 $52.60 93100
018-060-026-000 27.08 27.08 100 $173.30 93100
018-060-027-000 9.95 9.95 100 $63.80 93100
018-070-001-000 19.86 19.86 100 $127.20 93100
018-070-003-000 20 20 100 $128.10 93100
018-070-004-000 11.73 11.73 100 $75.20 93100
018-070-006-000 13.9 13.9 100 $89.10 93100
018-070-008-000 15 15 100 $96.10 93100
018-070-009-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
018-080-001-000 16.309 16.309 100 $104.50 93100
018-080-005-000 29.88 29.88 100 $191.20 93100
018-080-006-000 29.81 29.81 100 $190.70 93100
018-080-007-000 29.88 29.88 100 $191.20 93100
018-080-013-000 9.99 9.99 100 $64.10 93100
018-080-020-000 23.65 23.65 100 $151.40 93100
018-080-022-000 21.64 21.64 100 $138.50 93100
018-080-023-000 25.63 25.63 100 $164.00 93100
018-080-024-000 9.94 9.94 100 $63.80 93100
018-080-025-000 9.94 9.94 100 $63.80 93100
018-080-026-000 7.85 7.85 100 $50.40 93100
018-080-027-000 3.15 3.15 100 $20.40 93100
018-080-028-000 8.21 8.21 100 $52.70 93100
018-080-029-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
018-090-007-000 1.09 1.09 100 $7.20 93100
018-090-008-000 4.13 4.13 100 $26.60 93100
018-090-011-000 12.64 12.64 100 $81.00 93100
018-090-013-000 119.77 119.77 100 $765.60 93100
018-090-015-000 10.7 10.7 100 $68.60 93100
018-090-017-000 4.68 4.68 100 $30.20 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xlsxInformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
018-090-019-000 36.97 36.97 100 $236.50 93100
018-090-020-000 12.23 12.23 100 $78.40 93100
018-090-022-000 10.03 10.03 100 $64.30 93100
018-090-023-000 10.08 10.08 100 $64.70 93100
018-090-024-000 13.13 13.13 100 $84.20 93100
018-090-026-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
018-090-027-000 62.51 62.51 100 $399.70 93100
018-090-028-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
018-100-002-000 29.51 29.51 100 $188.80 93100
018-100-011-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
018-100-012-000 20 20 100 $128.10 93100
018-100-015-000 8.76 8.76 100 $56.20 93100
018-100-019-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
018-100-020-000 0.96 0.96 100 $6.40 93100
018-100-021-000 22.74 22.74 100 $145.60 93100
018-100-022-000 92.05 92.05 100 $588.40 93100
018-100-024-000 7.94 7.94 100 $51.00 93100
018-100-025-000 7.94 7.94 100 $51.00 93100
018-100-026-000 6.06 6.06 100 $39.00 93100
018-100-027-000 4.67 4.67 100 $30.10 93100
018-100-028-000 4.88 4.88 100 $31.40 93100
018-100-029-000 20.83 20.83 100 $133.40 93100
018-100-030-000 34.29 34.29 100 $219.40 93100
018-100-031-000 33.43 33.43 100 $213.90 93100
018-100-032-000 5.97 5.97 100 $38.40 93100
018-100-033-000 22.24 22.24 100 $142.40 93100
018-100-034-000 4.13 413 100 $26.60 93100
018-100-035-000 4.08 4.08 100 $26.30 93100
018-110-015-000 1.32 1.32 100 $8.70 93100
018-110-016-000 32.38 32.38 100 $207.20 93100
018-110-019-000 0.007 0.007 100 $0.30 93100
018-110-024-000 1.25 1.25 100 $8.20 93100
018-110-025-000 0.57 0.57 100 $3.90 93100
018-110-032-000 18.67 18.67 100 $119.60 93100
018-110-033-000 6.17 6.17 100 $39.70 93100
018-110-036-000 6 6 100 $38.60 93100
018-110-040-000 33.08 33.08 100 $211.60 93100
018-110-042-000 4.59 4.59 100 $29.60 93100
018-110-043-000 4.88 4.88 100 $31.40 93100
018-110-044-000 27.95 27.95 100 $178.90 93100
018-110-045-000 36.35 36.35 100 $232.50 93100
018-120-002-000 40.09 40.09 100 $256.40 93100
018-120-003-000 50.1 50.1 100 $320.40 93100
018-120-006-000 29.99 29.99 100 $191.90 93100
018-120-007-000 12.46 12.46 100 $79.90 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information xIsxinformational



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
018-120-009-000 25 2.5 100 $16.20 93100
018-120-010-000 10.08 10.08 100 $64.70 93100
018-120-012-000 8.97 8.97 100 $57.60 93100
018-120-013-000 35.6 35.6 100 $227.70 93100
018-130-001-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
018-130-004-000 10.9 10.9 100 $69.90 93100
018-130-005-000 5.45 5.45 100 $35.10 93100
018-130-006-000 20.9 20.9 100 $133.80 93100
018-130-008-000 7.84 7.84 100 $50.30 93100
018-130-010-000 20.9 20.9 100 $133.80 93100
018-130-013-000 20.9 20.9 100 $133.80 93100
018-130-014-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
018-130-015-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
018-130-016-000 9.92 9.92 100 $63.60 93100
018-130-017-000 15.05 15.05 100 $96.40 93100
018-130-021-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
018-130-022-000 20 20 100 $128.10 93100
018-130-025-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
018-130-026-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
018-130-027-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
018-130-028-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
018-130-029-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
018-130-031-000 7.58 7.58 100 $48.70 93100
018-130-032-000 0.259 0.259 100 $1.90 93100
018-130-035-000 4.98 4.98 100 $32.10 93100
018-130-036-000 5.02 5.02 100 $32.30 93100
018-130-037-000 5.02 5.02 100 $32.30 93100
018-130-038-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
018-130-046-000 5.91 5.91 100 $38.00 93100
018-130-047-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
018-130-048-000 7 7 100 $45.00 93100
018-130-049-000 301 3.01 100 $19.50 93100
018-130-050-000 15.46 15.46 100 $99.00 93100
018-130-051-000 0.221 0.221 100 $1.70 93100
018-130-054-000 8.5 8.5 100 $54.60 93100
018-130-055-000 4.92 4.92 100 $31.70 93100
018-130-056-000 4.92 492 100 $31.70 93100
018-130-057-000 4.88 488 100 $31.40 93100
018-130-058-000 10.89 10.89 100 $69.80 93100
018-130-060-000 4.92 4.92 100 $31.70 93100
018-130-061-000 4.92 4.92 100 $31.70 93100
018-130-062-000 4.92 4,92 100 $31.70 93100
018-130-063-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
018-130-064-000 5.49 5.49 100 $35.30 93100
018-140-001-000 40 40 100 $255.90 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax information.xIsxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
018-140-002-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
018-140-008-000 36.5 36.5 100 $233.50 93100
018-140-010-000 30 30 100 $192.00 93100
018-140-011-000 40 40 100 $255.90 93100
018-140-012-000 40 40 100 $255.90 93100
018-140-014-000 0.65 0.65 100 $4.40 93100
018-140-017-000 16.76 16.76 100 $107.30 93100
018-140-018-000 15.92 15.92 100 $102.00 93100
018-140-019-000 0.83 0.83 100 $5.60 93100
018-140-020-000 30 30 100 $192.00 93100
018-140-021-000 9.22 9.22 100 $59.20 93100
018-140-025-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
018-140-026-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
018-140-027-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
018-140-028-000 10.01 10.01 100 $64.20 93100
018-140-029-000 10.01 10.01 100 $64.20 93100
018-140-030-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
018-140-031-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
018-140-032-000 4.93 4.93 100 $31.80 93100
018-150-002-000 20 20 100 $128.10 93100
018-150-003-000 30 30 100 $192.00 93100
018-150-004-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
018-150-006-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
018-150-007-000 15 15 100 $96.10 93100
018-150-014-000 15 15 100 $96.10 93100
018-150-015-000 4 4 100 $25.80 93100
018-150-016-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
018-150-017-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
018-150-018-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
018-150-019-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
018-150-021-000 4.98 4.98 100 $32.10 93100
018-150-022-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
018-150-023-000 10.19 10.19 100 $65.40 93100
018-150-024-000 7.62 7.62 100 $48.90 93100
018-150-025-000 5.1 5.1 100 $32.80 93100
018-150-026-000 7.05 7.05 100 $45.30 93100
018-160-001-000 40 40 100 $255.90 93100
018-160-002-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
018-160-005-000 12 12 100 $76.90 93100
018-160-006-000 4 4 100 $25.80 93100
018-160-007-000 4 4 100 $25.80 93100
018-160-008-000 20 20 100 $128.10 93100
018-160-010-000 50.01 50.01 100 $319.80 93100
018-160-015-000 0.713 0.713 100 $4.80 93100
018-160-016-000 18 18 100 $115.30 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxInformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel jin Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
018-160-017-000 22 22 100 $140.80 93100
018-160-018-000 4.92 4.92 100 $31.70 93100
018-160-019-000 4.92 4.92 100 $31.70 93100
018-160-020-000 9.78 9.78 100 $62.70 93100
018-160-021-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
018-160-022-000 15.7 15.7 100 $100.60 93100
018-160-023-000 14.31 14.31 100 $91.70 93100
018-160-024-000 23.97 23.97 100 $153.40 93100
018-160-025-000 15.68 15.68 100 $100.40 93100
018-160-026-000 30 30 100 $192.00 93100
018-160-027-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
018-170-003-000 20 20 100 $128.10 93100
018-170-010-000 15 15 100 $96.10 93100
018-170-011-000 15.64 15.64 100 $100.20 93100
018-170-012-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
018-170-014-000 0.4 0.4 100 $2.80 93100
018-170-015-000 24.06 24.06 100 $154.00 93100
018-170-018-000 0.126 0.126 100 $1.10 93100
018-170-020-000 19.91 19.91 100 $127.50 93100
018-170-022-000 14 14 100 $89.70 93100
018-170-023-000 13 13 100 $83.30 93100
018-170-024-000 13 13 100 $83.30 93100
018-170-025-000 13 13 100 $83.30 93100
018-170-026-000 13 13 100 $83.30 93100
018-170-027-000 13 13 100 $83.30 93100
018-170-028-000 8.05 8.05 100 $51.70 93100
018-170-029-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
018-170-030-000 4.89 4.89 100 $31.50 93100
018-170-031-000 4.89 4.89 100 $31.50 93100
018-170-032-000 4.89 4.89 100 $31.50 93100
018-170-033-000 4.89 4.89 100 $31.50 93100
018-170-034-000 45.7 45.7 100 $292.30 93100
018-180-003-000 92.62 92.62 100 $592.10 93100
018-180-004-000 349.16 349.16 100 $2,231.40 93100
018-180-005-000 55 55 100 $351.70 93100
018-180-006-000 112.2 112.2 100 $717.20 93100
018-180-007-000 382.5 3825 100 $2,444.40 93100
018-190-001-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
018-190-008-000 68.09 68.09 100 $435.30 93100
018-190-016-000 149.95 149.95 100 $958.40 93100
018-190-017-000 126.8 126.8 100 $810.50 93100
018-190-019-000 161.19 161.19 100 $1,030.30 93100
018-190-022-000 123.81 123.81 100 $791.40 93100
018-190-028-000 42 42 100 $268.60 93100
018-190-032-000 60.44 60.44 100 $386.50 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.x!sxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage in Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
018-190-035-000 101.96 101.96 100 $651.80 93100
018-190-039-000 76.62 76.62 100 $489.90 93100
018-190-040-000 76.06 760.06 100 $4,857.00 93100
018-190-041-000 66.87 66.87 100 $427.50 93100
018-190-043-000 52.48 52.48 100 $335.60 93100
018-190-044-000 26.07 26.07 100 $166.80 93100
018-190-045-000 451 4.51 100 $29.10 93100
018-190-046-000 21.8 21.8 100 $139.60 93100
018-190-047-000 3.26 3.26 100 $21.10 93100
018-190-050-000 23.87 23.87 100 $152.80 93100
018-190-051-000 23.97 23.97 100 $153.40 93100
018-190-053-000 3.16 3.16 100 $20.40 93100
018-200-010-000 22 22 100 $140.80 93100
018-200-014-000 37.3 37.3 100 $238.60 93100
018-200-016-000 51.9 51.9 100 $331.90 93100
018-200-033-000 62.7| 57.97809995| 92.46905893 $370.70 93100
018-200-046-000 49.29| 47.25238695{ 95.86607212 $302.20 93100
018-200-061-000 87.61| 37.36846917| 42.65320074 $239.00 93100
018-200-067-000 209.36] 0.437873034| 0.209148373 $3.00 93100
018-200-071-000 16.37 16.37 100 $104.90 93100
018-200-075-000 140.17| 59.27192755| 42.28574413 $379.00 93100
018-200-076-000 8.25| 3.488573891] 42.28574413 $22.50 93100
018-200-080-000 92.91 92.91 100 $593.90 93100
018-200-081-000 4.51 4.51 100 $29.10 93100
018-200-082-000 10.48 10.48 100 $67.20 93100
018-200-083-000 38.74} 27.50073923 70.9879691 $176.00 93100
018-200-084-000 30.12 30.12 100 $192.70 93100
018-200-085-000 32.17 32.17 100 $205.80 93100
018-210-001-000 49.93 49.93 100 $319.30 93100
018-210-002-000 0.39 0.39 100 $2.70 93100
018-210-003-000 0.16 0.16 100 $1.30 93100
018-210-005-000 34.07 34.07 100 $218.00 93100
018-210-006-000 35.75 35.75 100 $228.70 93100
018-210-007-000 25.26 25.26 100 $161.70 93100
018-210-008-000 25.88 25.88 100 $165.60 93100
018-210-009-000 0.17 0.17 100 $1.30 93100
018-220-002-000 0.247 0.247 100 $1.80 93100
018-220-007-000 231 2.31 100 $15.00 93100
018-220-008-000 3.38 3.38 100 $21.80 93100
018-220-009-000 12.87 12.87 100 $82.50 93100
018-220-010-000 517 5.17 100 $33.30 93100
018-220-011-000 83 8.3 100 $53.30 93100
018-220-012-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
018-220-014-000 11.5 115 100 $73.70 93100
018-280-001-000 9.7 9.7 100 $62.20 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformational



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
018-280-002-000 1.37 1.37 100 $9.00 93100
018-300-003-000 6.41 6.41 100 $41.20 93100
018-300-004-000 9.91 9.91 100 $63.60 93100
018-300-005-000 6.58 6.58 100 $42.30 93100
019-010-007-000 52.94 52.94 100 $338.50 93100
019-010-008-000 107.05 107.05 100 $684.30 93100
019-010-013-000 15.31 15.31 100 $98.10 93100
019-010-014-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
019-010-015-000 20 20 100 $128.10 93100
019-020-008-000 20 20 100 $128.10 93100
019-020-011-000 18.64 18.64 100 $119.40 93100
019-020-012-000 1.97 1.97 100 $12.80 93100
019-020-013-000 1.51 1.51 100 $9.90 93100
019-020-015-000 24 24 100 $153.60 93100
019-030-004-000 22.91 2291 100 $146.60 93100
019-030-016-000 13.58 13.58 100 $87.00 93100
019-030-019-000 3.46 3.46 100 $22.40 93100
019-030-021-000 3.5 3.5 100 $22.60 93100
019-030-022-000 1.57 1.57 100 $10.30 93100
019-030-023-000 4.66 4.66 100 $30.00 93100
019-030-024-000 4.52 4.52 100 $29.10 93100
019-030-027-000 15.78 15.78 100 $101.10 93100
019-030-028-000 4.94 4.94 100 $31.80 93100
019-030-029-000 4,98 4,98 100 $32.10 93100
019-050-003-000 87.01 87.01 100 $556.20 93100
019-050-005-000 86.48 86.48 100 $552.90 93100
019-050-006-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
019-050-007-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
019-050-008-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
019-050-009-000 61.92 61.92 100 $395.90 93100
019-050-010-000 925 92.5 100 $591.30 93100
019-050-011-000 1.76 1.76 100 $11.50 93100
013-060-001-000 116.85 116.85 100 $746.90 93100
019-060-002-000 56.37 56.37 100 $360.50 93100
019-060-004-000 150.42 150.42 100 $961.40 93100
019-060-005-000 5.09 5.09 100 $32.80 93100
019-060-006-000 5.01 5.01 100 $32.30 93100
019-060-007-000 5.12 5.12 100 $33.00 93100
019-060-008-000 4.59 4.59 100 $29.60 93100
019-070-001-000 171.94 171.94 100 $1,098.90 93100
019-080-001-000 24.27 24.27 100 $155.30 93100
019-080-004-000 19.26 19.26 100 $123.30 93100
019-080-006-000 28.37 28.37 100 $181.50 93100
015-080-008-000 26.08 26.08 100 $166.90 93100
019-080-009-000 27.86 27.86 100 $178.30 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel ]in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
019-080-010-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
019-080-011-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
019-080-012-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
019-080-013-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
019-080-014-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
019-080-015-000 5.31 5.31 100 $34.20 93100
019-080-016-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
019-090-001-000 42.27 42.27 100 $270.40 93100
019-090-003-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
019-090-010-000 19.06 19.06 100 $122.00 93100
019-090-012-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
019-090-013-000 64.37 64.37 100 $411.60 93100
019-090-014-000 0.33 0.33 100 $2.40 93100
019-090-015-000 17.9 17.9 100 $114.60 93100
019-090-018-000 2.22 2.22 100 $14.40 93100
019-090-021-000 242 2.42 100 $15.70 93100
019-090-022-000 17.44 17.44 100 $111.70 93100
019-090-024-000 16.73 16.73 100 $107.20 93100
019-090-025-000 13.01 13.01 100 $83.40 93100
019-090-026-000 14.41 14.41 100 $92.30 93100
019-090-031-000 3.13 3.13 100 $20.30 93100
019-090-032-000 25 2.5 100 $16.20 93100
019-090-033-000 3.13 3.13 100 $20.30 93100
019-090-034-000 5.16 5.16 100 $33.20 93100
019-090-035-000 6.09 6.09 100 $39.20 93100
019-090-037-000 6.23 6.23 100 $40.10 93100
019-090-038-000 20.5 20.5 100 $131.20 93100
019-090-039-000 1.003 1.003 100 $6.70 93100
019-090-040-000 0.52 0.52 100 $3.60 93100
019-090-041-000 5.05 5.05 100 $32.50 93100
019-100-012-000 6.62 6.62 100 $42.60 93100
019-100-013-000 6.33 6.33 100 $40.70 93100
019-100-014-000 4.83 4.83 100 $31.10 93100
019-100-018-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
019-100-019-000 24.51 24.51 100 $156.90 93100
019-100-020-000 5.31 5.31 100 $34.20 93100
019-100-021-000 5.01 5.01 100 $32.30 93100
019-100-022-000 15.6 15.6 100 $99.90 93100
019-100-023-000 0.79 0.79 100 $5.30 93100
019-100-024-000 2.5 2.5 100 $16.20 93100
019-100-025-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
019-100-026-000 10.1 10.1 100 $64.80 93100
019-100-027-000 7 7 100 $45.00 93100
019-100-028-000 11.7 11.7 100 $75.00 93100
019-110-001-000 36.68 36.68 100 $234.60 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformational



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
019-110-003-000 31.68 31.68 100 $202.70 93100
019-110-006-000 31.27 31.27 100 $200.10 93100
019-110-008-000 9.18 9.18 100 $58.90 93100
019-110-009-000 20 20 100 $128.10 93100
019-110-010-000 1.38 1.38 100 $9.10 93100
019-110-011-000 27.79 27.79 100 $177.80 93100
019-110-015-000 29.18 29.18 100 $186.70 93100
019-110-019-000 33.58 33.58 100 $214.80 93100
019-110-020-000 0.41 0.41 100 $2.90 93100
019-110-023-000 0.2 0.2 100 $1.50 93100
019-110-025-000 0.11 0.11 100 $1.00 93100
019-110-026-000 12.92 12.92 100 $82.80 93100
019-110-027-000 2.3 23 100 $14.90 93100
019-110-028-000 41.88 41.88 100 $267.90 93100
019-110-029-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
019-110-030-000 8.38 8.38 100 $53.80 93100
019-110-032-000 13.91 13.91 100 $89.10 93100
019-110-033-000 491 491 100 $31.60 93100
019-110-034-000 4.91 491 100 $31.60 93100
019-110-035-000 29.17 29.17 100 $186.60 93100
019-120-007-000 9.68 9.68 100 $62.10 93100
019-120-012-000 2 2 100 $13.00 93100
019-120-014-000 2.85 2.85 100 $18.50 93100
019-120-016-000 17.26 17.26 100 $110.50 93100
019-120-018-000 0.24 0.24 100 $1.80 93100
019-120-019-000 44.4 44.4 100 $284.00 93100
019-120-020-000 0.39 0.39 100 $2.70 93100
019-120-022-000 0.91 0.91 100 $6.10 93100
019-120-028-000 20.77 20.77 100 $133.00 93100
019-120-029-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
019-120-030-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
019-120-031-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
019-120-032-000 18.65 18.65 100 $119.40 93100
019-120-033-000 16.35 16.35 100 $104.70 93100
019-120-034-000 4.48 4.48 100 $28.90 93100
019-120-035-000 15 15 100 $9.80 93100
019-120-039-000 29.01 29.01 100 $185.60 93100
019-120-040-000 19.45 19.45 100 $124.50 93100
019-120-041-000 6.99 6.99 100 $44.90 93100
019-120-042-000 6.99 6.99 100 $44.90 93100
019-130-001-000 2.62 2.62 100 $17.00 93100
019-130-002-000 16.34 16.34 100 $104.70 93100
019-130-010-000 20.46 20.46 100 $131.00 93100
019-130-011-000 31.12 31.12 100 $199.10 93100
019-130-015-000 11.33 11.33 100 $72.60 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxInformational



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage in Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
019-130-016-000 9.6 9.6 100 $61.60 93100
019-130-017-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
019-130-018-000 9.36 9.36 100 $60.10 93100
019-130-019-000 9.82 9.82 100 $63.00 93100
019-130-021-000 38.27 38.27 100 $244.80 93100
019-130-025-000 20.36 20.36 100 $130.40 93100
019-140-006-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
019-140-008-000 6.33 6.33 100 $40.70 93100
019-160-003-000 0.137 0.137 100 $1.10 93100
019-160-004-000 0.137 0.137 100 $1.10 93100
019-160-005-000 0.137 0.137 100 $1.10 93100
019-160-006-000 0.137 0.137 100 $1.10 93100
019-160-007-000 0.31 0.31 100 $2.20 93100
019-160-008-000 1.3 1.3 100 $8.60 93100
019-170-057-000 1.03 1.03 100 $6.80 93100
019-170-062-000 0.328 0.328 100 $2.30 93100
019-170-068-000 0.417 0.417 100 $2.90 93100
019-170-073-000 0.446 0.446 100 $3.10 93100
019-170-074-000 0.45 0.45 100 $3.10 93100
019-170-078-000 19.28 19.28 100 $123.40 93100
019-170-079-000 9.66 9.66 100 $62.00 93100
019-170-080-000 1.08 1.08 100 $7.20 93100
019-170-081-000 0.457 0.457 100 $3.20 93100
019-170-082-000 21.76 21.76 100 $139.30 93100
019-170-089-000 14.44 14.44 100 $92.50 93100
019-210-014-000 129.789 129.789 100 $829.60 93100
019-210-016-000 0.53 0.53 100 $3.60 93100
019-210-017-000 39.97 39.97 100 $255.70 93100
019-210-018-000 25.1 25.1 100 $160.60 93100
019-220-001-000 72.18 72.18 100 $461.50 93100
019-220-012-000 8.47 8.47 100 $54.40 93100
019-220-014-000 28.5 28.5 100 $182.40 93100
019-220-028-000 11.63 11.63 100 $74.60 93100
019-220-029-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
019-220-030-000 5.01 5.01 100 $32.30 93100
019-220-072-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
019-220-075-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
019-220-076-000 1.52 1.52 100 $10.00 93100
019-220-077-000 1.65 1.65 100 $10.80 93100
019-220-078-000 191 1.91 100 $12.50 93100
019-220-079-000 1.96 1.96 100 $12.80 93100
019-220-080-000 1.53 1.53 100 $10.00 93100
019-220-081-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
019-220-085-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
019-220-086-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage in Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
019-220-091-000 1.01 1.01 100 $6.70 93100
019-220-092-000 1.01 1.01 100 $6.70 93100
019-220-093-000 1.01 1.01 100 $6.70 93100
019-220-094-000 1.01 1.01 100 $6.70 93100
019-220-095-000 5.43 5.43 100 $34.90 93100
019-230-003-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
019-230-009-000 0.28 0.28 100 $2.00 93100
019-230-010-000 13.09 13.09 100 $83.90 93100
019-230-011-000 2.26 2.26 100 $14.70 93100
019-230-019-000 4.34 4.34 100 $28.00 93100
019-230-020-000 6.98 6.98 100 $44.90 93100
019-230-021-000 1.45 1.45 100 $9.50 93100
019-230-022-000 11.75 11.75 100 $75.30 93100
019-230-023-000 19.91 19.91 100 $127.50 93100
019-230-031-000 45 45 100 $287.80 93100
019-330-009-000 4 4 100 $25.80 93100
019-330-011-000 12.56 12.56 100 $80.50 93100
019-350-006-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
019-350-009-000 491 491 100 $31.60 93100
019-350-010-000 491 491 100 $31.60 93100
019-350-016-000 0.62 0.62 100 $4.20 93100
019-350-017-000 25 25 100 $160.00 93100
019-350-018-000 2.95 2.95 100 $19.10 93100
019-380-001-000 1.25 1.25 100 $8.20 93100
019-380-002-000 0.89 0.89 100 $5.90 93100
019-380-003-000 0.53 0.53 100 $3.60 93100
019-380-004-000 0.5 0.5 100 $3.40 93100
019-380-005-000 0.5 0.5 100 $3.40 93100
019-380-006-000 0.5 0.5 100 $3.40 93100
019-380-009-000 1.38 1.38 100 $9.10 93100
019-380-010-000 1.01 1.01 100 $6.70 93100
019-380-011-000 1.09 1.09 100 $7.20 93100
019-380-012-000 1.01 1.01 100 $6.70 93100
019-380-013-000 1.01 1.01 100 $6.70 93100
019-380-014-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
019-380-015-000 0.88 0.88 100 $5.90 93100
019-380-016-000 1.3 1.3 100 $8.60 93100
019-420-001-000 7.12 7.12 100 $45.70 93100
019-420-018-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
020-060-030-000 1.57 1.57 100 $10.30 93100
020-060-042-000 35.85 35.85 100 $229.30 93100
020-060-043-000 6.01 6.01 100 $38.70 93100
020-160-014-000 27.87 27.87 100 $178.30 93100
020-160-015-000 24.46 24.46 100 $156.50 93100
020-160-025-000 5.34 5.34 100 $34.40 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xlsxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage in Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
020-170-025-000 0.95 0.95 100 $6.30 93100
020-170-026-000 0.3 0.3 100 $2.20 93100
020-170-028-000 0.275 0.275 100 $2.00 93100
020-170-037-000 3.92 3.92 100 $25.30 93100
020-170-038-000 4.67 4.67 100 $30.10 93100
020-170-039-000 10.04 10.04 100 $64.40 93100
020-170-040-000 7 7 100 $45.00 93100
020-170-046-000 21.11 21.11 100 $135.10 93100
020-190-021-000 0.718 0.718 100 $4.80 93100
020-190-022-000 0.27 0.27 100 $2.00 93100
020-280-007-000 14.72 14.72 100 $94.30 93100
020-280-013-000 27.96 27.96 100 $178.90 93100
020-280-018-000 6.341 6.341 100 $40.80 93100
020-280-049-000 19.64 19.64 100 $125.70 93100
020-280-050-000 11.16 11.16 100 $71.60 93100
020-280-053-000 9.75 9.75 100 $62.60 93100
020-280-062-000 1.9 1.9 100 $12.40 93100
020-280-064-000 8.6 8.6 100 $55.20 93100
020-280-070-000 3.34 3.34 100 $21.60 93100
020-280-072-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
020-280-073-000 8.18 8.18 100 $52.50 93100
020-280-074-000 i1.9 11.9 100 $76.30 93100
020-280-075-000 0.39 0.39 100 $2.70 93100
020-320-006-000 19.23 19.23 100 $123.10 93100
020-330-056-000 8.28 8.28 100 $53.20 93100
020-330-065-000 89.93 89.93 100 $574.90 93100
020-340-001-000 40.07 40.07 100 $256.30 93100
020-340-004-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
020-340-005-000 3.68 3.68 100 $23.80 93100
020-340-006-000 16.97 16.97 100 $108.70 93100
020-340-007-000 8 8 100 $51.40 93100
020-340-008-000 23.29 23.29 100 $149.10 93100
020-340-009-000 69.32 69.32 100 $443.20 93100
020-340-011-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
020-340-017-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
020-340-018-000 4,73 4.73 100 $30.50 93100
020-340-019-000 4.73 4,73 100 $30.50 93100
020-340-022-000 6.05 6.05 100 $38.90 93100
020-340-023-000 5.25 5.25 100 $33.80 93100
020-340-024-000 8.15 8.15 100 $52.30 93100
020-340-025-000 7.13 7.13 100 $45.80 93100
020-340-026-000 12.51 12.51 100 $80.20 93100
020-650-010-000 11.91 11.91 100 $76.40 93100
020-650-014-000 11.8 11.8 100 $75.70 93100
020-650-017-000 25.74 25.74 100 $164.70 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xlsxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage in Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
020-650-024-000 9.5 9.5 100 $61.00 93100
020-650-025-000 4.84 4.84 100 $31.20 93100
020-650-026-000 7.63 7.63 100 $49.00 93100
020-650-027-000 7 7 100 545.00 93100
021-010-002-000 0.6 0.6 100 $4.10 93100
021-010-004-000 1.23 1.23 100 $8.10 93100
021-010-008-000 0.41 0.41 100 $2.90 93100
021-010-010-000 0.46 0.46 100 $3.20 93100
021-010-011-000 1.57 1.57 100 $10.30 93100
021-010-013-000 494 4.94 100 531.80 93100
021-010-023-000 2.12 2.12 100 $13.80 93100
021-010-024-000 2.2 2.2 100 $14.30 93100
021-010-025-000 4.059 4.059 100 $26.20 93100
021-020-001-000 0.21 0.21 100 $1.60 93100
021-020-002-000 6.89 6.89 100 $44.30 93100
021-020-004-000 18.81 18.81 100 $120.40 93100
021-020-006-000 4.22 4.22 100 $27.20 93100
021-020-021-000 5.35 5.35 100 $34.40 93100
021-020-022-000 0.25 0.25 100 $1.80 93100
021-020-023-000 0.27 0.27 100 $2.00 93100
021-020-024-000 0.25 0.25 100 $1.80 93100
021-020-025-000 0.25 0.25 100 $1.80 93100
021-020-026-000 0.25 0.25 100 $1.80 93100
021-020-027-000 0.35 0.35 100 $2.50 93100
021-020-028-000 2.77 2.77 100 $18.00 93100
021-020-029-000 1.47 1.47 100 $9.60 93100
021-030-009-000 0.343 0.343 100 $2.40 93100
021-030-011-000 6.86 6.86 100 544.10 93100
021-030-013-000 29.06 29.06 100 $185.90 93100
021-030-017-000 43.92 43.92 100 $280.90 93100
021-030-018-000 31.56 31.56 100 5201.90 93100
021-030-019-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-030-020-000 8.43 8.43 100 $54.10 93100
021-030-021-000 17.53 17.53 100 $112.30 93100
021-030-022-000 5.1 5.1 100 $32.80 93100
021-030-023-000 20.01 20.01 100 $128.10 93100
021-040-010-000 10.51 10.51 100 $67.40 93100
021-040-012-000 4.64 4.64 100 $29.90 93100
021-040-017-000 38.65 38.65 100 $247.20 93100
021-040-018-000 13.18 13.18 100 584.50 93100
021-040-019-000 75.93 75.93 100 5485.40 93100
021-040-020-000 10.51 10.51 100 $67.40 93100
021-040-021-000 2.39 2.39 100 $15.50 93100
021-050-007-000 5.97 5.97 100 $38.40 93100
021-050-009-000 6.88 6.88 100 544,20 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax lnformation.xlsxlnformational



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
021-050-011-000 20.67 20.67 100 $132.30 93100
021-050-012-000 11.8 11.8 100 $75.70 93100
021-050-013-000 17.36 17.36 100 $111.20 93100
021-050-014-000 2.58 2.58 100 $16.70 93100
021-050-015-000 0.009 0.009 100 $0.30 93100
021-050-016-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-050-017-000 1.76 1.76 100 $11.50 93100
021-050-018-000 0.21 0.21 100 $1.60 93100
021-050-019-000 10.15 10.15 100 $65.10 93100
021-050-020-000 4.88 4.88 100 $31.40 93100
021-050-021-000 1.85 1.85 100 $12.10 93100
021-050-022-000 8.98 8.98 100 $57.60 93100
021-050-023-000 5.17 5.17 100 $33.30 93100
021-050-025-000 19.14 19.14 100 $122.60 93100
021-050-026-000 4.79 4.79 100 $30.90 93100
021-050-027-000 5.43 5.43 100 $34.90 93100
021-050-028-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-060-002-000 5.55 5.55 100 $35.70 93100
021-060-003-000 6.13 6.13 100 $39.40 93100
021-060-004-000 13.54 13.54 100 $86.80 93100
021-060-007-000 18.06 18.06 100 $115.70 93100
021-060-017-000 2.25 2.25 100 $14.60 93100
021-060-018-000 18.44 18.44 100 $118.10 93100
021-060-024-000 5.59 5.59 100 $36.00 93100
021-060-026-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-060-027-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-060-028-000 3.5 3.5 100 $22.60 93100
021-060-029-000 1.5 1.5 100 $9.80 93100
021-060-030-000 3.04 3.04 100 $19.70 93100
021-060-031-000 1.96 1.96 100 $12.80 93100
021-060-032-000 13.92 13.92 100 $89.20 93100
021-060-033-000 55.58 55.58 100 $355.40 93100
021-060-034-000 11 11 100 $70.50 93100
021-060-035-000 9.79 9.79 100 $62.80 93100
021-060-036-000 12.64 12.64 100 $81.00 93100
021-070-001-000 57.57 57.57 100 $368.10 93100
021-070-007-000 9.14 9.14 100 $58.70 93100
021-070-011-000 40 40 100 $255.90 93100
021-070-012-000 2.78 2.78 100 $18.00 93100
021-070-013-000 44.13 4413 100 $282.20 93100
021-070-014-000 3.25 3.25 100 $21.00 93100
021-070-015-000 3.93 3.93 100 $25.40 93100
021-070-016-000 10.12 10.12 100 $64.90 93100
021-070-017-000 18.94 18.94 100 $121.30 93100
021-080-005-000 24.22 24.22 100 $155.00 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xlsxinformational



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel {in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
021-080-006-000 24.24 24.24 100 $155.10 93100
021-080-009-000 49.51 49.51 100 $316.60 93100
021-080-010-000 0.67 0.67 100 $4.50 93100
021-080-015-000 5.16 5.16 100 $33.20 93100
021-080-024-000 6.35 6.35 100 $40.80 93100
021-080-025-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-080-027-000 5.03 5.03 100 $32.40 93100
021-080-029-000 4.37 4.37 100 $28.20 93100
021-080-030-000 4.65 4.65 100 $30.00 93100
021-080-032-000 5.07 5.07 100 $32.60 93100
021-080-033-000 4.42 4,42 100 $28.50 93100
021-080-037-000 1.1 1.1 100 $7.30 93100
021-080-038-000 1.26 1.26 100 $8.30 93100
021-080-039-000 1.74 1.74 100 $11.40 93100
021-080-040-000 1.05 1.05 100 $7.00 93100
021-080-041-000 1.09 1.09 100 $7.20 93100
021-080-043-000 1.02 1.02 100 $6.80 93100
021-080-044-000 1.27 1.27 100 $8.40 93100
021-080-045-000 1.1 1.1 100 $7.30 93100
021-080-046-000 1.1 1.1 100 $7.30 93100
021-080-047-000 46.98 46.98 100 $300.50 93100
021-080-052-000 1.21 1.21 100 $8.00 93100
021-080-053-000 1.27 1.27 100 $8.40 93100
021-080-054-000 1.09 1.09 100 $7.20 93100
021-080-055-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-080-056-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-080-057-000 1.04 1.04 100 $6.90 93100
021-080-058-000 1.04 1.04 100 $6.90 93100
021-080-059-000 1.76 1.76 100 $11.50 93100
021-080-060-000 1.59 1.59 100 510.40 93100
021-080-061-000 1.49 1.49 100 $9.80 93100
021-080-062-000 1.36 1.36 100 $8.90 93100
021-080-063-000 1.1 1.1 100 $7.30 93100
021-080-064-000 1.21 1.21 100 $8.00 93100
021-080-065-000 27.94 27.94 100 $178.80 93100
021-080-066-000 5.82 5.82 100 $37.40 93100
021-080-067-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-080-069-000 6.85 6.85 100 $44.00 93100
021-080-070-000 42.83 42.83 100 $273.90 93100
021-090-003-000 31.59 31.59 100 $202.10 93100
021-090-007-000 14.77 14.77 100 $94.60 93100
021-090-008-000 11.92 11.92 100 $76.40 93100
021-090-010-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-090-011-000 64 64 100 $409.20 93100
021-090-012-000 5.26 5.26 100 $33.90 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information,xlsxlnformational



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |ln Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage in Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
021-090-013-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-090-014-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-090-015-000 6.02 6.02 100 $38.70 93100
021-100-003-000 34.21 34.21 100 $218.90 93100
021-100-004-000 3 3 100 $19.40 93100
021-100-023-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-100-024-000 9.27 9.27 100 $59.50 93100
021-100-026-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-100-027-000 6.94 6.94 100 $44.60 93100
021-100-036-000 7.44 7.44 100 $47.80 93100
021-100-037-000 5.82 5.82 100 $37.40 93100
021-100-038-000 5.01 5.01 100 $32.30 93100
021-100-039-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-100-040-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-110-002-000 2.19 219 100 $14.20 93100
021-110-003-000 5.27 5.27 100 $33.90 93100
021-110-014-000 16.76 16.76 100 $107.30 93100
021-110-022-000 5.49 5.49 100 $35.30 93100
021-110-023-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-110-029-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-110-030-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-110-033-000 491 491 100 $31.60 93100
021-110-034-000 4.89 4.89 100 $31.50 93100
021-110-037-000 12.75 12.75 100 $81.70 93100
021-110-041-000 0.36 0.36 100 $2.60 93100
021-110-042-000 0.52 0.52 100 $3.60 93100
021-110-044-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-110-048-000 4.96 4.96 100 $31.90 93100
021-110-049-000 5.08 5.08 100 $32.70 93100
021-110-050-000 4.34 4.34 100 $28.00 93100
021-110-052-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-110-053-000 4.59 4.59 100 $29.60 93100
021-110-054-000 4.95 4.95 100 $31.90 93100
021-110-055-000 4.52 4,52 100 $29.10 93100
021-110-056-000 6.97 6.97 100 $44.80 93100
021-110-057-000 4.74 4.74 100 $30.50 93100
021-110-058-000 5.49 5.49 100 $35.30 93100
021-110-059-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-110-063-000 6.02 6.02 100 $38.70 93100
021-110-064-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-110-065-000 5.17 5.17 100 $33.30 93100
021-110-066-000 1.3 13 100 $8.60 93100
021-110-067-000 4.67 4.67 100 $30.10 93100
021-110-068-000 19.14 19.14 100 $122.60 93100
021-110-070-000 0.59 0.59 100 $4.00 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xlsxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
021-110-071-000 54.93 54.93 100 $351.30 93100
021-110-072-000 22.6 22.6 100 $144.70 93100
021-120-004-000 0.5 0.5 100 $3.40 93100
021-120-005-000 89.35 89.35 100 $571.20 93100
021-120-006-000 17 17 100 $108.90 93100
021-120-007-000 9.9 9.9 100 $63.50 93100
021-120-008-000 9.9 9.9 100 $63.50 93100
021-120-009-000 5.3 5.3 100 $34.10 93100
021-120-010-000 9.9 9.9 100 $63.50 93100
021-130-003-000 32.479 32.479 100 $207.80 93100
021-130-005-000 0.03 0.03 100 $0.40 93100
021-130-012-000 5.75 5.75 100 $37.00 93100
021-130-014-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-130-015-000 9.75 9.75 100 $62.60 93100
021-130-016-000 9.67 9.67 100 $62.00 93100
021-130-017-000 9.64 9.64 100 $61.80 93100
021-130-018-000 9.02 9.02 100 $57.90 93100
021-130-022-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-130-023-000 6.9 6.9 100 $44.30 93100
021-130-024-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-130-025-000 5.03 5.03 100 $32.40 93100
021-130-026-000 5.07 5.07 100 $32.60 93100
021-130-030-000 5.67 5.67 100 $36.50 93100
021-130-031-000 7.14 7.14 100 $45.90 93100
021-130-032-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-130-033-000 5.19 5.19 100 $33.40 93100
021-130-034-000 5.01 5.01 100 $32.30 93100
021-130-037-000 5.06 5.06 100 $32.60 93100
021-130-038-000 5.12 5.12 100 $33.00 93100
021-130-039-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-130-040-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-130-041-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-130-043-000 1.71 1.71 100 $11.20 93100
021-130-044-000 2.33 2.33 100 $15.10 93100
021-130-045-000 1.65 1.65 100 $10.80 93100
021-130-046-000 1.45 1.45 100 $9.50 93100
021-130-047-000 1.23 1.23 100 $8.10 93100
021-130-048-000 1.05 1.05 100 $7.00 { ~ 93100
021-130-049-000 1.73 1.73 100 $11.30 93100
021-130-050-000 1.31 1.31 100 $8.60 93100
021-130-051-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-130-052-000 1.16 1.16 100 $7.70 93100
021-130-053-000 1.12 1.12 100 $7.40 93100
021-130-054-000 1.27 1.27 100 $8.40 93100
021-130-055-000 1.32 1.32 100 $8.70 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xlsxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
021-130-056-000 1.21 1.21 100 $8.00 93100
021-130-057-000 1.32 1.32 100 $8.70 93100
021-130-058-000 1.17 1.17 100 $7.70 93100
021-130-059-000 1.27 1.27 100 $8.40 93100
021-130-060-000 1.48 1.48 100 $9.70 93100
021-130-061-000 1.55 1.55 100 $10.20 93100
021-130-062-000 1.84 1.84 100 $12.00 93100
021-130-063-000 2.15 2.15 100 $14.00 93100
021-130-064-000 1.47 1.47 100 $9.60 93100
021-130-065-000 1.71 1.71 100 $11.20 93100
021-130-066-000 2.11 211 100 $13.70 93100
021-130-067-000 1.69 1.69 100 $11.00 93100
021-130-068-000 2.58 2.58 100 $16.70 93100
021-130-069-000 1.87 1.87 100 $12.20 93100
021-130-070-000 1.89 1.89 100 $12.30 93100
021-130-071-000 3.13 3.13 100 $20.30 93100
021-130-072-000 2.99 2.99 100 $19.40 93100
021-130-073-000 2.53 2.53 100 $16.40 93100
021-130-074-000 2.4 2.4 100 $15.60 93100
021-130-075-000 2.79 2.79 100 $18.10 93100
021-130-076-000 66.18 66.18 100 $423.10 93100
021-130-077-000 5.04 5.04 100 $32.50 93100
021-130-078-000 5.92 5.92 100 $38.10 93100
021-130-079-000 5.55 5.55 100 $35.70 93100
021-140-001-000 251.35 251.35 100 $1,606.40 93100
021-140-004-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-140-005-000 2.55 2.55 100 $16.50 93100
021-140-008-000 65.51 65.51 100 $418.90 93100
021-140-009-000 14.38 14.38 100 $92.10 93100
021-140-020-000 5.01 5.01 100 $32.30 93100
021-140-022-000 37.28 37.28 100 $238.50 93100
021-140-028-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
021-140-040-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-140-041-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-140-043-000 49.08 49.08 100 $313.90 93100
021-140-044-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-140-045-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-140-048-000 20 20 100 $128.10 93100
021-140-049-000 12.21 12.21 100 $78.30 93100
021-140-050-000 4.45 4.45 100 $28.70 93100
021-140-051-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-140-058-000 105.88 105.88 100 $676.80 93100
021-140-059-000 8.13 8.13 100 '$52.20 93100
021-140-060-000 21.67 21.67 100 $138.70 93100
021-140-061-000 2 2 100 $13.00 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xlsxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel {in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
021-140-062-000 271 2.71 100 $17.60 93100
021-140-063-000 2.25 2.25 100 $14.60 93100
021-150-002-000 3.74 3.74 100 $24.10 93100
021-150-010-000 4 4 100 $25.80 93100
021-150-012-000 6 6 100 $38.60 93100
021-150-013-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-150-014-000 481 4.81 100 $31.00 93100
021-150-015-000 5.93 5.93 100 $38.10 93100
021-150-019-000 2.24 2.24 100 $14.60 93100
021-150-020-000 5.32 5.32 100 $34.20 93100
021-150-021-000 6.19 6.19 100 $39.80 93100
021-150-022-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-150-023-000 4.85 4.85 100 $31.20 93100
021-150-024-000 6.55 6.55 100 $42.10 93100
021-150-027-000 3.06 3.06 100 $19.80 93100
021-150-028-000 6.78 6.78 100 $43.60 93100
021-150-029-000 4.37 4.37 100 $28.20 93100
021-160-002-000 71.99 71.99 100 $460.30 93100
021-160-012-000 18.18 18.18 100 $116.40 93100
021-160-017-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-160-019-000 0.59 0.59 100 $4.00 93100
021-160-020-000 92.02 92.02 100 $588.30 93100
021-160-021-000 4.17 4.17 100 $26.90 93100
021-160-022-000 51.25 51.25 100 $327.70 93100
021-170-009-000 5.8 5.8 100 $37.30 93100
021-170-010-000 4.6 4.6 100 $29.60 93100
021-170-011-000 4.62 4.62 100 $29.80 93100
021-170-012-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-170-015-000 4,52 4.52 100 $29.10 93100
021-170-016-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-170-017-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-170-019-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-170-020-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
021-170-021-000 476 4.76 100 $30.70 93100
021-170-022-000 5.23 5.23 100 $33.70 93100
021-170-024-000 5.03 5.03 100 $32.40 93100
021-170-025-000 419 4.19 100 $27.00 93100
021-170-026-000 31.59 31.59 100 $202.10 93100
021-170-027-000 153.89 153.89 100 $983.60 93100
021-180-010-000 11.76 11.76 100 $75.40 93100
021-180-017-000 11.99 11.99 100 $76.90 93100
021-180-019-000 52.7 52.7 100 $337.00 93100
021-180-022-000 50.74 50.74 100 $324.50 93100
021-180-023-000 7.13 7.13 100 $45.80 93100
021-190-033-000 2.52 2.52 100 $16.40 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xIsxinformational



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
021-190-035-000 51.84 51.84 100 $331.50 93100
021-190-041-000 3.16 3.16 100 $20.40 93100
021-190-042-000 3.65 3.65 100 $23.60 93100
021-190-043-000 38.26 38.26 100 $244.70 93100
021-190-044-000 12.33 12.33 100 $79.00 93100
021-190-045-000 112.83 112.83 100 §721.20 93100
021-190-046-000 15.25 15.25 100 $97.70 93100
021-190-048-000 15.62 15.62 100 $100.10 93100
021-190-049-000 21.28 21.28 100 $136.20 93100
021-190-050-000 10.86 10.86 100 $69.60 93100
021-190-051-000 21.58 21.58 100 $138.10 93100
021-190-052-000 2.56 2.56 100 $16.60 93100
021-190-053-000 5.15 5.15 100 $33.20 93100
021-190-054-000 38.38 38.38 100 $245.50 93100
021-190-055-000 86.78 86.78 100 $554.80 93100
021-190-056-000 117.8 117.8 100 $753.00 93100
021-190-057-000 173.13 173.13 100 $1,106.60 93100
021-190-058-000 200.7 200.7 100 $1,282.70 93100
021-190-059-000 170.28 170.28 100 $1,088.30 93100
021-220-002-000 6.47 6.47 100 $41.60 93100
021-220-004-000 6.31 6.31 100 $40.60 93100
021-220-005-000 7.59 7.59 100 $48.80 93100
021-220-006-000 8.3 8.3 100 $53.30 93100
021-220-007-000 8.14 8.14 100 $52.30 93100
021-220-008-000 7.98 7.98 100 $51.20 93100
021-220-009-000 9.68 9.68 100 $62.10 93100
021-220-010-000 8.44 8.44 100 $54.20 93100
021-220-011-000 8.79 8.79 100 $56.40 93100
021-220-012-000 5.46 5.46 100 $35.10 93100
021-220-013-000 7.01 7.01 100 $45.00 93100
021-220-014-000 5.56 5.56 100 $35.80 93100
021-220-015-000 7.43 7.43 100 $47.70 93100
021-220-016-000 5.65 5.65 100 $36.40 93100
021-220-017-000 6.99 6.99 100 $44.90 93100
021-220-018-000 24.56 24.56 100 $157.20 93100
021-220-019-000 15.92 15.92 100 $102.00 93100
021-220-020-000 5.26 5.26 100 $33.90 93100
021-220-021-000 7.37 7.37 100 $47.30 93100
021-230-001-000 10.97 10.97 100 $70.30 93100
021-230-002-000 9.73 9.73 100 $62.40 93100
021-230-003-000 7.83 7.83 100 $50.30 93100
021-230-005-000 8.44 8.44 100 $54.20 93100
021-230-006-000 8.51 8.51 100 $54.60 93100
021-230-007-000 7.85 7.85 100 $50.40 93100
021-230-008-000 6.57 6.57 100 $42.20 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax information.xisxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |}In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
021-230-009-000 8.38 8.38 100 $53.80 93100
021-230-010-000 9.2 9.2 100 $59.00 93100
021-230-011-000 11.92 11.92 100 $76.40 93100
021-230-012-000 6.48 6.48 100 $41.70 93100
021-230-013-000 7.61 7.61 100 $48.90 93100
021-230-014-000 6.74 6.74 100 $43.30 93100
021-230-015-000 6.8 6.8 100 $43.70 93100
021-230-016-000 12.09 12.09 100 $77.50 93100
021-230-017-000 7.76 7.76 100 $49.80 93100
021-230-018-000 8.21 8.21 100 $52.70 93100
021-230-019-000 7.12 7.12 100 $45.70 93100
021-230-020-000 6.03 6.03 100 $38.80 93100
021-230-021-000 91.88 91.88 100 $587.40 93100
021-230-022-000 12.69 12.69 100 $81.30 93100
021-240-001-000 6.41 6.41 100 $41.20 93100
021-240-002-000 6.24 6.24 100 $40.10 93100
021-240-003-000 5.72 5.72 100 $36.80 93100
021-240-004-000 6.06 6.06 100 $39.00 93100
021-240-005-000 6.59 6.59 100 $42.40 93100
021-240-006-000 6.29 6.29 100 $40.40 93100
021-240-007-000 6.35 6.35 100 $40.80 93100
021-240-008-000 6.98 6.98 100 $44.90 93100
021-240-009-000 7.08 7.08 100 $45.50 93100
021-240-010-000 9.4 9.4 100 $60.30 93100
021-240-011-000 9.2 9.2 100 $59.00 93100
021-240-012-000 6 6 100 $38.60 93100
021-240-013-000 135 135 100 $86.50 93100
021-240-014-000 6.03 6.03 100 $38.80 93100
021-240-015-000 5.49 5.49 100 $35.30 93100
021-240-016-000 5.42 5.42 100 $34.90 93100
021-240-017-000 8.66 8.66 100 $55.60 93100
021-240-018-000 14.99 14.99 100 $96.00 93100
021-240-020-000 61.81 61.81 100 $395.20 93100
021-240-021-000 4.59 4.59 100 $29.60 93100
021-250-001-000 1.01 1.01 100 $6.70 93100
021-250-002-000 1.01 1.01 100 $6.70 93100
021-250-003-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-250-004-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-250-005-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-250-006-000 1.01 1.01 100 $6.70 93100
021-250-007-000 1.15 1.15 100 $7.60 93100
021-250-008-000 1.12 1.12 100 $7.40 93100
021-250-009-000 1.31 1.31 100 $8.60 93100
021-250-010-000 1.07 1.07 100 $7.10 53100
021-250-011-000 1.12 1.12 100 $7.40 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel ]in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code

021-250-012-000 1.23 1.23 100 $8.10 93100
021-250-013-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-250-014-000 1.01 1.01 100 $6.70 93100
021-250-015-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-250-016-000 1.01 1.01 100 $6.70 93100
021-250-017-000 1.77 1.77 100 $11.60 93100
021-250-018-000 1.6 1.6 100 $10.50 93100
021-250-019-000 1.46 1.46 100 $9.60 93100
021-250-024-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-250-025-000 6.23 6.23 100 $40.10 93100
021-260-001-000 1.07 1.07 100 $7.10 93100
021-260-002-000 1.07 1.07 100 $7.10 93100
021-260-003-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-260-004-000 1.09 1.09 100 $7.20 93100
021-260-005-000 1.08 1.08 100 $7.20 93100
021-260-006-000 1.06 1.06 100 $7.00 93100
021-260-007-000 1.01 1.01 100 $6.70 93100
021-260-008-000 1.33 1.33 100 $8.70 93100
021-260-009-000 1.19 1.19 100 $7.90 93100
021-260-010-000 1.07 1.07 100 $7.10 93100
021-260-011-000 1.1 11 100 $7.30 93100
021-260-012-000 1.4 14 100 $9.20 93100
021-260-013-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
021-260-014-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-260-015-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-260-016-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-260-017-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-260-018-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-260-019-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-260-022-000 1.42 1.42 100 $9.30 93100
021-260-023-000 1.17 1.17 100 $7.70 93100
021-260-024-000 1.11 1.11 100 $7.30 93100
021-260-025-000 1.21 1.21 100 $8.00 93100
021-260-026-000 1.21 1.21 100 $8.00 93100
021-270-001-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-270-002-000 1.02 1.02] 100 $6.80 93100
021-270-003-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-270-004-000 1.15 1.15 100 $7.60 93100
021-270-005-000 1.05 1.05 100 $7.00 93100
021-270-006-000 1.17 1.17 100 $7.70 93100
021-270-007-000 1.06 1.06 100 $7.00 93100
021-270-008-000 1.03 1.03 100 $6.80 93100
021-270-009-000 1.01 1.01 100 $6.70 53100
021-270-010-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-270-011-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformational



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel ]in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
021-270-012-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-270-013-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-270-014-000 1.05 1.05 100 $7.00 93100
021-270-015-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-270-016-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-270-017-000 1.12 1.12 100 $7.40 93100
021-270-018-000 1.11 1.11 100 $7.30 93100
021-270-019-000 1.11 1.11 100 $7.30 93100
021-270-020-000 1.4 1.4 100 $9.20 93100
021-270-021-000 1.32 132 100 $8.70 93100
021-270-022-000 1.06 1.06 100 $7.00 93100
021-270-023-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-270-024-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
021-270-025-000 1.38 1.38 100 $9.10 93100
021-270-026-000 1.19 1.19 100 $7.90 93100
021-270-027-000 1.19 1.19 100 $7.90 93100
021-270-028-000 1.19 1.19 100 $7.90 93100
021-280-001-000 2 2 100 $13.00 93100
021-280-002-000 1.66 1.66 100 $10.90 93100
021-280-003-000 1.41 1.41 100 $9.30 93100
021-280-004-000 1.01 1.01 100 $6.70 93100
021-280-005-000 1.17 1.17 100 $7.70 93100
021-280-006-000 0.25 0.25 100 $1.80 93100
021-280-007-000 1.39 1.39 100 $9.10 93100
021-280-010-000 0.41 0.41 100 $2.90 93100
021-280-011-000 23.75 23.75 100 $152.00 93100
021-280-012-000 5.21 5.21 100 $33.50 93100
021-280-013-000 5.85 5.85 100 $37.60 93100
021-280-014-000 5.48 5.48 100 $35.30 93100
021-280-015-000 5.1 51 100 $32.80 93100
021-280-016-000 1.28 1.28 100 $8.40 93100
021-280-017-000 5.77 5.77 100 $37.10 93100
022-140-019-000 10.81 10.81 100 $69.30 93100
022-140-021-000 0.83 0.83 100 $5.60 93100
022-140-022-000 350.06| 213.5639616] 61.00781626 $1,364.90 93100
022-140-023-000 7.35 7.35 100 $47.20 93100
022-140-026-000 43.66| 5.728108845| 13.11980954 $36.90 93100
022-160-027-000 120.35| 56.93392286] 47.30695709 $364.10 93100
022-160-037-000 45.98 19.434256] 42.26675947 $124.40 93100
022-160-038-000 22.88 21.0249503] 91.89226529 $134.60 93100
022-160-046-000 128.53| 3.608244441] 2.807316923 $23.30 93100
022-160-047-000 180.13| 2.320226707| 1.288084554 $15.10 93100
022-160-050-000 84.35| 14.47549967| 17.16123257 $92.70 93100
022-170-042-000 116} 12.23732725| 10.54942004 $78.40 93100
022-190-001-000 5.31 5.31 100 $34.20 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformational



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
022-190-002-000 3.88 3.88 100 $25.00 93100
022-200-008-000 2.95 2.95 100 $19.10 93100
022-200-009-000 0.1 0.1 100 $0.90 93100
022-200-010-000 2.84 2.84 100 $18.40 93100
022-200-011-000 0.74 0.74 100 $5.00 93100
022-200-012-000 6.26 6.26 100 $40.30 93100
022-200-013-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
022-210-001-000 0.429 0.429 100 $3.00 93100
022-210-002-000 0.397 0.397 100 $2.80 93100
022-210-007-000 0.857 0.857 100 $5.70 93100
022-210-009-000 0.249 0.249 100 $1.80 93100
022-210-010-000 0.253 0.253 100 $1.90 93100
022-210-011-000 0.287 0.287 100 $2.10 93100
022-210-012-000 0.332 0.332 100 $2.40 93100
022-210-017-000 0.096 0.096 100 $0.90 93100
022-210-018-000 0.096 0.096 100 $0.90 93100
022-210-021-000 0.192 0.192 100 $1.50 93100
022-210-022-000 0.193 0.193 100 $1.50 93100
022-210-023-000 0.25 0.25 100 $1.80 93100
022-210-024-000 0.192 0.192 100 $1.50 93100
022-210-025-000 0.173 0.173 100 $1.40 93100
022-210-027-000 0.163 0.163 100 $1.30 93100
022-210-028-000 0.163 0.163 100 $1.30 93100
022-210-029-000 0.163 0.163 100 $1.30 93100
022-210-030-000 0.165 0.165 100 $1.30 93100
022-210-031-000 0.165 0.165 100 $1.30 93100
022-210-032-000 0.165 0.165 100 $1.30 93100
022-210-033-000 0.229 0.229 100 $1.70 93100
022-210-034-000 0.821 0.821 100 $5.50 93100
022-210-035-000 0.725 0.725 100 $4.90 93100
022-210-037-000 0.875 0.875 100 $5.80 93100
022-210-038-000 1.216 1.216 100 $8.00 93100
022-210-039-000 0.29 0.29 100 $2.10 93100
022-210-040-000 0.192 0.192 100 $1.50 93100
022-210-041-000 0.76 0.76 100 $5.10 93100
022-210-042-000 0.62 0.62 100 $4.20 93100
022-210-044-000 0.174 0.174 100 $1.40 93100
022-210-047-000 0.59 0.59 100 $4.00 93100
022-210-048-000 0.68 0.68 100 $4.60 93100
022-210-049-000 141 1.41 100 $9.30 93100
022-210-053-000 0.192 0.192 100 $1.50 93100
022-210-054-000 0.289 0.289 100 $2.10 93100
022-210-055-000 0.33 0.33 100 $2.40 93100
022-210-056-000 0.17 0.17 100 $1.30 93100
022-210-057-000 0.17 0.17 100 $1.30 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xlsxIinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel {In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage in Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
022-220-002-000 1.21 1.21 100 $8.00 93100
022-220-003-000 0.267 0.267 100 $2.00 93100
022-220-004-000 0.055 0.055 100 $0.60 93100
022-220-008-000 0.069 0.069 100 $0.70 93100
022-220-009-000 0.289 0.289 100 $2.10 93100
022-220-010-000 0.192 0.192 100 $1.50 93100
022-220-011-000 0.192 0.192 100 $1.50 93100
022-220-012-000 0.028 0.028 100 $0.40 93100
022-220-014-000 0.055 0.055 100 $0.60 93100
022-220-015-000 0.139 0.139 100 $1.10 93100
022-220-016-000 0.289 0.289 100 $2.10 93100
022-220-017-000 0.951 0.951 100 $6.30 93100
022-220-018-000 1.01 1.01 100 $6.70 93100
022-220-022-000 1.274 1.274 100 $8.40 93100
022-220-023-000 1.13 1.13 100 $7.50 93100
022-220-025-000 0.234 0.234 100 $1.70 93100
022-220-032-000 0.13 0.13 100 $1.10 93100
022-220-034-000 0.294 0.294 100 $2.10 93100
022-220-039-000 0.14 0.14 100 $1.10 93100
022-220-040-000 0.14 0.14 100 $1.10 93100
022-220-041-000 0.14 0.14 100 $1.10 93100
022-220-042-000 2.174 2174 100 $14.10 93100
022-220-043-000 5.16 5.16 100 $33.20 93100
022-220-044-000 0.34 0.34 100 $2.40 93100
022-220-045-000 0.25 0.25 100 $1.80 93100
022-220-046-000 0.068 0.068 100 $0.70 93100
022-220-047-000 0.275 0.275 100 $2.00 93100
022-220-048-000 0.207 0.207 100 $1.60 93100
022-220-049-000 1.101 1.101 100 $7.30 93100
022-220-050-000 0.917 0.917 100 $6.10 93100
022-220-051-000 0.342 0.342 100 $2.40 93100
022-230-003-000 0.414 0.414 100 $2.90 93100
022-230-011-000 0.706 0.706 100 $4.80 93100
022-230-018-000 0.522 0.522 100 $3.60 93100
022-230-021-000 0.179 0.179 100 $1.40 93100
022-230-022-000 0.165 0.165 100 $1.30 93100
022-230-027-000 0.144 0.144 100 $1.20 93100
022-230-028-000 0.137 0.137 100 $1.10 93100
022-230-029-000 0.156 0.156 100 $1.20 93100
022-230-030-000 0.424 0.424 100 $3.00 93100
022-230-031-000 0.275 0.275 100 $2.00 93100
022-230-032-000 0.81 0.81 100 $5.40 93100
022-230-036-000 4.42 442 100 $28.50 93100
022-230-037-000 0.74 0.74 100 $5.00 93100
022-230-038-000 0.47 0.47 100 $3.30 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformational



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
022-230-039-000 0.46 0.46 100 $3.20 93100
022-230-040-000 0.46 0.46 100 $3.20 93100
022-230-043-000 0.754 0.754 100 $5.10 93100
022-230-044-000 0.257 0.257 100 $1.90 93100
022-230-047-000 0.131 0.131 100 $1.10 93100
022-230-048-000 0.143 0.143 100 $1.20 93100
022-230-049-000 4.16 4.16 100 $26.80 93100
022-230-051-000 1.06 1.06 100 $7.00 93100
022-230-052-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
022-230-053-000 0.25 0.25 100 $1.80 93100
022-230-058-000 0.29 0.29 100 $2.10 93100
022-230-059-000 0.33 0.33 100 $2.40 93100
022-230-060-000 0.64 0.64 100 $4.30 93100
022-230-061-000 0.51 0.51 100 $3.50 93100
022-250-001-000 2.5 2.5 100 $16.20 93100
022-250-002-000 26.85 26.85 100 $171.80 93100
022-250-004-000 59.23 59.23 100 $378.70 93100
022-250-006-000 0.26 0.26 100 $1.90 93100
022-250-007-000 36.95 36.95 100 $236.40 93100
022-250-008-000 37.45 37.45 100 $239.60 93100
022-250-009-000 1.91 1.91 100 $12.50 93100
022-250-010-000 17.61 17.61 100 $112.80 93100
022-250-011-000 2.18 2.18 100 $14.20 93100
022-250-012-000 1.8 1.8 100 $11.80 93100
022-250-013-000 5.78 5.78 100 $37.20 93100
022-250-014-000 4.92 4.92 100 $31.70 93100
022-250-015-000 22.5 22.5 100 $144.00 93100
022-250-016-000 31.14 31.14 100 $199.20 93100
022-300-001-000 3.01 3.01 100 $19.50 93100
022-300-002-000 19.33 19.33 100 $123.80 93100
022-300-003-000 3 3 100 $19.40 93100
022-300-004-000 3 3 100 $19.40 93100
022-300-005-000 3 3 100 $19.40 93100
022-300-006-000 4.96 4.96 100 $31.90 93100
022-300-007-000 6.77 6.77 100 $43.50 93100
022-300-008-000 9.84 9.84 100 $63.10 93100
022-300-009-000 6.03 6.03 100 $38.80 93100
022-300-010-000 9.94 9.94 100 $63.80 93100
022-300-011-000 4.68 4.68 100 $30.20 93100
022-300-012-000 5.27 5.27 100 $33.90 93100
022-300-013-000 6.33 6.33 100 $40.70 93100
022-300-014-000 3 3 100 $19.40 93100
022-300-015-000 3.59 3.59 100 $23.20 93100
022-300-016-000 5.97 5.97 100 $38.40 93100
022-300-017-000 3.11 3.11 100 $20.10 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xlsxinformational



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel {In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage Charge to SBC Tax Code
022-300-018-000 3 3 100 $19.40 93100
022-300-019-000 3 3 100 $19.40 93100
022-300-020-000 331 331 100 $21.40 93100
022-300-021-000 3 3 100 $19.40 93100
022-300-022-000 3.19 3.19 100 $20.60 93100
022-300-023-000 4.19 4,19 100 $27.00 93100
022-300-024-000 6.5 6.5 100 $41.80 93100
022-300-025-000 3.12 3.12 100 $20.20 93100
022-300-026-000 3.65 3.65 100 $23.60 93100
022-300-027-000 321 3.21 100 $20.80 93100
022-300-028-000 3.35 3.35 100 $21.70 93100
022-300-029-000 3.9 39 100 $25.20 93100
022-300-030-000 6.67 6.67 100 $42.90 93100
022-300-031-000 3 3 100 $19.40 93100
022-300-032-000 3 3 100 $19.40 93100
022-300-033-000 3 3 100 $19.40 93100
022-300-034-000 3.32 3.32 100 $21.50 93100
022-300-035-000 3.01 3.01 100 $19.50 93100
022-300-036-000 8.54 8.54 100 $54.80 93100
022-300-037-000 5.13 5.13 100 $33.00 93100
022-300-038-000 31 31 100 $20.10 93100
022-300-039-000 31 3.1 100 $20.10 93100
022-300-040-000 3.19 3.19 100 $20.60 93100
022-300-041-000 3.27 3.27 100 $21.10 93100
022-300-042-000 3.35 335 100 $21.70 93100
022-300-043-000 3.35 3.35 100 $21.70 93100
022-300-044-000 3.1 31 100 $20.10 93100
022-300-045-000 4.15 4.15 100 $26.80 93100
022-310-001-000 7.29 7.29 100 $46.80 93100
022-310-002-000 9.53 9.53 100 $61.10 93100
022-310-003-000 9.32 9.32 100 $59.80 93100
022-310-004-000 8.54 8.54 100 $54.80 93100
022-310-005-000 9.49 9.49 100 $60.90 93100
022-310-006-000 3.89 3.89 100 $25.10 93100
022-310-007-000 10.92 10.92 100 $70.00 93100
022-310-008-000 10.51 10.51 100 $67.40 93100
022-310-009-000 3 3 100 $19.40 93100
022-310-010-000 3 3 100 $19.40 93100
022-310-011-000 344 3.44 100 $22.20 93100
022-310-012-000 3.97 3.97 100 $25.60 93100
022-310-013-000 4.29 4.29 100 $27.70 93100
022-310-014-000 3.21 3.21 100 $20.80 93100
022-310-016-000 3.18 3.18 100 $20.60 93100
022-310-017-000 4.21 4.21 100 $27.20 93100
022-310-018-000 3.35 3.35 100 $21.70 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xlsxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
022-310-019-000 3.79 3.79 100 $24.50 93100
022-310-020-000 3.77 3.77 100 $24.30 93100
022-310-021-000 3 3 100 $19.40 93100
022-310-022-000 3.06 3.06 100 $19.80 93100
022-310-023-000 3 3 100 $19.40 93100
022-310-024-000 3 3 100 $19.40 93100
022-310-025-000 3 3 100 $19.40 93100
022-310-026-000 3 3 100 $19.40 93100
022-310-027-000 3.72 3.72 100 $24.00 93100
022-310-028-000 3.28 3.28 100 $21.20 93100
022-310-029-000 3 3 100 $19.40 93100
022-310-030-000 6.35 6.35 100 $40.80 93100
022-310-031-000 6.27 6.27 100 $40.30 93100
022-310-032-000 6.74 6.74 100 $43.30 93100
023-070-005-000 12.5 12.5 100 $80.10 93100
023-070-006-000 127.52| 85.43248486 66.9953614 $546.20 93100
023-070-019-000 8.5 8.416358418| 99.01598139 $54.00 93100
023-070-044-000 152.06 38.015 25 $243.20 93100
023-070-045-000 53.52 53.52 100 $342.20 93100
023-070-049-000 387.76f 238.0755343] 61.39765171 $1,521.60 93100
023-070-052-000 7.71 7.71 100 $49.50 93100
023-070-053-000 42.81 42.81 100 $273.80 93100
023-070-055-000 5.58 5.58 100 $35.90 93100
023-070-056-000 423.76] 141.249471 33.3324219 $902.80 93100
023-070-057-000 361.77| 43.36747432 11.9875817 $277.40 93100
023-100-013-000 2.28 2.28 100 $14.80 93100
023-100-019-000 27.36 27.36 100 $175.10 93100
023-100-024-000 5.86 5.86 100 $37.70 93100
023-100-025-000 28 28 100 $179.20 93100
023-100-026-000 58.74 58.74 100 $375.60 93100
023-100-027-000 62.38 62.38 100 $398.90 93100
023-100-029-000 112.65 112.65 100 $720.10 93100
023-100-030-000 39.2 39.2 100 $250.70 93100
023-100-032-000 136.26 136.26 100 $871.00 93100
023-100-033-000 1.9 1.9 100 $12.40 93100
023-100-036-000 25.46 25.46 100 $162.90 93100
023-100-041-000 375.73} 370.8350894| 98.69722657 $2,369.90 93100
023-100-042-000 9.67 9.67 100 $62.00 93100
023-100-044-000 6 6 100 $38.60 93100
023-100-046-000 8.67 8.67 100 $55.70 93100
023-100-047-000 352.071 309.6602878; 87.95418178 $1,979.00 93100
023-100-048-000 98.76 98.76 100 $631.30 93100
023-100-052-000 207.77 207.77 100 $1,327.90 93100
023-100-055-000 11.92 11.92 100 $76.40 93100
023-100-056-000 20.34 20.34 100 $130.20 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xlsxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |[In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
023-100-064-000 56.14 56.14 100 $359.00 93100
023-100-068-000 92.61 92.61 100 $592.00 93100
023-100-069-000 280.43 280.43 100 $1,792.20 93100
023-100-070-000 40.01 40.01 100 $255.90 93100
023-100-071-000 543.6 543.6 100 $3,473.90 93100
023-110-005-000 130.669 130.669 100 $835.20 93100
023-110-014-000 6.12] 2.342572739] 38.37733233 $15.20 93100
023-110-020-000 32.57] 3.89517884| 11.95940694 $25.10 93100
023-110-026-000 49,61 49.61 100 $317.30 93100
023-110-027-000 17.65 17.65 100 $113.00 93100
023-110-030-000 12.5 12.5 100 $80.10 93100
023-110-034-000 213.9| 203.4415394 95.1105841 $1,300.20 93100
023-110-035-000 84.02{ 33.80786757] 40.23788094 $216.30 93100
023-110-036-000 150.73| 45.23935196{ 30.01350226 $289.30 93100
023-110-040-000 42.36f 30.62179567| 72.28941376 $195.90 93100
023-110-041-000 252.35| 15.89915749] 6.300438869 $101.80 93100
023-110-044-000 210.06 210.06 100 $1,342.50 93100
023-110-045-000 151.2| 111.5836989| 73.79874266 $713.30 93100
023-120-001-000 7.75 7.75 100 $49.80 93100
023-120-008-000 12.73 12.73 100 $81.60 93100
023-120-022-000 74.33 74.33 100 $475.20 93100
023-120-032-000 23.13 23.13 100 $148.10 93100
023-120-035-000 1.87 1.87 100 $12.20 93100
023-120-036-000 2.17 2.17 100 $14.10 93100
023-130-003-000 197.75| 12.82499318 6.48545799 $82.20 93100
023-160-001-000 72.57| 1.603330777| 2.209357554 $10.50 93100
023-160-008-000 115.1| 36.11462916] 31.37674123 $231.00 93100
025-090-004-000 159.36 159.36 100 $1,018.60 93100
025-090-005-000 158.2 158.2 100 $1,011.10 93100
025-090-017-000 348) 2247738555 64.59018835 $1,436.60 93100
025-090-018-000 204.56 204.56 100 $1,307.40 93100
025-090-019-000 240{ 77.09426522| 32.12261051 $492.90 93100
025-090-020-000 200] 199.9320364] 99.96601821 $1,277.80 93100
025-090-022-000 120 120 100 $767.10 93100
025-090-025-000 236.36 236.36 100 $1,510.60 93100
025-090-026-000 3.64 3.64 100 $23.50 93100
025-090-031-000 30.61 30.61 100 $195.80 93100
025-090-035-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-090-037-000 8.15 8.15 100 $52.30 93100
025-090-038-000 5.06 5.06 100 $32.60 93100
025-090-041-000 23 2.3 100 $14.90 93100
025-090-043-000 3 3 100 $19.40 93100
025-090-044-000 3.76 3.76 100 $24.30 93100
025-090-053-000 29.6 29.6 100 $189.40 93100
025-090-054-000 26.51 26.51 100 $169.60 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xlsxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |{In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
025-090-055-000 33.63 33.63 100 $215.10 93100
025-090-056-000 40.07 40.07 100 $256.30 93100
025-090-057-000 11.75 11.75 100 $75.30 93100
025-090-058-000 13.49 13.49 100 $86.50 93100
025-090-059-000 16.6 16.6 100 $106.30 93100
025-090-060-000 40f 4.810213596 12.02553399 $31.00 93100
025-090-062-000 1.26 1.26 100 $8.30 93100
025-090-063-000 1.35 1.35 100 58.90 93100
025-090-069-000 19.46 19.46 100 $124.60 93100
025-090-070-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-090-071-000 5! 4.523034606 90.46069212 $29.20 93100
025-100-002-000 160 160 100 $1,022.70 93100
025-100-004-000 178.39] 4.358402169 2.443187493 $28.10 93100
025-100-007-000 202.87 202.87 100 $1,296.60 93100
025-100-008-000 236.77| 113.6977295 48.02032752 $726.80 93100
025-100-011-000 25.68 23.57887346 91.81804308 $150.90 93100
025-100-013-000 66.62| 42.11098819 63.2107298 $269.30 93100
025-100-018-000 4.91 491 100 531.60 93100
025-100-019-000 29.12] 25.54803226 87.73362726 $163.50 93100
025-100-020-000 50.2| 18.57874437 37.00945094 $119.00 93100
025-100-022-000 41.12} 40.62792191 98.80331203 $259.90 93100
025-190-012-000 30.15 30.15 100 $192.90 93100
025-190-032-000 160{ 63.57839811 39.73649882 5406.50 93100
025-190-033-000 80| 79.9285396 99.9106745 $511.00 93100
025-190-057-000 179.62] 167.082831 93.02017091 $1,067.90 93100
025-190-058-000 399.26] 40.08220632 10.03912396 $256.40 93100
025-190-062-000 29.09 29.09 100 $186.10 93100
025-190-063-000 1.12 1.12 100 $7.40 93100
025-190-066-000 54.96 54.96 100 $351.40 93100
025-190-071-000 94.97 94.97 100 $607.10 93100
025-190-076-000 228.2] 8.977929687 3.934237374 $57.60 93100
025-190-077-000 24.99] 0.98316592 3.934237374 $6.50 93100
025-190-078-000 213.12| 8.384646691 3.934237374 $53.80 93100
025-190-081-000 146.62| 5.768378838 3.934237374 $37.10 93100
025-200-001-000 106.75| 105.4796672 98.80999271 $674.30 93100
025-200-002-000 80/ 0.11011474 0.137643425 $1.00 93100
025-200-015-000 40 40 100 $255.90 93100
025-200-016-000 40 40 100 $255.90 93100
025-200-017-000 26.66 26.66 100 $170.60 93100
025-200-022-000 26.66 26.66 100 $170.60 93100
025-200-029-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
025-200-030-000 37.63 37.63 100 $240.70 93100
025-200-031-000 37.78 37.78 100 $241.70 93100
025-200-039-000 33.51 33.51 100 $214.40 93100
025-200-040-000 15 15 100 $96.10 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax lnformation.xlsxlnformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
025-200-041-000 14.99 14.99 100 $96.00 93100
025-200-056-000 0.97 0.97 100 $6.40 93100
025-200-057-000 1.43 1.43 100 $9.40 93100
025-200-060-000 37.11 0.291016516] 0.784411094 $2.10 93100
025-200-061-000 15.26 15.26 100 $97.80 93100
025-200-062-000 15.26 15.26 100 $97.80 93100
025-200-064-000 368.58 368.58 100 $2,355.50 93100
025-200-067-000 6.73 6.73 100 $43.30 93100
025-200-068-000 3.82 3.82 100 $24.70 93100
025-200-069-000 2.29 2.29 100 $14.90 93100
025-200-071-000 73.96 73.96 100 $472.90 93100
025-200-073-000 20 20 100 $128.10 93100
025-200-074-000 20 20 100 $128.10 93100
025-200-076-000 2.59 2.59 100 $16.80 93100
025-200-077-000 23.82 23.82 100 $152.50 93100
025-200-078-000 23.06 23.06 100 $147.60 93100
025-200-079-000 62.79 62.79 100 $401.50 93100
025-200-080-000 2.83 2.83 100 $18.30 93100
025-200-081-000 3.53 3.53 100 $22.80 93100
025-200-082-000 9.51 9.51 100 $61.00 93100
025-200-083-000 26.18 26.18 100 $167.50 93100
025-200-084-000 4.64 4.64 100 $29.90 93100
025-200-085-000 13.33 13.33 100 $85.40 93100
025-200-086-000 26.67 26.67 100 $170.70 93100
025-210-001-000 10.6 10.6 100 $68.00 93100
025-210-006-000 95.88 95.88 100 $612.90 93100
025-210-007-000 26 26 100 $166.40 93100
025-210-016-000 10.87 10.87 100 $69.70 93100
025-210-019-000 80 80 100 $511.50 93100
025-210-020-000 35.45 35.45 100 $226.80 93100
025-210-023-000 44.42 44.42 100 $284.10 93100
025-210-024-000 60.83 60.83 100 $389.00 93100
025-210-031-000 8.119 8.119 100 $52.10 93100
025-210-034-000 5.1 5.1 100 $32.80 93100
025-210-035-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-210-036-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-210-040-000 70.53 70.53 100 $450.90 93100
025-210-041-000 14.63 14.63 100 $93.70 93100
025-210-042-000 5.45 5.45 100 $35.10 93100
025-210-043-000 25.41 25.41 100 $162.60 93100
025-210-044-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
025-210-048-000 75.62 75.62 100 $483.50 93100
025-210-049-000 78.69 78.69 100 $503.10 93100
025-220-002-000 53.64 53.64 100 $343.00 93100
025-220-009-000 40 40 100 $255.90 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |jin Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage in Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
025-220-017-000 120 120 100 $767.10 93100
025-220-019-000 46.95 46.95 100 $300.30 93100
025-220-031-000 21.96 21.96 100 $140.60 93100
025-220-032-000 19.92 19.92 100 $127.50 93100
025-220-039-000 13.31 13.31 100 $85.30 93100
025-220-041-000 8.27 8.27 100 $53.10 93100
025-220-042-000 50.69 50.69 100 $324.20 93100
025-220-043-000 41} 39.46527581| 96.25677026 $252.40 93100
025-220-044-000 49.17] 35.8014381 72.8115479 $229.00 93100
025-220-046-000 18.2 18.2 100 $116.50 93100
025-220-051-000 13.96 13.96 100 $89.50 93100
025-220-052-000 19.61 19.61 100 $125.60 93100
025-220-053-000 10.75 10.75 100 $68.90 93100
025-330-003-000 114 114 100 $73.10 93100
025-340-001-000 38.83 38.83 100 $248.40 93100
025-340-003-000 11.55 11.55 100 $74.10 93100
025-340-004-000 494 494 100 $31.80 93100
025-340-005-000 3.59 3.59 100 $23.20 93100
025-340-006-000 0.92 0.92 100 $6.10 93100
025-340-008-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-340-009-000 75 75 100 $479.50 93100
025-340-038-000 15 15 100 $96.10 93100
025-340-039-000 50.81 50.81 100 $324.90 93100
025-340-040-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-340-041-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-340-042-000 5.17 5.17 100 $33.30 93100
025-410-001-000 141.23 141.23 100 $902.70 93100
025-410-002-000 156.06 156.06 100 $997.50 93100
025-410-003-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
025-410-004-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-410-005-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-410-006-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-410-007-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-410-009-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-410-010-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-410-011-000 7.47 7.47 100 $48.00 93100
025-420-007-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-420-008-000 5.16 5.16 100 $33.20 93100
025-420-013-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-420-014-000 6.42 6.42 100 $41.30 93100
025-420-015-000 6.73 6.73 100 $43.30 93100
025-420-016-000 0.57 0.57 100 $3.90 93100
025-420-020-000 15.45 15.45 100 $99.00 93100
025-420-022-000 34.32 34.32 100 $219.60 93100
025-420-023-000 0.7 0.7 100 $4.70 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformational



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
025-420-024-000 31 3.1 100 $20.10 93100
025-420-026-000 36.43 36.43 100 $233.00 93100
025-420-027-000 5.36 5.36 100 $34.50 93100
025-420-029-000 i7.4 17.4 100 $111.40 93100
025-420-030-000 23.72 23.72 100 $151.80 93100
025-420-032-000 51.51 51.51 100 $329.40 93100
025-420-033-000 5.1 5.1 100 $32.80 93100
025-420-034-000 0.19 0.19 100 $1.50 93100
025-420-036-000 0.55 0.55 100 $3.80 93100
025-420-037-000 50.6 50.6 100 $323.60 93100
025-420-038-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-420-039-000 6.41 6.41 100 $41.20 93100
025-420-041-000 5.37 5.37 100 $34.60 93100
025-420-042-000 2.48 2.48 100 $16.10 93100
025-420-043-000 5.54 5.54 100 $35.70 93100
025-420-044-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-420-047-000 31.94 31.94 100 $204.30 93100
025-430-003-000 1.64 1.64 100 $10.70 93100
025-430-004-000 21.23 21.23 100 $135.90 93100
025-430-005-000 51.59 51.59 100 $329.90 93100
025-430-006-000 1.01 1.01 100 $6.70 93100
025-430-008-000 14.53 14.53 100 $93.10 93100
025-430-009-000 20.39 20.39 100 $130.50 93100
025-430-010-000 1 1 100 $6.60 93100
025-430-011-000 6.79 6.79 100 $43.60 93100
025-430-012-000 13.58 13.58 100 $87.00 93100
025-430-013-000 6.79 6.79 100 $43.60 93100
025-430-017-000 5.15 5.15 100 $33.20 93100
025-430-018-000 5.33 5.33 100 $34.30 93100
025-430-019-000 19.96 19.96 100 $127.80 93100
025-430-024-000 0.39 0.39 100 $2.70 93100
025-430-025-000 4.97 497 100 $32.00 93100
025-430-026-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-430-027-000 31.1 31.1 100 $199.00 93100
025-430-028-000 23.2 23.2 100 $148.50 93100
025-430-029-000 35.15 35.15 100 $224.90 93100
025-430-030-000 32.509 32.509 100 $208.00 93100
025-440-001-000 152.77 152.77 100 $976.50 93100
025-450-004-000 15.33 15.33 100 $98.20 93100
025-450-005-000 3.91 3.91 100 $25.20 93100
025-450-006-000 21.69 21.69 100 $138.80 93100
025-460-002-000 2.48 2.48 100 $16.10 93100
025-460-003-000 2.56 2.56 100 $16.60 93100
025-460-007-000 2.47 2.47 100 $16.00 93100
025-460-008-000 2.63 2.63 100 $17.10 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xIsxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
025-460-009-000 1.46 1.46 100 $9.60 93100
025-460-010-000 1.02 1.02 100 $6.80 93100
025-470-006-000 2.74 274 100 $17.80 93100
025-470-007-000 2.31 2.31 100 $15.00 93100
025-470-008-000 5.09 5.09 100 $32.80 93100
025-470-009-000 2.59 2.59 100 $16.80 93100
025-500-001-000 5.19 5.19 100 $33.40 93100
025-500-002-000 5.05 5.05 100 $32.50 93100
025-500-003-000 5.15 5.15 100 $33.20 93100
025-500-004-000 5.04 5.04 100 $32.50 93100
025-500-005-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-500-006-000 5.01 5.01 100 $32.30 93100
025-500-007-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-500-008-000 5.03 5.03 100 $32.40 93100
025-500-009-000 7.09 7.09 100 $45.60 93100
025-500-010-000 8.49 8.49 100 $54.50 93100
025-500-011-000 8.1 8.1 100 $52.00 93100
025-500-012-000 5.04 5.04 100 $32.50 93100
025-500-013-000 4.96 4.96 100 $31.90 93100
025-500-014-000 5.68 5.68 100 $36.50 93100
025-500-015-000 5.32 5.32 100 $34.20 93100
025-500-016-000 5.06 5.06 100 $32.60 93100
025-500-017-000 5.04 5.04 100 $32.50 93100
025-500-018-000 5.5 5.5 100 $35.40 93100
025-500-019-000 5.06 5.06 100 $32.60 93100
025-500-020-000 5.07 5.07 100 $32.60 93100
025-500-021-000 5.17 5.17 100 $33.30 93100
025-500-022-000 5.02 5.02 100 $32.30 93100
025-500-023-000 5.36 5.36 100 $34.50 93100
025-500-024-000 5.04 5.04 100 $32.50 93100
025-500-025-000 5.29 5.29 100 $34.10 93100
025-500-026-000 5.96 5.96 100 $38.30 93100
025-510-001-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-510-002-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-510-003-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-510-004-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-510-007-000 5.06 5.06 100 $32.60 93100
025-510-008-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-510-009-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-510-010-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-510-011-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-510-012-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-510-013-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-510-014-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-510-015-000 5.19 5.19 100 $33.40 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xisxinformational



Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
025-510-016-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-510-017-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-510-018-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-510-019-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-510-020-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-510-021-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-510-022-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-510-023-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-510-024-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-510-025-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-510-026-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-510-027-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-510-028-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-510-029-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-510-030-000 5.26 5.26 100 $33.90 93100
025-510-031-000 5.08 5.08 100 $32.70 93100
025-520-001-000 6.29] 6.032021357| 95.89859073 $38.80 93100
025-520-011-000 5 2.3949742} 47.89948399 $15.60 93100
025-520-012-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-520-013-000 5.21 5.21 100 $33.50 93100
025-520-014-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-520-015-000 5] 1.858090888| 37.16181776 $12.10 93100
025-520-018-000 5| 0.122803821| 2.456076419 $1.00 93100
025-520-019-000 5| 4.807411553] 96.14823106 $31.00 93100
025-520-022-000 5.68 5.68 100 $36.50 93100
025-520-023-000 5.77} 1.911889156] 33.13499404 $12.50 93100
025-520-024-000 5.74] 1.457636633] 25.39436643 $9.60 93100
025-520-025-000 5.69 5.69 100 $36.60 93100
025-570-001-000 5 5 100 $32.20 93100
025-570-002-000 4.86 4.86 100 $31.30 93100
025-570-003-000 45 45 100 $29.00 93100
025-570-004-000 4.9 4.9 100 $31.60 93100
025-570-006-000 4.53 4.53 100 $29.20 93100
025-570-007-000 4.2 4.2 100 $27.10 93100
025-570-008-000 4.74 4.74 100 $30.50 93100
025-570-009-000 4.96 4.96 100 $31.90 93100
025-570-010-000 4.92 4.92 100 $31.70 93100
025-570-011-000 4.93 493 100 $31.80 93100
025-570-012-000 4.85 4385 100 $31.20 93100
025-570-013-000 4.7 4.7 100 $30.30 93100
025-570-014-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
025-570-015-000 10 10 100 $64.20 93100
026-070-010-000 79.04 79.04 100 $505.30 93100
026-070-012-000 47.59 47.59 100 $304.40 93100
026-080-006-000 40.88 40.88 100 $261.50 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xlsxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
026-080-007-000 311 31.1 100 $199.00 93100
026-080-010-000 114.15| 96.10474799| 84.19163205 $614.40 93100
026-080-011-000 31.07 31.07 100 $198.80 93100
026-080-014-000 144.77 144.77 100 $925.30 93100
026-080-015-000 80.68 80.68 100 $515.80 93100
026-080-018-000 29.86 29.86 100 $191.10 93100
026-080-022-000 19.59 19.59 100 $125.40 93100
026-080-023-000 59.54 59.54 100 $380.70 93100
026-080-027-000 40 40 100 $255.90 93100
026-080-028-000 40.03 40.03 100 $256.00 93100
026-080-036-000 306.54] 237.6756256| 77.53494671 $1,519.00 93100
026-080-041-000 33.36f 0.326724793] 0.979390867 $2.30 93100
026-080-043-000 4.13| 0.48433978] 11.72735546 $3.30 93100
026-080-045-000 11.51 11.51 100 $73.80 93100
026-080-046-000 65.04 65.04 100 $415.90 93100
026-080-047-000 11.16| 0.860184754] 7.7077486%94 $5.70 93100
026-080-048-000 0.76 0.76 100 $5.10 93100
026-080-049-000 12.19] 4.456545405| 36.55902711 $28.70 93100
026-080-050-000 1.02 1.02 100 $6.80 93100
026-080-051-000 127.27| 84.28997475 66.2292565 $538.90 93100
026-080-052-000 4411 44.11 100 $282.10 93100
026-080-053-000 121.14 121.14 100 $774.30 93100
026-100-001-000 71.54 71.54 100 $457.40 93100
026-100-005-000 5.72 5.72 100 $36.80 93100
026-100-008-000 160 160 100 $1,022.70 93100
026-100-009-000 102.47 102.47 100 $655.00 93100
026-100-010-000 55.99 55.99 100 $358.00 93100
026-100-011-000 160 160 100 $1,022.70 93100
026-120-004-000 58.65| 28.05842983| 47.84046007 $179.50 93100
026-120-005-000 38.11 38.11 100 $243.80 93100
026-120-007-000 156.5 156.5 100 $1,000.30 93100
026-120-008-000 51.32| 45.98630698| 89.60698943 $294.10 93100
026-120-013-000 43.58| 5.57915786| 12.80210615 $35.90 93100
026-120-015-000 183.71] 62.35885582| 33.94418149 $398.70 93100
026-120-021-000 139.12 139.12 100 $889.20 93100
026-120-022-000 38.84] 37.0555219] 95.40556618 $237.00 93100
026-120-025-000 80.99 80.99 100 $517.80 93100
026-120-026-000 70.67 70.67 100 $451.80 93100
026-120-028-000 35.83 35.83 100 $229.20 93100
026-120-032-000 0.66 0.66 100 $4.50 93100
026-120-034-000 81.86 81.86 100 $523.30 93100
026-120-049-000 19.76 19.76 100 $126.50 93100
026-120-050-000 33.91 33.91 100 $216.90 93100
026-120-051-000 20 20 100 $128.10 93100
026-120-054-000 25.5 25.5 100 $163.20 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xlsxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |in Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage In Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
026-120-056-000 40 0.5] 1.228286974 $3.40 93100
026-120-057-000 40 45| 11.34546417 $29.00 93100
026-130-004-000 549.14f 147.1054335| 26.78832966 $940.30 93100
026-150-001-000 322.8] 284.7546525| 88.21395678 $1,819.80 93100
026-150-006-000 363.51} 321.6410485] 88.48203585 $2,055.50 93100
026-150-012-000 37.6 37.6 100 $240.50 93100
026-150-018-000 62.13 62.13 100 $397.30 93100
026-150-026-000 34.11 34.11 100 $218.20 93100
026-150-027-000 55.96 55.96 100 $357.80 93100
026-150-028-000 60.91 60.91 100 $389.50 93100
026-150-030-000 56.71 56.71 100 $362.60 93100
026-150-033-000 1.05 1.05 100 $7.00 93100
026-150-037-000 146.24 146.24 100 $934.70 93100
026-150-040-000 153.82 153.82 100 $983.20 93100
026-150-041-000 165.89 82.945 50 $530.30 93100
026-150-042-000 167.29 167.29 100 $1,069.20 93100
026-150-043-000 160 160 100 $1,022.70 93100
026-160-007-000 520] 395.2223337} 76.00429495 $2,525.70 93100
026-160-016-000 23.17 23.17 100 $148.30 93100
026-170-014-000 300} 241.0077991] 80.33593302 $1,540.30 93100
026-170-015-000 250.94 188.205 75 $1,202.90 93100
026-170-020-000 38.43 38.43 100 $245.80 93100
026-170-021-000 47.03] 33.64579592| 71.54113527 $215.20 93100
026-170-022-000 17.97] 3.316470001] 18.45559266 $21.40 93100
026-170-024-000 40 40 100 $255.90 93100
026-170-027-000 80 80 100 $511.50 93100
026-170-028-000 160 160 100 $1,022.70 93100
026-170-029-000 160 160 100 $1,022.70 93100
027-030-005-000 2.54 2.54 100 $16.50 93100
027-030-023-000 28] 19.40853971f 69.31621326 $124.30 93100
027-030-024-000 160| 46.48244686] 29.05152929 $297.30 93100
027-080-005-000 43.12 43.12 100 $275.80 93100
027-080-019-000 7.58 7.58 100 $48.70 93100
027-080-020-000 10| 3.565628094| 35.65628094 $23.00 93100
027-080-026-000 18.54| 2.200835806] 11.87074327 $14.30 93100
027-080-031-000 122.38} 120.6419296 98.5797758 $771.20 93100
027-080-032-000 124.86 31.215 25 $199.70 93100
027-080-046-000 130.62] 28.02541914 21.4556876 $179.30 93100
027-080-049-000 105.91| 35.43966611] 33.46205846 $226.70 93100
027-080-053-000 40| 36.85502292 92.1375573 $235.80 93100
027-080-054-000 19 19 100 $121.70 93100
027-080-055-000 13 13 100 $83.30 93100
027-080-057-000 70] 52.96207113| 75.66010162 $338.70 93100
027-080-058-000 29.13| 3.81075137| 13.08187906 $24.60 93100
027-080-060-000 1.55| 1.021433786] 65.89895395 $6.80 93100

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax information.xisxinformational




Assessors Parcel Parcel Benifitting Percent Parcel |[In Basin APN

Number Acreage Acreage in Basin Charge to SBC Tax Code
027-090-006-000 0.11 0.11 100 $1.00 93100
027-130-003-000 8| 6.967951383| 87.09939229 $44.80 93100
027-140-025-000 282.611 62.6663372| 22.17414005 $400.70 93100
027-140-026-000 331.27| 300.6203247| 90.74782647 $1,921.20 93100
051-100-049-000 13.15 13.15 100 $84.30 93100
051-100-050-000 0.68 0.68 100 $4.60 93100
051-100-051-000 0.66 0.66 100 $4.50 93100
051-100-052-000 0.66 0.66 100 $4.50 93100
051-100-053-000 0.69 0.69 100 $4.70 93100
051-230-003-000 9.14 9.14 100 $58.70 93100
051-230-004-000 6.21 6.21 100 $39.90 93100
051-230-005-000 14.04 14.04 100 $90.00 93100
051-230-006-000 18.25 18.25 100 $116.90 93100
052-090-017-000 26.02 26.02 100 $166.50 93100
052-090-030-000 53 53 100 $34.10 93100
052-090-031-000 2.4 2.4 100 $15.60 93100

$471,432.20
less .30 per apn $949.80
Dist GMF $470,482.40

Preliminary 2025-26 Tax Information.xlsxinformational




